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= THE arrest and mpnsonment by the Earl,
of Selkik; of several ‘partners and people in the
- Serviee of thé North-West Company, at Fort
William, in August 1816, upon charges of
< hxgh treason, mutder, robbery; ‘and consplra—
ke ey;” I8 well known fo the public ; and the
protzeedmgs" by indictment and- otherwise; a-
gainst them; and fiumerous others, their adher-
ents; which hiave subsequently taken place; have
 equally been frequently. detailed in the pubhc
prints of Canada.. ..

The trials at York in Upper Canada, of which
this volume contains a faithful report, niow de-
"monstratwely exhibit the utter futllrty of those -
charges ; and the fong penod that has elapsed
between the time. they were brought, and that-
when the titels upon them have taken place,.
is an additional. proof, . if any were wanting, of

the oppres’smns under colour of law; to whick |
1%
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Lord Selkirk has subJected the . North-West’
Company. The records of the secretary’s offi-
ces of both provinces, w will shew that it was ever
-the anxious wish of the partles accused to have .
speedy justice done to them,. that théy might
“have an early 0pponumty of -establishing their
innocence ; and it 1s perhaps one of the strong-
est: instances of the perversion of le:gal reme- -
dies, that his Lordship has been enabled to
keep prosecutions hanging over individuals for
- upwards of two year$, without delgmng to fur-
msh the Crown wﬁh any emdence to, substﬁntz-
As the pmclpal part of the evxdenee neces-
arylia*the défence of these parties-(and in fact
also that-whichiwas to be: brought against them,)
swas eithertohe found in Upper Ganada, or wes
. to. be; procured. from the Indian termtones, H
appeared that '« jusime could. be .more.conve-
« niently administered”” in tha,t _province  than
in ‘Lower: Candda;- and as far back as March,
1817, applieation was “made to the Governor in
Chief, then Sir John Coape. Sherbrogke, to di-
© zeet ‘the removal of these cases thither. It
© seems; hawever; that His Exeellency. Judged it
expedient to consult the government at. home,
so that it was.not till the 24th October, that,
(the reply being favourable to. the removal,)
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great seal instrurdents were issued on the first
petitions, and on the 20th November, and 7th
February follomng, on others presefited by
: vpersOns subsequently accused. - -

* A1l this while the documentary and OthER e~
vidente, which Lord Selkirk affirmed that he
possessed as.the gro’und of these proceedings,
was kept back by him; leaving the law officers.
6f the'€rown in’ both ‘provinces to complam of
‘benig- unable to dlscharge thelr duty to the
pubhc and to thé accused. L
' btrong reménstrances were: repeatedly made
to the goveérnments: of both- -provinces on the
subject of the mischievous and- ‘oppressive de-
Tays complame& of. - The af,torney-general of
Upper'Canada, his' l‘eport it reply, dated the
10th March, 1818; says, “ we were: then,” (re-

ferring to- a previous' statémént made to the
~ Governor of Upper' Cdnada, "en' the subjeet,)
. compeHed to- state' what I can’ only repeat
'« now, that we were not-only totally unprepar-
«ed to enter upon the- prosecutioms- ih“ques-f
j“ tion; but that we were also withetit any means
« of knowing when we could be’ prepared.”-—
« We could not advise anindefinite aumber of

« prisoriets charged with offences: of Which we
«knew only by rumour the general characier,
<« and’none of: the partrcular facts to be hasfen-
-« ed Kither for trzal while we were: unfurmsh—
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& ed with: those means of drawing up the mdmt~
¢ ments, and enabhng us to conduct the Prosef- '
s cytions,. which we take . care to have, and
« which- decency m.the. admuustratlon of crlm-“
< inal justice- requires we should have, in every
¢ common lareeny —*We._ had recelyed ‘in-
o« formatlon that copxes of . all the deposmons
« were preparmg for us,. Whlch with the othep
« mformatlon we. required, we. expected to:re- -
« celye before this time.- ~But L am_ yet. w:th—
“ out these - ‘mecessary instructions.” And he
*adds, « I know no reason but that which it is
¢ scarcely fair af this time .to. give to the pri-
. -%¢ soners, namel'y, that we are yet.quite unpre-
o pared to-try them; and:know not how long
¢ we may be . suffered to. ‘Temaip- 0, Why. the
- «-20th of April,” (which was the day prayed to -
be appointed. for the . ‘tnals,) <. might not be :
< named. for- the opening -of the Court » -
Memorials in behalf. partmularly of those of
the accused who were suffering under protract-
" ed imprisonment, accompanied by this report
of the attorney-general of Upper. Canada, were
presented soon after to the Governor in Chief,
1In- rep]y, HIS Excellency caused it to. be
stated, that as it appeared from that report that

“ no, proceedmgs had been commenced anUp- '

« per Canada against them, he’. should not feel
« Justxﬁed m xeleas;ng them from. pnson, and
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- sending theni to: Upper €anada; until at least:
 « the pnvate prosecitor, whose hands was; the:
« information_mecessary for instituling - such’ @
« preceedang,:shoild . be called . upon to furnish
« the. Crown .officers of Upper Canada - with
<« such parts of it as they might require. This-
«. enformation - bein’g,” as Hus E:a,cellency ‘under-,
«stood,:to be:grven by Lord Selkirk; the law-offi-
< cers had been directed to call on his Lordship-
« peremptorily to transmit the same to Upper.
«.Canada without delay, and to intimate- to hlS‘ :
“« Lordshlp, that: unless withina further reason-
« able time the Crown officers of Upper-Canada
« were furnished ‘with the evidence ‘necessary.
« for the commencement of proceedmgs there,
¢ His Excellency would . feel justified in order-
«.ing: the’ discharge of ‘the’ petitioners.”” - His
' Exce]]ency further intimated - that if proceed—
ings were not commenced. against them-in: Up-
per Canada: before the end of Jupe, he should
consider them entitled to. their discharge. -
- The attorney—general .of Lower Canada also,
| in reportma' under date 19th J une:- 1818, to the
Governor in Chief, in reply to a further remon-
strance which was made in- that month, 'states
that «the: pnvate prosecutor, the - Earl of Sel-
« kirk, who alona possesszd the evidence in suppori:
- <« of these proseoutwns, ‘had: been : absent from
“ the' provmce, ‘agd :strice hls retyrn his time



‘? had been very much occupled wzth the s1t-
* Montreal L o
" . Here it is worthy of remark, that durmg up- '
wards of a year subsequent to the arrest of these
mdlvadua]s, ‘the prlvate prosecuter was occupl-
“ed, not in- attending « the sittings ¢ of crumna,l :
« Courts: at Quebec and Montreal ” but:in acts
of : unprecedented violenee and depredatmn,
which were only checked by the -Prince Re-
gent’s proclamation, and by the measures pre-
scribed by His MaJesty s government for en-
forcmg it ;-and- then, instead of returmng to
this province with: the specml comm1s510ner, to
ieet the- accuSatlons against him, and to esta~
blish - hls charges against others, < the evidence in
“ support of . whick Im alone posscsse«i 2 he went
~ on a tedious and cu'cultous journey 1 for his.own
private purposes and did not get to- Montreal
till February 1818; Whllst his Lordshlp s sub-
sequent occupatlens in the criminal Courts of
Lower Canada, whether as a pubhc mformer,
or private prosecutor, could aﬁ"ord no vahd an~-_
swer to persons compla.mmg of a gnevance m
the delay of _]ustlce
Dragged at: length into the arena by the de—
termination before alluded to of. the: Gevernm
in Chlef {0~ con51der the. parttes mpnsened as
.entltled to hberatlon, 1f preceeé‘mgs were- nrof
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instituted against them within a given time, his
- Lordship was compelled to take measures for
,cqmmehci‘ng such ; and the result of these pro~
ceedings-constitute a trrumphant vindication of
the parties accused, and: a conclusive - demon-
stratron not: only of the obwausmoilves»m which
" these fnveleus and vexatious charges originat-
ed, but also of the iniquity of the means em-
plo_yed in bolstenng them.up, by ‘every insidi-
ous art to- prejudice the public opinion. ‘
- Instead, hewever, « of making his appearance
as the private px:osecufor in" these -causes af
York where he was anxiously expec’ae& up to
the very hour of the commencement of Brown
and Boucher s trial, his' Lordship dlsappomte&
~ the Grown oﬁ‘icers, his own witnesses, and the
| pubhc, and, although ke started from Montreal
* in the direction of Upper €anada, he soon after
i:umed off - to the left, and ploceeded by way of
Nevme_olk to England, anthpatmg_, no-deubt,
this, signal deféat, and unable te withstand the
ﬁlbrtiﬁéation ‘of witnessing it in-persor. - -
“Bt-will be observed that ‘amongst ihese trials

is that of two of Lord Selkirk’s settlers, (Coo-
* per and Bennerman,) who maved a conveyanee
from ‘the ' North—West Company and. left . the
Red River for Upper Canada. They were in-
eluded in an‘indictment with several others for
stealing canuon, -on the merits of which-there is
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ot oecasion to say’ any tlung here, as they will
| speak for themselves on a perusal of . the .evi-
dence. This trial has in fact no direct relation
to thc_e f disjiu"teé ‘between -Lord Selkirk and the
North-West Compalny; but his’ Lordship hav-
mg ‘all along endeavoured assuluously to im-
press on the public mind, the idea that'the de-
sertions wlnch took place’ from his colony were.

wholly to be ascrlbed to the persuasions and, o

enticements of the North-West, Company, the -
evidence produced ‘on this occasion (Whmh
might have been mu]ftlphed 10 an indefinite ex-

. tent, by the numerous other individuals who,

havmg escaped from ]Red River, are now settled
in Upper Canada,) will clearly demonstrate that -
it was the wretched state of misery into which -
' these delude,d people were plunged, and the

, oppressmns they suffered, that produced the -
spmt of dissatisfaction prevalhng amongst them,

‘and induced them, some to find their way.out
~ at all risks through the savage tribes by way of
Fond du Lac, others to lay a plan for eccapmg ‘
by the Mississippi into the United States, and’
others to apply to the humamty of the North-
West Company’s people to give them a passage
to Canada This testimony of their sufferings, -

and of the deceptions practiced upon them by
the Karl of Selkirk and his agents, comesin - -
ampie’ooﬁ_ﬁ,;fmation of the prophefi¢ view tak-



gn by the honourable and reverend Dr. Stra. e

_han of York, in hls able letter. to the Earl re-
latlve to his Red Rlver colony, pubhshed in
1815 5 and upon the whole, both with respect
1o those deluswns, and to 1he calnmmes heap-
‘ed upon the N orth-West Company, it will now
be found that the veil is rept asunder, the mask
is. torn. away, and the vile deformlty they have
hxdden is. exposed to the view of the World

......






- FOR the explanation of some technical. and local terais and
phrases 1 made use of in these trials, A GLOSSARY is sub_;omed,

of s s'uch os are not famzlzar io general madsrs, viz': "

Anglois -—An Envhehman, the Enghsh but applied ewclu:n e}y to-ihe
servants of the Hudson’s Bay Company, whether English, French,
or Half-breeds, in contiradistinction to the fur-traders from Canade,
who are called F‘rdn;ow, of mha'ever country or laxaguage they Hay
be. - .

Arpent (as a measure of length.)—180 French feet. .

‘Bateau/—A boat or barge, which are only " used on the large navxgabh
lakes and rivers-of the country.: they are flat botiomed and’earry g
bout four or five tons.

Bois-brulés.—See Half-breeds.

. Bourgeois—Master, employer; applied both spemaﬂy to the persem -

" (whether partner or clerk) who-has the command and syperintendence
of a trading-post, or of a canoe, and, generally, to persons ranlmg
ag gentlemen, or above the: class of servants.

Brigade-—A fleet of canoes, bound to or from 2 pnrhcular tradmg-post
or deyartment

Copote—A great coat. :

Conseil—A. council ; generally applied to the formal meetings betweezz
‘parties of Indians, or between the traders and Indians. :

Department.—Portion of country, the trade -of which is placed under
the special management of one or more partners or bourgeois. -

Engagé.~—An engaged servant: applied specially to the Canadians who
engrge as voyageurs or voyagers for a ierm of years in the service of
tlie fur-traders. .

English~—See Anglois. )

Eguipemeni.~—Equipment ; the clothes and other articles furnished
yearly to the clerks and servants of the'fur-traders, every individual
in their employment receiving an equxpmeut pwportxwed {0 his sta~
‘tion. :

Fort.—~The trading posts are always called forts, thongh in general ny
otherwise fortified than by being piaced in a square inclosure formed
of palisades or pickets; indeed every house in the Indxan country i
called a fori.

Frangois—A Frenchman, tbe French, but applied exclusxvely to the
Canadian fur-traders, of whatever nation, to distinguish tkem from
tEhe traders who come flom Hudson’s Bay, who are called Anglois,

nglish. -

Freemen.—Canadians and otbers (not Indians iy haif “breeds) who re~
side in the Indian countries, as hunters, ﬁchermen, or farmers, and
are not engaged servants of the fur-traders.

Haulf-breeds, Metgfs, Bots-brulés~—The names given to the mixed po-

* pulation which exists in the North- ‘West arising from the connection
of Europeans or Canadiaps with the Indian women.. These appélla~
tions are. synonymouns. The first is the English one; Méi if, isa
corruption of the Spanish Messice ; -and the term of Bois-brulé is said
1o bederived frem the satlew complexsion of the half-hreeds being com~
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g{j'a;eé iq the 'a'pll:'ea;;tm':e of a forest of fir-trees that had been bumi}' ‘
an occorrence frequent in'those parts, and which assumes an upie>
versal brgwn and dingy colour. -

Hangard—An outhouse of any description; whether.a shéd,' d pent-

' house, or a closed store, in which goods are deposited;
Hommes libres—Freemen ; see Freemen. - . .. .. ... :
Marche, march & day’s. march~—~The distante. a canoe. goes in a day.
Metifs—See Half-breeds:... .. . - ... . .. .
‘North-Canoe~A canoe cilculated for the shallow rivers, and difficult
navigation of the-initerior ; it is about half the size of a Montreal cas
noe, or one used in the navigation between Montreal and Fort Wil-
pHam, . T e Ce et
Pemican.—The meat of buffaloes, -or moose-deer, dried and pounded,’
.. mixed with grease or fat; it is generally put into bags made .out of
the hide, and called Taureaux : :it is the yniversal article. of food a-
mongst the engagés, half-breeds. and Indiars in the North-West;
. whien travelling in the opem season.. - - TV ]
Piece.—A package made up for the Northi West, weighing about 90
+_Ibs- for the convenience of carrying across the portages.
Portege~A carrying place. oL
Prairie—A level tract of country without wood. ... = . =
8now Shoes.~~Net work made with thongs of raw, hides stretched upon &
- frameof, an oval shape from thiree to. four feet long,.and 18 inches
.. broad'which are fastened to the feet in order to walk over the snow. .
FTaureau—A bag of Pemican. or pounded meat, made of raw buffaloe
.. hide, weighing usually about 90 Ibs. . e

ain—A sledge. ! .

~ 4 catioe-men. - The tefin applics also to the traders théinselves: .

" Voyageur, Voyager—Canadians.and others engaged by the fueryadeté
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ERRAT A

i BROWN aiid BOUCHER's Tridl,

Pagc 88 lme 10 for began then. 'read began them.

2, line 8, for interfere, read interpose.
99, line 9 from botlom, for 1818, read 1803,

101, line 14, for equitam, read.equitumi..

ibid. line 16, , for heref: read Heref. (abbr. for Heref‘ord)

109, 4ne 11 from bottom, for part of Crown, read part of the Crown,

130 line 15 from bottom, for more fully,. read most. fuliy )

200, line 8 from bottom, for one to which, read one in answer to which.

208, tine ', for it is, reudisit.

222, line 5 fram bottom, for not a boat, read not in a boat.

23& line 8 from bottom, for as L um,, read as I am now.

9.99 line 2 from, baztom, “for before that same yedr, read before, in

that same year.

Fn thé Triad of the ACCESSARIES.

15, line 19, for 1815, redd 1816.
QS line 5, for 1815, read 1816.
57 line 12, for in Juvorem mie, read in favorem vite.
90 and 91, transposé the bottomn line of page 91, to the botiom Qf
. age 90,
. 450, lmf5g Jar Protam, reivd Poxtras e
454, line la, for Court deposed, read trust reposed
159, line 9, for Miles Magdonetl, read Alexr. Macﬂonel]
1389, line 1J JSor R1v1ere a0x Motrs, read Riviere aux Morts.
205 bottorn lme, Jor again made to go, redd were made to 2o.

I COOPER and BENJVER‘M.&NS Trial,

E‘eﬂge &, line 43 from bottom, -after wrong, putaline, to denote the i<

terruption,






PROVINCE OF UPPER CANADA.
| HOME DIST_RICT; |

Session. of Ovzr and TEgl}/IiNi«:iéf, and gen_emzz
Gaol Delivery, held at YdRK; in the Home
Dstrict, on Monday the 19 ‘of October, 1818.

' PRESENT.

His Lordship Chief Justice PowsLr,

The honourable Mr. Justice CamrerzLL, o

The honourable Mi, Justice BovLtox, = . .. .

The honourable James Basy, Esq.¢ sustices of the Pedge
ILLIAM ALLAN, Esquire; % for the Home district.

.- True Commission, (Appendix A.) under.the
Great Seal of the Province was read, after which
the Grand Jury were.sworn in, and charged by
his Lordship the Chief Justice; .the substance of
which charge, as far as related to the trials of of-
fences committed in the Indian territories, was as
follows: :

. ‘vCeizt:Zeqnén of the quhd Jury,

Iy addition to your ordinary function of

delivering the gaol, and enquiring of crimes com-

mitted within this district, you wiil be-called upon,

under the provisions of a statute of the United

Kingdom, passed in the 43d year of his Majesty’s

reign, to enquire of crimes and offences charged
A
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to have been committed in territories not within
_1he limits of the Home district, or of the province.

To give this jurisdiction to this Court, the sta-
tute makes it necessary that the Governor of
Lower Canada should, by an instrument under
the seal of that province, declare that justice may
be more conveniently administered with relation to
any particular crime or offence in Upper, than in
Lower, Canada.

Under such a declaration, which will be mani-
fested to you by production of the instrument,
charges will be exhibited against various individu-
als for the highest crimes, murder, robbery, and

_arson, not only as principals, or actual perpetra-
tors of the crimes, %ut as accessaries before and
after the fact. ' ' v

It must be unnecessary almost for the Court to
enter upon an explanation’ to you, gentlemen, who
have so long and so properly exercised the func-
tion of grand jurors, of what constitutes these of- .
fences. . ; ' o
. Murder is that aggravated homicide which is
of forethought malice, and wants all the alleviating:
circumstances which the tenderness of criminal
law admits to qualify homicide into manslaughter
excuseable, or justifiable. This malice the law
presumes where the evidence of the fact shews
not the contrary, therefore it is usual so to charge
the homicide in the indictment, leaving it to the
accused to shew, on his defence, to the petit jury,
or jury of trial, the alleviating circumstances which,
in their judgement, may constitute only an inferior
offenee. Robbery, you well know, is larceny, aggra- -
vated by force. It is the forcibly taking and carrymg
away the money or goods of anether, against his
will, from his person, putting.him in fear, of what-
wver value the goods or money may be, and it may
be, if the goods or money were not upon the person,



AT T T

NSRRI

hut taken_in his presence; by force, feloniously,
and_ putting in fear. Robbery so deﬁngd‘ Is a ca-
pital offence 1n the actors present, and in the ac-.
cessaries before the fact. Arsonis the wilful and
smalicious burning of the house or-out-house of ano-
ther. Under this general definition is compre-
hended all out-houses, barns, and stables that are
parcel of the dwelling, though not contiguous to i,
or under the same roof. But, to constitute this
offence, it must be done maliciously, and not by
accident, and there must, besides the attempt to
set fire,- be an actual burning, however small the
consumption. Thisis also-a capital offence in prin-
cipal’ and accessary before the fact. . Gentlemens;
in the course of this investigation you will find
facts charged as felonious, and wearing such an
appearance in every respect, wanting perhaps that
which ought to constitute felonious robbery or
Jarceny, the animus furandi, and wanting that,
the taking the goods of another, without his con-
sent, is, in law, a trespass, and the nice shades by
which the same .act may be distinguished to be
trespass or felony, is properly of the considera-
tion of the jury of trial, smce you can scarcelyre-
<ceive light from the ex parte testimony of the prose-
eutor to shew that what he charges as felony 1s me-

* rely trespass; but, should that appear satisfactorily

to you, and that there was no intention to steal, no
emus furands in the taking, you can not conscren-
tiously putsthe accused to answer. The prosecu-
iions are remote from the scene of action, and
the facts charged to have been committed in the
Indian territories, visited by rival traders, where

~you can hardly expect to meet with impartial rela-
- tions of facts, but that is the consideration of the

jury of trial, who will weigh the credit of each

witness.  Your duty is also to decide according to

evidence, but you are not expected to sift it so
A*
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closely, . Qtis sufficient for you to ascertain by evis
dence that the fact charged has been committed,.
and that thére.is strong probability that the accus-
edisthe perpetrator. e
Gentlemen; the publicity given to the details.
- which'are to be laid before you, by dispersing in:
pamphlets the 'depositions’ of witnesses taken be-
fore the magistrates, may have presented them to-
vou, and made impressions’oniyour minds’ favour-
able or unfavourable to these prosecutions. Ineed-
not tell you that it is a first duty on your part, to di-
vest your minds of all such impressions; and bring
them to the legal enquiry, free and unprejudiced, so-
as to receive the evidence brought before you with-
out bias, and to weigh it with the strictest impartia-
lity, never fOJ'getting that your business is* merely
to inquire and report the truth of the fact, and the:
probability of the charge to be such as should put-
the accused upon his defence. - . :
'There is also, I find; in the docket furnished by
the Crown officers, a bill against more than twen-
ty individuals for a conspiracy to subvert the set-
tlement at Red River, aﬁso i the Indian territory,
and which must be subjected to the jurisdiction of
this Court, and your consideration of it must be
guided by the same course as the other crimes
charged to have been committed there. - :
Conspiracy, strictly speaking, is an odious com-
bination  or concert, of two or more persons, to" -
charge others with a criminal conduct which
might expose them to danger from prosecution:
. But, v a wider view, the law considers as con-
spiracy all conicert and confederacies whatsoever
wrongfully to prejudice a third person, and sub-
jects the conspirators, when convicted, to the hea-
¥y penalty of fine and imprisonment, and ia certain’
cases, to infamous and corporal punishments. This
eoncert may be without' direct personal communis’
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-cation, anyevidence which demonstrates that there
was confederacy between the parties accused, -to
eeffect the criminal purpose, although that purpose
should not have heen actually effected, constitutes
the offence of conspiracy, of which the overt acts
are confirmation. o = '
N Thursday, 22d October, 1818.

Andictments (Appendix B, C, and D,y were  found
- - by theGrand Jury against
:CurueerT-GranT,

- Louis Perravrr,
Pavr Brown, and
Frawgors F. Bovcuer,
Airey Macpoverr, -
JonuxN SwvericHT,
-Seraramt Lamarre, and
Prrer Paromaw, ©

~ ALExANDER MackENzIE,

- Joun McDowacrp,

- Simox Fraser, -

Ariery ‘McDoxrzrr, .
Seraramt Lamarre, . 1 as accessaries after, the

.Hven McGrris, - ¢ Ject, V
Jorn McLaveunri, '

Wirtiam Spaw, ; :
Jomn ‘Sivericar, and "
Perer Pavémaw, " | ,
Jor the mugder of Robert Semple, Esquire, on
U the 19tk of June, 1816 ;

Grorce CampBELL, E as prencipals, for arson,

U8 prencipals ;

as accessaries before, and

CurmBerr Grant, and on the 28tk of June,
\VILL;AM Suaw, ' 1815; -~ = ‘
(The indictment against Duscan Camero, as ac-
cessary before the fact, being thrown out,)
. And against Pave Broww, Sfor robbery ¢n o duwel-
fing-house. ' " "

. vio P
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_ Friday, 23d October, 1318,

- An indictment against’
George Camesrrr, Sor malz’cz’ods@ishoo'tz"ng
§ ot Miles Macdonell,

Rosert Guny, and
Hzecror McDonatp,

was returned by the Grand Jurg—,——l;{o biil. |

 Attorney-General—1I rise to move the process of
the Court against the persons on the indictment
which the grand jury returned yesterday. Brown
and Boucher, two of the principals, are in custo-
dy. 1 therefore move that process do issue against
Cuthbert Grant, Allen M’Donell, ———

Mr. Sherwood.—1I beg leave to state to the Court
that the gentlemen against whom the Attorney-
General is moving that process do issue, are mere-
ly charged as accessaries, and they .are all here
‘upon bail. I believe it is never usual to move the
process of the Court against accessaries until con-
viction has taken place against the principals, but
even were it the customary course, still the very
different circumstances under which these defend-
ants stand, would completely set it aside. These
persons Lave all been admitted to bail, have en-
tered into recognizances which have been taken

~ under the high authority of the Governor General
~ of the Canadas. Whether this bail or these recog-
nizances are good or bad, is not now to be a ques-
tion, it is sufficient that they have been taken un-
der the highest authority, and that, in fulfilment of
the obligation imposed by them, these gentlemen
are present in this Court. It is therefore incompes-
tent to the Attorney-General to move the process
of the Court against persons who, in their presence,
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are fulfilling the obli%aﬁon-which they have enter-
ed into of appearing before the Court. - But why
should it be moved? they are all under bail, un-
der bail in such sums as appeared adequate to en-
sure their appearance here, and they do- appear.
At any rate tll the principals are convicted, In no
case, underno circumstances, Is it customary to
attach accessaries. The principals, or two of them,
are in actual custody of the Court, and till they
are convicted, I contend, a capias ought not to is-
sue against those charged merely as accessaries,
and who come forward and say, here we are. Till .
authorities are shewn -for such a course, I should .
think your Lordships will not sanction the appli-
cation. These persons do not appear here in the
ordinary course of things; the charge has been
~ preferred against them in the Lower province, a
. part were taken into custody, and a part were put
under recognizance, and in this manner they have
been transmitted by the government below, under
the authority of the act, the special act under which
they are indicted. Itis, I have asserted, not a usu-
al course to move the process of the Court against
accessaries, then I ask, can any reason be assigned
for doing so in the present case? Can there'be
any reasun given for their being taken into custo-
dy here, when the government of the Lower pro-
vince have admitted them to bail, and they fulfil
their recognizance by appearing here. They were
once in custody, and were sent below, and there
a ‘part were detained in confinement, and the
others were liberated npon giving security. I ad-
vance then that"the principals alone having been
sent in custody by the government of the: Lower
province, whilst the accessaries appear here in
obedience to the recognizances into which they
have entered under the sanction of the high autho-
rity of the Governor General, in addition to thear-

5
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gument, that it is not usual to take accessaties intc
custody till after the conviction of the principals, I
advance that these gentlemen stand merely like
persons accused of a misdemeanor,’ and having
given bail, and appeared in Court, it'is not com=
petent to this Court to issue their process against
thew. The indictment under which they are
charged, is preferred under a particular ‘act from -
which this Court derives its authority, and which
is a special act conferting jurisdiction. =~ .
- Chaef Justice Powell—These proceedings being
founded on a special act, we must have the au-
‘thority under which we are to take cognizance of.
them. S . Lo '
" JMr. Sherwood—1I trust in the contest of these
rival companies no measures will be resorted to,
calculated to gratify those vile passions, which
unfortunately mark the conduct of some persons. =
Attorriey General—I know nothing of rival com-.
panies, -or of disputes between them. - In the dis-
_charge of my duty I know nothing except what I
obtami from informations placed before me and
from  the returns of the grand jury. They have
returned as true a bill of indictment for murder
against a number of persons whe are not in custo-
dy, and to bring them befor¢ the Court, I adopt
- the usual course, viz.  that of moving that capias
do issue to take them in custody. Thisis the ordi-
nary course and it is my duty to pursue it. What-
ever indulgence your Lordships may be pleased
1o extend to them when before the Court will be
cheerfully acquiesced in on my part, but it is with
your Lordships and not withk me. = 1 know nothing
of this any more than any other case, but from the
grand jury, and to bring the persons whom they
aceuse by the indictment before the Court, I move
that its process do issue against these who are not
in custody. B :
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JMr. Sherwood—Then I beg.to produce high,

very high, legal authority against the proposition:
The authority upon which this proposition will be
rested, is, I take it, the 2 and 3, Edward VI. cap.
24. In Hawkins, vol. 2, page 457, sec. 1. 50,
(which Mr. Sherwood read, providing for the indict-'
menty trial, judgment and punishment in one county, of:
accessaries 10 a murder commitied in anather.) Now
it might be and is necessary to know if the imput-
.ed offence has been committed in any ceunty, or,
as that can not be from the nature of the case,
whether it was committed in Upper Canada. The
Attorney-General “will perhaps demonstrate that
the crime has been committed as laid, but then
the legal question respecting the ‘accessaries will
remain. 1 thus early state that, as to where the -
offence, if committed at all, was committed, we do
not wish to raise ‘a question.”” We have no desire
whatever to question the jurisdiction but to go to
trial upon the plain and simple plea of not guilty.
But surely, 'under all the circums:ances of the case,
the Attorney-General will not expect that the pro-
cess of this Court shall issue agamst these gentle-
- men before the conviction of the principals, or
some of them, nor indeed can he move it when
they are actually present.’ Referring to the au-
thority which I hold in my hand, Hawkins, the
law of exigent is clearly laid down, and all its fea-
tures fully delineated, and therel find that ‘capias
"is the first step in proceeding to outlawry, and is
the incipient measure to bring before "the Court
persons: who although bound to appear before it,
do not come forward agreeably to the tenor of
their recognizance, ‘not against géntlemen who
manifest their anxiety to fulfil every obligation
which the law bas imposed upon them. The cb~
ject and intent of capias being issued is to prevent
the public justice of the country from being evad-
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ed: 1t is issued ex necessifule rei, because, without - -
it, the accused can not be brought to answer the

charges and offences alleged against him, but here

we are ready to go to trial, we present ourselves

befere the Court, and wait only its courselof prac-

tice to enable us to underge our trials, for which

we are equaily, if not more, anxious than the

Crown. I state unequivocally to the Court that

‘the course proposed by the Attorney-General is -
one that I look, but look in vain, for any authority

to support. Ifthere are authorities to sustain such

2 course they will doubtless be known to the At-

torney-General, and if he will state any instance,

2 single instance, if he will produce any authority

of exigent, to which, I repeat it, capias is the in-

cipient measure, if the Attorney-General can ex-

kibit a singleinstance wherein that course has been

resorted to before a single principal has been con-

victed, I have done; but #ill Mr. Atterney puts

the principals upon trial, and convicts them’ all,
or proceeds to owilawry in their cases, be can not,

according te my judgment, be allowed process

against gentlemen charged as accessaries who are

under recognizances allowed by the Governor Ge-

neral, and are moreover actually present.

Chief Justive—As the question arises upon in-
dictments founded on the 43d of the King, till I
see that we have authority to take cognizance of
the offence and the offender, I can not proceed
with the argument. Have you, Mr. Attorney-
General, great seal instruments {rom the Lower
province transmitting these persons, and the par-
ticular offence upon which the grand jury have re-
turned a true hill, to this province for trial ?

(The great seal instruments (Appendiz K. L. M
and JV.)were then handed to the Court.  The Chief
Justice remarked that it had been already held that the
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Gireul Seal of the Lower province proved ilself, there -
could therefore be no difficully.)
-Aitorney-General.—1 move the process of the
Court against the persons named in the indictment,
-~ for the murder of Mr. Semple who are not already
in custody.
JMr. Sherwood—As Mr. Attorney-General per-
sists in his motion, I beg to offer high, very high,
“authority i support of the opinions I have sub-
mitted, that the course taken by Mr. Attorney-
General is as extraordinary and unprecedented, as
it is, in the present instance, completely uncalled
for. I produce first, Chitty, vol. I. who your Lord-
- ship knows invariably refers to the authorities up-
on which any opinion he advances is founded, and .
at pages 338 and 339, Ifind him considering the
nature of process in general ; page 338, he says,
¢ Precess 15 so denominated because it proceeds or
« issues forth to bring the defendant into Court
¢ to answer the charge preferred against him and
¢ signifies the writs or judicial means by which he
“ is brought to answer.” He then goes on to de-
scribe that what, before a bill is returned by a
grand jury, is termed a warrant, is subsequently
denominated process; that in every commission
of Oyer and Terminer the power of issuing pro-
cess s incidentally communicated on the sound
principle that where power is instrusted to enquire
nto offences, the authority to compel the attend-
ance of the party accused must necessarily be
given, that it is founded upon the same reason that
justices of the peace, whenever authorised to en-
quire, hear, and determine, have power to com-
pel the defendant to attend, but that this power
does not attach to the commission of gaol delive-
ry, and that under that, capias can not issue be-
cause the jurisdiction is limited to the delivery of
the gaol. And having thus shewn who can issue
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process, he says, “ from the very nature and ‘ob-
“ ject of process, it follows there can be no ne-
“ cessity for it when the defendant is presentin
s« Court, but only when he 'is absent,” and this
doctrine he supports by reference to Hawkins, 2
bock, cap. 27, sect. 1. - Itis clear, therefore, that
the present case does not warrant the application
of Mr. Attorney-General. = Again page 339 he
says, % at common Jaw, ‘the usual mode of bring-
“ Ing a defendant ‘into Court upon an’ indictment
« found against him, when it was not considered
% necessary to pursue him to outlawry, he is left
« to the ordinary legal ‘process.” -Under that,
the ordinary legal process, these gentlemen have
been taken, have -entered Into recognizance 'in
such sums ds seemed fit to the highest authority
we are acquainted with, viz. that of the Governor
General, and in fulfilment of that recognizance
they come into Court and say, give us our trial.
Surely the learned Attorney-General does not say
in this case that he contemplates proceeding to
cutlawry, and if he does not, it is not competent
to him to move for process against the defendants.

- Chief Justice.—Where do you find that learning;
itisnewtome? . 7 o

Attorney-General—Y do not know, but I think
that the authority referred to by the learned gen-
tleman proceeds to state, that if a defendant is in
Courtit is discretionary and not obligatory in the
Court to "detain him. - The measure that I have
adopted is merely to bring these persons legally
" before the Court, because till they are so, no
step can be taken to prosecute their trials. Rela-
tive to these gentlemen being under recognizance
to appear at this Court, it makes no difference at
all to the argument,’ though, with regard. to recog-
nizances which have been sent from the Lower

province, I must say that I received a number of
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;nstruments from the law-ofiicers of Lower Ca-
nada, and amongst them a number of recogni-
zances of diiferent persons to- appear in Upper
Canzda to auswer certain charges for offences of
which they were accused. Upon examination I
considered that they were not such instruments as
I could enforce, and I therefore do not present
them to the Court. Thus situated, I know no-
thing legally of any recognizance, and I am only
pursuing the ordinary course in moving that pro-
cess do issue to bring before the Court, persons
whom the return of the grand jury declares have

" committed an offence in the Home district, which
is the way that the indictments are prepared, and
they have been so prepared because it was thought
the preferable course to adopt as being that by
which the jury will be left with no duty but to say.
s.imp}{;e has or has not the offence been proved to -
have been committed of which the defendants are
severally accused, and, if commiited, was 1t by
them. '

Chief Justice—The seggestion of the Attorney-
General that he has laid these offences as being
committed in the Home district renders it desis-
able that we should again see the great seal ins-
fruments, and clearly ascertain agamst whom it is
we have authority to proceed, and we shall by
that means see whether we have jurisdiction over
the offence charge in the indictment in relation to
these persons against whom your are praying the
process of the Court. _ ,

(The Great” Seal insifuments were agnin craminéd,
and Allen M"Doneli’s and John Siveright’s, cpproved.
Scraphim Lamarre’s beitg in the hands of the Chief
Justice, enquiry was made whether the Attorney-
General prayed process against him. cnd the Cours
were answered that Lamarre hed died lately at JMont-
eal,  Relative io° Peter Pangman afias Bostornois,
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“the Attorney-General remarked; that o5 there 1wos

another indictment pending against him, he should nof
move for process at- the present moment in regard to
fam. ~ In the cases of Alexander M Kenzie; Hugli
M’Gillis, Joho M'Laughlin, and Simon Fraser, 142
tnstruments were approved, and the Attorney-Genera!
stated that against”them he moved for process. Paul
Brown’s was the next, and the Atioiney-General re-
marked that he was in custody. Louis Perrault
alias Morain’s being examened, the Attorney-General
said he was tn a simular situation to Peter Pangman,
and he did not at present move for process. The in-
strument tramsmitting John M’Donald was then éx-
amined and approved.) . . :
Chief Justice—1 observe that an indictment has

. beenreturned by the grand jury agamst Cuthbert

Grant, and William Shaw, for arson; is there any
Instrument transmitting the offence of arson against
these individuals ? ,
Attorney-General —1 pray the process of the
Court against Grant upon the indictment charging
him with murder. The great seal instruments
transmit the individual named therein generally
for trial for all offences. - '
Chief Justice—Not to delay the bar I will state

‘to them that, apprehending that, daring the course -

of the Court now holding, cases would come on

" over which we have no jurisdiction, except by a

special instrument from the Governor of Lower
Canada, under the great seal of the province, and
also believing that importart preliminary. questions

- might be started, we have agreed to hear the ar-.

uments when we are all together. Our brother
Campbell, therefore, has been sent for, and no
doubt will be here in a few minutes when we will
hear you.
Shortly after, - Mr. Justice Campbell having taken
his seat on the bench, the argument was resumed ; the
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Chief Justice  having informed the bar that he had
communicaled to his learned brother the nature of the
observations which hud been made during his ab-
sence. '

" Mpyr. Sherwood.—If the Crown officers agree with
us as to the facts, that we are sent to this province
for trial, under the great seal instruments from
the Lower province, and that the amthority of
those instruments is adequate to the putting us
upon our trials at this Court, there- perhaps will
be no objection to our shewing by affidavit that we
have been admitted in Lower Canada to bail . upon
these charges, and that in furtherance of the re-
cognizances taken there, we are now here, anxious
to receive our triais. I would wish to know of
Mr. Attorney-General whether, (if allowed by
your Lordships,) he has any objection to admit
afidavits from these gentlemen to that effect, viz.

- that they are under recognizances to appear here,
and that in point of fact they do appear. If itisnot

. assented to, I shall proceed with my argument,
which questions the right of the Attoruey-General -

to his motion for process of Court. :

Atiorney-General--1 do not conceive that any

course is open to me but-the ordinary one which T

have taken. As to recognizances, I have before

said [ know of none. I know legally nothing of
this case, but what I obtain from the veturn of the
grand jury, and upon that I move for process of

Court against such of the defendants as are not in

custody, with the exceptions I have before men-

tioned of Lamarre, who 'is dead. and Pangman
alias Bostonnois,” against whom there are other
indictments. - ;
M. Sherwood.—Then I proceed to argue against
this motion of Mr. Attorney-General, and I'shail
first refer to Mr. Chitty’s work upon crimina! law,
as being an authority directly opposed to the- me~
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tion of Mr. Attorney-General for process to 1ssuc
“because I take it that si the great seal mstruments
from the Lower province are considered as vahd
any other act performed by the sawe authorities
must be equally 50, and that these gemiemen are
here under recognizance results from their having
been admitted to bail under the authontv of the
Governor General, they giving secunty to appear at
any Court which might be h(,ld in U},pe. Canada.-
and they do appear. hexe But there 1s another ob-
,}ectlou to this course of Mr. Attorney-General ; ‘the
Court is but of one day, and therefore it isa ple- .
mature motaon, the defendants being entitled to theg
whole session to make their appmrauce m, be-
cause such is the tenor of their recognizances.
" Both these positions are mamtamed by Chltty, vol.
1, page 342. ¢« The practice in issuing bench-
w wanantb,” (be saya,) “ xs, that where the par-
“ ties are not under lcaogmzance, ihe prosccutor’,
“hasa utrht, during the assizes or sessions, to 1ssue
“ progess against thpm to bring them immediately
“ mto Lourt toanswer.” Thisis the course when
defendants are not under.recognizance, but Mr.
Chitty pror'eeds to say, “ but When the pames are
% under recognizance noprocesscan-be had agamst
‘ them during the assizes or sesswm, because itis
« looked upon in law but ds one day and the de-
¢ fendant has the whole to make his appear ance.”
These opinions of this eminent writet are support-
ed by reference to Cro. C. C. 15, 2d Salkeld, 607,
and Williams J. Word Process. Al! that the Attox~
ney-General can do in such cases is also set forth,
and it is this : «In such cases, however, the pro-
“ secutor may, ifthe defendant has not appeared
“ bespeak a bench-warrant during the assizes or
« gessions, which will be issued at the <lose there-
& of” -Can it, I would ask, be denied that we are
under recognizance? under recognizance admitted
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by the highest authority which we know in these
provinces, ‘that of the Governor-General and die+
"tated by his Majesty’s Crown officers, who I ima-=
grine must be ail‘owedfo be ecompetent to the tak-
ing recognizances which ceuld be acted upon in
case of necessity. - If then itis agreed, that we are
under recognizance; and I do not see how it is to
be denied that we are under such as in the Lower
-province was csteemed adequate to ensure our at-
tendance, there is, according to the authorities
~which I have referred te, but ene case in which
-#t would be - competent to Mr. Attorney-General
- ¥o mention’ the subject of a bench-warrant, and
~that would be to: bespeak it, so that it might is-
~sut on the last” day of the: assizes or session, at
the moment when default was made by the defend-
~afits not ‘being brought into' Coust by their bail,
in conformity to the tenor of their obhigation. But
‘being under recognizance, the course open fo Mr.
Attorney-General-against these gentlemen, (and
aost respectable gentlemen they are;) is one
which 1 feel persuaded he does not adopt beciase
~he can not ia his conscience believe it to be netes-
-sary. : When I say this course is open to him, I
mean it would be open after convicting the: princi-
pals, because I do not admit that before their con-
victien, it is competent to him to'move against the
-accessaries at afl, but i that case the course
wounld be to call the accessaries upon their recog-
‘mizance, and upon their appearing, to move for
their immediate commitment, on the ground that
he did not consider. it safe to allow them to re-
main under recognizance, or if they did not appear,
to bespeak a bench-warrant to be ready at the
~end of the assizes or sessions. This is the ordin-
ary, and, as [ contend, the only regular, course, and
I humbly submit to your Lordships that it is only

B
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in the regular and legal- course that these trials
ought to be conducted. =~ . . e
Chaef Jusiice.~Certainly, it is- only in a legal
.‘manner that they shall be allowed to preceed, but
-they are cases of a very peculiar description, and:
.must be considered in reference to their peculiari-
ties. Itis very different.arguing upon them than if
they: were cases arising at Johnstown, . or. any
where actuoally in the Home district.  Of these re-
cognizances we, at-present, know nothing legally,
though uo question but some; obligation was. en-
tered into by these defendants in the Lower pro-
" vince. It is reasonable that -there should have
been, but of whatever description they were; the
- persons waking them stood in a very different si-
tuation. then, to that in which we. find; them at the
present moment. . The temptation to fly fromjus-
tice is much greater now that the grand jury have
returned as true the bill of indictmert, upon which
Mr. Attorney-General founds his motion,-and when
I look at that and the great facility of escape. that
. exists, I can not make any difference, orallow that
there :is any greater security to be foundin the
_respectability-of these defendants. DNothing but
- general principles ought to-influence us, principles
. which apply with equal force to all classes of per-
sons, and one of those is, that the desire of preserv-
ing life is equally strongly planted in every marn’s
‘bosom. - Upon the legal question of right in-the
Attorney-General to move for process against indi-
viduals, after the grand jury have returned as true '
bills of indictment against them as accessaries te
murder, there can be no question, or indeed a-
_gainst any person, no matter what the offence, if
_he is not under recognizance. . These defendants
are not,under any recognizance, and, therefore,
can not be considered as being in Court. - I never
saw a single case wherein, upon motion of the
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Attorney-General process was not issued as a mat-
ter of course, but with much less propriety can it
be refused after a verdict or finding of a grand
jury has declared that an accusation of an un-
clergyable offence is true. I never have seen a
sing’?.e; instance wherein, (‘even;in light offences,)
a, grand jury have returned a bill as true, and the
defendant has unadvisedly entered the Court, and
the circumstance was officially communicated, bat .

~ that the Court, whether it was a ;jud%e or justice
- presiding, detained that person, if ca

led upon to
do so. o

Mr. Sherwood ~—If we are driven to the necessi-
ty we must -contend ‘against;thegpower of your
Lordships to, issue process against any person for
offences committed n the Indian territory, bat {or
the present we shall only -r‘eSpectfully affirm that

‘that can not be done against -accessaries till the
“principals are convicted or attainted, and not at

all if they are under recognizance, becanse it is

‘the incipient step tooutlawry, to which Mr. Attor-

ney-General could not, from the circumstances of
the present case, proceed, and we are prepared
with strong authorities on these points. A
Chief Justice—A great deal of law learning en-
tirely new to me is produced about process, that
because capias may be followed by outlawry,
therefore it cannot 1ssue-against these persons.—
Exigent we know must remain, as relates to ac-
cessaries, until such as be appealed or indicted of
the deed be attainted by outlawry or. otherwise,
but thatis not to restrain issuing of process against
any persons indicted by a grand jury. . . .
M. Sherwood.—1 beg your Lordship’s pardon,
but if it is new learning; I find the same in Haw-
kins, who confirms Chitty. In Book 204 cap. 27,
which is the first of his chapters on Process, he
says; “ For the better understanding the nature
, e



80

« whereof, (having premsised that it seems plaiw
« frony the nature of thething, that there can be”

“ no ueed of it where the defendant is present in
« Ceurt, but only where he is absent,) | shall
« gopsider it in general, without any particuldar
“ regard to' process of outlawry, awd also in’ par-
. tieakar with regard to such-process only.” -Here
then, Tsubmit to your Lordships, that neither with
a view to outlawry, tior the reverse, eir process
issue against defendants who *are in~Cotrt, and
n another part of this ¢hapter, sect. 19. he Juys
down that ¢« a defendant, having appeared-to @n
“ pdictrent or appeal of %elony, and afterwards,
“ before-issues joined, whether from his bail or
“ from an actual prison, the coummon capias alias
wand phiries, &¢."shall be dwarded, unless there
“ had been an-exigent before, &e.” ' But here is
1o escape preténded on the part of Mr. Attorney-
Genéral, and-f may presume that, as there is no ne-
cessity set forth for granting proceéss, the Court will
iéfuse it, and T humbly subwit that i producing
Hawkias to yeur Lordship, I exhibit -an aithority
ot which I may rely. B I
Chief Justice—~—So you may, and so do 1, and
should perhaps, in this instance, if [ 'was not aware
that the practice upon the law of exigent and pro-
€éss to outlawry, had been changed. The rule
is that capias mustissue in all cases of felony, both
against principals and accessaries, and when'the
_proceedings -require an exigent, that then ‘it be--
comies matter of constderation who are principals
and awho ‘are accessdries, that the proper course
may be pursued in-relation to both.  Itis our con-
stant’ practice, and the act upon which the indict-
mént 1s founded, directs « that offences committed
« in the Indian territories shall be, snd be deenied
“ to be, offences of the same nature, and shall be
« tried in the same manner, and subject to the sdine
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£ punishment, _‘a‘s' if the same had been committed
& within the progince of Lower or Upper Canada.”
We shall,. therefore, be governed by the rules we
have been accustomed to observe, and L.see no
;e:aso_g_,'mhy;prgcgss should not issue -against per-
sons wihom a grand. jury declare have, in_their

judgments, committed an unclergyable effence.
What if none.of the prineipals were ever tried.?
Could not against the accessaries to-a murder,
committed in this district, jprocess issue though the
principals never could be brought to justice.
. . Sherwood.—In that case there could be no
doubt it would be a legal step. Bat that. is not.
the \present cagse. Two of the ‘principals are in
custody, and although it might be ‘a questicn
whether -any, or what, process should issue a-
gainst accessaries, itill all the principals were con-
it or attaint, yet I presume to.offer that, till the
principals ‘actually in custody ‘are convicted, itis
not competent to .,tbejAttqmey-Generai to move
to .commit these respectable gentlemen, who are.
charged as accessaries, to.the number of eight.or
-ten, and .who are anxious for their trials and pre-.
tent.themselvesiin Court. - Why, I ask, should the
, Attorhey-Generalmpve agajnst ten.or t;Wgh:e_gen_--
tlemen charged as. accessaries before the.fact —
. Chief Justice—OQh no, there are only four who.
a;re.cha'l,’ged_as; accessaries before the fact, o
My, Sherwood~-1 beg your Lordship’s parden,
but it .was the accessaries after the fact that I
meapt, ..o LT
- Chsf Justice—T mentioned.it because {here is a
great deal of difference ‘between accessary hefore,
and after, the fact;.the.one is 2 clergyable offence,
the other unclergyable, and that makes a great
difference as.to the object of issuing process, and
may, perhaps-as to. the effect u pon the. defendants.
Their situations appear very different to me at
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the present moment, though not so as to-render
it unnecessary to bring them all into Court,-after
the grand jury have said, that they are accessaries
before, and after the fact, to murder.;  There dre,
however, but four accessaries before the fact.
Mpr. Sherwood.—There are not, my Lord, and
in mentioning the names of the defendants, the
error would have appeared evidently the effect ‘of
accident. I contend, however, most respectfully,
that the return of the indictment as a true bill by
the grand jury, does not at all alter the situation
of these gentlemen, nor of any person who 1s in-
cluded. Brown and Boucher, the principals o
this charge, are in the eye of the law innocent at
this moment, notwithstanding the grand jury have
returned them as principals in the first degree. It
1s therefore incumbent on the Crown to convict’
them at least, before it seeks any step against those
whose hability to be tried depends upon the con-
viction of the principals. Iam aware that repeti-
. tion is not argument, yet I can not refrain .from
again saying, that they are here. But if they were
not, as the Ceurt is but of one day, I contend they
have the whole to appear in. The course, ant{’"
as. I humbly submit to your Lordships, the only
course that is legal, is to call them over, and if
they do not answer, let Mr. Attorney-General, if
he thinks it necessary, bespeak a bench-warrant,
but they are here, and wig)le answer if called. I
would ask how is it to be known that they do not
fulfil their recognizance of appearing here, unless
they are called upon to appear? 1 know of no
case, nor do I think the learned Attorney-General
can point out one, in which process of Court has:
been sued out against individuals in- similar situa-
tions to those in which these defendants stand,
against accessaries, before a single principal is con-
vict or attaint, (though some of the principals are

’
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in custody, and have been so -too for an extraor-
dinary period; t'upward’s,,l believe,.' of two years,)
against accessaries who, to fultil their recognizance,
have come. here, and at the very moment that Mr.
Attorney. is suing out processes to bring them into
Court, are actually within its walls. The usual
courseis to move for process to bring A, B, or C,
into Court, and then to commit them to prison, but
there can be no reason assigned for issuing process
to bring persons into Court who “already are be-
fore it. ’ . L :
 Chief Justice—All this is mere affirmation, and
does not bear at all upon the question.  We know
nothing of any:recognizances; nor of defendants
before the Court, and it is therefore idle to talk
-abput” them. - The Attorney-General does not
admit that there are any recognizances, and he
therefore wishes to bring before the Court per-
sons whom a return of the grand jury declares to
be guilty of murder, as principals and accessaries.
Altorney-General.—I did *hope, my Lords, that

I had stated, with sufficient distinctness, that I
knew of nothing in this case to render a variance
from the ordinary course necessary. I repeat that
I admit that certain papers have been transmitted
to me from the Lower province, purporting-to be
recognizances entered into by certain persons who
were accused.of having committed various offences
1o the Indian territories, the tenor of which were,
that they were to appear at -the next Court of
King’s Bench, to be held in the district of Mont-
real,-in the following September, or at the next -
Court of Oyer and Terminer which might be held
in that district or in any part of his Majesty’s pro-
vince of Upper or Lower Canada, where crimes
and offences committed in the Indian territory, &c.
might legally be heard. These recognizances
were entered into in 1817, binding persons to ap-
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pear at the next Court of Oyer and Terminer which
might be held in any part of the two provinces, -
but they are perfect absurdities for me. to file, and-
endeavour to-act upon in October, 1818.- I there-
fore declare, that I know nothing of any recog-
nizances by which I can compel these defendants
to come inte Court, and I therefore move for pro-
cess to attain that object. : '
Mr. Sherwood.—-Then, I take, may it please
our Lordships, % very different course, My ob-
jeciion to the motion of Mr. Attorney-General will
remain, but it will be on very different grounds
that 1 oppose it. I shall contend that it is enly by
the authorities of Lower Capada- having exaeted
bail from them, that these gentlemen are bound ta
appear here at the present moment, as also thatat
is only by the great seal instruments of the Go-
vernor in chief that the Attorney-General is author-
ised to put them upon their trials. I contend if
the one Is a good and valid authority to put them
upon trial, the other which admitted them to bail
must necessarily be so, and must be equally ac-
knowledged' by your Lordships. Then, if the
Attorney-General has not been premature in
delivering bilis to the grand jury against these
gentlemen, if he has not prematurely acted upon
the documents received from the autherities of the
Lower province, he must, tc be consistent in his
admizsions, receive their other acts in relation te
these offences. He must admit that they had the
right to bail the offender, and take recognizance
for bis appearance, as well as the power to trans-
mit iis offence to Upper Canada for trial, and
therefore must praceed to ascertain whether they
folfil the obligation they severally entered into by
calling them in Court, and if they make default this
morning, he can only bespeak process against the
defaulters, in as much as the Court, or rather Ses-
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sion, is. but as one day, and the defendants are en-
- titled to the whole of it to make their appearance.
' 1 subimit to your Lordships that, in construing thig
act, the utmest strictness Is reguired; that this
'~ Court can derive from it no power by 1mplicatien,
Do pewer by inference, but that its authority must
. be clearly and explicitly shewn on the face of the
- statate. Adopting this rule,. it is evident that the
' jurisdiction of your Lerdships over these defend-
~ants is derived from the great seal instruments
transmitted from the Lower proviace, and that
these decuments must be taken ab initio et in tolo.
I will explain myself; these gentlemen must come
before your Lordships under the authority of the
3d section of the act of the 43d Geo. IIL from the
province of Lower Canada, being sent under a
- broad seal instrument, for it is only by the great
- seal instrument that they can be sent. ~If they are
not so sent, then your Lordships know nothing of
the case in a legal point of view, but have a nght
to suppose that itis to be tried in Lower Canada,
and that the defendants are there, either as actual
prisoners, or under recognizance. Why then has
the Attorney-Genperal commenced proceeding a-
gainst these defendants, if they are not sent here
or trial . and if they are sent, surely it Is not a
questien for Mr. Attorney to raise, when they ap-
pear here upon recognizances entered inte under
the authority of the Governor of the Canadas; whe-
ther they were bound to appear under them ? If
objections were allowed to be made to the forms
of these instruments, it ought to be by the defend-
ants, but certainly not by the officers of the Crown.
We say at once they are legal instruments, we al-
low they are recognizances, having full force a-
gainst us, and we manifest our conviction of their
bmding nature by presenting ourselves for trial,
as by them we and our sureties obliged ourselves
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that we should do. : I sbould feel extremely mor-
tified if by any ingenuity of the private prosecutor,
or the Hudson’s %ay' Company, the Atterney-Ge-
neral could: be led, or rather misled, to-act upon a
supposition that these recognizances, taken under
the highest authority, are not valid, or that he
should be induced to adopt a rigerous course un--
der representations from them, that any advantage
would accrue, even were the obligations defective.
I trust, as pothing can be farther from the inten-
tion of the defendants, that I shall be spared the
mortification of seeing my learned friend adopt a
sourse that can only result from misrepresentation.
Aitorney-General—-Respecting the last observa-
tion of the learned gentleman, I have enly to re-
mark that, in the prosecution of my duty, I shall
allow no representations on the ene hand or the
other, either to lead or mislead me, but 1a these
cases, as I .do in every other, I shall act {from my
own.conviction of what is required of me by the
public justice of the country, without enquiring
who is to be affected thereby. In thus fulfilling
my duty, if the grand jury return a bill of indict-
ment against persons who are not in the sheriff’s,
calendar, I conceive myself bound to take the ne-
cessary measures to bring the persons so accused
before the Court, and I know of ne method of de-
ing so, but the regular one of moving your Lord-
ships to issue the process of the Court against
them. If your Lordships, when they are before
you, shall be pleased to extend to them the privi-
lege of bail, I shall not act so ungracious a part as,\
on behalf of the Crown, to object to any indul-
gence which the Court shall censider not incom-
patible with that security for the attainment of jus-
tice which the law requires. But it is from your
Lordships, and not from me, that any relaxation
of the ordinary practice must proceed; if, when.
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these persons are-before the Court, it shall be your
Lordships’ pleasure to grant their application to
be admitted to bail, I repeat that I shall not act
the ungracious part. of making, on behalf of the
Crown, any objection to the proposition.
. M. -Sherwood——The Attorney-General mis-
takes. These gentlemen are not asking to be ad-
mitted to bail, for they are already under recog-
nizances, and come here in obedience to them, and
I humbly conceive it is not the Attorney-General’
who is to judge whether the recognizances are
good or badl,' or whether he will act upon them up
to their completion. Upon that subject the statute
must be made our guide, and the gentlemen are
sent here by virtue of that statute, under recog-
nizance to appear, and answer charges, which are
transmitted by the great seal instruments to this
province for trial. I humbly submit to your Lord-
ships, that the consequent question upon the great
seal instruments is, are the offenders who are
transmitted for trial by them, here > How is that
point to be ascertained ? The answer is obvious.
If they are under recognizance they must be call-
ed up to appear. They must have been in cus-
tody from the werds of the law, for they could not
have been transmitted here for trial if they had
wot, and if they are here under recognizances, [
repeat that it is not'in the power of Mr. Attorney-
General to prevent the completion of them. -
Chief Justice—~We know nothing of any recog-
nizances ; there are none produced to us, -conse-
quently we can know nathing of them, though
they may have been taken in the Lower province..
‘The Attorney-General at once admitted that he
had received papers, but as he did not consider
them efficient recognizances, he should not file
t;:em, and till they are filed it is idle to talk about
them. v e
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Mr. Sherwoed.—Then I submit to your Lord-

ships whether the indictments and commissions
are not incomplete and nugatory. I contend that
the transmission of the offender is an-indispensa-
ble part of the proceedings, and that if the Go-
veraor had not been well advised, but. has trans-
mitted invalid instructions, the defect is fatal to
your Lordships’ power. I contend that the of-
fender not being sent here for trial, (for if he is
neither in-the custody of the sheriff nor under re-
cognizance, he is not here legally or by obliga-
tion,) the very first step to give your Lordships
power under the provisions of this act has been
omitted, and the instruments are radically defect-
ive. But we do not think so lightly of the law-
advisers of the sister-province, and we acccording-
ly are ready to answer, whenever called upen te
fulfil our recognizances.

Solicitor-General—I think my Lords, that the
moticn of my learned colleague ought to be
%Fa.ntedfor the reasons that he has stated, nordo
see what the objection of the learned gentleman
amounts to. We ask of the Court, to 1ssue pro-
cess to bring these defendants legally before the
Court, so that we may proceed to their trials.
The learned gentleman says, they are in Court
and want their frials. - Upon their own statement
L see no hardship which is to accrue from our mo-
tion being granted, but,.on the contrary, we are
aecelerating the attainment of what they say they
are.anxious to obtain, viz: their trials. I can not
therefore see any -hardship that is done to these
gentlemen. : S 4 S
Chief Justice—We are not talking of hardship,
we are enquiring which is the ,proper course to
take upon the bill which the grand jury have re-
turned against a number of; persons, accusing some
of them of murder, and ‘ethers of being accessa-
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 ries befere and after the fact. The Aitorneylie:

rieral has moved for process to issue to bring them

into Court, and I have heard nothing adduced yét
- (though a great dea_l of our time has bee_n taken
- upin talking about it,) that goes to show it ought
'~ not to issue. There has been a great- deal sand
-~ about recognizances, of which we kupow nothing,
except that the Attorney-General has declared
that certain papers sent to him were inefficient for
the purpose for which they were drawn up and
transmitted, for which reason he did not file them,

but we have nothing to do with hardships in con-

sidering the question. : ,
Mpr. Sherwood.—Undoubted] ynot. We are talk-
ing of law, and we ask no favours, because we
want none. We ask of your Lordship to say whe-
~ ther we are here or not, because if your Lordships
are against me on that peint, I shall consider, as
1 am obliged to do, the authority of Hawkins no-
thing. I'shall then be obliged to adopt another

course. [ shall be under the necessity Very re-

ey TS

spectfully of denying the power of this honourable |
Court to issue any process but a subpeena, under

the act of the 43d of the King. I am extremely ]
sorry to be driven to this necessity, because it is ;
what T was desirous to avoid, and I did not expect |
that the learned Crown officers would object te |
‘mstruments prepared by the law-advisers of the ¢

Governor-General of the provinces of Lower and

Upper Canada. But as that course has been taken, |

I am compelled to deny that this Court can, under '

the act which gives it jurisdiction over offences
committed i the Fadian territories, issue any pro-
cess exeept a sabpeena. 1t has no authority under
the act to try any but persons sent by the Gover-
nor, Lieutenant-Governor, or person administering
the government for the time being, of the Lower
province. -

13
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- Here the argument was interrupted by the grand
Jury returning true bills of the following indictments,
viz. against R B

Curasert Granr; » ey
ST o) Jor larceny on a navigable
PeTer Pavemay, alias |70 7 Y
: - rivéry on the 12th May,
. Bostonnois, , S 7
5o v 1816, af Riviere Qui
Joserr Brissos, and | Arselle.
Pave Brows, ) rpede.
GEorcE CampBELL, Sfor maliciously " shooling
Duncany Cameron, at Miles Macdoneil an
Curaeert Grant, and( others, on the 11th June,
Wisniam Suaw, 71815,

The grand. _;ury having retired, the:discussion was

‘resumeéd, ‘

Chief Justice—If you wish to be heard further
you can, but as. the Court is at preseat advised,
we do not see that it will alter our opinion, which
is, that whenever, under the 43d of the King, an
offence charged to have been committed in the In-
dian territories is transmitted to this province, by
an instrument under the great seal of the province
of Lower Canada, declaring it to be more conve-
niently tried here, the Court of the Upper province
becomes possessed of every jurisdiction, power,
and authority over the offender, and must proceed

~in precisely the same manner as if the crime had
been charged to have been committed in the di-
strict. . Therefore, upon an indictment for felon
upon this statute, process to apprehend the offend-
er charged therein, must issue, if he is not al-
ready in custody. In cases arising from this act,
and in the present case particularly then, we know
nothing whether the accused are here or rot, but
by the calendar. If they are not in custody of the

S Y B

SRR

o
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sheriff; they must be brought into Court by pro-
cess, or if they are in Court, and declared to be
so, they must.-be committed or bailed here.- We
have, as far as the great seal instrumnents are con-
~cerned, only to see that they transmit the effence
for trial here, .of which the grand jury accuse the
defendants, and that for the purpose of satisfying
ourselves we are intended to have er exercise. ju-
risdiction over it, and the moment we are satisfied
that the offence was transmitted for trial to this
province, it {ollows, as a matter of course, that we
have jurisdiction to apprehend the offender. It
¢ might perhaps have been a question ‘how far the
- grand jury might feel-that they were authorized,
- but they undoubtedly, by proceeding to examine
. and return the bill, have thought, and indeed been
satisfied, that they had cognizance, and upon their
- coming up into Court and returning as truea. bill,
. accusing a number of persons of felony and murder
in different degrees, it was competent to the At-
torney-General, instantly to move for process to
apprehend such as were not in custody, and this
Court would certainly have granted his motion,
or have committed them if he had declared they
-were within the walls of the Court. Till the grand
jury had made its return, the ‘Court would not
-have done so, though it might have have been re-
presented that they were persons accused of’ having
committed offences in the Indian territories, which
were transmitted here for trial, because then we -
had no legal knowledge of the offence or offenider,
but now we have of both. Relative to the bailing
of these persons, or the admitting them on recog-
nizance#to appear, the principals in murder can
not be bailed, and why should accessaries before
the fact? It is a crime from which the benefit of
clergy has been taken away, and very properly so
too. . The opinion of the Court is therefore, that




apainst the persoiis fiot In custody, dnd therefors
iwot- before the Court, Mr. Attorney-General is
‘entitled to his motion, and that the wsual process
must issue. © : . .
M. Steriwvod—I do not kuow whether-your
Lordship has - given the final judgwent of the
- Conrt, but if not, I would beg to make owe or
two observations, and I believe I am not cut of
time, as I think your Lordship commenced your
observations by stating that we might be heard
further f we wished. [ would therefere, under
permiission of the Court, submit that the Governior
~ General can not transmit any offender for trial to
the Upper province, who has not been in custody
in the Lower; it is therefore, from his transmitling
“these persons hither, evident that they must have
been m custedy, and have been admitted to bail,
for they could not-be sent without having been in
custody; andif they are not so at the present mo-
ment, 1t must be because they are under bail.
Chief Justice—I¥t is needless to pursus that ar-
gument; as we differ with you completely. - In our
opinion it is the offence, and wot the offender,
which is transmitted by the great seal instrument,
and in transmitting the offence, jurisdiction -was
necessarily given over the offender, so that when
the grand jury found that the offence had been
committed m the Indian territory, by the person
named in the indictment, -we had the same power
over the person of the offender, as if the offence
had been committed within the Home district. [t
is the offence which the great seal instrument
declares can have justice more conveniently admin- |
istered m relation thereto in the Uppe%«*}s than in
~ the Lower, province, and that declaration neces-
sarily includes in it a jurisdiction over the person
of the offender. .
Mr. Sherwood—The words ef the statute, my




33

Lord; areso strong, that I hardly think I can be
. mistaken in saying they expressly mention that it
. is the offender who is to be transmitted for trial,
and ot the offence. From the title to. the last
gection; it is throughout, an act providirgg for the
trials and punishment of persons committing offen-
ces in the Indian territories. It is entitled, * An
-« Act extending the jurisdiction of the Courts of
¢ Justice in the province of Lower Canada, and
“ Upper Canada, to the trial and punishment of
* persons. guilty of crimes and offences within cer-
% tain parts of North America adjoining to the
* said provinces.” The preamble. merely declares
the occasion sthat exists for passing the act, and
the first enacting clause declares offences commit-
ted within the Indian territoriés are to be deemed
t of the same nature, as if they had been committed
~ in the province of either Lower or Upper Canada.
In the second section there is something so peculiar
that T must read a part of it. . Coee
Mr. Justice Campbell.~—Y ou had better read the
whole. « o
M. Sherwood then read the whole of sect. 2d.—
I would ask, my Lords, why commissioners were
sent'into the Indian territory? Why was tlie pre-
clamation of his Reyal Highness the Prince Regent
issueds if it was not to bring offenders to justice ?
and why were these offenders to be brought to
one of the two proviuces of Canada, but' that they
might be prosecuted and tried under thisact? In
the first instance, jurisdiction, or the original juris-
diction, is given to the province of Lower Canada
by the act of the 43d. It will be found in the 3™
section, “ And be it further enacted, that every
“such offender”. I beg the Court’s attention to
this part, as completely supporting the observa-
tions | have had the honour to submit ; the words
are, “ And be it further enacted, that every such
. c ,
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« offender may and shall be pztdéechieﬁ_-"éhd-g;ti'iéé
« in the Courts of thc province of Lower Canada
“(or”. " Nowcoues the ‘paragraph which gives
power to’ this provinée, « (or if the'Governer,
* Lieutenant-Governor, or person administering
*the ‘government for-the time being; shall from
“any of thecircumstances of the crime’ or offénce,
“or the locél situation of any of ‘the witnesses for
“ the prosecution or ‘defence, thick that justice
“ may-be niore conveniently administered- in rela-
“ tion to.such ‘crime or offence ” e province of
« Upper Canada, and shaU}By an, astrument un-
“ der the greatseal of Lower Canaza, declare the
“ sanié, then that every such offerder may and
“:shall'be prosecuted and tried in the Court of the -
“-provinee of Upper Car~7a) in’ which crimes and
“offentés of the like nuw.re are asvally tried, and
. % where the same ‘would have been tred, if such
“crime or offence had been committed within the
“ limits of the province where the same shall be
“ tried under this act, and every offender ‘tried
“ and convicted under this act shall be liable and
<« subjéct to ‘such punishment as may by-any law
% in force in the province where he or she shall be
“.tried;" be inflicted for such crime or offence.”—
Your ‘Lordships can not fail to remark that the
wordsimade use of are « the offender” and “ such
“ offender,” ‘What offender ? why, unquestionably
the offender who, in conformity to the 20d sec-
tion, had been.apprehended and safely conveyed
to Lower Canada, and there delivered into safe
custody to be dealt with according to law. -These
gentlemen, therefore, have been in.the custody of
the Governor General of Canada, and are trans-
mitted here by bim for trial, and if they are not
on the calendar of the sheriff, as prisoners within
the wall of the gaol, it must be because they have
keen admitted to bail, and therefore are under re-




and in- fulfiliént of it
t'to your Lordships;
does” ot toftespond wiik
s’ given fo the

zicvfiﬂ'iiféf@qq vt
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. Chief Justive =T mllst Eistroe the 1 o a5'to

give it effect; thete ‘can not, I sippose; be two
‘opinfonis on that pointt= " T v BRRELLA

M. Shérwood.~~Not' by iiferericé 1 should dp-
prehend, my Leord, #nd according  tothe actual
words of the statuté; ‘these deféndan(s must have
been'in‘actial custody of the’ Governor of Lower=
Canads, and'in point-of law actually are so‘at this -
very moment, they beihg underrecogrizance: He
“has transmitted the whole of “these defendarits to
this ‘province for trial, ‘either under guard or un:
der retognizances, as to his discretion -appeared
necessary. Thésé?tyéx@drx‘s then, I contend, must
-be here’ before Mr. Attornéy-General could: take
one step against them. If they are  not here un-
der recognizantce; “they are'not 'transmitted at’all,
because they are notin custody of the sheriff. The
learned Crown officers canrriot say these persons
ate transmitted here for trial b y the ‘Gevernor of
Lower Canada, (whose peculiar province it is When

he thinks ' justicé “may be more ‘conveniéntly ad-
ministered in-relafion t6 crimes and offences ‘com-
witted in- the Indian ‘territory in Upper Canada,
0 to: tl'a‘nsi11~itj‘jﬂfe'7dﬁ'éndéés,) tnless: he also ad-
mits that they- have given récognizances.  Then
we ask'to becalled u‘;ﬁbh%he’s‘é.X'eé,bgniza'riées, and
we will demonstrate that We are here to- fulfil thé
«obligations entered'into’ atd therehy relieve”oiir
bail.” "If the Attortiey-General doés not admit the
recognizances, then the great seal instraments are
defective, -and no step can'be taken upon them at
‘all.” The Court will certainly infer, in my humble
judgement, that every thing was done correctly in
o
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the Lower: province, and.the more so. when we
consider the high authority under which the great
seal instruments and other documents are prepared.
L submit that the Attorne y-General. ought ‘not to
cail upon your Lordships” fo infer that error has
been committed, because, if it has, we niot only
 are not bound to appear,, but we actually are not
~ sent here for trial, according to. the provisions of
the act. The natural consequence of which must
be -that the Attorney-Gengral was not authorized
- to-commence proceedings against us, because the
Governor of Lower Canada, had not delivered us

from his custody to that of the Upper province.
Selicitor-Gieneral—The. Court, I imagine, my
Lords, will not znfer any.thing. and for this rea-
son, that they are only able to hear and determine
according to law.  If upon this particular act any
difficulty arises, your Lordships will undoubtedly
give such a construction the necessity of the. case
Iequires, or, as was remarked by bis. Lordship. the
Chief Justice a few moment ago, you will canstrue
the law so as to give it-effect.. =~ ... .
Mr. Sherwood.—Upon, the general principle we
perfectly agree, but I differ from my. learned
iriend, the Solicitor General, in the application of
that principle.  As. to the construction that is to
be given by your Lordships, being such.as the ne-
 Cessity of the case requires, which Mr. Solicitor
General urges upon the Court,.I beg to say, I do
not admit the doctrine of ez necessitate. rei.. ‘Neces-
sity makes no law ina Court of justice, it is ‘the
parliament who make laws, and Courts admipister
them, but I hope we:are not to, hear of their being
construed according to the necessity of any parti.
cular case; so much for . the_application” of my
learned friend’s principle, that'the Court ought
not to infer “any thing but to. hear and determine
“ according to faw,” in which I cencur : and for
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his argument orapplication of that principle, that
your:Librdships: are to be guided in' so doing by
« the mécessity of the case,” from which1 dissent.
1t appears {o ‘me to be a singular coincidence of
citcumstances that the Crown officers should dis-
. pute the ‘goodness of recognizances which we ad-
| mit, and to which we -yield obedience. This
- Court, I imagine, will not be satisfied with Mr.
- Attorney-General’s merely saying that the recog-
nizances are not capable of being enforced. It
- would, my Lcrds, be to throw great discredit on
the law advisers of the Governor of Lower Capada,
10 admit, that in cases of so much importance, they
lrave taken recognizances, which are so many pie-
€es of waste paper.
Chief Justice—We kuow -of no recognizances ;
- there are nore produced to us, we can therefore
- know of none." : o . -
M. Sherwood.—Will the Court allow us to make
~ affidavit that we are under recognizances, and that
we are now in Court to take our trials, in 6bedience
to. the obligation we entered into in the Lower
province ? ‘ ‘ L ' :
Chief Justice—We have nothing to do with any
recognizances entered into in the Lower province.
We know nothing about them, nor do we want to
know, unless they are produced to us. »

Aitorney-General—There is one thing which T

B

forgot to mention. 'The act, in its second section,
difects that all offenders shall be sent to Lower
Canada, there to be dealt with according to law.
h is unquestionably to the Courts of that province
that original jurisdiction is given ; there 1s, how.
ever, afterwards a limiting clause by which power
1s-given, upon the Governor of that province de-
claring that jostice may be more conveniently ad-
ministered in the Upper province in any particular
effence, to prosecate and try the offender in the
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Court of the province of Upper Canada, i which
erimes or offences of a like nature are usually tried,
and where the same would have been:triedaf such
crime or offence bad. been committed within: the
limits of the province, where the same shall be
tried ynder this act, and the offence:may-and shall
be laid to have been committed. within the juris-
diction of the Cenrt where ‘the trial is to be had.
Tt 1s known to all of us that, at -the time of the di-
vision of the province of Quebec, a legislature was
given to each, with power to make such laws for
the good government thereof as were not repug-
naiit to the act which created them. From the
tenor of this act, i1n relation to the two provinces,
it appears to have been undersiood in England that
each province had its peculiar laws, by which its
jurisprudence was regulated, and the act there-
fore deciares that at whatever Court in each pro-
vince any offence committed therein is accustomed
to be tried, a similar offence committed in the In-
dian territory shall be tried. It appears, however,
rot to have been vnderstood in England, what the
differences were that exist between the. two pro-
vinces, or what were the particalar forms under
which prosecutions are conducted, it therefore
provides, under this act only, that offences com-
mitted in the Indian territory shall be laid as hav-
ing been so within the jurisdiction-of the Court.
In offences committed out of the realm of England,
but for which the offenders are tried in- England,
the offence may be charged to bave been commt-
ted in any county, and shall then be tried by a
jury of that counfy in which the. offence is  so
‘charged. I have therefore adopted a similar
course, and have not charged the offence to have
been committed in the Indian ternitory, butin the
Home district, at the town of York, the obvious
consequence of which is that it is charged to have
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been committed within the jurisdiction. of -this
Court. These observations I think it my duty to
submit, as explanatory of the views which have
guided me in the course I have taken in these
“cases. -1 have considered that, the momeni, we
. had. authority to enquire into an offence committed
in the Indian territory, power over the offender
must necessarily be given; and I have in all the
 cases submitted to the grand jury, laid them to
' have been committed at York, in the Home district.
In reference to the question immediately before
the Court, I have no desire to supply more than
what [ ought to.disclose, and as little to throw
discredit on the ‘Mggv-advisers of the Governor.of
Lower Canada, but in my own justification, for-
what might otherwise appear to be an unnecessa-
rily harsh course, I must be permitted to state
" that I did not consider the recognizances sent to
me efficient instruments upon which, in case of
necessity, 1 could compel the individaals.who had,
entered into them to come before the Court. That
the opiniop I formed was not incorreet will, I
think, be apparent when I state they wers taken
in the year 1817, in the month of March, I be-
lieve, apd bound the parties that the prineipal in
the bond should appear at the next Court of
King’s Beuch, to be held in the district of Mont-
real, in the month of September then following,
or at.the next Court of Oyer and Terminer, which
may be held mr the said district, or in any part of
his Majesty’s province of Upper or Lower Canada.
Since the period at which these bonds were taken,
there have been several Courts of Oyer and Ter-
miner . in the various districts of this province, I
could not, therefore, . force an appearance here by
bonds which only obliged those who eatered into
them to appsar at Courts which had already been
held,and some of them were not even signed, [
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therefore could not but view them as instruments
which were totally insufficient. As far as I am at
liberty, .consistently with my duty, to act; I' have
no disposition to be- rigid, nor shall any rigour be
exercised on the one hand; or laxity admmtted on
the other, but as I may,consider them to be compa~
tible with the attainment of substantial justice be-
tween the Crown and the accused. If in the pre-
sent instance the Court think they can'de it, I
shall certainly not ke sc ungracious, as to object to
the defendants being-admitted to bail. Yfeel I
have done my duty when I bring them into Court,
and whatever indulgence yourﬁprdships consider
it yight to extend to them, willle acquiesced in on
the part of the Crown. I do not deny that some,
and I believe the whole, of the accessaries have
been admiited to bail in the Lower province,
though I did not feel myself warranted in filing the
recognizances, for the reasons 1 have submiited to
your Lordships. S

_ Chief Justice.—If you allow that they were ad-
mitted to bail in the Lower province, 1t will cer-
tainly have great weight, as far as some of the de-
fendants are concerned, but not in those cases in
which the humanity of the law does not interfere
in case of conviction. As no pecuniary sacrifice
can be set in competition with a man’s life, I can
not take any step that shall hold out a temptation
to escape from justice. Principals in murder can
not be bailed, and why should accessaries before
the fact, who in case of conviction are liable to the
same punishment, be admitted to bail. - The be-
nefit of clergy has been taken away from accessa-
ries before the fact; they are made to stand in
precisely the same situation, in case of conviction,
and they must do so after an indictment has been
returned by a grand jury a true bill. We are
bound to grant the motion of Mr. Attorney-Gene-
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ral, and the accessaries before the fact equally
~ with the principals must, when taken by the pro-
cess; be committed. We can not think 'of bailing
personsagainst whom, if convicted, the Court could
not Wi:th%old the capital punishment of death.
Relative to the accessaries after the fact, if con-
victed they would. have their clergy, and their
punishment thereby diminishing, I have no objec-
tion, if the Crown officers, who are acquainted
with the particulars of the charge, assent to. it, to
admit them to bail, but it must be in such amount
of recognizance as is not only satisfactory to Mr,
Attorney-Generzl, but also calculated, from its ex-
tent, to ensure the attainment of justice. As to
the recognizances which have been spoken so
much of, we know nothing of them, they are not
before the Court, and even if they were, could not
be enforced. Upon the principle of difference be-
tween clergyable and capital felonies, and in de-
ference to the example set by the sister-province,
if the defendants, who are accessaries after the
fact, surrender themselves, and have bsil ready,
to the satisfactior of Mr. Attorney-General, it shall
be received, but against the other. process must
issue. - ' ‘
Mr. Sherwood.—1 beg to mention to your Lord-
ships, that the accessaries before the fact were,
after a review of the whole of the charges had
been taken by the law advisers of the Governor
General, admitted to bail in Lower Canada.
Chief Justice—1 have nothing te do with that.
1 have no objection to follow the example set by
the sister-province, where it was indulgent to the
accused, as far as I can consistently with my duty,
but no -example on earth can’ inflnence us, or re-
lease us from the imperious duty of not allowing,
for 2 moment, any thing that shall lessen the cer-
tamty of persons accused of unelergyable offences
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‘being brought to trial. If convicted we could not
withﬁ_old the sentence of death, and we have no

right to copsider any pecuniary bond adequate to
ensure the trial of persons so accused. ..~

After some conversation, the Atiorney-General con-
sented lo the accessaries. afler the fact, being admitted
10 bai), themselves each wm_the sum of five hundred
pounds, and two sufficient sureties in the sum of two
‘hundred and fifty pounds each. Upon the sums being
named, the Chief Justice remarked, that he had no 0b-
Jeetion, but he should have ‘gone higher had he fized
the bail, and then divected that the defendants should
not be admitied to be bound for one another.  Messrs.
Alezander ' Kenzie, John M’ Laughlin, Hugl,
M’Gillis, John JU’ Donald, and Simon Fraser, seve-
gal{«;_surrendcred themselves and gave the requircd

ail. B I R

PAUL-BROWN avxp FRANCOIS FIRMIN -
BOUCHER. o of the principals accused of the
murder of Mr. Semple, and others, were. then put te
the bar and arraigned upon the indictment, (Appen=
diz B.) _

Mr. Sherwood —Before the prisoners plead, they
pray the Court to appoint them counsel, and they
ask that Mr. Livivs Surrwoon, Mr. Barowin,
and myself, may be assigned them as counsel.

The Court directed an entry to be.made that, upon
application of the prisoners to the Court for counsel,
the three gentlemen above named were assigned to them.,
The prisoners then severallypleaded Not Guitly.—
The Court enquired of, the Attorney-General when he
would be ready. 1o proceed with. the. trial, ke intimated
that for himself he was ready ot any time, but as the -
Earl of Selleirk was deeply wnterested in the result of

these accusations, end had. given o great deal of al-.
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tention lo the investigation, he did not wish, in the
absence of his Lordship,.to put these men on their
trial ; he understood that the Earl of Selkirk was
| confzdenlly expected to-mo’rrow"‘or vSunday,_ and he
hoped therefore, of their Lordships were ready, {o pro-
ceed with 1t on Monday. . The Court, in stating that
they should be prepared to enter upon it on Monday,
ook occasion to remark that the trial could not be
delayed on account of Lord Selkirk’s absence, if the
Crown was ready to proceed. . s it was, it made no
difference, sccing that till Monday the Court could
not take up any of these cases on the 43d of the King.
The Court then proceeded to the ordinary business of
the district, it being understood that nothing would
be done in the cases from the Indian territory ll
Monday, the 26th instant.

Monday, 26th October, 1818,
PRESENT.

His Lordship Chief Justice PowerLz,

The honourable Mr. Justice CampreLL,
The honourable Mr. Justice BovLToy, and
Wiream Arvan, Esquire, associate Justice.

The grand jury returned frue bills of indictment
against
) for maliciously shooting at
1 Miles M’Donell, James
Sutherland, Peter Fidler,
John Warren and Archi-
{ bald McDonald, in a diwel-
rIz'ng house of the Right
- honourable the: Earl of
- Selkirk, on the 25th of
May, 1815. (Appendix
J6) : #

Georee ‘CAMPBELL,
RoserT Guny, and
Hecror Macponswp,
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—< ALEXANDER Mackenzir, )

™

e

~ Joux MeDonavp,
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Curasers Grany, :
Lovis Pegravir, - T
PavL Browy, and as prencipals.
Frangors F. Bovciigg,

Jony. SrvericHT, @s accessaries before the
Serapum LamMarRE, and Sact, and

ALLEN BibDONELLQ ; )
Perer Panemar,

‘Huen McGiLrs,

Joun McLavenuy,

- WirLiam ‘SHAW,' as ;(Z,CCESSGV{?S_ ﬂﬂ.ef he

" Simox FRrasenr,
" Acvrex McDovkrs,

Jonn Stvericar, - fact.

SERAP,HIM Lamarre, and
Perer Panomax, j :

Jor the murder of Alezander M’ Lean, on the 16tk

of June, 1816, (A‘pp,endix H)

7' Jor robbery in a dwelling
\ house, and stealing from
? Willkiam Corrigal, (Ap-
J pendix 1) ’

Pavr Browr,

Attorney-General—In the case of the King a-
gainst Cuthbert Grant, George Campbell and the
others who are either principals or accessarjes be-
fore the fact, on the indictments Just_returned by
the grand Jjury, I move that the process of the
Court do issue, =

Chief Jaustice~~Let capiases issue. This day I
understood to have been specially appointed for
the trials upon indictments under the 43d of the
King. Are you ready Mr. Attorney-General ?
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Attornéy-General—=I am ready, wy Lovd. i{aké
- the charge of murder against Boucher and Brown,
two of, the principals who are in custody. The
' charge which I propose now to try them on; is for
- the murder of Governor Semple. v
(The prisoners were aé&érdihglz{ putio the 6&“7‘.‘)'
Mpr. Sherwood.—In that case I move the Court
' to admit one of the accessaries before the f{act te
bail; he.is at present in custady; having been tak-
“en on the capias. I humbly gpprehend that there
' can be no question as to the regularity of this mo-
'~ tion, nor do I see apy reason upon which it ought
to be refused. - . o
“Chief Justice~—The question is already decided.
. It was refused the other day. - o
i Mpr. Sherwood.~I beg the Court’s parden, but
" I submit that we stand now 1n a very different situ-
“ation.. At that time Mr. Attorney-General stated
to your Lordships, that he moved for the process
of the Court in order to bring us before it, and I
understood that till the capias brought us here,
we could not be heard, because, although within
these walls, yet in point of form, we were not be-
fore the Court. We are now here vupon the pro-
cess, and I move that Mr. John Siveright be en-
larged upon bail. o ;
- Chaef Justice——Well, let us hear on what
grounds. . S e
Mr. Livius Sherwood.—The statute of West-
minster the 1st, my Lord, which distinetly statesy
“ Those whe are accused of the receipt of thieves
“ or felons, or of commandment, or of force, or of
“ aid of felony done, shall be replevisable,” &c.
Second Hawkins, my Lord, page 159, —— .
Chisf Justice—So they, were formerly, but you
will find an act afterwards repealing that whick
¥ou mentior, : ‘. :
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My, L. Shertyood.—~Was there; my Lord ? I Wd‘-
not aware of it§ bemw repealed

- Chief Justice. —-Yes, it was repea]cd and ‘the
statite ‘makes the course the same ag at commﬁn
law. -
- Mr. Sherwood. —-—-I beg to represent to your
Loxdshlps, that the wmds of Serjeant Hawkins i
exp]ammg the act of Wb@tmmster 1st. dre, “all
% gecessaries;, whether 76 bon! gidé o any ‘other
“ felony, are bailable till* the pn’ncxpal be’convicis
“ ed or-attainted, and eévenr*after,"on pleac}mg to
«-the'indictment.” 1 refer to ‘Pawkins as decisive
authomy -9d Hawkins, Pleas of the CroWn, page
159, sect. 53. ¢ As to the branch concexmno those
« who are charged as accessaries, whichi is in the
“ following words, ¢those who are accused of the
“ ¢ receipt ofthleves or felons, or of commandment,
« ¢ or of force, or of aid offelony done, shall be re-
« ¢ plevisable, ‘&c.’——it is observable, that notwith-
“ standing the statute mentions only ‘those, those
% who-are accessaries to a felony any other way,
“ as by Eersuasmn, or any procuxement, ordbet~
“ ment, have always been taken to be within the
,“- equity of it; and most of the books relating to
“ this matter, seem generally to hold, that all ac«
+ cessaries whether to homicide,” (the very case
here, and there 1s no exception made relative to
it, all accessaries, is the word,) « to horticide, or
% any other felon), are bailable till the prmcnpal
« be- convicted or attainted,” and, he goes ‘even
much farther than this, for he says, “ they 'are
« bailable even after such cenviction or attainder
% upon their pleading to the indictment,” and this
we have done, “ and do not express any limita-
“ tion or restriction that they be of good fame, or
% but slightly suspected, &c.” He then quotes a.
case of “ 25th Edward HI 44. pl. 14. wherein a
4 person ¢ qppealed of muxder, as having holden the
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« deceased in his arms while the other killed him;
« was not let to wainprise,” the reason given for
it by the reporter is,  because the defendant in a
s manner was principal; for that otherwise being
« accessary only, he ought to have: been let td
« mainprise by the intent of the statute.” T cite
this'authority to your Lordship as conclusive, that
- accessaries, having pleaded, are admissible to bail,
and that the vsual and ordinary course is to bail
them. If your Lordships will take the trouble of
looking at this authority, I think you will find it
completely satisfactory. - S

Chief Justice.—1 do not wish to see it. © I'know .
- that formerly it was so, and so does everyone else,
. but that act has been repealed. '
. Mr. Sherwood.—1 have always considered Haw-
% kins, my Lord, as authority, and I have been read-
- ing from him. ‘ ' R

. Chief Justice.—So have I too, and do so still,
~ but all that you have been reading refers to the
law as it stood before- the repeal of the act refer-
- ved to. Common sense as well as justice, would
- suggest, that after an indictment has been return-
! ed by the grand jury a true bill upon a charge
. which, although once entitled to benefit of clergy,
- (and then bailable,) has since been rendered in-
- capable of receiving it, the humane provisions of
the law should vary, according to the different
circimstances which the new enactment present-
ed, for it would be an absurdity that the same rule
should prevail relative to a supposed crime or of-
fence, as when it was entitled to benefit of clergy,
after that humane provisicn of the law had been
taken away. Bail an accessary for an unclergya-
t ble offence, and why refuse the principal? Are
* not their cases as to punishiment the same ? Death.
It is sufficient for me that twelve men have return-
ed as true, an accusation invelving the life of an ip-

et
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dividual without benefit of clergy, and I consides
it impossible to allow him to be bailed under any
rule of law. o
Myr. Sherwood.—Hawkins, my Lord, goes much
farther; he says that until the principals are con-
victed, or attainted, that they shall be bailed, and
- even after conviction they shall be enfitled to it,
if of good reputation.

Chaef Jusiice—State things correctly, Mr. Sher-
wood, 1t does not say skall be bailed, but may be
bailed: It is completely in the discretion. of the
Court, whether they wiil bail an accessary or not.
Mr. Sherwood.—1 am perfectly aware of that,
iy Lords, and I humbly move that Mr. John
Stveright be admitted-to—bail. 1 have never con-
tended for the right in any other way than sub-
jeet to the discretion of the Court, and under that
restriction I present my motion. v A
Chief Justice—My own opinion is against your
application. 'The offence which the grand jury
have returned as a true bill against the defendant,
-is one which is net clergyable, and ought not to be
admitted to bail. That is my opmion. The
Court is full, and you can have the opinions of my
" brethren upon it. Whatever might have been
the practice before the repeal of the benefit of
clergy, I consider that, after that period, no per-
son against whom twelve men, as a grand jury,
return a true bill, ought to be admitted to bail.
Mr. L. Sherwood.—Was it the 31st of Charles;
to which your Lordship referred as repealing the
previous law, because the words of the act I refer
to are exceeding strong, that nothing but the
want of a good reputation can hinder the person
accused of being accessary from being bailed, and
a very strong case of murder is adduced as the
authority in support of the doctrine for which I
contend '
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_ Chief Justice—~The question must be set at rest:
My brothers. agreeing with me that bail can not
be taken for an accessary to a crimé which is un-
clergyable, let the prisoner be committed. No
- injustice is done by this. - Af_'te_r the declaration of
- a grand jury that they €onsider a man ought to
be put upon his tria] for an unclergyable offence,
the ground I take is that tl‘:ere are sirong pre-
sumptions of guilt against one sb_charge'd, and he
ought not to be allowed to remain, or be pla~ed
again in a situation capable of effecting his es-
cape. oL L
" JMy. 1. Sherwood—If there is presuription ad-

giitted in one case then there must be in all. Re- -

lative to the remarks upon the presentation of the

grand jury;, I humbly conceive, that it amounts to -

nothing more than an effidavit or information,
- made on oath I allow; buat founded on ez parte
- statements, aud therefore not conclusive as to
guilt, or alterative of any right belonging to the
individual before its return. He is held to bail to
take his trial, and ‘the utmost length the return
of the grand jury goes; is to say that it is right
the accused should be put to answer, but it does
not take from him any right that he possessed be«
fore the return. There 1s only one criterion by
which to judge of the admissibility or inadmissibi-
lity of an accessary to kail. Is he of good repu-
tation? We say Mr. Siveright is of good reputa-
tion, if he is not, let it be shewn; but I humbly
contend that, unless that is shewn, he can not be
excluded from putting in bail. I humbly submit,

my Lords, thatit is a right which he is entitled to. -

- Chief Justice—If means were used to bring the
question before the Court of King’s Bench, there
itis in the power of the Court to bail under any
circumstances which appear to them to be justifi~
abie, but we are sitting as a Court of assize, and

- ‘
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we do. ot feel disposed to bail a person charged
on the oaths of twelve men with an unclergyable
offence. : B :
JMr. Jones~—I might, perhaps, be. pérmitted
‘humbly to submit an authority.. Itis to be found
i Leach, p. 138. Rex versus Rudd, by which it
is laid down the Court has the power to bail for
any murder. S I
Chzef Justice—What Court has that power? a
Court of assize? Have you any authority for a
Court of assize bailing for murder? What Court
does the authority refer to? .

Alr. Jores.—To the Court of King’s Bench.

Chief JSustice~—Nobody questions that it has the
power, bit what has that to do with a Court of
assize ? We told you thatif ‘the question was
before the Court of King’s Beneh they might bail,
. if they thought proper, in any case. it is not
right to produce authorities referring te another
description of Court and argue upon them, as if
they had a bearing upon the question when they
have none whatever. Let the jury be sworn

Mr. Sherwood.—1 might, perhaps, be indulged
by a reference to that great authority, Sir Wilham
Blackstone, who, I do think, may be cited as de-
eisive authority on any point upon which he treats,
and he clearly allows that an accessary to any fe-
fony may be admitted to bail, nay, goes much
farther, they must be bailed upon offering sufficient
security, vol. 4. p. 298, after considering’ 1st, who
are clearly not-admissible to bail by the justices;
2nd, others whose bail, from the dubious natare
of the offence, appears to be in the discretion of
the justices, he says. ¢ the last class are such as
« must be bailed upon offering sufficient security,”
such are, * persons of good fame charged. with a .
« bare suspicion of manslaughter, or other inferior
% homicide, such persons being charged with petit
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& ia,.ceﬂy, or any other felony riot before specified,
i or with being aceessary to any felony.”

Chz';f Justice—] am sorry io see quotations
made from law authorities, when 3t must be known
{o the gentlemen making them, that they can have
no influence whatever ou: the decision of the Ceurt.
Hawkins and Blackstone are undoubted authori-
ties, but all that has beén cited from them refers
to the law as it stocd at a different period, name-
Iy, before the statuie of Edward was repealed.
If, in reading Hawkins, you had gene on a little
farther, you would have seen that the modern
rules have completely changed the practice upon
this head. In Hawkins, at the very place where
you stopped, you might, (had you read another
sentence,) have seen that the doctrine of bailing

. accessaries of course had been questioned as early

as the 21st Edward IV. and he remarks on the

> Very case cited of the 25th Edward Il ¢ that 1t
$

‘ may be more reasonable to intend in the above
« cited case of 25th Edward H1. that such person

i % was denied the benefit of maingrise by reason

« of the notoriety of his guilt, for he says it seems
«clear both from the Register, Fitzherbert and

&« Palton, that accessaries to “felonies are not to

“ be bailed, unless they be of good reputation,
“ and if the want of a goed reputation, which is, -
“ at the most, but a very slight inducement to pré-
® sume them guilty of a particular crime, be a
“ good cause to exclude them from the benefit of
“ mainprise, which js given them by the general
words of the statute, it seems strange the strong
“ and unguestionable evidence of their guilt should
“ not muth more exclude them from it, especially
“ considering that it is an allowed rule, that bail
¢ is only proper where it stands indifferent whether
¢ the person accused was guiity or mnocent.” But
that is not the case in the present instance, for
. o .

e

ot

%

-
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later statutes have put the crime eharged beyond:
the benefit of clergy, and, therefore, in case of
conviction, it is only the life of the person that
can satisfy the justice of the country. Hawkins
continues, “ and since later statutes have, in many
« instances, cxcluded accessaries before the fact
% from the benefit of clergy, it seems absurd to
“ say that persons notoriously guilty of being ac-
% cessary to the erime, which excludes them frony
% the benefit ef clergy, shall be admitted to bail,
¢ whereas, if they bad been committed to. prison
“ on the like evidence of guilt as principals, for
“ felonies within the benefit of clergy, or even for
“ inferior offences of an enormous nature, they
“ gould not have had the like privilege.” And
surely this reasoning is fair and correct.” Before
the‘passing of the act referred to, all accessaries
were bailable, but the right having been taken
away, it is now a question for a Ceurt exercising
its discretionary power, or rather is a rule for their
guidance, that it be “a matter of indifference
« whether the person accused were innocent or
“ guilty.” The priscner is charged with an of-
fence from which the right of being bailed is taken -
away, and it is impossible to say, that it is one of
that light description that it is a matter of indiffe-
rence whether conviction does or does not follow.
Itis not a good reputation alone which will justify
a Court in bailing accessaries. Their guilt must
not be notorious, and the reasonableness of this
restriction is apparent. ¢ Since” (says Hawkins)
« the general words of the statute concerning the
« replivising of accessaries are agreed to veceive
% the above-mentioned limitations, ¢ that they
“ ought to be of good reputation, and to plead
“ first to the indictment’, if the principal be. at-
“ tainted, why should it not be reasonable to ad-
¢ yuit this further restriction; ¢ that their guilt be
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@ pot notorious,” ¢ which seems admitted to be
« implied in most of the other clauses of the sta-
i tute, which yet are penned in as general terms
« g that relating to accessaries.” This map is
charged in the indictment with an untlergyable
offence, and the presumption is at present against
him, masmuch as twelve men, on their oaths,
have returned the indictment a true bill. The
matter, howerver, is set at rest by the later siatute.
« Byt this matter seems at this day,” (continues
serjeant Hawkins,) “ to be put beyond all ques-
% tion by 31, Car. IL cap. 2. sec. 21. by which 1t
% is recited—¢ That many times persons charged
¢ with petit treasom, or felony, or accessaries
¢ thereunto, are commiited on suspicion only,
¢ whereupon they are bailable ornot, accord-
“ing as the circumstances making out that sus-~
“ picion are more, of less weighty, &e. &c.”
And theveupon it 1s enacted, * That no person
% so charged, shall be removed or bailed by virtue
« of that act in other manner than ke might be-
“ fore.” ¢« From which” (he adds) ¢ it seems
« clearly to foHow, that where there are strong
« presumptions of guilt against a persen so charged,
s he neither was bailable before that statute, nor
¢ is now bailable by virtue of i.” This man 1s
charged with an unclergyable offence. If he is
convicted, he must be executed. It is, therefore,
impossible to say that itis a matter of indifference
whether he is guilty or innocent, and equally so
10 say that the presumption is in favouar of his in-
swcence, 'when he stands here to answer ie the
bill of the grand jury, which forms our only means
at present of estimating the culpability of the ac-
cused. Their return puts him “o answer to 2
charge affecting his life, without the humane in-
terposition of the henzlit of clergy in case of con-
viction. By the process of this Court he has been

- o~ o
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taken into custody, and as there is no pecumary

1sxdf>xaf!on that can be set in competition with
a man’s life, this Court Is not dlSpGSEd to admit
the p*:wner to bail, and thereby put the means
of ehcapmcr from justice mio his power. - There
are no circumstances that could 1nduce me ever
to bzl for an-unclergyable ofience. l\otl!mg but
the hfe of the o‘Ienuer cai satlsfy the law, and
there 1s no pec un.arj obligation that can be equi-
valent security in such a case according to my
ldeas-

My. Sherwood—I beg leave, my Lord, most
respoctf illy to state dlat I have read with great,
with very great, attention ali the law upon the
subject that I have a knov/ierre of, and should be
disposed to contend that, the p.mapai not being:
convicted or attazmod we m'rnt, acvordmcr to
sirict lcga: principles, oenﬂa'}d to be admitted
to bail. The ﬁxot principle I submit 1s, © that
& the pnsoner shall be of good reputation,” and
then it is m the bosom of the Court to bail. The
priscner, in this case, my Lord

Chief Jusiice.—~Dou’t go into the question, it is
- of no use. We are ﬁﬂl} wtlaum upon the suijoct
that i an, unclern Vc-.b c ofience, a prisoner ougn
not to be admitted to bail. What pecuniary con-
sideraticn can be put In oompcuuon with a man’s
life ? The admitting accessaries in unc’icrs*rabieA
offences to bail was one of the errors of former
practice, an ch is removed or cerrected, by fater
statutes, una very propmly too, for it is an absui-
dlt} te talk ofa pu‘umarj bond in a case where life
is the forfeiture

The jurors were then called, and upon a Jir. John-
son comang 10 the bool to be sworn, he weas challenged
by Jir. Sherwood on beﬁa]f of the prisoner Boucher ;
ihe Chaef Justice said that, if the prisoners did nol
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agree in their challenges, theymust e tried separate-
r, "ly, the pannel of jurors not being large enough to
 admit of their challenging severally, and as the sense
of the thing must be obzicus to the presones’s counsel,
they must delermine either toxunite them in their chal-
lenges, or the Crown must sever them in their frials.
i JHr. Sherweod having consulted with the presoners a-
- greed to make it an uniled challenge. :

, After various challenges on the part of the prison-
ers and of the Crown, the Jfollowing genilemen were
sworn as a jury.

Jounxy Wirsow, 3d. | Jounx McDovearry, jenr:
Georce Bowp, WiLniam Moore,
. Josepu Harrison, { Arexr. MonTcomeRy;

Josern SuepurrDp, Perer Wairsey,
Micnaer WaiTMoRE, Ricsarp Herriva,
Josava Lerch, 1 Hargour Stimpson.

COUNSEL FOR THE CROWN.

- Mr. Aitornéy-General Rozixsor,
Mr. Solicitor General Bourron.

COUNSEL FOR THE PRISONER.

SaMUEL SEERWOOD,
Livivs P. Suerwoon, ~ Esquires.
W. W. Bawowin,

Solicttor General—This indictment
Mr. L. Sherwood.—I beg to submit (with per-
mission) before the Solicitor General opens the
case, that Siveright who is charged as an acces-
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sary before the fact, be lpex-'mitted to take his trial,
now with the principals. I believe, though an
accessary can not be compelled to go to trial till.
a principal is convicted or attainted, if he waives
the privilege, there is no hindrance to his being
included in the trial, although the jury has been
sworn, - ' '

Chief Justice—1 do like to march on the old
beaten road that I am acquainted with. I know
of no case in which a jury have been sworn to try
two persons, aud then their duty altered, or. any
change made. ' -

Mr. Sherwood.—Perhaps it might be considered
an analogous case where a juror, from sickness, oc-
casions a change, . “

Chief Justice—That arises from the visitation of
‘God, and is an exception which can not be avoided,
but this proposition is no way similar.

M. Sherwood.—I1 should imagine that there

.could be no objection to the accessary being tried
with the principals, if’ he waives his privilege of
not being put to answer till the principals be con-
victed or attainted. The rule is in favour.of the
accused, that he shall not be compelled to trial
before the principal is convicted or attainted; but -
not that he may not go to trial, if he is willing to
forego the privilege, and the accessary here wish-
ing 1t, I see no objection. )
Chicf Justice~It is really wrong at this time
to perplex us with a new gquestion. When the
Crown offered the course you now ask, you re-
fused it. _ T

Alttorney-General—Upon consideration I must
.oppose the proposition of the learned géntleman.
It may perhaps raise some new question whiéh may
err;barra’ss our proceedings and involve us in diffi-
culty.

M., Skerwood._-—el do not press the prbpositionl
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. { have to move the Court that the witnesses on the
part of the Crown may be ordered to withdraw,
. The Crown have consented that colonel Coltman,
' the honourable Wm. McGillivray, and Mr. Simon
- McGillivray, should remain in Court, { have no
’ ,bbjections to a similar indulgence being extended

o their side as a reiurn for the courtesy. The

Attorney-General said he did not desire it.  The wit-
nesses on the part of the Crown and of the prisoners
- then withdrew. : »
Soliciior General.—Gentlemen of the jury. This
is an indictment preferred against thc prisoners at
- the bar, Paul Brown, and Frangois-Firmin Bou-
~ cher, for being present, aiding, abetting, and as-
~sisting a Mr. Cuthbert Grant, in the mu_rder of
. Robert Semple, Esquire, and as yoa will have
! perceived from the reading of the indictment, in
the Indian territory. . There is, however, nothing
¢ different in this indictment to one which charges
g%fan offence to have been committed in your own
district, only that it is brought forward under an
*act of the 43d of the King, which extends the Ju-
- risdiction of the Court of this province, under cer-
tain regulations, to the trial of offences committed
% in the Indian territories or parts of America not
4 within the limits of either of the provinces of"
% Upper or Lower Canada, or of any civil govern-

“ ment of the United States of America.” The
circumstances of the case, gentlemen, will be fully

detailed to you by the Attorney-General. If it

shall appear to you that the evidence on the part
of the Crown does not make out the case, it will
be your duty to acquit the prisoners, on the other
hand, if'the testimony does ‘bring home the charge
contaiged in the indictment, it will be your painful
duty to find them guilty. You will aitend to the
evidence that will be preduced, and the directions
-of the Court, and there can be no doubt but you
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will qne a verdict that will be ahke satisfactory
and consistent with the justice of the case.
Attorney- Gene:al——-—-—May it please your Lord-
ships.—Gentlemen of the Jury—As you have Just
heard from the learned Selicitor General, the pri-
soners a4 the bar now stand before you, charged
with the crime of murder in the Indian terr 1tor!es,
and are put upen their trial here under the provl-
- sion of the staiute for transmitting, where consi-
derations ofa local or mun'clpal nature. shal] in-
dicate that justice may be more convememly ad-
ministered in the Upper, than the Lower. province,
any crime or offence committed in the Indian ter-
ritory, ¢ for trial to that Court of the province of
« Upper Canada, in which crimes or offences of a
“ like nature are uvsuvally tried, and where the
“ same would have been tried if such crimes or
¢« offences had been committed within the limits of
¢ the provmcc of Upper Cana,da Original cog-
nizance of offences committed within the * Indxan
¢ territories or parts of Amenca not within the }i-
“ mits of either of the provinces of Upper or Low-
« ¢r Canada, or of any civil government of the U-
“ pited States of America,” 1s given by the act of
the 4ad of the King, to Lower Canada, but autho-
rity is given to the Govei nor, Lieutenant Govern-
or, or person administering the government for
the time being, to transmit, under the circumstan-
ces 1 have beforc mentioned, by an lﬂstrument un-
der the great seal of Lower Canada, any crime or
offence Tor trial to Upper Canada. "Therefore,
gentlemen, bemg once informed of this fact, and
the great seal instrumeats being exhibited, you can’
have no difficulty in COﬂa!dOPl’]g vourseives (as in
reahty you are,) impannelled to try an offence
committed In your own district, for so the indict-
ment does charge it. Having stated this to you,
gentlemen, my province of advocate is very limit-
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“ed; it is merely to lay before you'an outline of the
" case which we shall support by evidence. It is
. pot. my duty o expatiate on eriminal law, or to
put this on apy other footing than that of ordinary
cases, wherever it may diifer, you will have the
benefit of every assistance from -their Lordships.
' It must be a matter of satisfaction, however, to re-
 flect that twelve men more completely stranxers
 to the difficulties which have existed in that unfor-
 tunate countl‘y, men more compieie!

; 7 unbiassed,
men more anxious for the invesiization of truth,
could not perhaps have been found. It w3y, ne-
vertheless, have come within your kacwledge that
the Earl of Selkirk, about six years ago, corinenc-
ed a settlement in that part of the ccuutry, and
-ihat difficulties to which, happily, we are strangers
in this province, have existed between the traders
nd others residing there, or following their occu-
pations. I have only, if such should be the case ,
= with any of you gentlemen, to beg that you will
divest yourselves entirely of every recollection of
any thing that may have heretofore reached you
on the subject, and, impressed only with the sin-
cere disire of rendering impartial juctice, attend
- alone to the evidence which will be exhibited be-
¥ fore you, and the charge you will receive from the
bench. Having taken the liverty of offering these
‘preliminary remarks, I shall proceed immediately
. to place before you a brief outline of the case, and
'~ of the nature of the testimony which we shall pro-
- duce in support of the charge. The setilement
which I have before mentioned to you, gentlemen,
was erected in a country where a number of mer-
- chants, assoc.ated under the name of the North
" West Company, have been accustomed {o trade,
- and its population consisted chiefly of persolis wiho
had emigrated from the parent state. They had

~

~been seitled there for four or five yecars before this
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mnfortumate and horrid catastrophe of the 19th
June, as farmers ; they followéd their agricultural
pursuits, houses were built, their farms were cul-
tivated, and every thing was proceeding according
to the ordinary course of a new settlement. In
the vicinity of this settlement, at the IForks, as
they are called, of the Red River, was a fort cal-
jed Fort Douglas, which was occupied by Mr.
Semple, the anfortunate gentleman whose death
is charged in the indictment, and who was the
governor of a territory ceded by the Hudson’s
Bay Company to the Earl of Selkirk. The natur-
al state of the country, gentiemen, had this infant
settlement experienced no previous disasters, would
render it necessary to have a place of strength in
its neighbourhood, and this fort was such, being
constructed at the Forks of the River Assiniboin
and Red River, contigucus to the farms, and serv-

ing as a residence for the governor, sheriff, and
other officers of the colony. A few miles below
this' fort was the settlement, extending along the
Red River for the space of two or three miles, in
the same why as settlements or new villages do
here. It will appear in the course of this trial,
that from some reasons which the witnesses will
detail to you, apprehensions of the most serious
nature had for some time been entertained, that the
settlement was to be attacked. On, or a little
pefore, the 19th June, it is certain that cousider-
able alarm existed ‘on this subject, owing to intel-
figence which Mr.Semple received, that the In-
~dians, and Bois-brulés, at the instigation of the
T'rench traders, (the name by which the North
West Company are distinguished in-that country,)
were about to attack and destroy the colony.
This information caused them to be much upon the
watch, and as will be fully detailed to you by the
@rst witness we shall call, in the evening of the
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19th June, a report was made by the person at
the watch-tower, that a number of persons on
horseback, to the extent of about forty, were pas-
sing the fort at some distance, and going towards
the settlement, which, as I have before observed,
extended about three or four miles below. Upon
this report being made, Mr. Semple took a spy-
glass, and went to the look-out station, whence
he perceived that a great number had actually pas-
i sed the fort, mounted on horseback, and were go-
ing towards the Red River settlement, which, be-
ug a very unusual circumstance, led Mr.'Semple.
to fear that the information he had received of an
2 ntended attack was but .00 correct. It is mate-
rial to mention to you, gentlemen, that these per-
- sons were painted and armed more than js usual,

H33

&Their being painted and disguised forms a very
\material fact, because it shews a premeditation to
- P

orr]mit hostiliti_es, it not being_ the custom of the
trdndians and Bois-brulés to paint themselves, ex~
cept on warlike pursuits, and, when you consider
he information which had been previously receivs
d by Mr. Semple, will be found a circumsiance
gstrongly corrcborating its correctness. Governor
: Sewiple, seeing that this party of horsemen were
. proceeding to the settlement, directed about twen-
ty men to follow him in the direction they had tak<
- en, to ascertain what was their object ; they took
tieir arms with them, but no-awmunition. That
these persons went out with no hostile intention
you will, I think, consider evident, from there be-
ing but about twenty who went, whereas  there
 was a much greater number at the fort who could
 have gone, and indeed were desirous of going, but
Mr. Semple only alfowed about twenty to accom-
pany him.  As’ they proceeded along the road
“which led to the colony, they were met by a num-
ber of the settlers, who were running to the ford
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foi protection, and crying that the 'F- Uf-breeds

were come. No notice 1t appeais s 2s- taken of

these persons, but Mr. Semple 'md '
tinued to advance towards L:,
had not, however, pi'oceeau
served, behind a point of wood, thiri;
sons armed and on horseback, but u
observation, th@y discovered it 1o be 8 more nu-
merous party, amounting, as they then supposed;
to fifty or sixty persons, the whole cunteo and
arme({ Upen this it appears that RMr. Semple
and his party stopped, al,d as uppe arances were
now so alarming, a Mr. Bourke, who will be exa-
mined before you as a witness, was seat by Mr.
Semple back to the for: for a field- pl ce, and as
many men as Mr. M’Denell, the depu 5-uovem~
ory could spare. Mr. Bourke, however, not arrive
ing with the cannon and men as carly as fv!r. Sem-=
ple expected, they proceeded on amw, and had
pot gone far before the Half-beeds advanced cpen
them, and surrounded then i tie shape of a half
moon, or se emicircle. They .vc"e rot far from the
river, and by the Half-beeds {crming ﬂ}c'ﬂ& lves
mto this figure, they comp:eteiv cut oif ail com-
mumcatxon between the settlement and Mr. Sem=
ple’s party. It will be very necessary, gentlemen;
that you bear in mind, that up to this mowents
nothmg, on either side, cfa hostile description had
occurred, nor any, except that a oun had by acci-
dent gone off in the hands of Mr. Holte, one of the
persons who was afterwards kilied, and Lr. Sem-
ple reproved Mr. Holte for not being more careful
of his arms. I have mentioned the circumstance,
that you may be aware that, when during the tua!
we speak of the first firing. we mean the shot by
which this same person, Mr. Holtc. feil, although,
in the accidental manner I have related, 2 zun did
go off previously, but it was some iime Lefove the

.
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-afiray, and had no connection with it. They had

not been long surrounded by this large party of

armed and mounted men, before one of the pri-
~ soners at the bar, Frangois Firmin Boucher, {the
% least of the two,) advanced towards Mr. Semple,
. and asked, ¢ what he wanted there?” To this -
terrogatory, which was made ' a very authorita-
tive and.insolent tone, Mr. Semple replied by en-
quiring of Boucher, « what he and his party want-
ed?” Bou. er said, “ we want our fort,” to whichi
Mr. Semple - rejoined, ¢ well, go to. your fort.”
Boucher then, in a most daring manner, said, “ you
- ¢ damned rascal, you have destroyed our fort.” Mr.
Semple, aithough a man of extremely mild man-
ners, and of a highly cultivated mind, was,as might
be expected, indignant at such an address,and in-
cautiously eaught hold of the bridle of Boucher’s
- horse ; a controversy ensued, or rather a few words
passed between them, previeus to the melancho-
ly catastrophe, the particulars of which will be de-~
tailed to you by the witnesses according as their
situations afforded them an opportunity of hearing.
It wili, I believe, appear from the evidence, that at
: the same time Mr. Semple also laid his hand on the
i stoek of Boucker’s fusil, and instantaneously two .
" shots were fired in immediate succession, by the
first of which Mr. Holte, whose name was menrtion-
ed vefore, fell, and by the second Mr. Semple was
wounded. - On receiving his wound he called out
“to his people to do what they could for theémselves,
but, they, perceiving him struggling in the agounies
{ of death, almost immediately, whether from panic,
Lor from affectionate attachment to their goverpor
rand friend, you will Judge, gathered round him,
‘and made no resistance. Whilst they were thus
- situated, gathered round the dying man, 2 volley
‘was poured in by which nearly the whole were

killed,
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M. Sherwood.—1 object, my Lords, to Mr. At
torney-General making statements of this kind:
We are not_indicted for pouring in a volley- of
shot, and killing a number of persons-who are
not named, we stand here to-answer a specific
charge ; that of the marder of Robert Semple;
and upon that charge the Attorney-General un=
‘doubtedly is entitled to open the evidence to the
Court. - But I submit that Mr. Attorney-General
has no right to go into a leng statement of the
supposed murder of 3 number of 6ther persons, for
the purpose of prejudicing, or the effect of which
may be to prejudice, our ease. - .
Atiorney-General.—One murder is the same as
another, in the seetie of confussion which ensued;
and if I prove that Mr. Semple was killed, and
that the prisoners were there when he was killed;
though [ may not prove by whose individual-agen-
cy he actually lost his life, yet they must be found
gilty of murder, because to be present-at a mur:
der is, in_the eye of the law;, to be guilty of it, and
it is necessary, in opening the evidence to the ju-
ry, that I acquaint them with the whole of the
melancholy. circimstances, as best accounting for
“the uncertainty that may appear as to the individu-
al who actually killed Mr. Semple, whose particu+
“lar murder is charged in the indictment at present
before the Court. The prisoner Brown, it ap-
pears, is rather a superior man for his station;- he
was educited at Montreal, and I shall prove that
he acknowledged that he was'engaged in the af:
- fray, although he might not perhaps, have admit+
-ted that he aided Cuthbert Grant to kil Mr
Semple individuaily. I state to you; gentlemeny
and I think the Court will confirm me.in so doing,
‘that if I prove, by any evidence, that Pau! Brown
was present at the time that Governor Semple was
‘killed, although-I ey not prove that he wasactus
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ally killed by Cutlibert Grant, yet the prisoner is
as clearly guilty of the murder, as if I did prove
that the individual, Cuthbert Grant, charged in the

indictment as the murderer, was so in fact, for,
~ gentlemen; I am satisfied their Lordships will tell
you that, whether Mr. Semple was killed by the
person named in the indictment or not, if the pri-
goners were present at the time of the murder, they
were aiding and abetting it, and are guilty of the
erime, no matter by whoese hand the unfortunate.
gentleman met his death. I take ihe liberty, gen-
tlemen, of remarking to you these principles of
law, because, thank God, m this civilized and hap-
py part of his Majesty’s dominions, it is searcely
possible, er even necessary, that you should be
acquainted with them, for here, by night as well
as by day, we have the security of the law as a
sure protection against scenes such as those, which
I am_ sorry to say, will be detailed to you in the
-eourse of this trial. It is enly necessary for you,
gentlemen, in endeavouring to aitain the ends of
public justice, to be satished that A, B, or who«
ever may be charged as having been killed, ac-
tually was so, and then, gentlemen, any act of
the prisoners or others, aiding and abetting the
murder, though it might be committed in point of

fact by a different person to that charged in the
" indictment, constitutes such individuals guilty of
the murder, ‘either as principals or accessaries; as
principals in the second degree, if present at the
commission.of the crime, as accessaries, if absent.
It is only necessary, in short, for me to satisfy you
that the murder has been actually perpetrated, the
prisoners being present, and I sustain the indict-
ment, and they, of course, are amenable to jus=
_ tice. The first witness whom I shall call will be
- Michael Heden, who will recount to you, in 8

very direct, not a eircumstantial, manner, whe
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fired first; he will narrate to you all the circuras
stances that occurred, from the moment of first
seeing these people to the end of the melancholy
catastrophe, He will relate to you, gentlemeny
that from sixty to seventy persons came down with
" an intention to drive these settlers from the colos
ny, which it appears had been an object of dislike
to the persons accustomed to trade in this wild
country, but, gentlemen, whatever were the pur-
suits of those settlers, whether those of husbandry,
or apy other, whilst they were peaceably engaged
theremn, there was nobody had any right to diss
turb them. I do not know whether, from the tea
%xfeat‘ arxiety that pervaded Mr. Semple’s mind
or the settlement, you may pot find that he unad<
visedly went out of the fort to meet these people;
but, gentlemen, if you find in his going out no«-
thirig more than a very patural ard even praise=
worthy anxiety for the fate of these, whom he -
considered as relying upon him for protection, it
*can form no excuse to say that if he had not come
out of the fort they should not have gone to him,
any more than, in ordinary cases, an act of indis-
cretion, in itself unjustifiable, can ‘be pleaded in
justification -of murder.. Another witness T shalk
bring before you, is John Bourke, the person who
was sent by governor Semple to the fort for the
cannon, and with the message to Mr. MacDonell
to send as many men as he could spare. It seems
that Mr. MacDonell could only allow. one man. te
- go, who set off with Mr. Bourke and the cannon.
t was very natura: for My MacDonell to be: de-
~ sirous to keep the men who were in the fort with
him; because, in case of attack, that must. haye
become the. place where at last they tust have
defended themselves,. and where the settlers must
bave come-for protection and refuge. When Mr.

Bourke had proceeded about half a mile from the



fort, hie perceived that the horsemen had sur:
rounded the goverrior, @nd they heard the report
of guns; and saw the flashes, but-could not, at the
distance they were; distinguish from which party
the reports or flashes proceeded. Apprehensive
lest the cannon should be intercepted by the re-
treat to the fott being cut off; Mr. Bourke sent
back the man with the cannon, but himself pro-
ceeded on, (being joined by eight or ten persons
who had come after him from the fort;) to the
place where he- expected to find Mr. Semple.—
Advarncing farther; he perceived that the horse-
inen, whom he had previously observed surround-
ing the governor; were dispersed.over the plain,
but as he did not see any: thing' of Mr. Semple or
his party, he determinedio return. At this stage
- ‘of this melancholy and horrid outrage, -a circum-
stance took . place; gentlemen, which shews but
too plainly the disposition of that armed party to
‘have been- very .different’ from the mere desire to
protect themselves and their property, because,
whatever might be the pretext for the attack on
the twenty persons with governor Semple, there
¢ould be none for that which was made upon Mr.
Bourke after the lamentable. “affray ‘had  ended.
Mr. Bourke, seeing nothing of governor Semple,
* or any_of the people who had accompanied him,
was dubious whether he should go. any farther; ¢r
retarn, whensome of the other-party cdlled out to
him that Mr. Semple was there, upen which he
#dvanced a little; but, from their further language;
‘doubting the truth of their assertion, and fearing
that the governor had met that fate which ‘unhap-
Eiy attended him, and that he might share a simi-
 far-one, he endeavoured to escape with'the peo-
ple 'who were with him. * In their retreat they
- were fired on by the Half-breeds, and Bourke
was wounted, and- anothfr*man-; named Duncan
=
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M'Naughton, was killed. You are not, gentlemery,
trying the prisoners at the bar for the murder of
McNaughton, but 1 feel it my duty to call your
attention particularly to this incident, as shewin

clearly the hostile. spirit of this party; when.ag
shew of resistance subsided, if ever any was made;
they fired upon persoms who could have given
them no provocation, not having been near thix
scene of desolation. 1 fear, gentlemany that this
circumstance carries too strong a cenvietion of the
real intention, shews too clearly the sanguinary
disposition, gives tco greataa colouring of truth to
the circumstantial evidence which I have detailed
to you, and shall in the course of this trial pro-
duce, to leave a doubt upon your minds of the real
object of this party being the destruction of  the
settlement, of which the unfortunate Mr. Semple
was governor, by any means, however repugnant
to justice and humamty, because, in these instan-
ces of Bourke and McNaughton, no provocation
by possibility could be given.. There are other
rsons 1ncluded in the indictment as accessaries
EZfore:and: after the fact, but to them, gentlemen,
%ou will give no attention, as-it is solely with
Boucherand Brown, the prisoners at the bar, that
.youare charged. Inreference to them, Boucher
‘undoubtedly was armed, and was very.forward.
~He came out of the ranks, either volontarily, or
:was sent by Grant, (who appears to have had the
principal command,) and certainly made. use of
most insulting language to Mr. Semple, though
“he does not appear at the moment to have offered
any personal violence. There is a paper, gentle-
wmen, to which I shall advert for a moment,: be-
cause:itis possible it may be produced as evidence,
“it is an examination of the prisoner Boucher, taken
before a magistrate, and read and acknowledged
by him. . It would not be reasonable, aor correct,
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por is it necessary to read it at the present me-
iment, but it is possible it may be read in evidence,
though it sets out by most distinctly and unequi-
vocaﬁy denying any participation in the murder
_of which he is-accused. Having done that, he says
that he was sent, four days previous to the death
of governor Semple, by N{r. Alexander McDonell,
who was a partner in the North West Company,
from Portage la Prairie, for no other purpose
but to carry provisions from thence to the I‘E rog
Plains. He admits that it was proposed at first,
in order to weaken the Hudson’s Bay people, by
the Bois-brulés, ¢o carry off some of them, and
that, assisted by him as interpreter, one was ac-
tually taken prisener. :

. JMr. Sherwood.—1 amr sorry to interrupt the
learned Attorney-general, but I consider his re-
marks so illegal, that I.should be most culpably
negligent of my duty if I sat still. I submis, my
Lords, that the whole course taken by Mr. At-
torney-Geperal has been a most extraordinary
course, hut the latter .obseryations are so perfect-
ly illegal that I appeal to your Lerdships to inter-
pose your authority to check it.

Chief Justice~—1 shall not stop the mouth of the

- Attorney-General in open,ing the case, for not a
word has been said. that 1s not strictly in or-
der.. He must state the nature of the evidence
by ‘which he intends to prove his case, when it is
produced, if it is illegal testimony, oppose its be-
g received, and if you shew it is_so, it shall be re-
jected’; go onMr. Attorney-General.

- Atterney-General.—The object in view was, ac-
cordipg to Boucher, to reduce the colony by fa-
mine, and it was, with 2 view of weakening the
Hudson's Bay people, proposed to carry some of
them off, and some three or four persons were
‘taken-prisoners.  He states that the firing began
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with the Hudson’s Bay people, and bere I would
remark to you, gentlemen, that whether the par-
ty with Mr. Semple are called the settlers, the co-
lonists, or the Hudson’s Bay people, is of no conse-
quence, as the only difference between them is
that the colonists are generally persons who have

been servants to the Hudson’s Bay Company, but .

their term of service having expired, they have be-
come settlers in the Earl of Selkirk’s colony, and
the Hudson’s Bay people are the servants of that
Company ; the difference therefore is not of the
Jeast importance to you, but as, " during this trial,
there is noe doubt but the whole of these terms may
be made use of in describing the party opposed
to the Bois-brulés, I felt it desirablé that you should
‘be acquainted with the distinction, though so
completely unimportant- to any question that can
arise during the ‘trial. " Resuming ‘what Boucher
says, he asserts that the firing commenced with the
Hudson’s Bay people, though the Bois-brulés, bad
wanted to fire frbm ‘a supposition that, as the peo-
ple from the fort were armed, they meant to at-
tack them. ‘This, gentleman, is the tenor of his
-examination, iaken before a magistrate. Brown,
the other prisoner, denies being there at all dur-
ing the battle, butI shall produce satisfactory
évidence that he was there. " Heden, the firsi
witness 1 shall .call, saw him there; and could not
‘be mistaken, I think, ashe knows him well.  To
.conclude, gentlemen, if Cuthbert Grant was the
inan who killed governor Semple, in so unprovok-
‘ed and premeditated a manner, from malice of
heart, and the prisorers at the bar were two of
the party helping and assisting’ him, they are
.equally guilty of murder with Grant, because they
were present at the time, and ‘are considered by
the law as aiding and abetting the commission of
the crime. But, gentlemen, if Cuthbert Grant

oo
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should:appear .innocent, either from -his conduct
resulting from provocatior, which might reduce
Jhis crime to an inferior degree of homicide, or
that ke did not :actually perpetrate the murder,
still it might be murder in° them, and would be,
" unless they were included in the provocation, and
that it was of a nature to deprive them of their
- judgement by an excess of passion; or, though
“Grant did not actually kill governor Semple, still
these two men may be guilty of aiding and abet-
ting his murder, which is the charge against them.
‘Théygentlemen, from the nature of the accusa-
tion brought against them, are principals in the
anurder, although in that mamner which the law
.designates as. being - in the second degree, and it
1s not necessary 1o their guilt that we should sa-
Aisfy you that,. in. charging Cuthbert Grant as
principal in the first degree, we have named the
‘person who did, with his own hand, murder go-
" wernor Semple, for the moment that we establish
that the..crime was perpetrated, and that Paul
Brown and Frangais Firmin Boucher, were pre-
sent, aiding and abetting the murder—and if they
‘svere present the law considers them as aidin
“and abetting—it ‘becomes your-duty to find them
guilty of the crime whereof they are accused. I
shall now proceed to call the witnesses on the
part of the Crown, and you will pay attention to '
fheir testimony, as you will also, I am confident, -
to those who may be brought forward on the part
of the prisoners, and after receiving from their
Lordships sueh directions as may appear to their
wisdom required by the case, you will, I am sure,
return a verdict which will do perfect justice to-
-the country and to the accused. =
- Mr. Sherwood—In the course of the very ex.
~ traordinary opening speech of Mr. Attorney-Gene<
ral; such one as I may.say I never before heard,
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it is not one of the least extraordinary, that this
M. Robert Semple, who is charged 1o have been
murdered by Cuthbert Grant, has been constant-
ly dignified with the appellation:of governor Sem-
ple- The indictment charges that Robert Semple
was Lilled and murdered, it says nothing about
his being a governor, any more then 2 justice of
the peace, and in point of fact he was just as much
an ewperor, as he was a governor, They called
him governor in the colony which my Lord Sel-
kirk was establishing in this land of milk and hon-
ey, and whilst his title is kept, he, or any other
person holding the situation he occupied, may
be termed ihere an emperor, or a bashaw, for
what any bedy will care. - The motive from swhich
he is decorated with this title here, however, is
apparent in a momert; it is indeed too glaring to
be concealed. I beg mylearned friend the Attor-
ney-General not te consider me as imputing to
him the design, he is only following the parration
which has been given te him by t%e prosecutor,
who has, to answer his own private views, ‘dub-
bed Robert Sempie a governor; but the object is
- to impress the jury with an idea that he haé-a‘ley
gal right,—~a lawfal commission, an appointment |
from his Majesty or the Prince Regent, to act as
governor, and that all oppoesiton io-his mandates
were a species of treason.- Only let the impres-
- sion of legal authority be once fastened: on the
minds of the jury, and there is no defence to be
brought forward which, as Joyal subjects, they
would consider entitled the prisoners to acquittal;
but let them see, as during the trial we:will "do,
that this pretended aathority was an.illegal as-
sumption of power,arrogating to itself prerogatives
such as are not exercised by the King of England,
and very different indeed will be their' view of the
transaction. Let Mr. Attorney-General call hiny
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here, a5 he has done in the indictment, Roberg
Semple, and all he charges us with, we are ready
to answer and to Jusnf), but as he was not a gor
vernor let us not be -

Chief Justice.—Do Tet the trial o go on, it is no
matter whether he was or was not a governor, or
what he was called, or called himself, he is not to
be murdered though he was not a governor.

MICHAEL HEDEN, Sworn.
Exammalzon conducted by the .ﬂltomey—Gemml

Chzef Justice. -—-What couptryman is this Wxtness
Is he French or English ?

./ﬂtorney-General —He is Enghsh my Lord at
least, will speak Enghsh

Heden.—I resided in the month of June, 1816
and for some time before it, at the colony at Red

- River. I was blacksmith there. I had lived there °
a long time before,-for a space of three or four
years. . In the-months of April, May, and the be-
ginning of June, of that year, I was there. [ knew
one Mr. Semple, his name was Robert:  He came
out to the settlement in the fall of the year, 1815,
and acted as governor. ‘He was governor of the
settlement. - [ know something of the death of go-
vernor Semple.

Attorney-Gernieral. -—-nVVeH then, tell slowly. and
dehberately, the whole that you know about it, to
then’ Lordships and the jury.

- Heden.—What all? ‘Am I to begin on the day

he was murdered, or before?
, ﬂttorn%y-Gencral -—As a fact, 1 wnll ask him, my
Lords, whether he had, or whether generally they
had, any reason to apprehend that an attack would
be. made upon the settlement? A

. Heden—We were warned in March by the free-
xen and Indians in the peighbourhood, that the -
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geitlement was to be attacked during the summen
.and we ‘were all much alarmed, because - it- had
been’ attacked before, and we kept a constant
- watch after receiving the mformatmn, at the fort.
Mr. Semple resided at Forf Douglas, which stands
upen the Red River. ‘There was a settlement
Jower down upon the river, a setﬂemem of the
same kind as are upon these rivers, they were
Just begmnmd to build houses, there were none
'bullt at that time; the settlers lived in tents, and
i the fort ; .the nighest part of the settlemest was
‘about a quarter of 2 mile from the fort, and ex-
tended to about three miles below. ‘There was 2
part of the land cleared, and crops had been rais-
‘ed, -and come to perfectmn Potatoes, corn, bar-
ley, and differeiit kindsof vegetables, had -been
grown. - In consequence of the information which
‘was received, a constant watch was kept day and
mfrht, from a sort of watch-tower. :
ﬂtlomeq—General —Well now ‘tell us, Heden,
was any attack made upon the settlement, and by
. Whom, and when?
Heden.—Not since 1815 tlll then.
/ﬂttomey-Gon,eral —He does not appear to un-
derstarid "the particular time I wish him to speak
to, I will put another question to him by which I
doubt not ‘e will go at -once to the circumstances
which it is necessal y he should give evidence of.
You know that governor Semple is dead. . VV:H
you tell us all you-know relative to his death ?
Heden. —Between six and seven o'cleck, as I
think, on the evening of the 19th J une; that year,
the man in the block-house who was at the top,
keepmo- a look-out, to see if these people were
coming ———-
.ﬂttorncy-General -—--Do you thmk it was not
sarlier than six or seven o’clock? :
Heden.—-l de not know the time exact]y, but it
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was §ix or seven o’clock, or thereabouts, 1 thirk,
when.the man at the block—house called out 2 pars
ty of horsemen with two carts, were (,ommg tos
wards the settlement.  Governor Semple m:ec‘dy
went into the watch-house, and ca ptami{ogers with
him, and looked with his 'spy-glass to see” what
they were. When he saw that they were armed
and on horseback, he told about twenty of hxs
eople to get their-arms and follow him, to see
_what these fellows were about, or what they want-
ed. The men, to the number perhaps of twenty-
elght, were ready to go, but Mr.. Semple would
ouly let about twenty accompany:him. He had
not got far when we met some of the settlers run-
ning towards the fort, saying that the North-West
servants Avere coming with- carts and cannon, and
that they had taken some prlsoners. :

Chzef Justice~~Who was it said that they were
.coming with carts and cannon, and who did they
say were coming with them?

JTeden.—It was some settlers whom we met run-
ning towards the fort, who said they were coming
w:th carts and cannon.- They said the servauts of
‘the North-West Company were coming, -and- that
they had taken some of the settlers prisoners.
- We went on after hearing this for about .a mile, .
when we met more settlers,  who told us that they
had both carts and cannon. Governor Semple
then told one of his men to go to. the fort,” and get
a small piece of cannon which was there. It was
to Mr. Bourke that he gave these directions; he
told him to make haste, and .go to the fort, and
get a piece of cannon, and to. tell Mr. MacDoneu
to send as many men as he could spare. Mr. .
Bourke not coming back soon, we went on towards
the settlement; and when we came in s1ght of the
‘party of Half-breeds, they galloped up-te us, and
‘a}most surrounded us, by making themselves into.

!
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ghe shape of a half-moon, going to the riser on
the one side, and getting beyond us on the other.
QOne. of their people on horseback came up to-
wards us. It was Boucher. ‘He came up towards
as, and the governor asked him, « what he want-
% ed”? and Boucher said they wanted their fort.
#He said “we want our fort.”  Mr. Semple ans-
“wered, -« well,go to your fort,” and Boucher an-
swered, “ you damned rascal, you have destroyed
«-our fort, you have took down our fort.”  Upon
this governor Semple said, ¢ you seoundrel, do you
% dare to tell.me.so” ?. and called out to some of
our people to.make him prisoner, and laid hold of
the reins of Boucher’s bridle. S
Chief Justice—Wags there any action accompas

nying the words made use of on either side? how
were they spoken? .. - . . o oo

. Heden.—They were spoken in a loud voice, but
there was nothing done except that governotr
Semple laid hold of the bridle of his horse, wheg
Boucher told him ke had destroyed their fort;
and he kepthold of it seme time. - When Boucher
. heard governor Semple call out 1o us to take him
prisoner, he slid off his horse on the other side,
and ran away. i

- Attorney-lieneral—-At the time, what you have
‘related, as having passed between governor Semple
and Boucher, took place, how far were your par-
ty from that of the Half-breeds ? ‘how far was Bon-.
cher :in advance. of his party, and could you see.
what passed between the one party and the other?
did any thing. interrupt your view, or was every
thing .visi’b]eﬁs ‘ Sl et

Heden—When Beucher came forward towards

our: party, we were within about a gun-shot of
each other. . There . was nothing between us but
a few willows and brush, every thing was visible.
As scon as Boucher'slid off his horse, a shot was
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~ fred, and Mr. Holte fell. . The Half-bréeds fired
the first gun, and by it Mr. Holte was killed; there
was no firing before that, and immediately after
another was fired, almost directly after; and go-
vernor Semplefell. -~ = - S
~vittorney-General—1I beg your Lordship’s pardon,
but 1 will here ask him relative to the accidéntal dis=
charge of Mr. Holte’s gun, to which I adverted in
opening the case. IfearIam breaking upon your
Lordships’ notes by not having taken it in the or-
der of time, but it did not occur to me before. - In
coming along; did any of your ‘party discharge a
gun, or did one go off by any means, and if there
did, tell us how it happened, and where about
youwere at the time? - . - ...
- Heden—At about half a mile from the fort, Mr.
Holte’s gun went off by accident, -ang Mr. Semple
was very much displeased, and told Mr. Holte very
sharply that he should be more careful of fire-arms;
or he might kill some body; . this was" some time
before our coming up with the Half-breeds, and
had no connection with the firing between the par-
ties. [t was quite amw accident. . The - two  shots:
of which'1 spoke, when I said . they'were the first
that were fired, came from the Half-breeds. - =~
* Chief Justice.—By the first, I think, he says Mr.
Holte fell, and by the second goverﬁ'or'SemFl‘é. B
- Attorney-General.—He does,; my: Lord: 1 shali
now:ask him-hew he was placed, because, I want,
from circumstances as well as his positive testimo~
ny; to shew, fromthe positions of the two parties,
that the.two first shots must have come from the
Half-breed: party.- Where were you, Heden, at
the time these shots.were fired? - - - .
- Heden.—I was on the: right of the governor, and
very near him.. All our party were withinside of
the half-moon line, ‘but they. were:scattered hére
and there before the shots were fired, by whicks



78

Mr Holte and goverhor Semp}c Fell. It was' just
as Boucher slid oﬁ' from his horse, that the: ﬁrst
shot was fired, and by it Mr. Holfe fell..

ﬂttomey-General ~—You remember -the parley
between governor Semp]e and Boucher.  Were
Holte arid Boucher during that time lookmm 40-
wards the half-moon lmezs

Heden.—Yes, they were. SRR

Attorney-General. ——VVere your party rreneral]y
armed; and- how--and, as I suppese you had guns;
tell us How they were Toaded ? :

- Heden—My gun was loaded: Qur guns were
$ome of thein loaded, and some not.. "Those that
were loaded were loaded with ball; as. I suppose.
‘We had no other arms but guns.: Boucher’s arms
consisted only of a. gun, but others-of his party
had tomakaiwks, bows and arrows; and - spears.
Both Mr. Holte and governor Semple fell by the
two. first shots, and after then, when the people
had: gathered round - Mr. Semple, ‘and- were In'a
chister; the volley. was poured i in; and nea"ly the
fwhole were killed or wounded. -

. Attorney-Gneral—~Notw; Heden. from thie situas
‘ tmn in which ;you stood, can you say.that you
know . the tWo ﬁrst shots came fx'om 1he Half-
breed party ? :

- Hec en.-—Oh my God’ I could not but k’»m;w',
for I sawall,’and shall never fOro'et it

Attorney-General. —Whereabouts ‘was vemor
Semple, that. is, opposxte to what part- of the semx-
circle or half-moon line was he? ,
 Hedeni~—He was pretty near ‘thée centre of the
half-moon, and the two first shots: came ffrom’ about
the centre of thé halfinoon. I saw.the smoke,
and could not bé mistaken.  Boucher- slipped off
‘his -horse before thé first shot was fired, and ran
towards his own arty. 'There was none ‘fired

before that, I dicr not see Boucher fire, not do
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- {-krow that he did:fire. I donot know whichiwof
* dor people fired. - I know that Mr. Semple blam-.
ed Mr. Holte very muth for letting his gun go'off:
.- Attorney-General—-Did Mr. Semple, or any bo-
dy else, give you orders to fire, or say any thing
abeutit? .
Heden.~—MF. Semsple said all he weanted was to
see what those fellows weré. about, and that he
wanted no firing at all. ¥ heard him say that he
wanted no firing at all, and [ heard: hiu te]l some
of his people to take Bouclier prisoner, but ot to.
fire; and f he had givén any such directions, I.
- must have heard them. There was no order of
march kept up by our party, we weit as it hap~
ened, or we liked. . Mr. Semple gave no particu-
};r orders to his men how to behave. To the best
of my recollection he gave no orders atall. -1 am
sure he did not give any fo. fire, nor did any of our.
people, to the best of my belief. At the ;~time‘.-ofr>
the. conversation between Boucher and governor
Semple, I was looking towards-the -Hali-breeds;
and I saw amongst them three Indians in blankets;
and only ‘three, and-they did not.fire. ;. The Bois<
brulés, before any. firing took place, gave the wars
whoop; théy gave it as they were forming -the
halfiring. I got very much alarmed when I saw
the people wounded, and in the:confusion.that
took place I made my. escape with-my lifecs 5.,
. Attorney-General —How long was, if, -or: was it
soon after governor Semple fell,; that the: general
firing by which the others were killed and wound+
ed took place 2+ - .. il fan onlen
Heden.—-I:can not say hoiv long exactly. .1 wag
very mughdrightened when 1 saw Mr..Helte and
governor Semple fall. A shert time affer 1saw
the wounded men .crying for mercy, but. the Half-
breeds rode up to them and killed them. . ==
.M. Sherwood.~-1 beg leave, my Lords, to risey

Sy by
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18t for the pufpose of bbjecting to the téstimiony;
- though I thik it very wide of the case, but merely
* to.ask whether your Lordships consider it “regu-
lar; " if it is so considered, I have no objection to
offer to it, because I shall meet it by similar-evi:
dence- of foreign circumstances and conduct of o=
ther persons, than those at'present introduced. .
< Chief Justice—Do let the trial go ‘on, vnless
‘you have some objection to make. If you have;
state it; and you shall be heard. - T
~ Jttorney-General—Y ou saw: Mr. Semple fall by
the second shet, do you know whether  that: shot
killed him? . °. T
- Heiden:—1 did see Mr. Sewple. fall, but I don’t
‘know ‘whether. that shot killed him. - As soon as
‘he was wounded he called. to his people to take
.care of themselves: He was wounded, as far as’1
can guess, about the shoulder. Mr. Wilkinson
said that after. Lo Tt e
- Chief Justive.~You must not tell us what any
body told you; or said, you must speak only from
your own knowledge of circumstances.” = - -
-+ Heden.—1 did nét see governor Semple get up
“after he’ was: wounded; : he did' not while I was
_.there. * ‘One M’Kay and'I,in the confusion; made
ouriescape; and got to theriver. - Michael Kilken-
' ny dnd one named Sutherland also got away to the
Tiver, and swam across it, and by that means got
~ $afe;" Mr. White, the surgeon, thought also to es-
cape ‘with us, but we were pursued by six men
- who-fired at us,..and wounded him inthe thigh, or
.. the’hip, and whilst they were engaged- in killing
‘him, ‘wé escaped,: M’Kay ‘and I; by a canoe; and
‘Kilkenny and Sutherland by swimming. - In the’
course of the night'we got back into the fort. On
the next day I saw the'dead bodies, and nine of

them were brought in by the Indians, and among

them was the body of Mr. Semple. I could not say
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whets the ball struck him, or by which wound he
Tost his life, as his body was 2ll over spear marks,
so that I could not distinguish one from another.
The Bois:brulés were very strongly armed; they
had, besides guns, bows and arrows, spears and
tomahawks. I saw a number of the Hall-breedg
the next day at the fort, and Cuthbert Grant was
~ amongst them. They took away a good deal of
the property. The next day after the massacre
we remained at Fort Douglas, and alse the fol-
lowing day, when the Half-breed party, headed
by Cuthbert Grant, took all the public property, -
and all the settlers were obliged to go away, and
a good deal of our things was taken fromus. -
Chief Justice—It is not larceny, Mr. Attorney,
that we are trying, but a murder. You must keep.
your evidence to that point. o
. Attorney-General—Your Lordship will see, in-
deed 1 think must see, the impessibility of this case
being  tried without going into statements of the
quirage connected with the murder. it is easy to
see what the nature of the defence must be, and
to substantiate the guilt of the prisoners, it is ne-
_cessary that, by their subsequent conduct, I'should
shew (and it.is only for that purpese that it is in-
troduced,) their prior intention ; but in so doing it
will, I fear, be impossible not to mention other
acts connected with the outrage of the 19th June.
.. Chaef Justice—It is very difficult, T admit, but
1t is a very dangerous. path, on a distinct charge of
murder, to go mto evidence of larceny, which hap-
pened some days after. Any thing bearing on the
‘charge of murder, you may go into, but you must
not adduce evidence relative to offences for which
the prisoners are not upon their trial.,
- Heden—The Bois-brulés encamped that night
at the Frog Plains, and the next day they came
to the fort, and ordered the settlers away, I saw.
o ‘
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Boucher at the fort on the next day, he was nog
armed, but he came with the others. T know
Cuthbert Grant, he was there on the day of the
murders, and he .came to the fort the next day.
Heis a Bois-brulé, and was one of the band of
Bois-brulés. The Bois-brulés insisted upon our
ﬁiving up the fort, and going away from the Red
iver country, and z capitulation was entered into
between Mr. M’Donell, the sheriff, and Cuthbert
Grant, -by which the fort, with all the public. pro-
perty, was to be given up;- and we were all to go
away. Cuthbert Grant was with the Half-breeds
at the time Mr. Semple and the others were killed.
I know him very well, and I am sure I saw' hiny
there. He was pamnted. .
Mr. Sherwood.—1 should submit to the Court
whether the Attorney-Genera! is now within the-
limits of legal rules upon the point of evidence.
I do not think it is competent to the Attorney-Ge-
neral to go into evidence of what occurred after
the battle. We are not brought here to answer:
"a charge of taking possession of a fort; when we'
are, we shall be ready to answer, and I doubt not
satisfactorily account. for our so doing. Itis a
charge of murder which is brought agamst us, and
- X can not see what right Mr. Attorney-General has
to go into other matters. - The effect of his being
permitted to de so will, my Lords, be this, we
must go into the history of aggressions of a similar
nature comuitted by their party, to shew that the
taking of Fort Douglas had been provoked, and'
“was only in retaliation for the taking of Fort Gib-
raltar by them, and <o it will be with every cir-
‘cumstance not immediately conmected with this -
battle, which they provoked. Let the Attorney-
.Gereral confine his examination tc the 19th June,
or to whatever has relation, in his opinion, to the
death of Robert Semple, so as to lead to it, and’

A
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Yhe case will be very short, but if Mr. Attorney
is permitted to go into evidénce. of taking forts, 1
inust do so too, and lét him go as far back as he
may, we are furnished wjth matters equally early
to bring in‘justificatién, of our conduct on all occa:
‘sions. It has always been in self-defence, or in
" “the endeavour to regain our own property, or in
return for some aggravated attack and aggression,
that, we have interfered with the Earl of Selkirk,
the Hudson’s Bay people, the colonists; or any of
thé persons or property-of what may be ¢onsidered
ih"éfo‘ppési'té party, and; notwithstanding all that
has besn said to the contrary, so it will this day
appeat; if Mr. Attorniey-General is; upon a specific
‘chargé of ‘murder against Paul Brown and Fran-
‘cois Firmin Boucheér, to be permitted to” go into
an investigation of all the difficulties that have
‘occurred - within , those territories since my Lord
Selkirk has béen a trader there. = Relative to
Cuthbert Grant, or what hé may have done, 1 do
not see how it is to affect us inany measure, espe-
cially what he may have done after the alleged
wurder. | . o L o L
.- Chief Justice.~~Of the homicide there can.be no
doubt.. 'The Crown charges that Mr. Semple was
murdered. Whether his death was cccasioned in
2 manper to render the charge of murdeér correct,
rémains to be seen, but, in ascertaining the fact,
they must be permitted to shew the conduct of
the persons who were engaged in this melancholy
affray, to enable the jury to distinguish whéther
it was; as charged in the indictment, murder, or -
whether, from thie peculiar circumstances of the
case, . it resolves iiself into any, and what, inferior
degree of homicide. As to Cuthbert Grant, he
1s charged in the . indictient with having actually
perpetrated the murder, he is the principal in the
first degree, and it therei'ox;é can not be objected
, F _
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that evidence be gone into as to his conduct before
the mueder. 7 , AR
. Attorney-General.—T humbly submit, my Lords,
that, even if he had not been named in the indict-
ment, the moment I prove him to have been there,
I am eatitled to go nto evidence of his conduct;
because I.charged the prisoners with being present,
aiding and abetting in the murder of governor Sem-
ple on the 19ih day of June, and if this man was
justified by any conduct of Mr. Semple’s in the
part be acted, even though it was to the taking of
hislife, still it might, from those very eircumstances,
support the charges against the prisoners. But
having charged Grant as the principal, bhaving .
charged him with committing the murder, ¥ must
acknowledge that I can notsee on what principle
the learned gentleman questicns ‘my being within
the strict rule of evidence; in laying before the jury
the whole of the conduct which he‘pursued on thig
occasion. My object is by his subsequent conduct
to prove what was his prior intention, and thus en-
able the jury to determine, from seeing the guo
animo of this party and their leaders, what were
the real oijectsf they had in view in going to this
colony, and nothing more than this, am 1 desirous
of obtaining from the witness I

Chief Justice—To any thing that ocurred previ-
ous to the death of Mr. Semple you may certainly
examine the witnesses, but not to events subse-
quently, as they could not influence it. Itisa
charge of murder, and must be tried as ¢ases of

" murder are usually tried ; youmay'go into evidence

of what occurred at the time, or previous to it, but
not as io occurrences that took place subsequent-
_ Iy, except as the prisoners now actually-at the bar
are -concerned. - R o
- Atiorney-General—I am under the correction of

your Lor‘dship, in this, as in all other cases, and
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shall, in conducting the trial, confine myself within
the rule which you have prescribed. My only
object was to shew, by their conduct afterwards, -
what had been the spirit by which they were ac-
tuated, and to strengthen, by the acknowledgments
of the individuals who had beén engaged in the
thorrid scene, the strong evidence of malice which
the catastrophe itself too powerfully presents. I
had conceived that, in thus endeavouring to eluci-
date the quo angmo, which in all cases of murder
forms the first object of enquiry, I was not going
beyond the rules by which the examination of
witnesses in criminal prosecutions are regulated,
but, under your Lordships correction, I shall leave
the question I had propesed putting to the witness,
:as to the conduct of Cuthbert Grant, whom we
charge to have committed the murder, and whom
-alfeady we have proved to have been present
when Mr. Semple received the shot, which we
charge to have occasicned his ‘death.
- Chief Justice—In the manner you now mention,
wiz: to elucidate the principle of action, or the
motives that governed the conduct of this party,
you have a right certainly to-put the question,
having proved that Grant was there.  Go on with
the examination.. = = SR ‘
. Attorney-General ~—Did you see Cuthbert Grant
at the time of the firing on the 19th; was he arm-
ed, and did he fire? . e ‘
Heden—1 did see Cuthhert Grant there, and he
was armed, but I can not say that he fired, for I
did not see him fire. - I saw him on the next day
at the fort, and he then acknowledged that he had
fired the day before, but he did not confess that he
had fired at governor Semple. He told me to be
gone from that part of the cotntry, and warned
me when I did go, which he said would be in a
day or two, never to come back again at the peril
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of my life. T saw nothing of the prisoner Brown
till ihe next day, he was notin the company of the
party who came with Cuthbert Graut on that day .
" to the fort, but he came with them at the time we
all went away, and left their party in possession
of the fort.” On the day after the battle he came
to my tent, and there he-told me that he had been.
there the day before, He had two pistols.in his
sash, and he put one to my breast, and threatened
to kill me, and I believe would have done sp,-but
for an Indian woman who was in my tent. He
told me he had kilied six Englishmen, and I should .
be the seventh. He talked both in Indian and
French, in broken French, and he made signs by
which I understood very well what he meant. I
bad not seen him before that day, but I am sure
the prisoner Paul Brown is the man whogame to
my tent, and told me that he had killed six Eng-
lishmen. He did not say when or where he had
killed them,- he only said he had killed six English-
men, and I should be the seventh, but he did not
say where or when he had killed them. He said
that he had killed six Englishmen, and that I should
be the seventh, and that he would not leave the
tent till he had taken my life. By the six people
he said he had killed, I understood him to mean
six of the party who were with goversor Semple
- on the day before.- I had no conversation with
him at the time about governor Semple, but that
was what | understood. At that time I believe -
that Brown would have killed me, but that he was
hindered. I do not know that Brown was in the
afffay of the 19th; I do not recollect to haye seen
him before he came to my tent. I have no recol-
lection to have seen him on the .19th, but I am
sure it was him who came to my tent on the 20th,
and said he had killed six men and I shopld be the
seventh. I did not not see Boucher after he joined
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Liis party, which he did direcily he slid from his
horse. . I am certain_that I saw Cuthbert Grant
there on the 19th June, and that he was armed
_and painted, but I can not say whether he took
‘the command, " but I always uaderstood that he did.
. Atiorney-General—We only - require from you
.what you know of your own knowledge. Do
you, Heden, recollect any thing else relative to
the conduct of Cuthbert Graat, or of either of the
prisoners Brown and Boucher, on the 19% June,
er any material fact connected with the death of
governor Semple ? If you do relate it.
Heden.—I do not recollect any thing else that
s particular; I believe I have told all.
. JAttorney-General—You have said, I think, that
" you saw governor Semple fall,-and that on the
‘next day you saw his body. I think, in answer
:to a question I put to you as to " whether you saw
-any wounds which had apparently been given by
the balls, you said the body was so completely la-
.cerated, with the marks of spears, that you could
~not distinguish. Was that the case?
Heden.—Yes, it was. His body was all over
spear-holes, so that I could not see whiether there -
swas any ball-holes or not. Icould not. distinguish.

Cross-egamination conducted by My, Sherwood.

Heden.—1 do not know how far it is, threugh
Lake Erie and the woods, to Red River country,
but.itis a long distance. .There are no civilized
Courts there having judges. - =

Mr. Sherwood.—Do you know that before this
‘battle, of the 19tk June, 1n which your party appear
to have got the worst of it, long before that, en-
mity and war subsisted between the Hudson’s Bay
Company and the North West Company, and their -
servants, in that country 7~ E ’
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v Heden.—~I know that in 1815, we were turned
out of the Red River country, and the settlement
burned and the fort; by the fort, I' mean Fcrt
Douglas.

- M. Sherwood—Do. you know of any dlsturb-
ances between them before that, and ihat they
Wexe began on your side ?

. Heden.— Yes, 1 know there were quarrels be-
tween them, but I do not know that the Hudson g
Bay pe gle began then.

Sherwood.—Then I Wlll try - and refresh
your memory Do you happen to know whetheg
there was any pemican seized by your people from
ihe North West Company,or any of their people ?

- Heden.—No, I do not know of any being seized.

- Mr. Sherwood—Oh, you do not, then you was
not ope of the Pax ty, nor do not know any ihmg
about 1t ?

Chief Justzce.——What is this about seizing pe-
‘mican ! v If witness had senzed it, or been engaoed
in seizing it, or any thing else, however impro-
perly, how is such a circumstance to be a defence
‘agamst an mdictment for murder? :

Jr. Sherwood.—1 beg your Lordshxp pardon,
but the defence we shall set up for these men,
renders it extremely important that I should have
an answer, and a clear and positive answer to the
-question I have put, and I am confident, as I con-
sider it important, - s‘mli be permltted to put the
question to the witness again. 1 ask you now,
Heden, on the cath’ you bave taken, do you know
of a quantity of pemican having been seized by
your party from the North-West Company, in con-
.sequence, or by virtue, of a proclamation of Mr.

* Miles McDonell, whori, I believe you called go-
ernor McDonell ? Do you or do you not? '

- Heden—No, I-do not. I was not there when
:any was taken. -

i
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© Mr. Sherwood—Very well. Tn what capacity
did-you go to this land of promise, and where did
.}/ou go from». ' ’
* Heden.—I went as a servant to the Hudson’s
Bay Company in 1812, from Ireland. I agreed
with his Lordship’s agent at Sligo. - I was to work
asa blacksmith for a year for the Hudson’s Bay
 Company, and ther to go to the settlement and
have lands. T went there by the way of Hudson’s
Bay. There were no quarrels there in 1812, at
Jeast, I heard of none. I do not know if the lands -
-1 had were bought from the Indians or not. There
is not in that country a_surveyor-general’s office,
or a council-office, as there is at York, 10 grant
lands there. I did not pay for them. it was a-
ereed with Lord Selkirk, I was to have lands there
before 1 went.: S ‘

Mr. Sherwood—Then how dare you, or any bo-

dyelse, go and take lands in that country, any
#aore than this? Would you think of taking lands
in Upper Canada, without paying for them? or
without a deed, or a scrape of 2 pen to shew your -
right to them? Do you know who gave Lord Sel- -
kirk authority to let his agent agree to give you
Jands there? \ .
. JAtttorney-General—I must appeal to you Lord-
~ ships, at once to stop ‘this most . irregular and un-
precedented course which the gentleman is pursu-
ang. Itis permitted tothe prisoner to cross-examine
‘witnesses, it is true, but it must be to the facts of
the case, {0 .circumstances to which he has given
.evidence in his examination in chief. ‘What can
the nature of this witness’s engagement with the
Hudson’s Bay Company, or with the Earl .of Sel-
kirk, have to-do with a charge against the prison-’
ers at the bar for murder ? 1 appeal to your Lord-
ships to interfere, and put a stop to a course of ex-
2mination so completely beside all rule.
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- #hat any questions which a prisoner might wish to-
?put,'should be propounded by him to the Court,
and by them put to the witnegs. It was theold
fashioned way, and it is .a pity it was ever chang-
ed. Lenity, however, to prisoners has led to a
change in the practice, and Courts now are in the
habit, upon the zpplication of a prisoner, to assign
him counsel, bat I repeat that the indulgence is so
frequently abused, that it would be well if it had
never been allowed to creep into our practice. If
‘ {ou mntend to cross-examine the witness, it must
e conducted according to the practice in ordina-
ry cases; we can not allow you to go mto matterg
totally irreleyant. It is completely misusing the
indulgence that the humanity of our practice -
has, most unhappily, introduced into our criminal
Courts, and that at a very late date too. ‘

M. Sherwood.—I am aware that the allowing to
prisoners this privilege is the humane introductien
of a‘late day, and T recollect also, that it was the
old practice, not only, pot to allow to prisgners the
advantage of counsel, but also not to permit wit-
nesses to be examined in their behalf. This we
all know was the old practice. o

Chief Justice.~—And it would have been very
well for the real interests of justice if the rule had
never been changed, for the petulanee of counsel,
and the unrestrained licence which is'assumed in
the . cross-examination of witnesses, and on - exa-
minations in chief of prisoners’ witnesses, is such,
that the humane alteration, as for the good it

roduces, is more than overbalanced by the evils
that the abuse of a well-meant humanity have -
clogged the administratiop of justice with in our
JMr. Sherwood—In ordinary cases, it is the
practice when a witness on the part of the Grown
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has been. exammed in chief, that the counsel for
the prisoner shall cross-examine him, and so ful. o
countenanced is this practxce in our day, that to
1he counsel in conductmg 2 cxoss~exammatlon are
g:ven pnvdeges which are pot extended to the
examination in chief. In thls, which is an extra-
ordmary case, I shall imagine we mlght exercise
the privilege to’ its fullest extent. Itis a case of
such an extraordmary natune, as !mpenous!y to
call for it; it is a case such as’ perhaos never be-
fore came befo*‘e a Court of "criainal Junbpm-
dence.

" Chief Justice—It is a case ofmusc.er committed
in ihe ndlan terntory, and is under ihe act to be‘
tried in the same manner as if it bad been com-’
mitted in the town of York, “where, in fact, the
“indictment charges it to have -been committed;.
there is, therefore, nothmd more in it than in an
' ordmarycase of murder, at tleast nothing to mduce_
us to let you pursue that course of cross-examina-
tlon. -

Mr Sherwood.~~It is, my Lord, a case of mur-
der, and, as your LOI‘dShip remarks, it must be
’med under the statute as.cases of murder gene-,
ral!y are, it is nevertheless a case completely suz
generts, and, in the conduct of any case, whether
the offence occurred at York or at Red River, we
must be more or less governed by the partxcu]ar
circumstances which are connected with 1t. Apply-
ing this, which [ consider io be a general rule, to
the present case, Isay, though oge of murder,.
and to be tried in the same maxnaer as if the offence -
had been committed in the province, itisa most ex~
traordinary case,and I humbly conceive, were your
Lordships as fully acquainted as I 'am withthe facts
conuected with it, 1 should not have been stopped
in my examination of the witness. Mr. Attorney-
General’s openmg was an extraordmary one, and
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gour Lordships, T am sure, will do me the justice
3o remember that I took the liberty of remarking,
at the time 1 appealed to the Court to interfere itz
authority, and compel that learned gentleman ‘to
«<confine himself to the .circumstances actually con-
mected with the affair of the 19th June, and again
- durigg the examination .of this man, when I madé a

similarappeal, or rather when I asked whether the
Lourt thought itip order, that, if that was your
Lordship’s opinion, 1 must meet it by similar evi-
dence, of circumstinces foreign to the abstract
charge of murder. I am now doing so. We have
already heard a great deal in Mr. Attorney’s ad-
dress to the jury of a settlement, of a colony esta-
blished by my Lord Selkirk, and a great deal more
of it shall be heard during this trial, as well as of
its governors, as they are facetiously called. Mr.
Attorney follows up his speech by examining this
witness as to attacks made on this settlement, and
not content with extracting every thing which,
however unconnected with the ,_aﬂ%ir of the 19th
June, might, as having happened before, by re-
mote posstbility, be connected with it, he goes,
beyond the death of Robert Semple, into an ex-
amination of the conduct of a number of persong
to these settlers, to prove, as he says, against
Brown and Boucher, the prisoners at the bar, the
murder of that individual. This witness, Heden,
is a yery proper person to bring forward for the
purpgse, and I ask him by what right he held his
- lands there. - All he appears to know about it s,
that he was there, but I am going on to shew that
all the title which, either he or those who sent
him there, had to this flourishing colony, was the
sturdy right of possession. Iam going on to shew
that, not content with taking the lands without
any title, and then quietly living on them, they
assumed to themselves lordly, aye, mere than
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kingly, duthority. Not only the land they odeu-
pied was to be theirs, but the beasts of the forest;
the fowls of the air, and the fish of the rivers, and
the lakes were to be theirs too, and the aCtuaf_
lords of the soil, the Bois-brulés, who had been
enabled to live by means of hunting and fishing,
were no longer to exchange for their necessaries,
which their wants required, the surplusage of the
chase, as they had for.a century been accustomed
to do, with the traders frequenting their country.
No, the new-fangled governor issued. his procla=
mation, declaring they were to trade with nobody
but himself, and if they were detected in disobey-
ing his mandates, or it was suspected they would

do it, their property was taken from them. [ was
about asking this witness whether this state of-
things existed to his knowledge, and if he had
- admitted a knowledge of the famous proclamation
of governor McDonell, as he was called in the
Red River country, I shculd have extended my
enquiries as to what. had been done under it.
shall hereafter make evidence of this proclamation, .
surpassing in its assumption of prerogative all that
ever were issued by regal authority, and I shal¥
prove the conduct which followed it.” Mr. Aitorney
thinks it necessary to shew that Fort Douglas was
taken; I think it necessary, and shall shew, that
Fort Gibraltar had been previously taken, and
so I propose to do with every extrancous cir-
cumstance that may be produced on the part
of the Crown. If Mr. Attorney confines him-
self to the 19th June, I shall shew that all we
did then, was in self-defence, and. therefore Jjus=
tifiable ; whilst, if he goes back to circumstan-
ces of an earlier date, so shalil too, and I shall
shew that such was the state of that country,
arising from the disputes occasioned by the con-’
duct of this colony and its adherents, that -it’
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#ss only a great trespass -that could have beéd
committed there, and not murder. - This is the
8efence which the prisoners have fo. presest to

the Court if permiited, and I hope, in condicting
it, 1 shall not incur the charge of peiulance m
counsel, which your Lordship has so strongly cha-
Yacterized as more thaii overbalancing the benefits
of the humane alteration of our system of criminal
jurisprudenice, which formerly did net allow coun=
sel to prisoners, or witnesses to be éxamined o#
their behalf; but, whilst I avoid exposing myself
to such a ‘censure, I shall insisi on all that Tcon:
sider my right, from having been appcinted of
counse] to the prisoners, and I have stated to the
Court the nature of the defence I infend to offer:

< Altorney-General—1 consider it 1o be one thet,
is completely inadmissible, and shall resist it: If
in this Indian country they do not eonsider - that,
killing a man in cool bleod is murder, and that they
areé amenablé to justice for so doing; it'is fime,
they were better msiructed. The observation &f
the learned gentleman, as to my having produced
éyidebée of what took place afler the horrid scene
on the plains, and of the conrse which be intends
to pursue in consequence, [answer, by submitting
to your Lordships the absolute necessity whick
€xists, for sustaining the charge against the pit-
soners, that I shew the intention with which these
persons caine to the settlement. How ami I 1o
prove their intention, but by their condact? We
say that the object for which they set.out from
Qui Appelle, was to destroy this settlement. They .
allege that it was merely to carry provisions. In

roving our assertion of their object to be correcty
it is_indispensible that 1 bring their subrequent
conduct before the jury, and shew that they effect=
ed that which I say they set out.tfo accomplish.
Butis my doing so to admit the gentleman to go
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back to évery aggiession which may havé beew
" committed by ény of the servants of the Hudson’s
Bay Company, of settlers of thé colony, and thus
set off one crime against another? Admit that
*_ Fort Gibraltar was takén, that it was an unjusti--
fiable aggression, (though, if even that affair was
gone into, the very reverse would, I believe, ap-.
pear,) can that be adduced as a justification for
the murder of twenty-one persons, Admit everd
that murder had been committed on the other sidey
still is one murder to be set up a¢ a justification
for committing another. The observations do not
at all apply. If it should not be in the power of
these persons to shew that they had a legal right
to the lands they occupied, still the absence of
this right does not justify a party of sixty or se-
venty persons to come and shoot them. If this
has been considered in that unhappy country to be
law, or that the right existed of their recovering
even that which belonged to them,-it is, I répeat;
high time that they were taught to the contrary;
and it is sincerely to be hoped that these tria{s?
may have the effect, by shewing that individuals
who travel in that country are still under and
amenable to the law, and that his Majesty’s sub~
jecté, so far from being out of his protection, be~
cause they are in a distant part of his territory,
are as fully entitled to it, as if they were living 1
the most civilized part of his empire. ) _
Mpr. Sherwood.—The persons trading inte this:
eountry are undoubtedly entitled to the protection:
of his I{’lajesty’s government, but it, nevertheless,-
can not be considered as a part of his Majesty’s
empire, It can not be a component part of ils
dominions till purchased from the aborigines.—
These persons, calling themselves the setilers or
colonists of my Lord Selkirk, have assumed to
themselves the right of taking a quantity of these
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lands; and had they merely proceeded to cuilivais
them, they would not have been molested, unjusti
fiable as was their seitling there without leave
from the aborigines: * But whien, beyond the robs
bery of their lands, they establish-and exercise a
sovereignty or despotism which -is to prevent the
Bois-brulés from trafficking, when they forbid
them to hunt buffalo on the plains which God and
hatuie have made theif own, is it to be expect-
ed thdt thesé people will iamely submit, or that;
if it is attemipted to take their property from them
they will not protectit?  DMost assuredly not;
the consequénce of attemipting it we. see in the
transaction of the 19t June. Here were a pums
ber of persons cotiveying provisions to meet their
traders who would require it, they are prevented
taking it the nearest and most convenient way, by
water, because they would, by that route, have
to pass Fort Douglas, the residence of Mr. Sem-=
Ig]e., which he had fortified, together with- the

anks of the river, to prevent their passing. Com-
~ pelled by this circumstance to go by land, they
proceed and, agreeably to the instructions they had
received, they pass atas great a distance from the
fort as the nature of the road would admit, when
Mr. Semple, ludicrously called governor, march-
ed out, accompanied by twenty armed men, and
what is the reason assigmed, even by their own
witness, for so doing ? He wanted to see what these
fellows wanted, being apprehensive they were
come to take possession of this fiourishing settle-
ment, where nothing can ever ripen, seeing that
. “there, even in summer, 1t is no unusual cccurrence
to have frosts which penetrate five or six inches
into the ground.. He went 'out to see what these
- fellows wanted, and they, seging an armed force
coming towards them, wished to know what they
wanted, and sent one of their partysto ask the

»
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qu‘esﬁbb; According to Heden’s own testimony; -
an' assault” was committed - upon'- Boucher, whe
was the person sent from the Bois-bralé’s party,
and it will, I think, appear very clearly in evidence
“before the trial is finished, that that assault was
followed 'up by what might very naturally be ex-
pected from the temper in which-Sewmple’s party
went out of the fort, viz. their firing upon the others.
{ shall submit; my Lords, that this country was
open alike to all who chose to become fur-traders,
and that-only-for the purposes of commerce had
either the one or the other party aay right there,
and for that purpose these rights “were equal.
The Hudson’s Bay-people had as good a right as
the North West, and the North West as the Hud-
- son’s Bay. I I shew that I was prevented carry-

ang on my lawful trade: by my rival - assuming to
- himself territorial rights which did not belong to
him, if he terdicts,. or attempts to.rob' me of my
property, ard death results from. it, the consea
quence 1s with him, because:it-is in defence of my-
self and my property that I take his life. Resict.
ance to these assumed powers has- been made,
and we are ready to justify it It forms "an ags |
gravated part of the attacks which have been made
upon us that it is since this settlement has been on
foot they have been made; and that, not only had
those who  established it no right even to ‘make
the settlement, ‘but that all their attacks are justis
fied by reference-to the proclamations and notices
- of -the self created. governors of it. We have
heard a great deal about the philanthropy of esta-
* blishing colonies during - the course of these dis-
putes, but the -philanthropy of the . founders of
this. colony consists in an endeavour to extend
their own. commercial enterprizes, by destroying
their rivals,. and this -settlement. forms a rendez-
zous for the former servants of the Hudsen’s Bay
. i N G .

~
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Company from which they can most onveniently
mtercept the “supplies and- returns of their rivals
in the fur-trade. We set out in our deferce by -
denying that the Hudson’s’ Bay Company pos- -
sess any territorial rights in: this country, or any
of any description beyond those of mere fur-
traders. We admit they have a right to trade
there, but so bave wealso. What ['waut todo away
from the minds of the jury is, any impression that
exclusive right or sovereignty belong to the Hud-
son’s Bay Company, or their partaer the Earl of
Setkirk, and I wish thus early to correct the er-
roneous view which my learned friend’s ‘constantly
ealling the person charged to have been mur-
dered governor Semple in his opening, and then
~ following it up by examining the witness as to the
manner in - which governor Semple lost his lifey
might lead the jury to take, “Because I think it
will not, for a moment, be denied that the sitna-
tion ia which we stand must very materially de-
pend, in relation toour guilt or fanogence in the
opition of that jury, on ouar proving that every
power, beyond that of mere fur-traders, was an ilte-
g2l assumption of authority. Ishall therefore pro-
ceed with my examination of the witness with that
view. .You always call Mr, Robert Sernple, gover-
nor Semple. Do you know how he happersed to be
_galled governor, any more than any body else ?
Po you krow who made him a governor? -
Antorney-General—Then, my Lords, I'contmte
my opposition, and I call uporr the Court for its
deécision, whethier they consider the mode, which
the learned gentléman has stated he intends to
pursue, one which they can permit him to adopt.
I oppose. the question just put. : o
Chisf Justice.~~We decide against you Mr. Sher-
wood.. We have nothing to do with these two
~ gempanies, and can not; therefore, allow you to
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he WltneSS as to their quarrels Ttis the
’ ‘oplm'o'l of the Court, not my own alone, that thé
questmn you have Just proposed can noi; be put t6
*the Wwitness., .

Mr. L. Sherwomf -—-Though that i your Lord-
shlps opmlon, I do not suppo 36 you wish to pre-(
clude-our raising. a question of law, and shewmd'
that we were, under the circumstancés of that coun:
try, incapable of commiitting niurder there. . This
then we propose to do, and are prepared with aut
thorities to support our posmon We intend. té
%hew that war exvsted between these two- compa—
files and their servarits; and therefme the deaths;

~ ‘which mierht. take p!ace o consequence 1hezeof*
cou!d 16t " be called murdeérs;

M. Sheriwosd.—=Our posmon s émlpiy thxs‘
that What from the different circumstances’ of the'
countt'y would have been mm'der here, Was dnly
mlsdemeanor ‘{here, and I contend for the right to
put thie. question 1 submitted” before, becatse I
have 4 legal right to shéw whatever 1 can in Jas«
. ‘tiﬁeatmh, and the state of that countx y xs a mate-
fial point, ©

Chief Justice. -—-We do not ihmk SO, b6cauqe tha
et says; offences shall be tried in the sameé tian:
her, though committed i the Indian country; ‘a8
ihey Wwould have been if - perpetrated in the prc-

Vince.
My Sherwood. I admxt that, But I do hot cons
ceive that the act of 1813, at all altered any law
ah'eady in_éxistence, it me:ely provnded for tha
trial of offences coriatitted against the laws, and
declared that, although there wis Bot a eivilized
gove;nment in the Indzan térritories, yet offences
rommitted there should be consideréd as offences of
the sante descmptxdn and tar pxtude, and should be
tried m the same mamner, ahd subject 16 the same
punishment; as if they h:;d been cammitted in ei-
®

[
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sher of the “provinces of Canada, in the Courts of
-which provinces this act- provides . that -offenders
shall be tried.  All thatis freely adwmitted, but this
does not create a new law. It makes no.new of
fence, nor does it'change the nature of any old one.
That being the case, I contend then, what might
be murder here, from the state of that country, was
not. murdér_- there. Where war.exists i any part
of the dominions of the King, and is not carried on
“ against his Majesty, but between private indivi-
duals, we know itis only a misdemeanor, such as
a riot or contempt; whereas if it was against the
King, it would be high treason. - This doctrine is
not only laid down.by my Lord Hale, but a .een -
‘tury afterwards by Sir William Blackstone. That
offences may vary in their nature according to cir-
cumstantesis evident,and under this rule that which
is in.some cases an atrocious felony is, in others;
only” a_slight misdemeanor. . Sir William Black-
stone, in treating of treason, says.vol. 4, page.82,
the third species. of ‘treason is,-*if a man do levy
& war against our. Lord the King,” after describ-
ing that other taking of arms than with a design te
" dethrone the King may bea levying of war against
him, and’ therefore high treason, he goes on to
shew, that resisting the King's arms, may also be
alevying of war. He then proceeds to:shew what
_offences In some degree resembling treason, ~and
~ which would be so under certain circumstances,
are not so, and he instances the case of the-barons
of England in the feudal times. ¢ So if two_sub-
-« jects quarrel and levy war against -each other,
« ‘then (in that spirit of private war which prevail-
« ed over all Europe in the early feudal times,) it
% js only a great riot and contempt, and no trea-
& son. Thus it happened between the .Earls of
« Hereford and Gloucester, in 20th Edward I, whe
“ raived each a little army, and committed out-

A\l
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« Eages' upon each others lands, burning heuses;
% atrended- with the loss of many lives, yet this was
«.held-to be no high-treasen, but only a great mis-.
s demeanor.” - The same doectrine is-laid down in
a mugh_!arger form by my Lord Hale, in his Pl
Cor. vol. 1, p. 136, and the selemn decision upon
" -the case of the Liords marchers is set forth, ¢ Ig
% the parliament of 20th, Edwardl, (now printed
% in Mr. Ryley. f} 77.). It appears there arose a
& private quairel between the :Earls of Gloucester
-¢.and Hereford, two great Lords marchers, and
% hereupon divers of the Earl of Gloucester’s par-

“ty, -with +his _consent, cum multitudine tam equi-
% tam quam peditim exierunt de terra wpsius comitis
4. de Morgannon cum vezillo de armis ipsius comitis
4% explicate -versus . terram comitis heref. De Breck-
-%.nock,et-ingressi -fuerunt terram illem per spatium
% duarum: levcarum, et dlam depredati fuerunt et bona
% 4lla depradata usque-w terram dicti comitis Gloces-
.- triee adduzerient, and killed many -and burned
% houses, -and committed divers outrages, and the .
¢ like was done by the Earl-of ‘Hereford and - his
& party upen the Earl of Gloucester: .they endea-
« youred to excuse themselves by certain: cus-
%.toms between-the Lords-marchers; by the judg-

“ ment ef the Lords in parliament their royal fran-
% chise were seized as‘forfeited during their lives,
- % and they committed to prison-till ransomed at

« the King’s pleasure,” although, says my Lord
Hale, in commenting upon - the ‘case I have read,
«although bere was really a war levied ‘between
* these two earls, - yet inasmuch as ‘it was upon 2
“ private quarrel between .them, it was only a great
% riot and contempt, and no levying of war against
« the King, and so, neither at common law, nor
¢ within the statute of 25th Edward III, if it had
¢ been then made, was it high treason.”  The c:se

of the Duke of Nerthumberland and the Earl of

3
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Wesmoreland, immediately follows in Halebut i¢
js unnecessary that1 should read it at length. The
judgment. of the Lords, to whose examination it
was referred, to say whether it was.high treasony
after view of the statute 25th Edward IlI, and the
_statute of livéries, is in these words. '« Adjudge-
“ rent.qe ceo q¢ fuit foit par le comile n’est pas irea-
% son’ ne felony mes trespass tant solement pur quel tres-
« pass le dit comite deust faire fine ¢t ransom a vo-
% lunté du Roy.” - These cases I adduce as’strong
evidence that, when the state of a country is such
that the law is suspended by the quarrels of power=
ful individuals, as in those of the Earls of West-
moreland and Northumberland, and of Hereford
- and Gloucester, then, what, under other or ordi~
nary circumstances, would be felonies, are only.
misdemeanors. " This, I contend, my Lords, was
law before the 43d of the- King, and that it is s¢
still ‘can not be doubted. The act of the 43d, did
_not alter any law, or make any new law, it~ pro-
vided only for the trial and punishment of persons
~ who broke the laws already in existence: * If this
position is correct, and T think I can not be mis-
taken in ‘assuming that it is, then 1 say, my Lords,
that, owing to the state in which the Indian territo-
ries, and particularly this Red River-country were,
‘that what " here might be felony, such as murder
or treason, was there nothing but a great misde-
meanor. Here unquestionably the very circum-
stance of a party of sisty or seventy persons go-
fn;} armed with guns, axes, scythes and sickles,
would of itself be an offence ; for a party of per-
“sons to go riding through the country armed would
“here, undoubtedly, “be an offence, -but in this In-
dian country, it is unforiunately "necéssary -that
they should do so, for the purpose of self-defence,
and I add that, in this state of things, that what
at York, in the Home district, would be a high
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offence, at Fort Douglas, in the Red River, is not;
that that which would be murder Aere, is not mur- .
der. there, owing 1o the irritated state of that un-
fortunate couniry. I consider that, in just ard
equitable defence of these prisoners, I ought to be
_permitted to shew the - state of this country, and
"the many acts - of outrage and aggression which
had been committed against the traders by the
Hudson’s Bay people ‘and these settlers. 1 consi-
der that I have a right to shew the exasperated
.state_of mind in which these two great rival com-
_panies were to each other. As Mr. Atiorney Gene-
-ral has.been permitted to shew that we took Fort
:Donglas, T have a right to shew that they had not
" dong before taken one of our forts, cut down the
- _pickets, and floated them to this same Fort Douglas,
- where they were found at the time, and to which
Boucher alluded whep he said © we want our fort.”
‘Boucher, I fear, was not understood by your Lord-
.ships, when. the witness represented that - Bou-
.cher said, “we wantour fort”” Your Lordships -
will, during the course of :this trial, see that
Aorts have been taken .from us; as well as by us.
Boucher’ allusion was to the taking of Fort Gib-
raltar, .a North-West fort, which was razed to the
ground, and floated to this same Fort Douglas, and
 this outrageous act formed only one of a.train of
vile aggressions, such as I think pever .was ‘heard
of in a Court of justice before. - This furious and
flagrant outrage had been committed oply a lit-
Ale, before, and .if .this party bad actpally been
- sent to retake their fort, I do not conceive it would
* have been unjustifiable, looking at the state of the
country. -That the principle, whichI have the
“henour of supporting by the authorities of Hale
and Blackstone, is applicable to this case, I might
be permitted to mention, is agreed by all the
‘counsel engaged in the defence in these trials, and
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they are not a few. I, therefore, the more confid
deutly, submit to your Lordship, that I am com-
- pletely entitled to go into evidence of any circums«
stance, which will have a tendency to shew the
state of hostility in which these companies were,
and the exasperated state of mind.of their servants,
* Chief Justice.—We are desirous that every thing
calculated to shew the innocence of these prisoners
should be brought forward; we are willing that
ou should shew the state of excitement that ex-
“isted at the time of this truly lamentable affray,
but it can not, in the present instance, be a ques-
tion that can at all bear on the case, one way or
.the other, whether or not these lands were ever
bought from the Indians; whether they were hus-
bandmen, traders, or settlers, or servants. of the
Hudson’s Bay' Company, is of no sort ef conse-
quence to the question before the Court, which is,
whether these two men, Brown and Boucher, are,
or are not, guilty of murder; we have nothing te
do, at present, with any body else.

Mr. Sherwood.—So 1 should imagine, my Lord,
and it was therefore that { considered the question
of the Crown a very improper one, and opposed it.
Mr. Attorney, however, was allowed to put it,’and
from the auswer it appeared that Fort Douglas
was taken possession of; and the settlement was
destroyed or broken up. Thisis no way connect-
ed with the charge of murdering Robert Semple,
of which these two men are accused, and yet it
may prejudice their case very much if they were
not permitted to shew that forts had been taken
from them, and as to the lands, that they belonged
to the Bois-brulés, (of which people the prisoner
Brown is one,) and that these people had no right
1o them whatever, though they had taken posses-
sion of them. My question was to ascertain whethes
the Pois-brulés acknowledged their possession,
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- Chief Justice—Your question might perhaps be
so" put as to ascertain whether theyvt}ad a quiet
- possession, but it could not be permitted to be
taken any farther. The question of Mr. Attorney-
Geperal was to shew the disposition in which they.
left home, and came to this place, and any- thing
that will shew the temper of mind of these people
must undeubtedly be evidence in an offence where
the quo animo is the very foundation of the crime.
On the other haud, you certainly are at liberty to
shew any thing you can that will demonstrate the
temper of mind, created by circumstances of con-
tinued irritation, to be such:as must reduce, o2
the part of the prisoners, this case from aggravated
murder, to manslaughter; so long as you shew a
conticuance of this irritation, by proving that the
state of excitability in which the tempers of these
people were left by the contests in which they
were engaged neverallowed their Eassions to cool,
you may certainly go back to any distance of time,
but you must never lose sight of this rule, that it
must be an uninterrupted -arritation, of an extent -
sufficient to diminish the crime to manslaughter, if
roved against the prisoners. = -
Mr. Sherwood.—'That, my Lord, is all we want.
Nor should we ever have asked for that, had not
the Attorney-General called this place a settlement,
and following up his opening speech, he weuld, by
his examination of this man, (who is a very fit per-
son,) have led the jury to infer that this” was an
mfant settlement of industrious farmers, who had
been completely rooted out of their legal posses-
sions, without any provocation whatever, by these
hard hearted Bois-brulés ; instead of which, it will
Jn the sequel appear, that this flourishing 'settle-
ment, witheut a- single house, was nothing more
than’ the camp of the hunters and servants of the
Hudson’s Bay traders. -
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- Atjorney-General —1t matters- not, as ¥ consrder
it whether they were settlers, hunters, or traders,
they are equa]ly entitled to the protection of. the
law, and to take the life of the one or other. un-
Justxﬁably is murder.  There was, as [ stated n
‘my introduction of this case to the attention «of the
Jjury, a settlement, and the ob_]ect with whlch these
: people set out was .to. destroy it. ILhave, by this
witness, shewn, that it was destloyed by . them ;
so far theiracts correspond with what! allege was
‘their orlgmal intention, namely, the destmctlon of
the settlement.

Chief Justice.~It appeals rather, Mr. Attorney,
#o havé been habitations than a settlement.

' Mr. Sherwood. —And those the habltanons of
the servants of the Hudson’s Bay Company, -
ste‘.d of agucultuusts and fa:mers

Cross-evammatzon conlim'ed bg M, Sheruood

B eden—1 was in the batile of the ]9th June,,
1816. I did not see the cannon which the settlers
we met ‘'said the Bois-brulés had with them. - .

" Chief Justice (to' Mr. Sherwood.)—My brother,
Campbel{ has Just spoken . to me to say that he
wishes you most perfectly to understand” that,
ﬂ]ouah you are permltted to go back, you must -
go no farther than you can keep up a degree. of
‘excitement sufficient, if the prisoner should -be
‘found guilt; of the death, to diminish the offence to
;xnanelaughter I therefore remind you: of it again.

Cross axammatwn contmued by .M) Sherwooa’

. Heden —The Bms-brules dxd not come to our
fort on the 19th; they kept at about-a quarter of

a. mile distant from it, and passed it. - We had
cannon at the fort. o
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- Mr. Sherwood --—Dld you take them to the battie
wnh you, or did Mr. Semple send for them after«
W&l ER

Heden—No, we did not. Mr. Semple sent Mr.
Bomke for one, after the .people met us, and said
1he Half-breeds had come with carts'and cannon.

Mr. Sherwood— Did Mr. Semple want a cannon
to see what those fellows were about, or. what
dld he want it for, if he did not go eut to ﬁght? _

" Heden nat answering - for somig- time, the question
was repeated, Jr. Sherwood adding, ‘that he'insisted
upon an amwer, z’houwh the mtness was swearing i
his own cause. - -

Chzqf Justice. ——Do not bay that, Mr. Sherwood.
He 15 a witness brought here on the part of the
Crown, and entitled to, and shall recewe, the
protection of the Court. Every man is bound to
appear in Court and give his evidence in all cases
when subpcenaed, whether of breach of the peace,
felony, murder; or any other. Do not, therefore,
talk of being a witness in his’own cause, when he
1s here on behalf of the Crown. :

" Mr. Sherwood.—1 assure your Lordship thatno
word shall be used by me that is not-well weigh-
ed; he has told us he was in the battle himself
and before We have done with the business we
may perhaps give a very different appearance to
~ the ploceedmas of the 19 June, to what Mr.

Heden has put upon them. You was in the bat-

tle, was not you, on the 19 June ?

" :Heden.—I do not know that it was a battle. -

Mr. Sherwood. ~—Why I thought you said Just

now, that you was in the battle. - -
" Heden.—1I do not know that it was a battle; we
were ordered nat to ﬁxe, buf if 1t had been-a bat~
ile, T should suppose we ‘would have fired. We
.did not go to fight; all the ‘governor said was to
see what those tellows Wanted ' »

&
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Mr. Sherwood.—You had guns  when you went
sut, you say, had they bayonets to them ? ‘
. Heden—Yes, some of them had bayonets, not ali,
Mr. Sherwood.~If you did not'go to 'ﬁght, what
did you want with bayonets, were they to spear
fish ? _ . o A
Heden.—1 do notknow. T only know that. the -
governor’s orders were not to fire ; ‘he said he did
. mot want any firing at all; ‘he only wanted to
see-what these people wanted. He said we must
see what those fellows want.- ' -
M. ‘Sherwood.—Take-care and don’t swear too
fast. As he was your governor, you, I suppose,
were 'bound to do all he told youto do. If he had
led you out to attack this party, who had passed
your fort -without molesting it, you would have
been bound to obey-him, as you say he was your
governor? R I
~ Heden.—He was our governor; -we always cal-
ded him governor, and obeyed him as such.. :
Ar. Sherwood.—~Now, ‘I do not know whether,
under the permission I have obtained for conduct-
mng this defence, your Lordship will be disposed
to permit me to ‘follow up the :last question, by
asking the witness-if ‘he knows who made him'a
governor, ‘because he was just as much, or-ne
‘more, a governor than he was.a 'bashaw, and ‘we’
consider it extremely ‘important 4o let -the jury
_have that fact before them in evidence to counter-
act any unfavourable impression which Mr. Attor-
ney-General’s opening may have made. -
sChief Justice—You may call-him, or-they may
all him, just what they or you will. Landlord,
master, governor, or bashaw, it makes ne differ-
ence, to the fact which the witness has most di-
stinctly sworn to, viz .that they had receivedinform-
ation that they were to be attacked, -and in con-
sequence thereof, had kept a constant look-out,

v
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and on the 1912 day of June, a large party of arms
ed horsemen being seen from the -look-out place;
about twenty of them acco.mpanie\d Robert Semple,
whom they had.been accustomed to call governog
' Semple, to see what they wanted ; that a parley
_took place between onme of the other party, and
Mr. Sewple, in which high words passed, and Mr.
Semple teld his people to make Boucher; one of
the men at the bar, a prisoner; that Boucher slid
from his horse, and joined his own party, and im-
mediately a firing commenced from the Half-breeds,
" and by the secoud shot Mr. Semple fell, -and sub-
- sequently nearly the whole party. Now how these
circumstances are to be at all varied by the name
given to this unfortunate gentleman, Ican not for
a moment conceive. Indeed I think it approaeh-
ing vex‘y closely to what I have before remarked
as one of the abuses of the humanity which led to
assigning counsel to prisoners. '

. Mr. Sherwood.—There shall be nothing like pe-
tulance on my part, I assure your Lordship, and I
‘hope there will be none on the’ part of the Crown
officers, but, with great deference to the Court, [
must be permitted to do away the smallest impres-
sion that can, by possibility, attach itself to the
mind of even a single gentleman of that respecta-
ble jury, from the course which has been pursued
“on the partof Crown. I know that with loyal sub-
. jects, a degree of awe attaches itself to any thing
approaching to contempt of, or opposition to, 'le-
gitimate authority, and if the gentlemen of the jury
could once be made to believe that Robert Semple
was a governor, appointed by the authority of the
Prince Regent, like the illustrious governor of
the Canadas, or his distinguished relative Sir Pe-
regrine Maitland, the situation of the prisoners at
- the bar, would indeed be critical. I must there-

fore, shew the jury that he was no more a govern~
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of thati he was a Turkish™ bashaw, #io toré thas
hé was aif emperor. Did you ever ask this . go-
vernor of yoirs; how he beécone so? you don’t;
I supposé, koow whethei lie had 4 commissiorn |
from his Majesty oi ‘the Prince Régent, in the
Samie way that the Duke of Richmorid and Sir Pex
Tegrine Maitland; Wwhe afe governoss, have? -

- Heden.-=I do not know how he was & gobern-
or. Lnever asked him; it was niot my plice t¢
do so. LT L

. JMr. Skerwood.~~You do not know whethér the
- North-West Company acknowledgéd hii as.a go=
vernior, whether they called him ifeir govéitor.

_ Attorney-Gentral.—1 really -can ot -see upofi
What ground it is, that the learncd gentleman puts
questions of this natute to the witness. If T had
put the offence on a different footing to what it isy
by chafging the prisoners with levying war against;
and in that war killing the governor of; the colo:
ny, there would; perhaps, be some octasion for
them, but in thi§ case of murder of an individual;
I do niot conceive to what object they are.to tend.

M. Sherigood.~~Will the Crown adiiiit that he

Wag not & governor; that Le had fio authority
tonstitutiig him a governcr. If the Attoriiey-Ge:
neral will admit that he was tot a govéror, 1 havé
1o desire to put a singlé question on the subject
of his assumption of authority: L

_Aitorney-General—=1 have rothing {c do with
what his riank was, for it ¢an be of Do consequencs
- what his rank or duthority might really have been;
or what he might have assumed. He was gene-
tally known in that country under the #ppellatio
of governor Setiple; but I neither admit that hé
was not legally a_ governor, nor do I assert thaf
he was. I do not charge these men with the
murder of governor Semple, but they are indicts
&d; as principals in the second degree, in being
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present aiding Cuthbert Grant to murder Robsr¥
Semple, . we say nothing about governor Semple. -
**Mr. Sherwood.—Very well, then good bye, to'
the governor. . Do you remember any conversa-
tion at the fime of your going out With Mr. Sem-
ple. Speak of Mr. Semple, because he is not to'
be governor any more. Do you recelleét his say-
ing any thing about taking of pemican. ‘
. Heden.—1 do not remember any conversation at
the time of going out; except what I have men-
* tioned about going to see what they wanted. I
am sure that we did not go to take pemicaii; nor
did I hear Mr. Semple say any thing about tak-
" ing it from the North West Company, ot that
he would have their lives. I know what pemican’
is. I have frequently eat it myself; it is food pre-
pared for the support of the traders, and is carried
frequently from one post to another where it is’
wanted. .I'do not remember any other conversa-
tion but whatI have told. The Half-breeds had
. passed our fort before we went out; they did not
* anterrupt us in going by. I can not say whether .
they would have come back fo us if we had not
gone out to them. The nivers which form what are
- called the Forks of Red River are the Red and the
Assibiboin Rivers, and Fort Douglas is at the
_Forks. ‘The Red River receives the Assmiboin
river dt the Forks, and they both fall inte Lake
Winnipic (A map was hére handed to wilness, whe
satd he did not ‘understand much about maps.) The
Half-breeds - were mounted en horseback. Fort
Douglas was fortified. It had been fortified for
fear of the North West people and Half-breeds
coming. [T did fiot hear governor Semple say that
he would fire on the Half-breeds, nor did I hear
Mr. Holte or any ether persen say they would, I
read and write very little. I do not think T
should know Mr. Holte’s writing, (a kiter was here
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shetwn, but he satd he could not say whéther it was
Mr. Holte's writing or not.

Mr. Sherwood.—Did you ever say to any bod},
no matter whom; “ we have been disappointed,
« we deserved what we get, we fired first, and if
« we had got the betterwe should have served
¢ them the same.” or words to that effect ? Now
recollect )omself Did you ever teli any budy so 2

Heden.—No, 1 did not. Inevex said an) thing
like it.

JMr. Sherwood—-And every thmo' you have
sworn to, to dav, is as true as this ? ls w?e A

Heden —Yes, itis all true. -

Mr. Sherwood.—I ask you, is it all as tr tie as
this, « that you never said your party fired first P

Heden.—1 never did say so. I could not, be-
cause | knew the Half-breeds fired first, and all
I have sworn to is as true as this. . -

Mr. Sherwood—You have spoken of a. report
that you were to be attacked, whele did that re-
port come from ? .

Heden.—We were quned by some Ind:ans 1hat
they were gathering at Qui Jppelle to attack
us, and we had been told before that we were to
be attacked. They did not t:!! u. that Brown
and Boucher were to attack us. There was a forg
a little above Fort Douglas belonging to the North
West Company. I was told it was destroyed, but
1 do not know that it was; it might have been
sent down to Fort Douglas n a raft. and I might
have seen it, but I do not know that I did. we see
so many rafts there that it would ke haid to tell
one raft. It was generally said Fort Gibraltar
was taken by the Hudson’s Bay people, that is all
I know about it.

" Altorney- General.—It is no matter. forit can not
be evidence, either one’way or-the other. It has
- mothing to do with the case.
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t’hz"ef Justive~~1 ‘do not knbyv'; it ,‘m}ay depend
~ upon how long it was before this affair of the 19th
June, took place. . o e
Mpy. Sherwood.~—1I will ask you once more before
 Ifinishi with you ; did you ever tell any body in this
“town; or any where else; that it was your ?a'rty
or the Hudson's Bay people, who fired first ?.
Heden~I have told youbefore. - .~ =
JMr: Sherwood —Aud you must tell me again.
Heden.—I never did say that our party or the
Hudson’s Bay people, fired first. “When Boucher
said he warted their fort, he did not say Fort Gi-
braltar, but I do believe that he meant Fort Gi-
braltar. e S -

Re-examined by the Attorney-Genéral.

Heden.—I do not know that it was taken, for I
did not see it taken. I heard that it was taken in
Mareh. - , o

Attorney-General—And this battle was the 19th
June, I shouid therefore think, it can be of no
consequence. o ‘

JMyr. Sherwood—~We have as yet only got a part
of the trath from this withess, but we shall prove

it by others. It was taken in the early partof the” . _

summer, and floated down to Fort Douglas. The
Red River is frozen ap in March, and long after,
therefore it could not have been in March. . You
say you had notice some titie before that the Half+
breeds were to attack you. What was the inform-
ation which you réceived ? 3
_Heden—We were told tliey were to assemble at -
- Fort Gibraltar, when the river broke up, and at-
tackus. | S ' ‘
Myr. Sherwood —And you, like good generals,
attacked them first; however, we will leave the
fort, as you did nvt see it taken, andgo to Paul
H

~
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"Brown, of whom you have given us this terrible
accoupt.- - You say he spoke to you in. the Cree
language. Have the goodness to tell in Cree what
hesaild? - - - . = - R ;
Heden.—Brown, when he came to my tent spoke
in Cree. -Witness here repeated some Indian words,
and said that in English it wes. - <1 have killed six
« Englishmen, and you shall be seventh.” " I had
no quarrel with Paul Brown. It took place on
the 20t June, the day after the battle at the plains.
I can talk -a little Indian, and so I could in June
- 1816, when thishappened. I should have under-
stood Brown, had I not been. able to speak it, as he
. put up hisfingers, and made signs. -~ .
Mr. Sherwood.—I am afraid your Indian educa-
tion is of a very recent.date.- Can you say any
thing else in Cree, or, I ask you on your oath, -
could you at that time speak any Indian ?
Heden—T1 could speak it then as well ag now.
Chief Justice~—He says if he had not spoken it,
he should have understood the prisoner by the
signs he made, besides he has given you the words,
and swears that he knew them then, as well as
now, and he has given you their meaning; there
are persons here understanding Cree, I dare say.
You understood him, did you, by ‘what he said,
and by signs ? v v ‘ o
. Heden.—I understood the words he said, and I
should have understood them by the signs he made.
I do not know of any pemican being taken. Idid
not assist to take any; there was a report of it
having been taken from the North-West Company,

" this was about 1813 or 1814.

DONALD McCOY, Sworn.
Ezamined by the Solicitor-General.
. McCoy~1 arrived in the Red River country in
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}813, and’ I was there in' 1816, in the month of
June. Iheard a little before June 1816, of threats
to destroy the colony at Red River. I had, as
* tong as had been there, heard that its destruc-
tion was threatened, but I beard it then more par-
ticularly than before. I saw in that year, in the
month of May, Cuthbert Grant, at River Qui Ap-
pelle; as I was stopped by him; I'do not know if
%o’uche‘r was with theny, but I saw him afterwards
at Brandon-house. 1 was ‘coming down the River
Qui ’Appei'le, with provisions, and was stopped by
‘Cuthbert Grant, and made prisoner by him and an
armed party, and taken back to the North-West
‘Company’s fort at Qui Appelle. It wasin May that
‘same year; that this happened. Cuthbert Grantand
the prisoner Paul Brown were among that party,
- but Boucher was niot. There were about twenty-
‘seven, or twenty-eight persons, but with the Bois-
bralés there were fifty or sixty. * 1 saw Frangois
Deschamps, and he ‘was there. Cuthbert Grant
‘comnranded the party who -tosk me prisoner.
Whilst at the fort at Qui Appelle, (where I was
kept four days,) I heard Deschamps say, they
must_go down ‘and destroy the colony ‘at Red R
ver. I saw the prisoner Boucher at Brandon-house,
he said he was glad our people were taken at Qui
Appelle, and when I answered that there werea
good many ‘more at: the settlement, he said they
would go down and &e’étr‘oy it. This was the very !
* ‘end of May, or might perhaps be in- June. We
left the armed force which had taken me prisones
at the fort at Qui Appelle, and weiit on to Bran-
don-housé. Boucheér, one of the prisoners, was
there. “Hoole was not, neither was Grant. Very
soom, 1 believe, only one nightafter, we continued
four Youte to. the settlement. 1 heard no other than
what I have told, but when we got to - the settle=
ment, we heard the report that they expected to be
R ' o ou* o
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attacked, and they were armed to protect them-

selves. . We always kept a look-out at the fort,

" and on.the 19t June, some one at the look-out

gave notice that a-.party were: coming down to-

wards the settlement. - The governor' cameé out

with a spy-glass, and after looking through it, he

called to about twenty of his people to go with

him, and see what they wanted. I was one that

wentout with governor Semple.. We were armed,

and as we were going along, Mr. Holte’s gun went

off by accident, and-the governor scolded him for
not taking better care. A short time after this,

we were surrounded by this party, who were ge-

nerally painted. 1 knew some of them; we were

close to them. or nearly so, but I do not know if
Boucher was painted,. or'if Deschamps was there.

They were strongly armed, having guns, bows

and arrows, spears and tomahawks.. When they

were surrounding us we stopped, for they came
up very quick, being on horseback, and were

going to fire. Mr. Semple ordered.us tostop, and

see what they would do:..:I saw a shot fired, bat

before that took place, Boucher came out from his

~ party, and canie over to ours, and had: some con- .
versation with the governor, and I saw the govern-
or catch hold of the butt of his gun. [ heard at
the same time some words, but could not under-
stand what they were. . Boucher then sprang .off
his horse. . T

Mr. Shérwood ~~Will your Lordships allow: me
to ask you if you have taken that the witness saw
Mr. Semple take hold of the butt of Boucher’s gun,
because- [ consider it very material. - -

Chief Justice~1 have taken it: . What did Bou-
cher do when Mr. Semple took hold. of the butt of
his gun? . : o

MeCoiyp.—He got off his horse, and as soon as
he was off; L heard a shot, and saw Mr: Holte
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die, :and immediately.after, enother. 1 afterwards
saw. that-most.of my party were down, Governor
semp}_g, -was.killed . directly. after- Mr. Holte, for
two shots went.off directly afier éne- another, by
one of which (the first) Mr. Holte fell, and-by the
other, Mr. Semple, who immediately called eut to his
- ;peapleito do what they could to.take care.of them-
selves. Idid fire myself, but_fnot;; efore M;',.let&
-and- governor Semple fell, nor did: I hear, nor do °
Tbelieve, that any of pur party did. . I'do. not know
-what they did after T.saw most.of our people down,
- asil.endeavoured to make miy escape. . The .next
day I saw one of our party, whom 1 had heard.call
for mercy, with his head cut open:: Some-of this
party avere Indians, -and. seme Half-breeds; :and
some Frenchmen. - ‘Cuothbert Grantwas there, but
1 do not know that he was. at the head of the ‘par-:
ty. The Half-breeds do not generally paint; itis
not commen for them to'do so. There were oniy
three or four of our’.party who made their escape.
1 got to Fort Douglas that night, and I slept there;
the next day I saw Bouacher come with the party
to the fort.. I'knew Grant, Boucher, Fraser, and
Payl, (the prisoner Brown,) who were among them.
I do not know if they were all:there the day. be-
fore. 1, that day, heard Brown ask where:Heden
was, and his (Heden’s) wife: said he - was-in. the.
tent, and 1 heard Brown say, that he would kill
him, I saw governor Semple fall. - 1 can not say
if Cuthbert Grant fired at him, nor-if the shot T
saw him receive killed higm; nor did I see him alive
afterwards.: - He was wounded in - the thigh and
in the arm. - I did not see him buried. . .
- A Juror.~Was there any hlood when Mr. Semple
was wounded and fell:p - . ' o
McCoy.—Yes, there was, -
Chief Jusi,i%——-]j)id:;you not say, that you went
away directly you saw Mr. Semple fall ? ;o
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- McCoy.—When'I made my ‘escape I only saw

four or five of our party alive. When we went out
I'heard Mr. Semple say nothing but that he would
go and see what those people wanted, or what
those fellows were doing. As we were going a-
long, the women came running towards us. There:
were some of the'seitlers taken prisoners before -
the party’s coming up, and I saw them, but 1 did
not see them taken. ~ The gun‘hy which Mr. Holte
was killed,” was 1ot fired near me nor by any of
our party; as I think, if it had been, I must have
heard it nigher. = My back was towards Mr. Holte
at the time, and when, - on hearing the report of
the guu, I turned round, Isaw him down, being
wounded. I only saw one of our party fire, and
he was with-me'; it was-on our retreat, a man on
horseback was coming down upon us with a spear,
and we fired, 7 - 7 ‘

Cross examination conducted by Jr. Sherwood.

McCoy—I did not see Boucher fire during the
whole: affray, nor did I see Brown there. I do
not know that Fort Gibraltar was taken from the
North-West a little before the provisions were
taken from us by them. I do not know of any
other pemican being taken. "I do not know of
any thing taken from the North-West Company.
I know Mr. Miles M’Donell; he had command
of us before governor Semple. I know of a pro-
clamation of Miles M’Donell. I read but very
little, not enough to understand the proclamation,
but I know there was one. After this proclama-
tion, T do not remember that two trains of pemican
were taken, but I do know of some boat loads be-
ing taken by our people from the North-West
Company, but I do not know the quantity, buot I
believe two boat loads. I do not know any thing
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of the great quantity of pemican taken by Mr.
‘Spencer, amounting to five hundred bags. 1do
not know of any pemican being taken by the
-North-West people; before this' was taken from
 them. There were cannon at Fort Douglas, but
1 do not know that they were to-prevent the North-
West people going down. I heard no threats from
governor Semple that they should not pass, or that
he would fire on them if they attempted to pass..
The party had provisions and went with carts,
but I do not know why. The North-West Com-
yany had been accustomed to send their provisions
gy water, and they came from the river Qui Ap-
pelle 1o Portage des Prairies by water this time.
Portage des Prairies is a good day’s march from
Fort Douglas.. At the time that governor Semple
" and the rest of us went out, the other party were
going towards the settlement, they bad passed the
?ort, but had not come towards it. I saw Mr.
Semple seize the butt of Bouclier’s gun, but [ did
 not hear whether he threatened him, or whether
Boucher was in fear of his life. I did net hear
what passed on either side. : :

Mr. Sherwood.—Did you not observe what Bou-
cher did—did he laugh, or did he cry, or what?
 McCoy.—He did not laugh certainly. I did not
hear what passed. I fired myself, as I was run-
ning off, at a man. who was pursuing me. At the
time I heard our people crying for mercy, it was

“before I went away, both parties were then close
together, and some of them were running about.
J o%m Greer it was that I heard call. I heard go-
vernor Semple order Mr. Bourke to go for a can-
non. . I did not see that the North-“?est had any,
but the settlers we met said they had, and then
ggvernor Semple sent for one. 1 did not see that

r. Semple had a gun or a rifle.

- My. Sherwood.—You have been talking about a
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settiement, will you now tell us what sort eof set-
tlement this was? and what grew there ? :
. JMeCoy.—There was a good many people there,
perhaps forty or fifty, who lived near the fort,
~They had raised grain. . L
- Mr. Sherwood.—Grain! what sort of grain ever
was raised ? S e Ce
- MeCoy~-Wheat and barley. . - :
JMr. Sherwood.—Do. you mean to swear that they
ripened ? - C T e e e
McCoy.—Yes, it. had ripened the year before,
and was gathered, and ‘potataes, in. great plenty;
wheat had ripened, and was sown again this year,
Mr. Holte’s gun went off quite .by accident, and
* “Mr. Semple. was guite angry with him for not giv=
ing better- care ‘to his gun. L

 Re-coomination by the Attorney-Genoral.

' You have said you know of pemican being taken

from the North-West Company by the’ Hudson’s.
Bay people, did you ever know of their people
taking away the lives of any of the North-West
Company, or do you know of any lives being lost
in"any. other affray by the North-West Company ?

JMcCoy.—No, 1do not. I do.not think there
have been any. e L

JOHN P. BOURKE, Sworn,
o Jflnd.examz'néd"by the Sol_z’citqr General.

Jr.. Bourke.—About the month of June, 18186,
I was at Red River; there was a report current at
that time of an attack being expecied frem the
‘North West people. I heard. that they were as-
sembling at a North West post, but I know nothing
myself of it being expected. particularly from the
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people of Alesander MeDonnell, but I know that it
was a ggneral report that the settlement was_to be -
attacked, and; in consequence of this expectation,
sentries-were kept constantly at Fort Doyglas. I
remember the 19th June in ‘that.year;. about five
g'clock in the aflernoon;of that day, motice was
given, by the man upan the look-out station. that
the ‘Half-breeds. were coming down, .and were
going. towards , the settlement.” Mr. Semple took
his. spy-glass.and . wept to .the look-out; station, . X
accompanied; him,. and after looking some ,time; he
told -about twenty men: to follow him, and see what
these. people wanted,,and a pumber. aceordingly
went out, perhaps about twenty, or rather:more;
after. going- a little way, . we_ ngl:isome - women
comiag {rom the gettlemqnt,f»;tynningu and: crying
that the Half-breeds:were, coming down _upon them
with carts. and: cannon, Upon; this -Mr.- Semple
sent back to the fort. for a small piece of ordaance
which was there; it was me that he sent, he de-
sired me -to go back and get the cannon, and tell
Mr. McPonnell to send: as many men as he could
~spare.  I.aecordingly went back and got the can-
non, but Mr. McDonnell.could only” spare one
man; as I was returning, I saw the Halfbreeds
coming up towards: the governor’s party in-a
straight line. Presentiy; after they made a half
circle,and nearly surrounded them ; I saw the flash
of a gun, and’ immediately after .another, and
shortly after I saw a.general firing along the whole
line of. horsemen, » The. firing ceasing some time -
after, and seeing none. of: our party, I was afraid
that I might be - intercepted with ‘the. cannon, . I
therefore returned -with. it, but did not-go back to
the fort myself, as.after we had gone a:little way,
' Idetetmined'tp,goan‘_d:;sep what had become of
governor Semple, being joined. at this time by
some men who had 'come after me from the fort.
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J' therefore sent the man, who ‘had come with the
,eannon, ‘back with -it,-through the bushes to the
fort, -and 'we went on.to where we expected to
find governor ‘Semple; when we had nearly got
to where we supposed he might -be, .\we saw some
.men in the bushes, and a]so-fa;rther,(iq some meh
‘taking care of the people’s-horses, who were now
- dismounted and spread over the ground, but I did
. ;not.see.any of otr people. I at‘first thought that
-these -mern in the bushes were some of our people,
:whohad made their escape. - They called out to us,
- .saying they wanted us, and called -to me-that the
. .governor ‘was there, and.wanted :me. I stood a
little time, not"knowing whether to go on or not,
when they .called out 4gain, -« Come on; -ceme on,
% here is.your governor, andhe wants you, wo’nt
.% you.come and obey-him.” ‘They were concealed
.in the bushes and brushwood, but I saw.presently
afterwards-that they were Half:breeds, and:I per-
ceived one of them'in a sort.of shirt;, with .alarge
bunch of feathers in his:hat, resting:his gun upon
.a stump and levelling at me. "1 and -those -that
‘were with me, immediately turned -back, andas
we were making our escape, we were fired at,
and I.was wounded, and .one of the men who was
with me .was killed ‘by anéther ‘shot. 1 do not
know .any thing about.who-fired first at the plains,
but I always ‘heard it--was the ‘Half-breeds, and
that Mr. Holte was killed by'it.: I never saw Mr.
Semple afterwards. I saw a number of bodies
from the window of my room, But being wounded
I could not go .about. I saw: both the prisoners
afterwards on the next day at' the fort, ‘but I did
.not speak to them. I understood that they in-
tended to kill two or three more, and T expected
I.was to be one. ' The fort ‘belonging to the North
West, at which I speke of the people assembling
to attack the settlement, was their fort at river
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" Qui Appelle,~and Mr. Alexander McDonnell wag
in charge there. I saw Cuthbert Grant“on the
dsy after the outrage at the fort. I could not

- distinguish him' on'the 19th, but I always heard
‘that he had the command on that day. Iheard it

-gen\eréllyﬁaidgsq. RS .

Cross-ezamination conducted by M. Sherwood.

Mr. Bourke—~Evyer since [ came to the country
in the Indian territory, 1'have been a clerk, partly
in the service of the Hudson’s Bay Company, and
afterwards-in- the'service of the Earl of Selkirk, at
the settlement at Red River. I have heard it re-
jported, and I can not say I have any doubt, though
’ffdo‘ not myself know it, that Earl Selkirk is in-
terested in the Hudson’s Bay Company. I have
heard that he was a pariner, and I do ‘not myself
know that -he was not, any more than that he ‘was,
1 always observed the orders of Mr. Semple, and
I suppose -his authority came from the Hudson’s
Bay Company. * I-know Mr. Miles McDonell;
the was at the colony before Mr. Semple, and I
was there before he. was. " I have'seen Mr. McDo-
nell write, and should -know his hand-writing if 1
saw it (The proclamation was then produced and
shewn to, witness, who said;) 1 believe the signature
to this paper to be Mr. Miles McDonell’s hand-
writing ; 1 have no doubt of it at all.

Mr. Sherwood moved that the proclamation be now
read. S o

Attorney-General.—1 wish to know what possible
effect any proclamation of Mr. McDonell’s is to
have upon' this charge, or upon what ‘principle it
is that this: paper is" 1o be antroduced as evidence
upon a charge of murder against these prisoners.
It does appear to me a most extraordinary course
that the gentleman is taking. = = =~
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. Chief Justice—The objectis  evident,. This is
the proclamation we have heard so-much. about,
authorising the detention of provisions, if:attempted
10 be sent- out of that part of :the country where
this. colony was, and which, as they say, rendered
it necessary, when they sent provisions, that they
should be accompanied by a guard to protect
them, . - © L0 vty
JMpr. Sherwood.—That is precisely our object,
-and one which We cousider- ourselves perfectly
entitled to attain in this'way. .. We propose to put
this: proclamation in -as evidence, and ‘then shew
that in consequence of it all these difficulties have
occurred, and by which we meap to justify our
conduct. - : ‘ o L
Chief Justice~T fear this, under the ordinary
. course of criminal justice'would :de you a great
deal of harm. 1 do not know wha,t«}.m_a\,y be- 1ts
effect here, You of course know your own-de-
fence, and it perhaps may net have that effect in
this case, but in ordinary cases it; certainly would'
tend to prove the malus animus, and to account for
~it.” Relative to the right of putting the- question,
and having the proclamation read, I can not; but
‘say that 1 counsider, after the questions progosed
by .Mr. Attorney-General; - as to what occurged
after the murder, I do not think- you ought- to ke
restricted. I certainly consider an investigation
into events that occurred even one. day after the
murder, as-more out of the-course than the putting
in of this proclamation. In the defence an unusual
course has been taken, and from.the necessity of
the case allowed, and they say: that a- part of this.
case’ that they intend to make out as exculpatory
of their conduct, is: this proclamation, because
they allege that the grievances’ of -which they
complain were: committed under the authority of
this paper; a paper issued, as. they say, by a



125

person having no anthority to issue it, and placing
them under circumstances that had they not re-
sisted it, they must have suffered very materially -
in their interests... I do not see but it must be
read, though,as I said before, it is for the prison-
ers’ counsel, to consider whether it may not de
harm. - ' I
Mr. Sherwood~—That we will risk. We wish
the proclamation of this self-created governor to
be read; this issuer of proclamations might as le-
gally have issued a proclamation forbidding the
people of Yonge-street, to come to York market.
We wish the proclamation to be read whatever
may be the effect. o =
Attorney-General— certainly object to any pro-
clamation of Mr. Miles McDonell’s being . read.
I feel it my duty solemnly to protest against it be-
ing admitted as evidence, asIdo against the course
which the gentleman appears to have marked out
for conducting the defence. T have no wish to ex-
clude any thing. that, by possibility, can be benefi-
cial to the prisoners, and that can consistently be
admitted; but it can not be allowed that a sort of
arbitration, or balance of crimes, shall be made.
This: mode of justifying one’ crime by another,
(admitting for a moment that unjustifiable acts
have been commiitted by the servants of the Hud-
son’s Bay Company,) can not, I maintain, be al-
lowed to be produced as any defence to the charge
which we. bring against the prisoners, ‘6f; aiding
and abetting in the murder of Mr. Semple. Itis
absolutely necessary that, to put a'stopto this most
irregular course, a beginning. should be made; and
I therefore, on the grounids I have mentioned; ob-
Ject to any paper from the pen of Mr. Miles
McDonell, being read. o
.- Mr. Sherwood.—The case, my Lords, at present
before the Court, L again remark, is-su¢ generis, and
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&air niot therefore be reduced to the ordinary fales
that govern évery day. trials,- but Mr. Attorney-
‘General totally misconceives oar. defence, when
he alleges that we propose to justify one crime by
another; far; very far; is our course from an attempt
of that kind. We prepose, not to produce crime
to justify crime, for we say the crime is all oo’ one
side, and that on the side of the prosecution. .Our
crime consists in this, that we did not stand stil
and be beat. We say that; if by crime they have

rovoked blood to be shed; on their heads be it.
gVe say that on the 19th June; we have committed
no crime; because we were quietly pursoing, un-
der great inconveniences imposed by them, our
lawful trade; and they came out to us and attack:
ed us. We have already, by their own witnesses;
proved an assault upon Boucher; and before wé
have done, we shall prove a great deal more:
The circumstances of that country are not. like
those of this civilized province; where recourse can
he had to the protection of the law; there a man
is compelled to be his own protector. It would
be an absurdity to say, that the prisoners might
not prove, (Brown for instance, who is a Half-
breed,) that a prohibition of trade was a prohibi-
tion of right. I do not wonder at the prosecutors
not wishing this proclamation to be read; because
it exhibits at once the Jeading cause on their. side;
of all the outrage and rapine that has occurred
since 1814. 1 am not on?yr to be permitted to
prove acts of aggression, but I may go farther, and
shew the spring of the.. At present | am con:
tented to rest at the date of the issuing of this pro-
clamation, and from that time I shall follow it up, by
act of aggression upon aggression, committed up-
on us by virtue of it, or of the principles contaihed
in it, and in so doing, instead of justifying crime
by crime, as Mr. Attorney-General represented hé
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" understood I intended to do, I thréw that upon the’
_opposite party wyhilst. I am j_ustifyingv_ our iznor
cence by the crimes of our adversaries, which
‘makes a very material difference. Iy
Chief Justice.—As | before- mentioned, we had,
as it was not impossible but questions arising in’
these trials- might be brought before us in the
King’s Bench, agreed to be together when any
new point was started for discussion. This 1s
one; and my brethren on the-bench are a%ainst
me in opinion, and think the proclamation offered
by the counsel for the prisoners can not be read.
I have thought that, in the process of this trial,
every thing that could shew the malice existing
from the one party to the other, might be shewn.
Their endeavouring to starve each other; the en-
deavouring to furmsh provisions, in opposition to
this proclamation, to the engagés; in fact, every
thing on both sides that could throw any light up-
on t]?xis melancholy transaction. 1 did understand,
and do now, that the defence of these men is, that,
at great expense they had sent in carts; a quantity
of provisions necessary for the supply of the trad-
ers who were espected; that hitherto they had
been accustomed to send them by water, but that,
the fort at the Forks being fortified to prevent
their passing, they had been compelled to adopt
this expedient; that, in the prosecution of it, they
had no intention whatever to interfere with the
Hudson’s Bay people, but that they were attack-
ed by them. In corroboration of. this statemeat,
they wish to prove the proclamation, forbidding
provisions to be taken to where they had occasion
to send them; and I had thought my learned bre-
thren concurred with me, that under the course
this trial had been allowed to take, it was consistent
‘and right to admit the proclamation, but it appears
- I misunderstood them ; it therefore can not be read.
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i Justaee Campbell —When otr Ieamed Bm.
ther; the Chief JbSthe', declared -in open Court
- that, according to our view of the. subject, the de-
* fendants m]o'ht go back to -any time, to prove ap
exasperated state e of mind;-d was veryydesuous that
" it shiould be distitictly -understood that my opinion
went no farther than this, that you could ge back
iio-farther that you could prove a commuance of
the excitement, and that, notonly must it be: prov-
ed to have continued without cessation, but.that

“ére_had beeii to time for réflection, and coolmg

{ ine passion; it was- -upon | that - ground;- and that
only, that I consented to- admit you 1o go .- the
]ength you have: gofie; - It was on this. ground;
“that you would not only prove’ that the irritation
had existed froin any period to which- you went
back; but that there Had been no time for reflection
to take place, and for the’ irritation to subside,
owing; to the continued or umnterrupted pature of
the aggressions. .

- Mr. Lavius Sherwood. -—That, my Loxds, Is not
éxactly our defence -

Mr. Justice Campbell—It is the only defence
which can be onered for miurder.

- M. Livius Sherwood.-<With great submlssxon,my
Lord Ibeg IeaVe to contend th'}t, i arson, murder;
or robbery, or any felony, it is open to the accused
to shew whatever he can m the conduct of those
who accase him, that will; in- any degree, account
for tis own, or reduce the enotmity of the offence
of which heis-accused: So I say, in this case, we
have a rlght to take any date we think - proper,
and follow it up wherever we meet any of the op-
posite party, and shew, {from the peculiar circum-
stances of the case, that felony and murder was
not committed by us. This doctrine I am prepar-
ed to support by authority.

M. Justicé Campbell —You may trace back the
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§rritation at this moment to any part‘icular_perioc_?-,

. but you can not put in this proclamation; and say
it is a- justification, or that 1t will éxculpate you,
because you were irritated at acts which you say
had been done under it, whether they were right

“or wrong is now of no consequence — ,

- Mr. Livius Sherwood—That, my Lord, is a
part of the res gesta of our defence, and I hope. to
satisfy your Lordship that it is"a legal ground.
Our gefe‘nce 1s, that at this very moment, from a
concatenation of circumstances, a state of exaspe-
ration and irritation existed, which was excited by~

“the Hudson’s Bay people’s iﬂegal conduct, mani-
festing itself in various ways, and commencing with
this proclamation. We go no farther back at the
present moment, because we consider this suffici-
enily remote to meet Mr. Attorney-General’s case,
‘as at present it stands; if he goes to more remote
periods, somust we. We propoese to put in this
proclamation, forbidding the exportation of provi-
sions, we shall then shew that our pemican was
taken from us in virtue of it, that we were threaten-
ed with eurlives if this proclamation was disobey-
ed. In this way we purpose shewing a train of

“eircumstances down to this very day, which will
Jead us to the conclusion which we are "aiming to
-establish, and we can not arrive at it, unless we
are permitied to shew from the beginning to the

~end. This circumstantial sort of proef, if detach-
ed, s of no weight; it would amount to nothing,
but taken together as a whole, and it is stronger
everr than positive testimony, for, as is well laid

«down in an authority to which we daily refer, po- -

sitive testimony may err, circumstantial can not.

It will appear then, that astate of irritation exist-

‘ed from the imminent danger we were at all times

~'exposed to of losing not only our property, but

wur lives, by disobedience of this proclamation ;
‘ .
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‘which we humbly contend we areentitled to thake
“evidence, on the-grounds which have been sub-
mitted. ., . ' R
Mr. Justice Campbell.—If there is'no disconti-
nuance of this irritation, and that the outrages to
which you refer were so continued that there was
ne time for this exasperation to cool or subside,
then you may perliaps be permitted to have-it
read. ' o F - . '
M. Sherwood.~-We shall; if permitted to read
" this proclamation, go on to shew that, without this
food called pemican, trade can not, in that coun-
try, he carried on. We should ‘then shew that it
had before, when passing in boats, been most out-
rageously taken from us, that,at the moment we
took - the precaution of .sending it dowr under a
guard competent to protectit, it was actually re-
quired to meet persons who. were éxpected, and
who, if they did not receive it, must starve; we
shall prove, as indeed we have already done by
their own witnesses, that we had no- intéention of
interfering with -these people at all, that cur sole
object was safely to carry:our provisions by the
route that was left us; we shall more fully prove
that they came out, not merely to see what we
‘wanted, butto attack us, but that they this time,
had been deceived as to the number of persons, and
T am much mistaken if we do not also clearly es-
tablish that they actually fired first. All ‘these
circumstances we contend we have alegal right to
shew. We wish to commenee with the proclama-
tion. K ' R .
~JAttorney-General—It is of no real consequence
that, in point of fact, a systematic plan of opposi-
tion existed - between these two trading comipa-
‘nies, and that, in our own imagination, very ille-
gal acts have been committed on both sides; the
“only point “which can, in my humble judgmest,
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Hear on this case is; was a provocation given to

them in the Jawful pursuit of their trade that jus-

tified these Half-breeds in resorting to arms: ~Ag

to my having examined the witness as to what

took place the day after this murder charged in
- the indictment, I went no farther than to shew
that the object - we say they had in view_when
. they left Qui Appelle was actually carried into
execution. We say that it was not to convey pro-
visions; but to destroy this settlement, that this
party came down in hostile array, and we have
shewn that they did destroy it. I can not there:
fore see that my proving, by a witness, that which
was actually necessary to substantiate, the asser-
tion that we make of the real intention .of ‘these
persons, can open the door to them to go years
back into a history of, perhaps; mutual aggres-
sions, -and offer them as a defence on a specific
charge of murder. If the gentleman can prove
their only object to have been-to take provisions;
let him do. so, but it can not be necessary to esfa-
blish. that- point, that he should prove a procla:
mation years before; by a person whose name does
not even. appear in the present transaction: It is

however completely with the Court. .

- JMr. Sherwood.—I wmiust prove my case; without

‘any direction from Mr. Attorney-General; in my
‘own way, and I shall prove it link by link. It isa
“chain of testimony that I have to preduce; and I
shall; in my cross-examination of his witnesses;
attempt to prove as many links as 1 can; and. the
remainder by my . owri. Having done so; it will
“be for your Lordships, atd not for the prosecutor;
1o tell the jury what I have ot proved.

. Soliritor General—I do not imagine that your
-Lordships intend - that an animosity kept up for
-months or years, (according to what the learned
.gentleman proposes to himself,) should be consi:

¥
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dered as that state of exasperation which had not
time 1o cool. 1 conceive the learned gentleman
has misapprehended what-your Lordships meant.
Chief Justice—Iu the first-latitude given to this
defence, the Court did 1t because, from the cir-
cumstances which had been shewn, it thought it ab-
solutely. necessary to the substantial justice of this
case (so very peculiar in its nature,) that evidence
should be admitted to shew an exasperated state of
feeling, and that, under it, excesses had been com-
mitted. This was allowed, not with' any view of
admitting these excesses to be pleaded as a justifi-
cation for a .comstant irritation of one, iwo, or
three moaths, or weeks, or even days, or hours,
but that these repeated aggressions created an ir-
ritation in their minds, which raised such a suspi-
cion of injury being “one them, whenever they met
the opposite party, as to justify, in the unhappy
- and peculiar state of that country, their resorting
to arms for self-protection, even before an actual
attack had been made upon them. My idea was
that the prisoners might be permitted to shew that
sueh was the state of that country, from the hos-
tility of these two great companies, that it was ne-
_ eessary to go armed, and if, in addition, they
could prove that a constant irritation was kept up
in their minds from any time down tfo this melan-
choly 19** June, net only without interruption,
but that the causes of this irretation were in such
constant succession as not to allow the passions, te
cool, and reason to resume its sway, that it was no
matter where they began, and therefore, when their
eounsel said he would begin with this proclama-
tion, (zbout which we have heard so much that we
all know what it amounts to,) I thought he might
be permitted to do so. 1 merely cautioned him
that, in ordinary cases, such a course would do
harm, and might do.in this, as it must depend en-
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&izely upon what the jury think of these prove-
catiens. These were the reasons which induced’
me {o give the latitude in the first instanice, and,,
having permitted an eaquiry to be gone iito of
what occurred after the murder charged in the in-
dictment, I thought it but right that the prisoners
should be allowed to shew what they could, to ac-
count for their conduct. My learned - brethren,
under this explanation, that the irritation must be
m such imomediate succession that there was no
time for passion to subside, do not object to: the.
proclamation beiug read. : SR

The Sollowing proclamation was then put'in and
sead, L ' o :

PROCLAMATION,

Wungess the Governor and Company of Hudson's Bay, tisve'
ceded to the  Right Honourable: Thomas Earl of Selkirk; his
heirs and sutcessors, for ever; all that tract of lasd O teri oy
Bounded by a-line running as folows, viz :—Begioning 6n ! the
svestern shore of the Liake Winnipic, at a point-in fftyLiwo dex
grees and thirty minutes nerth latitude’; and: thenee running due
west'to the Lake Winipigashisk, otherwise calted Littls Winni-
pic’; then in a southesly direction throtgh the said lake, $6° as
1o strike its western shore in latitude Gity-two degrees ; then. die
west to the place where the parallel of fifty-two degrees north
latitude, -intersects the- western- byanch of Red River, otherwise
called Assinibein River; then due soull from that peint of inter-
section to “the height of land which separates the waths: rinning
into. Hudson’s Bay from those of the Mississouri and Mississippi
Rivers; then in aneasterly direction along the height of land
16 the source of the River Winipic, (meaning by such last named
river the principal branch of the waters which viite i the bake
Saginagas,) thence aloug the main streamof thiide “wtaters’ it
the middle of the several lakes throught whiek they: pass, to sthe
mouth of thie Winnipic River; and thence jn a northerly diree-

* tion thiough the middle of the Lake Widnipic, {6’ the “place ‘of

beginning.  Whicly territory-is calted @ssinibioid? and ofivhich

1, the uadersigned, Have been duly appoiated Governim:

. And where;s, the. weifa'(e.of the families,. at present forining
settlements on the Red River, within the said territory, with
those on the way to it, passing the winter at York and Churchit



134

Forts in Hudson’s Bay ; as also those who are espected to attive
next autumn; renders it a necessary and indispensable part of
my duty to provide for their support.. In the yetuncultivated state,
of the country, the ordinary résources derived from the buffalo,
and other wild animals hunted within the territory, are’not
deemed more than adequaté for the requisite supply. Where-
fore, ‘it is hereby ordered, that no persons trading furs or provi-
sions within the territory for the honourable Hudson’s Bay Com-
pany, or the North West Company, or any individual, or un-
conpected traders or persgris' whatever, shall take oyt any pro-
visions, either of flesh, fish, grain, or vegetable, procured or,
raised within the said territory, by water or land carriage, for
one twelvemonth from the date hereof’; save and except what
may beé judg  necessary for the trading parties at this present
time within the territory, to carry them to.-their respective des-
tinations ; and who may, on due application 1o, me, obtain a
licence for the same. The provision procured and raised as
above shall be taken for the ase of the colony ;. and that no loss
inay ‘accrue to the parties concerned, they will be paid for by
British bills at {he customary rates. = And be it hereby “further,
made known, that whosoever shall be detected in attempting.to,
convey ouf, or shall aid and assist in carrying out, or at-
tempting to.carry out, any provisions prohibited as above, either
by wateror land, shall be taken into cusindy, and prosecuted as
the laws in such cases direct, and the provisions so taken, as
well as any-goods and chattels, ‘of what nature soever, which
may be; taken along with ihem, and also the craft, carriages and
caitle, in-*rumental in conveying away, the same toany part, but
to the settfement on Red River, shall be forfeited.

. Given under my hand at Fort Daer, (Pembina,) the 8th day
p‘fv.Ianuéry, 1814, ~ oo e : ‘

U (Signed) MILES MACDONELL, Governor.
I}}"o.r.d@r.,sﬁf%he Go.vemor; s -

. (Signed) .  Jomn SrENCER, Secretary.

M. Sherwood—Now, I suppase, it will be ad-
mitted by-the Crown, though just now they did
not choose to assent or deny the validity of Mr.
Semple’s authority as governor, that Mr. ‘Miles
M’Donell, who was Mr. Semple’s predecessor, and
had just the same powers, had not any authority
to lay an embargo, as he does in this proclama-
tion. o e ' '
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Chief Justice~It is of no consequence whether
he had authority or not to-this trial for murder.

M. Sherwaod.—1If, ny Lord, any weight can be
given to the Opln!Ol’] of counsel, I beg leave to say’
that it is of very great importance.. Thls Is a pro-
clamation by:the predecessor of Mr. mple, ‘Mr.
governor M’Boneli. :

C/zzef Justice.—~We know it is, but we are not
trying Mr.; M Donell and it therefore has nothmg
i0 do with the case. © You have put in a piece of
evzdence.fnow make what you can of it, to excul-
pate the ajmsoners from the charge of murder. If
we werertrymg Mr. M’Donell, it mlo'ht be a ques-
tion whdther he had any aatnomt), or how far it
extended, -but it can not in this case. .

Mr. Sherwood—We had no idea of trying Mr.
M’Donell -and yet imagined we might, if the Crown
did not admlt it, prowe that he had no authority
to lay an embargo. I will, however, go on with
the cross-examination. Do you know of any pro-
wisions being seized in consequence of this procla-
mation, by the Hudson’s Bay people from the -
North-West Company, and by whose authomy, or
who gave the orders ?

‘ ’Z!r, Bourke~1 do not know of any provisions
being seized, but [ have heard a report that there
were some taken from the North-West Company
by some of our people, but 1 do not know by
whose arders, or that it was under the proclama-
tion of Mr. M’Donell. I know nothmﬂ' at all of
two bateaux loads of pemlcan being taLen, Ror
of five hundred bags of pemican, theugh I have
heard it reported that there were, but I know
nothing of it, of my own knowledge.

M. Sherwood.—Are you acquainted with the
taking of Fort Gibraltar?

Mr. Bourke.~Unless I am oblwed to answer
that question, I shall not.
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Mr. Sherwood.—Why not, Sir ? ‘was you at the
taking it > was you one of the party in that daring
outrage ? ' o o

Mr. Bourke.—That is no matter, unless I am
ordered by the Court to answer that question, I
shall not. R

The Court informed Mr. Bourke, that he need nos
answer any question which might involve him in a er:-
minal prosecution, but all other question he must an-
swer.

" Mr. Sherwood—Well, Sir, I do not ask you, if
you helped to raze Fort Gibraltar, but did you
fiear any thing about its being razed by any per-
sons ? S ’ -

Mr.. Bourke.~1 decline answering that question,
= Mr. Sherwvood—Well, Sir, you shall answer it
then in another way. Did you know if Michael
Heden was at the taking of that fort? thatis a ques-
tioh you must answer. s :
© Mr. Bourke—I believe Michael Heden was at
the taking of Fort Gibraltar. I saw a raft of ma-
terials come to Fort Douglas, some time afterwards,
but I do not know that they were the materials of
Fort Gibraltar. I have heard, and I believe they
were-the materials of Fort Gibraltar. The Red
River usually opens or breaks up about April, and
it was about the latter end of. May, that I saw
those materials, which I was informed and believe
were those of Fort Gibraltar, but I do not know
that they were. It being the latter end of May,
it could not therefore be Iong before the battle. I
saw governor Semple go out to protect the settlers.
I went out with him, and had a gun and some balls
loose, but I had no cartridges. Some of the gins
had bayonets to them, we did not go out to fight

 his party, though some of the guns had bayonets.

" Mr. Sherwood:~—W hat could you want with bay-
onets to your guns, if you did not go to fight? Do

~
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yon use bayonets in bunting? Is it usual to shoot
buffalo with bayonets? How cawe you to take
bayonets, if not to fight?

. Bourke—I do not know how it was, but
we did not go oyt to fight. We went out to pro-
tect the settlers, and get them to the fort. If they
had been in the fort, we should not have gone out
at all. 'We had long expected the attack. Qur
apprehensions arose from information given us,
and from repeated threats, also from our having
been fired on in 1815, when they drove us away.

Mr. Sherwood—Do you mean to say mow, that
your party did not fire first. I know you have
said it before, but I ask you again P

Mr. Bourke—I do mean to say now, as [ always

have said, we did not fire first. When We met the
settlers who were running to the fort and said they
" had carts and cannon, Mr. Semple sent me back
to the fort for a small piece of ordnance, which
was there. It was from the settlers, and not from
the sentinel, that we received information they
were- coming with-cannen. v v

- Mr. Sherwood.~—You have spoken of Mr. Holte,
Sir; pray what sort of man was he? a mild man,
not given to passion? ' : :

-~ Mr. Bourke~I do mot know that T have said
any thing about him during my examination. I do-
not recollect that I have. .

Mr. Sherwood.—Well, Sir, if you do not decline,
(as you did about Fort Gibraltar,) answering my
question, we will speak of him: ~ What country-
man, 1n the first place, was Mr. Holte ?

- Mr. Bourke~~Mr. Holte was a Norweigian, or
a Swede, I helieve. I never heard him say, that
he would destroy the North-West Company. (A4
letter was . produced, which the witness shghily exa-
mined.y Ican not say whether this letter is in his
hand-writing or net, ~ ’

g
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<. Mr. Sherwood.~—You had beiter, Sir, examine it
- more closely, perhaps by its contents you may re-
collect the wniting. I'll hand it you again to ook
. Mr. Bourke—I do not wish to see it. I do not
know, from looking at it just now, whether it is
his hand-writing or not. The Haif-breeds and
North-West people drove away the settlers the
day after, when they had them completely in their
power. [heard that if-Allen M’Donald had come,
there would have been some killed, but none were,
killed, though wholly in the power of the Half-
breed party, after the 19% June, o

- Re-examined by the ﬁttorney-Generdf. :

- Attorney-General—Were your party on horse-
back ? L ; E v
" Mr. Bourke—I was the only person belonging

to our party who was on horseback at all, dur-
ing' the whole massacre; and I sent my horse back,
when I went on to look for governor Semple.....
. . Attorney-General—Their party then, being on
horseback, and you on foot, could, I imagine, have
avoided you had they been so minded ?- L
" Jr. Bourke—Certainly, I should think they,
being on horsehack, might have avoided us if they
had wished. S :

. Attorney-General—Did they avoid you, or en- -
deavour to do'so? . - Co
.. Mr. Bourke—No, they came riding up to meet
us, they galloped up to us. :

- Mr. Sherwood.— Yes ! they might have avoided
.~ you by leaving their carts with the provisions, and

- galloping away. .

. JMr. %ourke.——Théy need not have left their
carts ; they might have taken them with them.
Jr. Sherwood.—1Is it usual in that country to
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gallop loaded Waggons through woods ? If‘ancy

1zot. : :
é M. Bourke—There are no woods-there to galf
lop through, it'is an open plain for miles, and it

is- not likely we should have followed a party so
strong as they were, . . _

HUGH MLEAN, Sworn.
Examz’ned b;y.lhe .ﬂﬂomey-General. ‘

M’ Lean.~—In June, 1816, I was at Fort Douglas;
shere were reports which led us to expect we
should be attacked. The reports were that the
North West people were coming to strike the co-
lony and fort.  This report came from Qui Appelle
by those who had been taken there with the pe-.
mican.. M’Coy was one that came from there, and
gmong them they brought the reports. - On' the
19th June, 1816, I was at a short distance from
the fort, and I saw a great number of persons
coming down on horseback. They had not passed
the fort when I saw them first, "but were about
opposite to it, at a distance of perhaps a mile and
a half; there appeared to be about fifty or sixty
of them, and they had two or three carts ‘with
them, and were going towards Lord. Selkirk’s
houses. They went at about a small trot, and
were coming at that pace towards the woods which
. are between the fort and the settlement. T then
went to the fort, and governor Semple, with the -
party who went with him, were out before I came.
I saw them going along, “but I did not join them;
I went on to the-fort. I had been about a quarter
of an hour at the fort, when Mr. Bourke, who
was one of the party who went with governor
~ Semple, came for a piece of cannon, and I went
to drive the cart with the cannon. We went on
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for about a mile, (in answer lo a question from the
Aitorney-General, as to where governor Semple was
~ at this téme, by which the narrative of witness was
broken in upon, he said, that ke was on before,) and
at-about half a mile farther on, we saw them; they
were mixed together, so that we could net distin-
guish one from another. Mr. Bourke, observing
this, sent me back with the cannon- to the fort,
which I reached with it safe. I saw Mr. Bourke
afterwards, for after leaving the cannon I was re-
turning to the same place, and then I saw him ly-
ing in a bush of wood wounded. Some mren had
advised him to go-back, calling to hin that the
governor wanted him, and then fired upon him,
I then returned and did not go any farther, as F
found ‘governor Semple and others were dead.
The Half-breeds were close to us at this time, but
¥ did not know Gran* or any of them. - When F
first went to the fort, after seeing the men on
horseback, I met Mr. Semple coming out with the
party that went with him, but I did not speak to
them. The Frog Plains ‘are -about three miles
from Fort Douglas. ‘1 do not know if Mr. Semple
or his party could have overtaken them, they were
on a slow trot, but going faster certainly than
people walk. Next day alarge party of them came
to- the fort, they were armed, andabout eighteen
innumber, and Grant was amongst thenr. T'knew
it to'be Cuthbert Grant; I did not hear him say
any thing abput what took place the day before.
I heard one Vickers say they fired first. 1 saw the
carts come with nine dead bodies, and amongst
them was the body of governor Semple, one of his
arm and thighs were broken; and 2 musket ball
had gone in at his throat, and out of his head.
The first time I saw Cuthbert Grant after the 19th
June, I did not say any thing to him abeut. the
affair of that day. I'had no conversation with
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him at all.- I saw Boucherat the fort; he appear-
ed to. act under Grant’s orders. As I was going
«along with the cart, I met some settlers coming 1o
the fort, they appeared in a great fright and were
crying. A N ‘. ,

Cross-examination conducted by JMr. Sherwood.

- M’ Lean—1I did not see Brown and Boucher the
day after the batile. T do not know what was in
the carts that the Half-breed party had with them
I do . not know whether it was pemican. Mr.
M’Donell ordered me to go with Mr. Bourke with
the cannon which was mounted, but we diG not
fire it ;e had no orders to fire it, nor no ammu-
nition. The Half-breeds took away some. of the
settlers guods, but I did not hear, though they
were wholly in their power, th: - any were killed
after the 198, nor do I.think any were killed.

They were all sent away in a day or two afters
wards. :

PATRICK CORCORAN, Sworn.
. Examined by the Solicitor General.

Corcoran.—In the Spring of 1816 was at Fort
Douglas, and about the month of April, T was
sent to- Qui Appelle River. I went there with a
party, and on oui return we were attacked and
taken back to the North West fort at Qui Ap-

pelle. 1 do wot know if Boucher was there, but
Cuthbert Grant, I think, was. It-wasa general talk
at the fort that they would go down and take Fort
Douglas, and break up the settlement. There were
not many Indians, but a good many Half-breeds,
and they talked generally of the intended attack,
some whose names 1 do not recollect told me of i
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?articu]arly, and when I returned to Fort Doig:

as, I told it to our people. Peter Pangmar;
- alias Bostonnois; was there; he is a Half-breed:
Cuthbert Graat was there, for I heard him say

. that he and others would come down and pay a
visit to Mr. Robertson, and he should see what
they could do. I understood by their éoming to
visit Mr.-Robertson, (and they did not scruple td
say,) that it was to attack him—TI was there; (at
Fort Douglas,) on the 19t June. It had been;
and was; a common report that we were to be at-
taked about that time. I was not in the battle,
was in the fort. I hdve nothing particular tosay
about what took place on the 19% June. To-
wards evening I saw Mr. Semple and some of his
people coming out of the fort as 1 was gomg inj
but I did not:see the Half-breeds till- next day:
I saw sonie of the women from ‘the setflement
come crying to the fort, saying the Half-breeds.
Wwere come. On the next day [ saw a number of
Half-breeds eu.er the fort, and I believe that both
the prisoners “were amongst them, bui I had no
conversition with them, nor did I héar what pas<
sed between them ‘and others of our people.
saw governor Semple next day dead ; at the time
I saw-his corpse, Cuthbert Grant was there:

Cross-egamination conducted by Mr. Sherwood:

Corcoran—All T know about the battle I have
told. It was not two months before, that I was
at Qui Appelle; it was in May that I was there.
The fort on River Qui Appelle is abeut four hun-
dred miles from Fort Douglas. I am a servant to
the Hudson’s Bay Company, and am now in my
seventh year. I was notat Fort Gibraltar when
it was taken, but I know that it was taken. I saw
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the materials of it at our fort, they were rafted
down to it. - - - : e

Mr. Sherwood—When Cuthbert Grant said at
Qui Appelle that he was. going, or would go,.and
visit Mr. Robertson, did he not say what he was
going for; that they were going to try and get
their fort? : S : o

Corcoran.—1I did not hear him say whai he was
going for. S :

Mr. Sherwsod~~Did you not understand at the
fort at Qui Appelle, that it was for that purpose
they were goinog to visit Mr. Robertson, though
Grant did not in your hearing say so?

Corcoran.—I didnot hear Grant say micre than
that he would visit Mr. Robertson, and some of
the Half-breeds told ‘me that they were going
down to destroy the settlement; indeed that was
the general talk. S '

Mr. Sherwood.—That you told us before, but [
‘want you now to answer my questions. You have
told your own story to the gentleman who exd-
mined you. just now; and you answered all his -
questions very readily; now, though mine may not.
be so pleasant, yet you must answer them, and we
want nothing else from you. *Now I ask you a-
gain, when Grant spoke of going to visit Mr. Ro-
bertson, though he did not in your hearing say
that it was about Fort Gibraltar that he was go-
ing, had you not good reason to believe that he
meart he was going about that? Now answer that
question, just you had, or you had not, yes, or no'?

Corcoran—~When Grant said that he was gomng
from River Qui Appelle to visit Mr. Robertson, 1
suppose he bad some allusion ‘to Fort Gibraltar.

- Mr. Sherwood —Very well, why could you nef,
have said so at first, you must answer my questions,
however unwilling you may be. - i - -

Coreoran.~I am not unwilling at all, I only want



44 N

to speak the ;truth, and I ecannot tell what ks
meant. It was the common talk that Fort Doug:
‘Tas was to be taken, and the setilement broke up;
- but I don’t know why. . I T

Mr. Sherwood. —But you know that Fort Gibral:
tar was taken, and razed to-the ground by orders
of your governor, as you call him, by a party un-
der -the command of this Mr. Rebertson ? :
' Corcoran.—~No, Ido not.” I did not see i tak-
cen, I heard that it was taken; butl do not know
by whose orders. -

. M. Sherwood —=Do you not know that Mr. Sen-
ple sent Mr. Robertson to take Fort Gibraltar;
and that Mr. Robertson went and took it?

. Corcoran—1 do not: I was net . there; and do
not know that Mr. Robertson went and took it, nov
do I know any thing about any orders being given
by any body to take it. [ only heard that it was
taken, and { saw some materials at oui fort which
they said were those of Fort Gibraltar. Mr. Ro-
bertson is in the service of the Hudson’s Bay Cow-
pany. 1 donot know if he was under Mr. Sem-
ple’s orders. © We always considered him-as our
_ head, and obeyed hiui; we ‘were under his particu-
lar orders: When I went to River Qui Appelle
1t was under his orders. Mr. Robertson, as well
as Mr. Semple, was always Wiijing that any mer-
chant should pass and repass, i they did not mo-
lest him. - I never heard that cannen were plant-
ed on the banks of the river opposite the fort; to
‘prevent -the North West people from going up
and down the river. 'When I was at the fort at

Qui Appelle I told them that they might pass and

repass if they went quietly. I have heard that this
~party of Half-breeds came to about a day’s march

from Fort Douglas in canoces and boats.” There
were cannonat I'ort Douglas,and they were mount-
ed on bits of carriages, but there were none on the
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tiher side of thé river. I khow hothing of two
Yrains of pemican being taken from the North-West
fort near Brandon-house. Ikneéw some was taken;
and carried to Fort; Douglas. Iknow there was
a good parcel; bat I do not know how muech. I
do not know if there were five or six hundred
bags. There was- enough to last some hl_mdred
people some time ; there was a good quantity.

PIERRE CHRISOLOGUE PAMBRUN, Sworn:
lExamz;neJ ?;g the ﬂiiornéy-(ﬁeneral';

. Mr. Pambrun---1 had been for some time under
the orders of Mr. Semple; and on thie 12t1 April;
1816; I left Fort Douglas under his directions, to
goto the Hudson’s Bay Company’s house on Ri-
ver Qui Appelle: I set out with as much provi-
sion as' would last us six days; when we would get
to Brandon-house; where, according to my instruc:
tions, I was to go first, and from thence;. if pru-
dent, to the Hudson’s Bay post; (where I after-
wards did go;) at Qui Appelle. On the first of
May, I left Qui Appelle, with five ‘boat-loads of
pemican and furs. As we were going down the
river, on the 3t May, near the grand rapids, I
made the shore in a boat, and a party of drmed
Half-breeds immediately came and surrounded
me, and forced me to give up the boats, and the
furs, and pemican. The pemican was landed, and
the boats taken across. the river. "I was kept 4
prisoner for five days. Cuthbert Grant, Peter
Pangman, Thomas M’Kay, were of the party
who wade me a prisoner. Boucher was not, and
I do not know whether Paul Brown was or was
not. I'was taken back to River Qui Appelle, to
the North-West Company’s post; and there I saw:
K
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the prisoner, Paul Brown, but not Boucher. 1-was
kept there five days. Mr. Alexander M’Donell
was io command at this station, and I asked him
why Ihad becn made a prisonér, or by whose or-
ders 1 had been arrested, and he said it was by
his own. There were about forty or fifty Half-
breeds at this fort. Cuthbert Grant frequently
said they were going to destroy the settlement,
and I was told, Mr. M’Dene¢ll said, the business of
the year before was a trifle to what this should be.
Cuthbert Grant frequently talked with the Half-
breeds about going, and they sung war-songs, as
if they were going to battle. On the 12t%, 1 left
Qui Appelle. We drvifted down to the place
where Y had before been stopped, and the pemi-
can, which had been lapded from our boats, was
re-embarked by the North-West people. When
we got to the forks of the River Qui Appelle, we
encamped. The people who were taken with me
had been liberated some time before, and had gone
away, but I had been kept a prisoner. The next
morning after we had encamped, that is, the peo-
ple in the two boats which went with Mr. M’Do-
nell, a number of Indians, who were in camp at
some distance, were sent for, and they came, and
went into Mr. M’Donell’s tent, who make a speech
to them; a party went also on horseback from
Fort Qui Appelle armed, but I was in one of the
boats with Mr. M’Denell. In going down the ri-
ver, they talked freely of breaking up the settle-
went, and taking Fort Douglas, and the people
frequently told me that ‘Mr. M’Donell had said,
the business of the year before had been nothing
to what this would be. Mr. M’Donell’s speech to
the Indians was to this effect. « My friends and
« relations, I address you bashfully, for I have not
¢ a pipe of tobacco to give you. All our goods
“ have been taken by the English, buf we are now
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‘& yypon & party to drive them away. Those peo-
L pfe have been spoiling your lands, which belong
“ to you, and the Haif-breeds, and to which they
w have no right. They have been driving away
% the buffalo, and that they (the Indians,) would
% soon be poor and miserable; if they (the Eng-
% lish,) staid; but that they (this party) would
% drive them away if the Indians did not, for that
% the North-West and the Half-breeds wére one;
w that if he and some of his young men would
% join ——” , _

Chiief Justice.~--If who would join with his young
men ? .
 Mr. Pambrun.---A chief who was present, be-
longing to the Saulteux tribe. He said, that if
“ some of the young men would join-he should be
% glad.” Pangman and one Primeau acted -as in-
terpreters. r. M’Donell spoke in French. The
chief said, “that he knew nothing about it, and -
¥ should not go himself'; if some of ihe young mern
% went, it was nothing t6 him.” Mr. M’Donell.
then said, “well, it 1s no matter, we are deter-
“ mined to drive them away, and if they make any
“ resistance, your lands shall be dreriched with
* their blood.” This harangue was made on the
13th or 14t May, and was delivered by Mr.
M’Donell in French. Iknow that the prisoner
Paul Brown was of the party. The next morning;
the Indians went away, and the party drifted
down the Assiniboin River to the grand rapids:
From theré, about thirty started, among whom
weré Mr. M'Donell, Cuthbert Grant, and a num-
ber of Half-breeds. I did net sée Seraphim La-
matre among themi. I was left bebind and still a
prisoner, but in the the evening a spare horse
was brougnt by Mr. Fraser and one Taupier, for
e, and I accompanied them on horseback to the
North-West fort, near Brandon-house. When I

¥ o
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approached, I saw a croud assembled about the
gate.. I suppose there were from forty to fifty
persons assembled. Their arms were down by
the gate, and as I entered it, a number of them
presented their guns at me, making use of insult-
ing language. I complained to Mr. M’Donell of
this treatment, and asked him if it was by his or-
ders, and he said he would speak to them about
it, but I do not think he ever did. In the course
of the night I saw some property that was brought
away from our fort at Brandon-house. ' I saw to-
bacco and carpenter’s tools, and other things. I
wished very much to go over to see a Mr. Peter
Fidler, who had charge at Brandon-house. I
found that he was not at the fort, but having been
turned out, was encamped in a tent completely
without the fort. Besides tobacco, carpenters’
tools, &c. there were some furs also brought from
Brandon-house. The tobacco which had been
brought was divided the next day amongst these
men; the Half-breeds. About the 24tk or 25th
May, the party was separated into smaller divi-
sions, and chiefs appointed. The property was
embarked, and the whole set off to go to Portage
des Prairies; a part went by water, but the Half-
breeds generally went by land, on horseback.
. Having arrived at Portage des Prairies, the whole
of the pemican and packs was landed and formed
into a sort of breastwork .or fortification, having
two small brass swivels there, which ‘the year be-
fore had been taken from the stores of the zettle-
ment. On the morning of the 17t% June, being at
Portage des Prairies still, which is about sixty
miles from the settlement, the Half-breeds mount-
ed their horses, and set off for it; they were arm-
ed with guns; pistols, lances, and bows and arrows.
Cuthbert Grant was with them, Antoine Hoole;
Thomas M’Kay, the prisoner Brown, and I alse



149

saw Boucher. I remained bebind; so did Mr. A-
lexander M’Donell, Allen M’Donell, John Sive-
right, Seraphim Lamarre, and I albo saw Fraser
there, and about thzrty to forty men staid to help
to guard the pemican. The object of this expedi-
tron was to take Fort Deuglas, and break up the
settlement. If the settlers took to the fort for pro-
tection, then the whaole were to be. starved out.
The fort was to be watched strictly at all times,
and if any of them went out to fish, or to get wa-
ter, they were to be shot, if they could not be tak-
en prisoners. [ certainly had, from all I heard,

very serious apprehensions for my friends. I do
not remember. that Cuthbert Grant said any thing
particular on the morning he went away. On the
~ 20th, a messenger a"rwed from Cuthbert Grant.
" When Mr. "\’i’Donel! saw him approach, he went
out and spoke with him, and presently gave three
eheers. Upon this the other dontlemﬂn asked
what was the news. Mr. M’ Donbli said, In F'rench,

it was good; twentj two English are killed, and
among them Semple and five.of his officers. He
then apnounced it to the people, and said in F'rench,
« Sacré nom de Dieu, bonnes nouzﬂ&'es, vingt-deuz
“ Jnglois de tués.” The gentlemen present all
shouted with joy, especially Lamarre, M’Donell,

and Siveright. Pangman, commonly ca xCd Boston-
nois, enquned whether there were any killed upon
their side; it was answered, that one had been,
and on hearing who it was, he said 1t was his cou-
sin, and then exclamed; my cousin is killed and
“ I will be revenged, the affair shall net end here,
¢ they shall all k2 killed, for so long as these Eng-
“ lish are let go out of the river, Lhey always will
“ be coming back, as thpy had done last year ”
and he also said that, ¢ there should not be one of
“ them allowed to go out of the river, for so long
“ as they were permxtted to go out, they would al-
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¢ ways cause a disturbance and mischief:* Upon
this, two men, named Latour and Montour, were
ordered to get horses, and immediatel despatch-
ed on horseback to the Red River, with directions
to detain all the settlers till Alexander M’Donellt
. should arrive. We then pursued our journey by
land towards the fort; to within about thirty miles
of it, and the remainder of the way I went by wa-
" ter. When I arrived at-Fort Douglas, I found all
our people were gone. I met none of them thexc
at all, the fort and property were in the possession
of the Half-breeds, the same Half-breeds as I had.
before seen start for Fort Douglas. Grant was
there, and a number of those I have before men-
tioned ; they were in fact the party who had gone
down on horseback with the carts from Portage
des Prairies. Brown and Boucher, the two pri-
soners al the bar, were there; thev were altoge-
ther about forty-five in the fort, and not at the set-
tlement. Mr. M’Donell had arrived fifteen hours,
before me. The day after, I agked Mr. M’Donel}
to let me go to the spot where the accident had
occurred, which he did, and T went by myself.-

Attorney-General. ——Were Mr. M’Kenzie and Mr.
M’Leod at Fort Douglas at this time?

Mr. Pambrun. —No, they did not arrive tlll the
24th Jume. 1 heard Cuthbert Grant, Antoine,
Hoole, and others, speak together of what they
had done, they spoke it among themselves, boast-
ing of it; one said that he had Lilled one, and some
that. t‘ley had killed two, and so on, but they
nerally boasted of their feats. I heard Cuthbert
Grant say, that he had fired upon Mr. Semple,
and upon M'Lean. The general account of the
Half-hreeds was, that Grant was a brave man, and .
bad conducted himself weil in the engagement.
They did not seem to be sorry for, or hlde, What
; they had done.
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Altorney-General—Did: you see the place where
any.of these persons were buried ? :

“Mr. Pambrun~Yes, b did; the limbs of the
persons who had been: killed, were out of the
groundy and many of their bodies in a mangled
condition.. I was afterwards sent to Fort William:
I was not there considered-as a prisoner. I wasal-
lowed to go in three or four days.

Chief Justice —Before he goes any farther, will
you- let him relate the names of those whom he
found at Fort Douglas, upon his arrival there; I
mean those whom he saw start from Portage des
Prairies.- S _ '
. Mr. Pambrun.~—There were of the Half-breeds;
Cuthbert Grant, Astvine Hoole, Thomas M'Kay,
Louis Lacerte, Alexander Fraser, Frangois Des-
champs, Le Gros Téte, André Traquen, Alexan-
der Fookey, Fookey his brother, Moustouche,
MaucHet, and several I do not recollect; of Cana-
dians there were Francois Deschamps the elder,
who went by water, Boucher, Lavigwe, and Louis
Morain, Boucher went down to Fort William in

_the same cagoe that I did. He freely admitted
that he had been in the battle. = He told me that
he had acted comme ambassadeur, and was the first
man who had spoke to governor Semple. In the
canoes that went with us'to Fort William were the
furs, which had been taken from me when I was
taken to the North-West post on’ River Qui Ap-
pe—lle. :

Cross-examination- condueted by Jr. Sherwood.

Mr. Pambrun.—The Bois-brulés are the bas-
tard children, either of French or English fathers,
by Indian women; they are the offspring of white
men by indian women; sewe of them I know have
been sent to Lower Canada, and received their
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education ‘at Montreal and Quebec. I do .not
think they consider themselves as white men, or
that they are so considered by white men, nor do
they consider themselves as only on a footing with
tne Indians; they are employed in all capacities,
as clerks, interpreters, and engagés. Iknow that
Assiniboin, a Half-breed, was one who went down
- on horseback. I know a person named Hamelin
who was there, but I do not know that they are
now in the service of the Hudson’s Bay Company.
They call the peeple engaged in the service of
the Hudson’s Bay Company, the English, and they
call me an Englishman, but I am a Canadian, they
call me so from opposition to the English settlers.
Mr. Alexander M’Donell is one of the partners of
the North-West Company, as I have always un-
derstood. I never took Bostonnois Pangman pri-
soner, but he was taken by some of the Hudson’s
Bay people before I was taken. 1Ido know that
Fort Gibraltar was once in possession of the North-
West Company. As I was going to Fort des
Prairies, I saw it in their possession, and in going
up again, I saw it in possession of the Hudson’s
Bay people. The fort was taken, but not taken
away, for I found some of the Hudson’s Bay peo-
ple there. I do not know that the Hudson’s Bay
people have an exclusive right to that country, and
to erect trading posts therein. 1 know the late
governor Semple and his hand-writing ; this letter
of the 23¢ March, addressed to Alexander M’Do;
nell, and this of the 14tk May, also addressed tc
him, are Mr. Semple’s »~n--writing. B

- Mr. Shezwood.—'l move they be re.ad.

Thq two follqwing letters were then read,
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& M!DONELL, Esquire,

Quz Appelle,

. Bganoon, 23d March, 1816.

Sir, i
1 enclose to you'a letter from Mr.. Robertson, which I
have perused, and which bappily requn‘ea no comment. I sus-
pect that your associates have mistaken my character. Remem-
ber what I now say to you. Should you, or your Indian or
Black-breed “allies, attempt any violence against the Hudson’s
Bay Company at-Qui Appelle or elsewhere, the consequences to
.)ouxselvea wiil be terrible.
Iam, Sir,
Yours, &e.
{Signed) ROBr. SEMPLE.

“A. W’'DONELL, Esquxre.

Fort DOLGLAS, 14th May, 1816.

Sir,

I take the opportumty of Mr. Seraphim Lamarre’s returg
towards Qui Appelle, to acknowledge receipt of your letter of
the 5tb instant.

The idea of Mr. Robertson making a journey of 120 miles,
for the purpose of a conversation with you, appears to me wholly
inadmissible, when the same purpose may be just as effectually
answered at the first point, or at either of the Forks. , Still less
‘can I think of delegating full powers to any man to form defini-
tive arrangements, when I myself am on the spot, and must a-
lone be answerab]e for them, bota to friends and enemies.

In the mean time, my wish for general tranquility will ever
remain unchanged. 1 am satisfied with the proofs which remain
in our bands, and seek no more. Should you be unwilling to
meet me here, 1 leave it to yourself to appoint a spot at a mo-
derate distance from the Forks for a conference. - Whatever -
place you may adopt, I repeat that your person and property
shall be considered sacred, unless you commence acts of hosti-
lity. Should you, however, have occasion- again to write o me,
it will be perfectly unnecessary to talk of your means of retalia-
tion. I also, should I'be compelled to it, have my schemes of
fatther and still farther retaliation, the shock of which, if I mis-
take not, should be felt from Athabasca to Montreal.

I am, Sir,
Yours, &ec.
(Signed) ROBr. SEMPLE.
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JMyr. Pambrun—I do not know where Athabas.
ca is. I have been informed that it is far north, and
ihat trade is carried on there by both companies,
It is far north I believe of Red River. The party
that went-down to Red River set off to go, a part
by land and a part by water, and each party had

emican with them; those that went by land took
1t iz carts, and those that went by water took it in
canoes. Portage des Prairies is about sixty miles
from Fort Douglas. I do not consider that it
would have been unsafe for this party to have
gone by. water, and have passed Fort Douglas, if
they had not committed depredations.

JMr. Sherwood.—DPo you not know, Sir, that they
had been robbed before; if not by you, do.you
net know that their pemican had been taken from
them by some of your people ? ' :

- Mr. Pambrum.—I1 was never the robber of the
North-West Company, nor do I know that they
were robbed. I know that they robbed me..

Jr. Sherwood.—-Did they not at that very time
tell you, that what they did to you was in retalia-
tion for similar conduct on the part of Celin Ro-
bertson:to-them 2 don’t be angry. I did not charge
you with being a robber.

Myr.. Pambrum.—Alexander M’Donell tcld me,

~when I asked by whose autherity I was taken,
that it was by his,_and that it was in retaliation
for what Cohn Robertson had done, that I was
robbed, and that he would starve the colonists and .
.the Hudson’s. Bay: Company’s servants, and force
them to surrender. '

. JMr.. Sherwood.—Do you-think that the Hudson’s
Bay Company would have done the same if such
a daring eutrage had been committed on: them, as
these people had perpetrated'at Fort Gibraltar?
If Fort Douglas had:-been razed to the ground, all
the property of my Lord Selkirk and the company
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sent away, do you not think they. would retaliate
in the same way P . :

" Mr. Pambrun.—No, I do not, for it never wag
their disposition to kill any body. . »
- JMr. Sherwoad—Indeed! did you never hear of
any body being killed by them in affrays that have
taken place? >

Mr.- Pambrun.—No, I have not, nor do I be-
lieve they would. .

Mr. Sherwood—May T ask you, Sir, on what
you found your opinion of their humanity ? :

Mr. Pambrun—T¥ found my opinion on this, that
if they had wished to kill, they might, but they
pever have, and .hat is why I believe they never
will.

Mpr. Sherwood.—That is'your opinion.. Fhappen
to have a different one, and so have many other
people. Have you any other reason, Sir, than
because you dg not happen to know of their taking
the life — : , '

Chief Justice~—What has this to do with the case
before us? Either examine the witness to the
case, or be silent.

JMr. Sherwood —Whenever your Lord‘ship-pleases.
it is my duty to bow, and I certainly shall, but if
permitted to pursue my own course, I shall put
that question to Mr. Pambrun. -

Chaef Justice—Well then, ‘silence now.

Mr. Sherwood sat down. - :

Mr. Sherwood, (rising.)—Does your Lordship
- prohibit my cross-examining this witness farther ?

Chief Justice~—I have no wish to stop you in
your cross-examination, if you-conduet it regularly;
none at all. ' -

Mr. Sherwood —What™ did you. say to Mr.
M’Donell, upon first seeing him at the fort at Qui
Appelle River? Tell what passed at that time, the

whole that passed. ' :
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Myr. Pambrun—I asked him by whose authority
Cuthbert Grant had taken me prisoner, aad took
my property, or the property I was in charge of,
from me, and he said it was by his orders, and

" that it was done by way of retaliation for Fort
Gibraltar having been taken by Mr. Robertson,
and that he would make the seitlers and servants
of the company surrender, or "> would starve
them out, this 1s all I recollect to 1ave passed.

Mr. Sherwood.—W hat, Sir, did Cuthbert Grant
say to you relative to his own share in the.affair
of the 19th June? You have told us that the ge-
neral report was that he was a brave man, and
conducted himself well on that day, and you also
told us of something that he himself said; tell us
thai again, will you? .

Mr. Pambrun.—Mr. Grant told me that he had
fired upon Mr. S8emple, and had shot him.. It was
not in confidence that he said this to me, it was in
a general conversation. He said that he had shot
Mr. Semple, and had fired on Mr. M’Lean. I
never received any orders from Mr. Semple, or
Mr. M’Lean, to molest or interfere with the North-
West Company’s people, but, on the contrary, our
orders at all times were to do them no violence,
and not to interfere with them at all.”

Mpr. Sherwood.—TIt is a great pity they were not
more generally obeyed by his servants, if these
were his orders. '

7 Re-cxamined by the ﬂltorney—Gencml.

Attorney-General.—~What were your orders, Sir,
(for I believe you received particular ones,) from
Mz. Semple, when you started from Fort Douglas
to go to Brandon-house, and thence, according to
" information you might obtain there, to the Hud-
son’s Bay post on River Qui Appelle ?
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M. Pambrun—1 went under orders from govern--
or Semple to be peaceable, and to avoid evefy
thing like hestility, unless I was attacked. . My
instructions were contained in a letter in these
words, ¢ Mr. Pambrun, Sir, Having” (Mr. Pam-
brun’s repeating the letter was objected to byl Mr:
Sherwood, and JMr. Pambrun was directed by the
. Court not fo repeat 1t.) That was the general na-
ture of my instructions, I was to go to Brandon-
house and thence to Qui Appelle, peaceably, if
they would let me go, and [ went peaceably, till
I was stopped and robbed of the property:

Attorney-General——-1 will not ask you, Sir,
whether you know of the Hudson’s Bay Company
ever having taken the lives of one and twenty per-
sons at one time, but I will ask you, Sir, do you
know, or did you ever hear, of a single life having
been taken by them ? , 3 ‘ 3
. Mr. Pambrun.—1I do not know of any life having
been taken, nor did I ever hear of any one losing
his life by them. , o
~ JMr. Sherwood.—1 must ask you, Sir, before.
this unhappy affair, (in which we are now endea-
vouring. to see who are the murderers, or who are
to blame,) do you know of the North-West
Company having taken the lives of one and twenty
or of one person? Do you, before this time, know
of any case ? o o }

Mr. Pambrun—1 know of none beforé this, on
~ the part of the North West Company. 1 have been

told that there —— ‘ _ ‘

Mr. Sherwood.—We do not want what you wds
told. 1 have been told very different to what you
have been, but thatis of no consequence here:
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FREDERICK DAMIEN HEURTER, Suworii
" Ezanitned by the Attorney-General.

M. Heurter—-1 was not present at Fort Doug:
}is on the 19th June, in the year 1816:. 1 came
down theré about eight days dfter with a partoer
of the North West Company, a Mr. Archibald
Norman M’Leod. and we found it in possession of
Mr. Alexander M'Donell, and some Halfbreeds:
Mr. Alexander M’Donell is a partner alsoin the
North West Company. I was at that time in their
service as a clerk: Cuthbert Grant was there;
and I also saw Francgois -Firmin Boucher, one of
the prisoners, there. I heard of what had passed
on the 19th Jutie; and Ivisited the field of battle;
in company with the persons who were there.—
Cuthbert Grant;- Alexander Fraser, -Deschamps
the father; and tvb sons, Joseph called Gros Téte;
were of the party who went; and Joseph Deschamps
related the particulars of how they shot the peo-
ple. The observations were not made fo me, but
to sotiie of the partners of the North West Com:

any who went with us. He related particularly
ﬁow they shot the people who came with M.
Semple. 1 did not hear Cuthbert Grant say any
thing; it was young Deschamps that I heard re-
late the particulars. 1 was present when the
speech was made to the Half-breeds by a partner
of the North West Company,- Mr. Archibald Nor-
‘man M’Leod, but I dé not know that any thing
was answered by Grant, or by Boucher.

Cross-examination conducted 6y Mr. Skerivood.:
 JMr. Heurter—1 am not in the service of the

Hudson’s Bay Company, nor of the Earl of Sek
kirk, nor have I been.
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SOHN PRITCHARD, Sworn.
Ezamined by the JAltorney-General.

Mr. Pritchard~-In May, 1815, I was living at
Red River, and in that month and fong before,
from the Indians and freemen who hved in eur
neighbourhood, I heard of its being intended to
attack us. I-heard this as early as March, and in
May and June the report became general. In
consequence of this information, we were con-
stantly upon the look-out, day and night; a watch
was kept for the express purpose of giving the
earliest notice of their approach. On the evening
of the 19th June, I had been up stairs in my own
room, and about six o'clock, I heard the boy at
the watch-house, give the alarm that the Hall=
breeds-were coming. A few of us, among whom
was the governor, there were perhaps six alto-
gether, looked through a spy-glass, from a placs

- that had been uced as a stable, and we distinctly.
saw some armed persons going along the plains
Shortly after, I heard the same boy call out, ¢ that
“ the party on horseback were marching to the
“ settlers.” About twenty of us, in obegience_ to
the governor, who said, “ we must go and see
“ what these people are,” took our arms. He would
only let about twenty go, at least he told about
tweaty to follow him—to come with him; there
was, however, some confusion at the time, and I
believe a few more than twenty accompanied us.
- Having proceeded about half a mile towards the
settlement, we saw, behind a point of wood which
gocs down to the river, that the party encreased
very much. Mr. Semple, therefore, sent one of
the people, (Mr. Bourke,) to the fort, for a piece
of cannon, and as many men as Mr. M Donell
could spare. Mr. Bourke, however, net returning
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soon, Mr. Semple said, ¢ gentlemen, we had bet-
« ter go on,” and we accordingly proceeded. We
had not gone far before the Half-breeds returned
‘towards, us, and they divided into two parties, and,
surrounded us in the shape of a half-moon or half
circle. . o ~
Attorney-Genéral~~Did you meet any people in
your way ? o

Myr. Pritchard——Yes, we met a number of the
settlers, crying and speaking in the Galic language;
which I do not understand, and they went on to
the fort. The party onhorseback had got pretty
pear to us, so that we could discover that they
were painted and disguised in the most hideous
manner ; upon this; as we were retreating, -Bou-
cher advanced; waving his hand, riding up to us;
and calling.oxfi in broken English, “ what do you
“ want, what do jou want?” Governor Semple
said, ¢ what do you want ?” ' L

Chief Justice—Do not go on quite so fast. [t
appears to me that this evidence about the settlers;
and their retreating, is in direct contradiction to
what we have before heard from Michael Heden
and others. = | L
- Attorney-General—Mr. Pritchard; my Lord, wilt
relate that part again, and, I believe, your Lord-
ship will not find any variance. Itis, 1 think, no-
thing more than that Mr. Pritchard does not use
exactly the same words as the other wiinesses.

- Mr.. Pritchard—Mr. Bourke, not coming on
with the cannon as soon as he was expected; Mr:
Semple directed the party to proceed onwards;
we had not gone far before we saw the Half-breeds
returning upon us. Upon observing that they
were so numerous, we had extended our line, and
got more into the open plain, as they advanced we
retreated, but they divided themselves into two
parties; and surrounded us in the shape of a half<
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moon. Bouchér then came out of the rank of his

arty, and advancec.l/ towards us, (he was on horse-
£ack,) calling out in broken English, ¢« what do
« you want? what do you want?” Mr. Semple
answered, « what do yox want?” to which Bou-
-cher replied, ¢ we want our fort.” Governor Sem-
‘ple said, « well, go to your fort.”. After that I
did not hear any thing that passed, as they werke
close together. I saw.Mr. Semple put his hand
on Boucher’s gun. Expecting an attack .to be
made instantly, I bad not been looking at govern-
. or Semple and Boucher for some time, but just
then I happened to turn my head that way, and
immediately I heard a shot, and directly aftera
general firing. 1I+turned round upon hearing the
shot, and saw, Mr. Holte stroggling as if he was
shot. He was on the ground. On seeing their
approach, we had extended our line on the open
plains; this was done by Mr. Semple’s; or some
other person’s, directions. By extending our line,
I mean we each took a place at a greater distance
frotii -each other; we took pldces as best suited
our individual saféty. From not seeing the firing
begin, I can not say from whom it first came, but
immediately upon hearing the first shot, I turned
reund and saw lieutenant Holte struggling. A
fire was kept up for several iiinutes, and § saw
several wounded, indeed, in a few minutes, altost
all our people were either killed or wounded. I
saw Sinelair and Bruce fali, either wounded or
killed, and Mr. M’Lean, a little in front, defending
hiniself, but by a second shot I saw him fall. At
this time I saw captain Rogeérs geiting up again,
but not observing any of our people standing, I
called out to him, “ Rogers, for GPod’s‘ sake give
« yourself up, give yourself up.” Captain Rogers
ran towards them, calling out that he sarrendered,
and that he gave himself up, and praying them to

L :
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dave his life. . Thomas M'Kay, a Half-breed;: shot!
him through the head, and another Half-breed
ripped his belly opeun with a knife, using the most
Jorrid imprecations to him. I did not see Mr.
Semple fall. . Isaw his corpse the next day at the
fort.  When'I saw Mr. Rogers fall; T'expected to
share his fate. ~As there was a Canadian among
tthose who surrounded me, and wheo had: just made
an end of my friend, I said; « Lavigne, you are a
« Frenchman, you are a man, you-are a Christian, -
& for God’s sake, save my life, for God’s sake, try
“ and save it. I give myself up.. F am your pri-
« soper.” M’Kay, who was among this party,
.and: who knew me, said, « you little toad. what
¢do you do, here?” He spoke in French, and
called me, un. petit erapaud, and dsked what I did
‘here,- and I fully expected then: that I should lose
my life. T again- appealed to Lavigne, and he
joined in entreating them to spare me. I told
them, over and over that I was their prisoner, that
I had got something to tell them; they, however,
'seemed determined to take my life. 'They struck
-at' me with their guns, and Lavigne caught some
-of the blows, and joined me in- entreating for my
safety.  He told them of my kinduness on different
occasions. { remonstrated thatI had thrown down
my arms, and was their ﬁrisoner, at their mercy.
Onei Primeau wished to shoot me, he said I had
formerly killed his brother, I begged him to recol-
lect my former kindness to him at Qui Appelle.
At length they spared me, telling me, I was a lit-
.tle dog, and that I had not long to live, that he
would find me when he came back. I then went
to Frog Plains in charge of Boucher. I do not
know of any conversation taking place on the way
‘between us. In going to the plains, I was again
threatened by one of the party, and .saved by
Boucher, who conducted me safe to the Frog
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Plains. 1 there met Cuthbert Ciaht, who told md
that they did not expect to have met us on the
lain, but that their intention was to have surprised
the colony, and they would have hunted the colo-

nists like ‘buffale. He also told me they expected .

to have got round unperceived, and at night would
have ‘surrounded the fort, and have shot every
oné who left it, but béing seen, their scheme had
been destroyed or frustrated. Paul Brown ap-
peared to be one of this party. I do not think he
- was'armed. They were all painted and disfigured,
“so that I did not know many. I sheuld not have
known that Cuthbert Grant was there, though I
knew him well, had he not spoken to me. Grant
told mée that Mr. Semple was not mortally wounded.
by the shot he received, but that his thigh was
broke. He said that he spoke to Mr. Semple af-
ter he was wounded, that Mr. Semple askeed him
to get him taken to the fort, and as he was not
mortally wourded, he thought ke perhaps might
‘live. Grant said that he could not take Ei‘m him- .
self, as he had something else to do, but that he
would serid some pérson to convey him there on
whom he might deg)end, and that he left him in
the care of a Canadian, and went away, but that
almost directly after he had left him, an Indian,
who, he said, was the only rascal they had, came
up 4nd shot him in the breast, and killed him upon
the spot. . . :

.ﬂlgirrtey-G‘enéi‘al.—“'-Is it usual for the Half-breeds
to paint themselves ? '

My. Pritchard—Very far from it, it is very un-
usual ; they aré accustomed to dress like Cana-
dians. I have lived thirteen years in the Indiaa
‘country, and I never saw the Half-breeds paint;
‘they imitate the white people, and dress like them
at all times, except when engaged in sporting as
Indians. They were painted as I have been aés

1* . .
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eustomed to see-the Indians at their war dance;
 they were very much painted and disguised in ahid-
eousmanner. They gave the war-whoop when they
met governor Semple and his party, as I was told;
they made a hideous noise and shouting. Iknow
from Grant, as well as from other Half-breeds and
the settlers, that some of the colonists had been
taken prisoners. Grant told we that they were
taken to weaken the colony, and prevent its being
known that they were there, they having supposed
they had passed the fort unobserved. Their in-
“tention clearly was to pass the fort. I saw no
-carts, though I heard they had carts with them,
‘I saw about five of the settlers prisoners in the
camp at Frog Plains.  Grant told me they intended
to have encamped below the plains, and have. pre-
- ‘vented the settlers going to the river for water, or
if they.did go, .to have shot them. He also said
“to me-.in the same conversation.. “ .You see we
% haye had but one of our people killed, and how
'k Jittle quarter we have given yau, now, if that
« fort is not given up, with all the public property
< ipstantly, without resistance, man, woman and
& child shall be. put to death.” He said the at.
tack would be made upon it that night, and, if 2
‘single shot were fired, that would be the sig
‘nal for the indiscriminate destruction of every soul,
wan,, woman, and child. I was completely satis-
fied myself that the whole would be destroyed,
and I besought Grant, whom I knew, to suggest,
or let me try and devise, some means to save the
women and - children., I.represented to him, that
they could have done no harm to any body, what-
ever he or his part'y,mfgh‘t, think the men had. |
entreated them to take compassion on them. I
reminded him that. they. were his father’s country-
‘women, and:in his. deceased father’s name, F-beg-
ged him to take:pity and compassion upon them-
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Attorney-General.—Before you proceed with that
art-of the melancholy history, I wish to ask you,
Mpr. Pritchard, whether there was any proposition
.on your side, or any disposition in your parly, te
attack the Half-breeds, or when they were coming
ap to you, was there any disposition to fire, or
;any proposal that you should fire upon them?

Mr. Pritchard—At the time the Half-breeds di-
vided into two parties, just before surrounding us,
.one of our people, (Bruce I believe,) did propose
that we should keep them off, and Mr. Semple turn-
.ed round, and asked them who could be such a ras-
cal as to make such a proposition, and 1ot to let
him hear such a word ‘again.” Mr. Semple was
very much displeased indeed. 'bégged Cuthbert
:Grant, in his deceased father’s name, to have com-
passion on .the helpless women and children, and
spare them, whatever they might do with the men.
I tried to soften.down things with him, and sue-
ceeded -2t least so far with him, that he said, if all
the arms and public property were given up, we
should be allowed to go away; and he would give
usan escort to protect us against other parties
that were expected. T said they were hard terms
that we must all go away, -but he said they were
the only terms that he -could grant. I then wish-
d to go to Mr. M’Donell at the fort with this pro-
position, for 1 was afraid lest they should retract,
but -another difficulty presented itself; the Half- .
breeds were unwilling that I should be “permitted
to go, lest I should remain at the fort. 1 spoke to
them, and endeavoured to persuade them to acqui-
esce, but I did net seem likely to succeed; at last
I appealed to Cuthbert Grant.  Mr. Grant you
% know me, you know I will return if I say I will.
% I awill return, and T am sure you will answer for
« me that I will”—to this he agreed, and I went to ™
the- fort, Grant accompanying me a good part of
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the way as a protector, it being now late at might,
Arrived at the fort, I communicated to Mr. M’Do-
nell the termis upon which they had agreed to let
us depart, and that they must be complied with by
morning, when I was to return, according to the
agreement I had made with Grant. First the set-
tlers were assembled at the fort, and. when the
proposal was made to them, they said they would
not accept them, and would not surrender on such
terms. Mr. M'Donell therefore, though convinc-
ed in his own mind that resistance would be fruit-
less, said that he could not accept them, that he
could not give up the fort if the people were de-
termined to defend it. In the morning, however,
they concluded that it would be better to comply
with the terms than risk more blood being shed.
I accordingly went to Frog Plains, and after some
time, an agreement was made between Mr. M’Do-
nell and the Half-breeds, upon the terms I have
stated, and an inventory beiné taken, the fort was
. delivered over to Cuthbert Grant, who gave re-
ceipts on each sheet of the inventory signed, Cuth-
bert Grant, clerk for the North-West Company,
acting for the North-West Company. I remained
at Fort Douglas till the evening of the twenty se-
cond, when we proceeded down the river, on our
way to Hudson’s Bay. On the following day, or
the twenty fourth, I am not quite certam which,
we met a pumber of canoes, in which were Mr.
Archibald Norman M’Lead, and a number of part-
pers of the Narth-West Company, perhaps eight
or ten.

- Attorney-General—Were either of the prisoners
with you then? - o S

M. Pritchard—No, Boucher had gone with us
no farther than the Forks. At the time of the.
capitulation, Grant had promised us an escort to
protect us against two other parties of Half-breeds
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~thom he said we should meet, the one headed by
“William Shaw, and the other by Simon M’Gilli-
wray. I had thought Boucher was to go with us.
4 argued with.Grant,upon the danger we should
‘be again exposed to, but it was.no use; we went
witheut an escort. After meeting with Mr. M’Leod
we were ordered ashore, and T was sent to Fort
William with some others. I did not see Brown
at the time of the horrid affair on the plains. I
saw- him the day after, at Fort Douglas; ‘he came
"with the party, .they were, I believe, all armed, .
and I did not .see ‘Brown afterwards. I know
Cuthbert Grant .very well, and his hand-writing,
having frequently seen him write. (A4 letter being
.here produced.) ™ This letter is.in Cuthbert Grant’s
‘hand-writing. : :

The follwing letter was then read upon motion of
dhe Aitorney-General. ) _

, ;River ‘Qur AeprLLE, ¥3th-March, 1816.
.My Dear-Sir, \
1 received your generous and kind letter last fall by the
‘last canpe. .1 should certainly be an ungrateful being, should X
‘not return you my sincerest thanks. Although a very bad hand
at writing letters, I trust to your generosity. I am yet safe and
sound, thank God, for I'believe it is more than ‘Robertson or
any’ of his suit dare te offer the least insult to any of the Bois-
brulés, although Robertson made use of some expressions shich
T'hope he shall swallow in the spring, he shall see that it is. nei- .
ther fifteen, thirty, nor fifty, of his best horsemen ‘that can make
the Bois-brulés bow down to-him. The ‘Half-breeds, of Fort
des Prairies and English River, are:al to be here in the spring,
it is hoped we shall come off with flying . celours, and never to
see any of them again in the. colonising way in Red River, in
fact the traders shall pack off .with themselves also, for having
disobeyed, our orders Jast spring, according to our arrangements.
We are all to remain at.the Forks to pass the summer, for fear
they should play us.the -same trick, as:last summer, of comin
back, but they shall receive a warm reception; Iam loth to en-
_ ter into any particulars, as I am well assured that you will re-
.ceive a more satisfactory information (than I have had,) frooe”
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your other correspondents, therefore I shall not pretend to give.
you any, at the same time begging you will excuse my short let..
ter, 1 shall conclude, wishing you health and. happiness.

1 shall ever remain,
My Dear Sir,
“Your most obedient humble gervant,
(Signed) CUTHBERT GRANT.*

My sister and Betsy return their most respectful compliments,
to you.

-~

J.D. CAMERON, Esquire.

mpma—.

* To understand the allusion in this letter it is mecessary to revert
to the occurrences of the preceding year, In June 1815, the Half-
breeds, who had been-exasperated by the prohibition attempted to be
enforced against their hunting the buffalo, by the imprisonment of
some of their chiefs that spring, by having been attacked and fired upon
without any provocation by the colonists, as well as by other outrages,
determined that their oppressors should leave the Red River, . Upon
that occasion the following capitulation was interchanged between the
chiefs of the Half-breeds, and the heads of the colonists. .

¢ Articles of agreement entered into between the Half-breed Indians,
of the Indian territory, on one part, and the honorable Hudson’s Bay
Company, on the other, viz: ' :

1. All settlers to retire immediately from this river, and no appear-
ance of a colony to remain. . - )

« 2. Peace and amity to subsist between all parties, traders, Indians,
and freemen, in future, throughout these two rivers, and on no account
any person to be molested in his lawful pursuits, )

¢ 3. The honorable Hudson’s Bay Company, will, as customary en»
ter this river with, if they think proper, from three to four of their
former trading boats, and from four to five men per boat as vsual.

¢ 4,"Whatever former disturbance has taken place between both par.

1ies, that is to say, the honorable Hudson’s Bay Company and the Half-

breeds of the Indian terrilory, to be totally fergot, and not to be recalled
- by either party. - '

“ 5. Every person retiring peaceably from the river immediately,
shall not be molested in their passage out. .

“ 6. No people passing the summer for the honorable Hudson’s Bay
Company, shall remain in the buildings of the colony, but shall retire
10 some other spot, where they will establish for the purpose of trade,

CUTHBERT GRANT,

BOSTONNQIS PANGMAN,

WM. SHAW, )

BONHOMME MONTOUR,

Tae Four CHIEFS OF THE HALF-BRERDS,
By the mutual consent of their fellows,

JAMES SUTHERLAND;

JAMES WHITE,

Red River, Indian Terrilary,
Fprks, Red River, 25th June, 1815, §

J
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My, Pritchard.—The settlers were generally oc-
cupied in agricaltural pursuits, in_attending to
their farms; the servants of the Hudson’s Bay
Company in their ordinary avocations. They liv-
ed in tents generally and huts. In 1816, at Red
River there was but one house, the governor’s,
which had been called IFort Douglas by the set-
tlers after their return to the settlement in 1815.
There were houses before that time, but they were.
burned down in the attack that was then made on.
the colony. The settlers were employed during.
the day time on their lands, and used to.come up
to the fort to sleep. The Red River runs into
Lake Winnipic, and the settlement is at the Forks.
which are formed by the junction of the great Red
River with the lesser one, or the River Assiniboin.
Fort Douglas is about eighty miles from Lake
‘Winnipic, and it must be, I think, in a south-west
course; I think that must be its hearing.

Attorney-General—Will you now, Sir, tell us
whom you saw at this lamentable baftle that you
knew personally, and whom you saw fire ? :

Mr. Pritchard.—1 saw- the two M’Kays, Hoole,
and Cuthbert Grant, but I can not-say positively
whom I saw fire, except Thomas M'Kay, whom I
saw kill captain Rogers; I can not speak to any
one else. { saw Boucher afterwards at Fort Wil-
Jiam, and I enquired of him what passed between

This capitulation was signed.on the part of the Half-breeds by their
four above-named acknowledged chiefs, and on the part of the Hudson’s
Bay Company by James Sutherland their chief factor, and a justice of
the peace, and James White, surgeon to the settlement, who had been
left in chaze by Miles M’Donell, upon his being arrested and sent to.
Laneda. Notwithstanding the stipulations thus made, the colonists re-
turned in force in October following, under the command of Colin Ro-
‘bertson, and began the settlement afresh; yet thisbreach of engagement
was not resented by the Half-breed: tribe, till obunoxious proceedings
were again resorted- to, and Bostonnois Pangman, and others of the
nition, were made prisoners. These circumstances will explain and il-
Hustrate the expressions made use of in the Jetter. produced and read im
evidencp, : : - )

y,
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#im and governor Semple after. the questions and
answers about the fort, and he said that he told
the governor that, unless they laid down their
arms and surrendered themselves . prisoners, they
were all dead men. The party of Half-breeds
came out of their way. I think, if they had not
had hostile designs against -the settlement, had
they wanted to carry provisions fo meet canoes,
they need not have gone to the settlement; they
could have passed by.it. At Frog Plains I saw
some carts empty. Cuthbert Granthad promised
us provisions for the voyage to the Hudson’s Bay
coast, and when I spoke to him abeut it, he said
he could not let us have more than he had given
us, as it was all at the forts above; butif we would
wait till he sent to Bas de la Riviére, avhich would
take about a fortnight, we should thave it; we
‘were, however, glad to get away at any rate, and
therefore went with the little we had. = =

oot

' ﬂmss-cxaminatzbn conducted by Mr. Sherwood.

M. Sherwood.—If I understand you, Mr. Pritch:
-ard, you have distinctly said that you do not know
which party fired first? '

Mr. Pritchard.—1 have said so. T can not say
who did. T think Mr. Holte must have fallen by
the first shot, because 1 turned round instantly,
and saw him struggling on the ground. I have a°
knowledge of Mr. %’liles M’Donell’s proclamation,
but I do not know of .two sleigh-loads of pemican
being taken under it. Of some boat-loads being
taken I do know, from having received a letter in-
forming me of it. ’ L

JMyr. Sherwood.—Before we go into that, T will-
agk you, Sir, in what capacity you was at the bat-
tle of the 19th June ? .
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My. Pritchard—1 was there in the capaeity of
" a settler at Red River. e .
" M. Sherwood.—You was not in the service. of
the Hudson'’s Bay Company ? »

~Mpy. Pritchgrd—1 was not; I was a settler om
Red River.

Mpr. Sherwood.—Y ou was not then, nor are now,
in the pay of that company ? ,

Mpr. Pritchard.—1 was not; I am not, nor have
I ever been, in the pay of the Hudson’s Bay Com-
pany. , Sl :
M. Sherwood.—1 will now ask you, Sir, do you
know of any pemican ever having been taken un-
der this famous proclamation of Mr. Miles M’Do-
nell, and where and how much?

Mr. Pritchard—Yes, I do; a quantity was taken
from under my care at the post on the River Sou-
ris or Mouse River. Four persans, I belieye, came
to Brandon-house, but in the first instance Mr.
Spencer came, apd wanted entrance into the fort;
I asked in what quality he came, and he said as a
private gentleman, and I admijtted him. He stat-
ed he came to me on the subject of governor
M’Donell’s proclamation prohibiting the exporta-
tion of pemican, and that he had orders to detain
it. After some conversation, I made a proposi-
tion which Mr. Spencer sent down to. captain
M’Donell. A few days after Mr. Spencer and
some people came and demanded entrance in the
King’s name, to search for provisions, which were
intended to evade the proclamation. I wrote an
answer to this dewand, and put it through the

ickets to Mr. Spencer. He looked at it, and said
1t would not satisfy him. I did not choose to open
the gates, and I said that he must use force if he
wanted to come in.  Accordingly they set to work,
and cut down the pickets and entered the fort,
baving broken down the outer gate. When they
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~ entered, Mr. Spencer asked where the pemican
was, or Mr. House, who was with him, did. 1 said
that he had a good nose, and might find it out.
Myr. Sherwood.—Let me ask you now, Sir, was
You ;an eye-witness to this transaction from first to
dastr : -
Mr. Pritchard—1 was. 1 saw the whole of it.
It was an armed force that aecompanied Mr.
Spencer. They had guns with bayonets. ‘They
found ‘the pemican, after searching some time, and
took it away. There was about four hundred
bags of it; there might be more, my memory is
not very accurate, but I think there were about
four hundred bags, each bag weighing about eighty
four pounds. I have only hearsay knowledge of
Fort Gibraltar being taken by the - Hudson’s Bay
‘Company, but when I went to it, T found it in
possession of Colin Robertson. 1 also know of
Fort Pembina, but not of its being taken. Ikoow
of prisoners being taken from there, and sent -
down. There were Bostonnols Pangman, and
others sent, upon my application for burningmy
crops. I know that Mr. Holte was one that ac-
companied, governor Semple, on the 19th June,
to go and see what the party on horseback wanted,
I do net know that he was there fighting, he had
not much time to fight, he had a gun; the party
generally had guns, and some of them guns with-
bayonets, but not all. T know the hand-writing
of the late Mr. Holte. (A4 letter produced.) This letter,
addressed to myself, is the hand-writing of the
late Mr. Holte. :

The féllowing letier was then, upon motion of .Mé«,
Sharwood, put-in end read, : ‘
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| ~ Fort Dovaras, April®L4th, 181§
M. JOHN PRITCHARD,
My Dear Sir,

- I received your kind letter, but what you mean by
the explanations. you therein mention, may I be damned if I
know, as [ do not recollect having mentioned any thing of the-
kind ; however, my passions often bring ie into errors which 1
afterwards wish. were at the devil—so no more about it.  Mr.

~would not admit o

Lofty once in my presence injured vour character, but this I
¥ y fF' 1} y
b

and you of course must submit to be tried

by a court martial, where You, no doubt, will be honourably: ac-

. quitted, and Mr. Lofty replaced to answer for himself, Some
days ago, I got the command of the schooner which is to be fit-
ted out in man-of-war style, 1o be moored at the bottom of this
river to intercept the North-West Company’s canoes. -'So yor
see now that [ will be in my proper glory, and I shall not fait
to do.my best to give the North-West scoundrels a drubbing if
I can. . B I

A party of veterans are lately gone to Qui Appelle to take
M’Donell, if possible—but I fear they will be disappointed in
their views—they are under the command of Mr.. Lofty’s olio
of perfection, (Mr. Pambrun.) I should send you some few of
wy private property, were I not informed that you have receivs:
- ed-a supply. - You'll, ric doubt; soon be here, when we shall
over a good cup of tea, settle every thing—in the mean time I
beg you'll be kind to preseat my, compliments to Mrs. Pritch-
ard, and the gentlemen of your mess. Tell Dr. White that ‘I
should ' have sent him a letter long-agoif I had but had paper,
but as that has not been the case, he will I know readily excuse
me. S _ ' ’

: I am, my Dear Sir,

o ~ Your Sincere e
_{Signed) ST 0. HOLTE..
_ - Mr. Sherwood —Pray, Sir, who is meant by Mr.
Lofty in this letter? " : L

My. Pritchard.—Mr. Lofty means Colin Robert-
son.: 1did not see Mr. Holte fire, I think it impos-
sible, he was shot so saon. ~ The prisoner Boucher
certainly did all he could to save my life; when I
-was attacked I van round him, and, by that means,
-avoided being shot. : ‘
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M. Sherwood.~—You was brought, 1 think; yod
sdy to Fort William. Wheteis Fort Williami, Sir;
and how far off? .
Mr. Pritchard—Fort William is on Lake Supe-
“rior, and is about a thousand miles off. . It belongs
to the North West Company, and is in their pos-
session at present.. : o
Mr. Sherwood.~~Do you know; Sir; if that fort
was ever taken? I do not know, iny Lord, that
it is necessary that [ should go into evidence upon
that subject; I was going to shew the state of en-
mity existing against us in that instance; but
" Chief Justice.—There is enough shewn to prove
the malevolence that existed on beth sides.

‘The Honble. Wii. BACHELOR COLTMAN;
‘ Sworn: | '
Examined 6y éﬁe"ﬂildrnéys@encral'.

Alf. Coltman.—I wenht up iato the Indian coufi-
try in the year 1817, and to the place where the
_settlement at the Red River was established. I
never -made any survey of the distance which it
‘wds from Liake Winnipic, but I should think that
it was abont sixty miles, and having -about a souih
bearing from the nearest point, but, as to distance;
I can not ‘speak so positively. It was sitvated at

- thé -Forks of the Red and Assiniboin Rivers, which

I have geuerally understood to be in about 49°
.30/ porth latitude, and the Red River settlement
commenced at a short distance below the Forks.
Its longitude I.do not recollect, so as to speak
-with any degree of eertainty, but I should judg'e
‘it to be in between 90° to 100° of west longttude;
-my recollection, however, is very imperfect, but
I should think it had something more than 90 dé-
grees; it certainly had more than 80, and, accord-
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ing to my recollection and own idea, rather more
than 96. The Red River settlement was to the
west of the River Winnipic, to the south-east of
the Lake Manitoboh, and between ‘that lake and
the River and Lake Winnipic. Upon consideration
I should think, according to the best of my recol-
Jection, that its longitude must have been mearly
100° west. T have seen the great seal of Lower
Canada, and should know its impressions.

Chief Justice—There is no oecasion to examing
Mr. Coltman on that, they prove themselves; it
has been so decided.. 4

Two great seal instruments put in and read,—

(Appendiz K. and L.)
Cé'oss-e‘xdﬁinafz'on condiwtetf by Mpr. Sherwood.

My, Coltman.—1I have been at Fort Douglasy
and also at the spot where it was represented to
me that the affair of the 19t June took place. I
did not go farther north into the Indian country;
than into the Red River eountry, through the -
River Winnipic and part of the lake of that-name.
Itis certainly a matter of notoriety that the Red
River country, was formerly frequented®by the
French traders, that is, before the conquest by the
English, but I do not know whether Nouvelle
France was considered as taking in this ‘part ‘of
the Indian_ territory. _ ; ‘

Chisf Justice—1 am tolerably eonversant with
‘maps myself, but not sufficiently so as to say
whether this part of the country was or was not a .
part of Canada. I never understood, extensive as
were the limits of what the French called Louisi-
ana, that they spread so far north as this, nor.can
I say distinctly that it formed a part of Canada.
‘Relative to Nouvelle France it was never, I be<
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tieve, defined with sufficient accuracy to-enable te
to say what were its limits. If they have been, it
‘is beyond my knowledge. e
Attorney-General.—There is ofie tere question,
Mr. Coltman, which I will trouble you with,
-whether, as a magistrate of the Indian territory,
you acted at‘Red River in virtue of your commis-
‘sion under the'act of the 43d Geo. I1L.?.
Mr. Coltman.—Yes, it was in prosecution of my
duties ander the commission, that-I went into that
country,.and proeceeded to the investigation of the

difficulties which had occurred there. SR
CHARLES BELLEGARDE, Sworn,

Ezanined by théﬁ.dttomey’-Genera[,: through the me.
o _dium of an interpreter. -

Bellegarde~—1 was at the Frog Plains on the
19th June, @iid had been there some time before.
- I have a knowledge that governor Semple was
killed, but do not know on what day. I saw him
ihe same day that he was killed. I heard the firing
the day he was killed, and I saw him four.or five
h‘bdrs;%fare. I had no conversation with him a-
bout afattack. I never heard ‘any rumour aboeut

an attack. . Governor Semple was at my house.
I said, perhaps, the Bois-brulés might come, he
said they may cowme if they please, I shall g6 and
meet them. Governor Semple did not, nor did 1,
say’ any thing dbout their firing. He said if the
Bois:brulés come that he was not afraid; so far
from it, he said; « should they come, I shall go
¢ and meet them with one man and a paper.” |
did not see any comiing while governor Semple
. ' was with me, but four of five hours after I did see
about sixty cominig down on horseback. * T'have a
knowledge that they took three prisoners, a wo-
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Yoan-and two men; I difl not see them taken, but
they were brought to my house. I do not know
that they were brought to my house to be prison-
ers, but the Half-breeds brought them, ~Cuth-
bert Grant was there, but I do not know Whether
he took them or not. I saw Boucher there, and
Brown too, but he did not come with the sixty,
he came aftérwards. Grant and Boucher said they
had taken these persons to prevent them from
giving information to the fort. About fifteen to
twenty of the Half-breeds came first, and the re-
mainder afterwards. ‘When the first party came,
they unsaddled their horses. The latter party
came when the sun was low; it was late in the
afternoon. The party conducted themselves quiet-
Iy, and seemed peaceable. The first thing I heard
after they came, was two men of this party say,
the English were coming down after them, and
- they went immediately to meet them. When they
brought the prisoners to my house, they said they
would send them the next day to the fort, but they
did not say what was then to be done with them.
They assigned no reason why they would send
them. o ‘ '

" Mr. Sherwood~—~We do not wish to agk, Belle-
garde any qaestions. -

* JEAN MARIE MONDELET, Esquire, Sworn.
' Ei@fﬂz‘z'nedv by the Attorney-General.

N : SRR .
.. Mr. Mondelet.—I have seen Boucher before. 1
ama magistrate of Lower Canada, and in that'ca-
pacity, 1 saw Frangois Firmin Boucher, who made
‘a declaration before me, but not under oath. There
‘was no threat made use of, nor any promise of be-
nefit held out to Boucher, to induce him to make

g - v
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it. (The ﬂttamey-GeneraI was about prcsem'mo' &
paper to Mr. Mondelet.

Mr. Sherwood.—1 ob_ject to any évidence. bemo‘
.gone into relative to this papet, as it was a declar-
atxon ‘wade by the prisoner when in a state of 1l-=
legal diress.

ﬂtlomey General. --He Was in conﬂnemenf under
the warrant of a maglstx ate, which I shou,ld c0n-
sider tobe a letral restraint.

-~ JHr. Shcrwooa’ —In Orchnary cases 0ccurrmg in
the district of “that magistrate, it would uudoubt-
edly bea Fegal restraint that was imposed, but that
ung,er which Boucher was placed was illegal.” Mr.
Mondelet we know is a matnstrate, but though 4
‘magistrate, he had no nght to issue ‘a warrant to
apprehend Boucher for an offence commitied in
the Indian territory. We coatend thus upon ge:
neral prmc:p]es, relative to this pamcular warrant
a great deal mlgbt be said

Chuf Justice—Whatever warrant Mr. Mondelet
may have issued, there can De no questlon, he
thought at the time he was justified in issning
how far in domg 50 agalnat a pérson for an oﬁ'ence
,commltted n the Indian territory, he was: cgrrec‘t
in so king, may, 4nd doubtless will, - occasion
a divét®ity of opinion, according to: gﬁe ‘particular
consttuctlon given to the act of the 434  Mr. Mon-
delet’s conduct is mot to be called in questxcrn here.
It is not necessary at all to the case that it should
be. If, Mr. Attorney-Genexal, youc offer this paper
as evidence, let us know what itis to pxove ? Whaf "
is the object of it ?

. .ﬂllorney~0eneral —It is, iy Lords, a voluntary
‘declaration of the prisoner Boucher, made before
‘Mr. Moudélet, whom I pro&uce to prove the paper.

“Its contents, I lmagme, can not operate on the
‘question of admissibility, if I prove that it was ob-
tained in a legal and satisfactory manner; w hxc«'}
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¥ tisiteve I have done, as Mr. Mondelet has an-
swered the usual questions relative to inducements
or threats. v ‘ _ .

. Chief Justice—Then it 1s as a corfession you
offerit. T o
Attorney-General—I offer it, my Lord, as the
prisonier’s owh statement of what he knew of, and
what part lie took in; this melariclioly catastrophe
of the 19tt June. . : o
My, Sherwood. —And I oppose its beiiig received,
iy Lords, on thie ground that, at the time of mak-
ing this voluniary declaration, as it was called, the

" prisoner was iii a state of illegal diress, a state of
duress the most extracrdinary. Boucher was sent
down to MontreaPfor the purpose of being a wit-
ness, but by this warrant was most dexterously
taken out of the hiands of those whe had legally
brouglit kim, and made a prisorer, and so has
inost illegally remained to this day; whilst in this
state of illegal duress, lie miake this declaration,
most singularly called 4 voluntary declaiation. * I

"would dsk why was a magistrate dpplied to upon
this occasioni?. Why were not the judges of the
Court of King’s Bericli applied to; wlho could have
exercised the plehary powers which the {8 places

-if their hands. A legal warrant to commit Bou-
cher must come froni some person who was comi-
missioned for the purpose of hearing crimes and
offences committed in the Indian tefritory. Mr.
Mondelet was not s6 commissioned, his warrant
was therefore d piece of waste paper ; but though so
completely unauthorized, by it was this man com-
initted to gaol, and whilst under confinement by
virtue of this very warrant, he makes this voluntary
declaration, which Mr. Attorney-General offers as
evidence in the shape of a confession. Nothing
can be more explicit, in my humble opinion, than

- this act of thre 43d is; as to who has power to deal

m* '
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- with offenders in the Indian territory. The seécﬁ“ég‘
section of the act provides for the appointment of
magistrates to take cognizance cf offences com:
mitted in the Indien territories, in these words.
(Which section JMr. Sherwood read, vide the acty
Appendiz Py We here see that it is only the
magistrates appointed under this act, especially
and solely for the purpose of hearing -crimes and
offences committed in the Indian territory, whe
have power to cemmit offenders to'safé custodyy
and they have the power of doing so, but not the
ordinary magistrates of either province. 'Fe the
‘bringing to justice an offender, or peérsor¥ com-
mitting an offence, in the Indiap territories; it is’
indispensable that he be arrested by the warrant
of a magistrate duly commissioned to act in the
Indian territories, as well as within the limits' of
either of the two provincesy-or that he be taken
into custody in the Indian territories, and convey-
ed to the province of Lower-Canada, but there is-
no power vested.in the local magistracy of either
province to.ssue a warrant to take any man into’
custody for an offence committed in the Indian ter-
ritory. I therefore object to the paper being ready
upon t%‘ro’und that, atthe time of the examina-
tion in Which he made this voluntary declarationy
Boucher was in a state of illegal duress. ,

~ Chief Justice—~There certanly is a difficulty in
this case, - It strikes my mind- that the ordinary,
magistracy have not power to take cognizance of
offenders 1 the Indian territories, but that it is the
magistrates, specially appointed by the governor;
under the second section of this act, who alone are’
authorized to hear crimes and offences committed

- there. As there is a difficulty in it, I could wishy
ifnot indispensable to the case of the Crown, that_

the admission of this paper was not pressed, but of
that necessity you, gentlemen, are the sole judges.
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" Mr. Sherwood.—The officers of the Crown ap-
; eé;i"in‘g,sﬁﬁ to wish this paper to bemade evidence,
?ni,ay, I presume, offer additional reasons agaihst
it. If pot produced against us, we had no inten-
1jon to have shewn how illegally “we have been
dealt with. We have nointention of shewing how
the King’s counsel had been divulged by informa-
tions and voluntary declarations being given by
magistrates to the world, tothe high prejudice of
strict and impartial justice. Let us examine the act
extending the jurisdiction of the two Courts of the
two provinces, and the illegality of the duress un-
-der which' Boucher was placed, appears in a mo-
ment. Was Mr. Mondelet a magistrate, appoint-
ed by commission under the hand and seal of the
Governot, Lieutenant Governor, or person admi-
nistering the government for the fime being, of the
province of Lower Canada, to actasa ciyil magis-
trate and justice of the peace for the Indian terri-
tories ? Was Boucher ever taken before one of
these persons so appointed by the Governor, for
the purpose only of hearing crimes and offences,
and committing any person or persons guilty of
any cx‘:ime or offence to safe et_xsiody, 'in;‘.qlrde‘r ta
his being conveyed to the province of Lidwer Ca-
nada, to be dealt. with according to law? Wae
Boucher apprehended and sent to the province of
Lower-Canada, as a person guilty of a’crime’ or
offence in the Indian territory, and there delivered
into safe custody, for the purpose of being dealt
with according to law P In neither of these ways,
‘which T contend are the only legal ones, was Bou-
cher in confinement, and:theref%re, I sebmit, no-
thing can be heard of this voluntary declaration,
because, altheugh a magistrate of Lower Canada,
Mr. Mondelet was not a magistrate for the Indian
territory, -and had therefore no right to issue’a
warrant againsi Boucher any more than [ have.
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Aitorney-General—The construction given by
the learned gentleman to the act of 1803, may be
correct; butl do not think; when Boucher was
within the district of Mr. Mondelet, that if was ille-
gal, upon information made before him, to issue a
warrant against an offender, though his offence
was committed in the Indian territory ;- but put-
ting that point out of our consideration, we can
certainly ask Mr Mondelet to relate whatever he
may have heard the prisoner say upon the subject
of this melancholy affair. } -

Mr. Sherwood.—1 beg to differ with the learned
Attorney-General, and to say that as all Mr. Mon-
“delet’s knowledge upon the subject was obtained
by means of this illegal warrant, it is not compe-
tent to him to examine Mr. Mondelet as to what
Boucher did or sajd before him. It wasan illegal
duress under which he was placed at the time
Mc. Moridelet obtained any knowledge or infor-
mation from Boucher. A justice of the peace in
England, by force of a statute of Henry VIII, might
arrest for a particular crime committed without the
realn of England :  But that did not apply to Ca-
nada; and even in thatcase, the justice could not
take an_examination under the statutes of Philip
and Mary. Ak
Solicitor General—I. do not think that so appa-
rent; by this act there are two ways in whicE a
- person having committed a crime or offence may
Ee brought down to Lower anada to be dealt
with according to law and, non constat, at the pre-
sent moment, how the prisoner was brought before
Mr. Mondelet, for the question has not been put.
Chief Justice—This act makes it the duty of
the person administering the government of the
sister province, ¢ to appoint persons, wheresoever
“ resident or being at the time, to act as civil ma-

% gistrates and justices of the peace in the Indiag



183

¢ territories or part of America not within the limits
&'of either of the provinces of Canada, or of any ci-
¢ vil government of the United States of America,”
and authorises such persons so appointed, « to
& actfor any of the Indian territories, as well as
# within the limits of either of the said provinces,
s either upon information faken or given within
¢ the said provinces of Lower or Upper Canada
4 or out of the said” provinces in“any part of the
“ Indian territories or parts of America aforesaid,
“ for'the pur‘po'sg only of hearing crimes and of-
“fences. and  commitfing any person or persons
- & guilty of any crime or offence to safe custody, in
“‘oider to his or their beinig conveyed to the said
s« province of Lower Canada to be dealt with ac-
« 'cq;"'ding'”tq' law, and ‘it shall be lawful for any
‘ pérson or persons whatsoever, to apprehend and
-% convey or cause to be safely conveyed with all
© % conyenient speed to the province of Lower Ca-
¢ nada any person or persons guilty of any crime
% or offence there to be delivered into safe custody
“for the purpose of being dealt with acording to
“law.” The construction we are- disposed to
give 1o this clause opposes the reception of the
examination of the prisoner before Mr. Mondelet ;
relative to the proving it in any other way, I could
wish, as very considerable delicacy hangs over it,
that, aiter so much evidence has been produced, the
Crown would not intreduce a doubtful confession,
There is difficulty about it, ard, unless considered
as essential to the case on the part of the Crown,
I could wish that it should nat be pressed upon us.
A magistrate of this, or the Lower provioce, I
think, can not act in cases of offences committed
in the Indian territory: It should, according to
onr idea, have been by the commissioner, and
not by the magistrate, that the examination should
have been taken, 1o enable you to prove it on the
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trial of the prisoner. There is no occasion ta
ask Mr. Mondelet any questions as to how he ob-.
tained his information, and I do hope that it will
not be considered necessary to attempt to prove.
this very doubtful confession. . S

The Aitorney-General hereintimated that the Crown
would not wrge the proof of the confession. The
Chief Justice added that he had ahvays taken the con-
struction of the act to be, that the local magistracy of
the two. provinces had not power to act under this sta-
tute. any more than a magistrate had to commat for of-
fences out of his quwn dustrit.  Whether the judges
below held the same opinion, he did not know. . ,ﬁr
Mondelet requested permission fo mention that in the
course he had adopted, he had been sanctioned by the
- written opinion of the judges of the Court of .K\Zn s
Beneh for the district of Montreal, contained in g let-
ter addressed to héim. = . o
. 1t being past ten o’clock at night, the Court was,
adjourned till fo-morrow morning, the jury being

placed under the care of Mr. Sheryff Ridout.

Tuesday, 27th October, 1818,
PPESENT AS BEFORE.

Attorney-General—Before I call the witness §

ropose to examine first this morning, I wish tg
geg your Lordships® attention for a moment.—
Something drdpped on a former day from his
Lordship, the Chief Justice, relative to the terms
in which the gréat seal instruments from the Lower
province were worded, as well as your Lordships’
construction of that part of the act of 1803, which
provides for the delegation -of authority to the
Upper province, in relation to such cases in which
the governor of Lower Canada shall think, and
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declare, justice may be more conveniently admin-
istered in this than in the sister pravince. If [
correctly appreciated your Lordships’ opinion, it
was that you had no - jurisdiction” excepting over
offences particularly specified in the great seal in-
struments from Lower Canada, and that the ge-
neral transmission thence of the offenders, (under
the general expression introduced into those docu-
for trial in the Court of this province, for
all crimes and offences by them. [zerelo_ﬁre commitied
in the Indion territozies, was not sufficient to enable
you to take cognizance of offences not particularly
set forth in them. Not wishing to take the persons
by surprise against whom I had received informa-
_ tions, although I had given a similar interpretation
jn my own mind to the statute to_that which your
Lordships’ ‘opinion has sanctioned, I had, under
the general words of the instruments, prepared in-
dictments for offences not particularly specified,
against a number of persons, some of which have
been returned by the grand jury true bills; 1
wish, therefore, to enquire of ‘the Court whether .
I understood its decision correctly, when I consider
it to be that, except for offences particularly spe-
cified in the great scal instruments against any
offender, your Lordships can not take cognizance,
although those documents may transwit the offend-
er here for trial generally for all offences hereto-
fore by him committed in the Indian territory ?
Chief Justice—The decision of the Court ‘was 2
decision intimated to the bar, that this statute
ought to receive from us a rigid construction, and
that, in so construing it, we felt that it was only
over the particular offence specified in the great
seal instrument of the Lower province, that our
right of taking cognizance was extended. On
looking at the act it will, in a moment, be manifest
that only a special extraordinary jurisdiction is ex-

w
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écnded to us, the original, or ggneral extracrdi.
pary jurisdietion, being given to the Lower. pro-
vince, and it is only through the sister province
- that we are empowered to exercise any authority
under this act. . It is a delegated power which we
have to exercise, and, according to our view, i
extends no farther than to the particular offence
specified in the great seal instruments. We.do
not consider that the instrument can giye us
neral power over the offender charged: rave
committed any particular offence, though it clothes
us with every requisite authoyity to take coghizance
of the offence specially set forth theren. We
consider that the crime which it 1s intended we are
to try must, in conformity to the act of the 43d
Geo. I1L. be precisely. set forth in the jnstruments,
which, by virtue of the great seal of the Lower
province, give us the special extra jurisdiction;
and as it i3 only a s’peciaf jurisdiction that js con-
ferred, we consider 1t is necessary that the instru.
ment delegating it be rigidly construed, and under
that impression we intimated it to be our unani.
mous opinion that tve can only take cognizance of
the offender under a great'seal instrument trans.
mitting an oflence for trial here, in relation-to the
particular offence so set forth. According to our
construction, w2 have to do with the offender no
farther than he stands connected with the particu-
lar offence which the great seal instrument trans:
mits here for trial. In the Lower province the
same view does not appear to have dictated the
drawing up of the various documecnts; however,
with that we have nothing to do. '
Attorney-General—I thought, my Lords, that it
would be proper for me to mention the subject to
the Court, that I might be confident I did not mis-
apprehend your Lordships. The act appears to
have been understood in the Lower province dif:
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ferently, and upder the authority of the instrij.
ments transmitted to me with’ the informations
i,{gaiﬁs_'t the o,zﬂ:enclle‘rs, 1 had pregargd, and handed
o the g_ran’d jury, a variety of indictments, some
of which have been returned true bills. No far-
ther step can of course be taken relative to them,
after I'so clearly comprehend your Lordships® un-
animous decision, nor will any farther indictments
be prepare‘d, ‘except in cases over which your
Lordships feel you have cognizance, according to
ihe right constrijction you have been pleased to
declare the great seal instruments oaght to receive.
I may perhaps be permitted to add, that the views
of your Lordships are precisely those which I'had
myself taken of the act, but under the general
clause of the great seal instruments, I thought it
my duty rather to forego. my own opinions than
incur, by possibility, the censure of causing any
delay in the proceedings of the Court, which, had
your Lordship’s views been different, would have’
occurred, had I deferred acting upon the informa-
tions, till becoming acqinainted with the construc-
‘tion you would give to the act, I should be able,
as k am now, to judge to what extent your Lord=-
ships consider the great seal instruments to dele-
gate the power of putting upon their trials, the
various persons accused in the informations trans-
mitted from Lower Canada. -
" Chief Justice—There appears io have been a
great deal of inattention in drawing up these do-
caments, for which it is not we who are to ac-
count. As far as we feel that authority is dele-
gated to us by them, we will exercise it, by tak-
ng cognizance of offenders whose offences ars
sarticularly specified therein, but beyond that we
o not feel justified in going - ‘
| Solicitor-General.—The words relative to the
/fgyapsmissipn of power or jurisdiction to this pre=

N
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vince, are in the parenthesis in the act. Just be,
fore the parenthesis commences, the act reciteg
that every offender may and shall be prosecuteq
and tried’in the Courts of the province of Lower
Canada, and the parenthesis gives, under the con-
ditions or circumstances therein stated, similar
power to the province of UR er Canada, and |
magine it must bg from ‘this circumstance that, iy
the Lower province, they have copsidered, in
transmitting the offender, that they haye delegated
an authority-ta try all offences which he may be
accused of committing in the Indian territory. [
think it is the wording of the third clsuse which hag
occasioned the great seal instruments to be drawy
up as they are, the law advisers there ,cpgsid_eripg
that in transmitting the offender generally, the
Court may proceed to try him for all offences.

* Chief Justice—It certainly appears to have beeg
50, but it is manifest from the third section, that
to give us power to take cegnizance of the offend.
er, the offence must be transmitted, because itis
of the offence that the Governor is to declarg, by
~ any instrument under the great seal of the pro.
vince of Lower Canada, that justice inay be more
convenicntly administered in the province of Up:
per Canada. The words of the act are, to my
mind, so clear, that I am at g loss to account how
any other construction than that which we have
given could have been put upon them. ~The words
of the section, under which the manner of giving j-
risdiction to us is set forth, satisfactorily state of whit
it is we have to take cognizance; the declaratia
of the Governor, Lieutenant Governor, or persa
administering the government is to be that, fron
some circumstance connected with the erime o
offence, or the local situation of some of the wit
nesses for the prosecution or defence, justice may
be miore conveniently administered; in relation 1g
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such zréme or offence in Upper than in Lovwer Cas
nada, and he having done so, then that every such
offender may and_sha!l‘ be tried in the Court of
Upper Canada, in the same Court and in the
samie manner, and be subject to the same punish-
- ment, s if such crime or qﬂ,bncq had been committed
within the province. It is in relation to.the crime
or gffence, tEat the Governor of Lower Canada, by
an instrument under the great seal of the province
may transmit hiere for trial, that we have a right te
take cognizance of the offender, and ia relation to
that only. That is the unanimous view which we
hayg from the beginning taken of our power unde#
this; act. S

L.OUIS NOLIN, Stwors,

;ﬂnd examined by tl‘zei.ﬂttomey-Geneml, tﬁrougﬁ the
medium of Mr. Smith, as interpreter.

“Mr. Nolin.~-On the 19th day of June, 1816, I was
at Red River at the Forks, at Fort Douglas. I
saw a number of persons on horseback and armed-
pass the fort: Thoese that were in advance I did
not see pass, but the last part of them I did:
There were perhaps about thirty or forty of them.
I can not say ezactly; but  they appeared to be
about that number, looking at them from Fort
Douglas. They were a part of the same band
who were in advance, and they went by two or
or three minutes after the others. Iknow that Mr:
~Semple went out with about twenty-six or twen=
ty-eight persons. I did not go, I was not asked
to go, and there were from fifteen to twenty others
left in the fort. I do not know that these refused
to go, or that they were asked to go, nor can I
say whether Mr. Semple forbid them to go. We
heard shortly after some firing, but it blew so
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har& we could not Hear_ it lvér'y' 'dist'iilc’t']'j at g
fort. Idid nothear governor “emple say why hé
went out with the men. I had been out that day

 with Mr. Semple a distance of three leagues, ang

he told me, whilst we were togethier on the road,
that if the Métifs should come, as wé had beey
told they would, and they went by the fort quietly,
~ 4nd did rio mischief, they should not be iilterrupt.

ed. [Idid not sée Mr. Semple and his party im:
mediately on their going out, but I saw them at
a distance of two or three arpents* from the fort;
they appeared to me to go as they pleased,
without being mn any particular order; they Were
dispersed about. I staid in the fort on the nhigh
of the 19th June, and on the next morning, I saw
a number of dead bodies breught to the fort, and
amongst them that of governor Semple; it was
tvounded in three places with balls, but there wers
no marks of lance or spear wounds. -Cuthbert
Grant came the next day to the fort, with a nun-
ber of persofis; and amongst them the prisoners,
Brown and Bouchér. I hdd no great ¢onversa
tion with Grant. - He appeared to wish to make it
appear like an engagement, and that Mr. Semples
party had commenced it. I ¢an not, of my owr
£noWledg‘e," say whether Paul Brown was in the
éngagement or not, but I was told by several per-
sons that hé was fiot. Some of the pérsons whe
came the next day to the fort with Grant, weré
dressed in' clothes which had been worn by somé
. of the people who went out with Mr. Sémple:
One Lacerfe was dressed in the ¢lothes of one of
governor Seniple’s people. Cuthbert Grant did
not tell me that they had any plans for taking thé
fort, but the next day he told ‘me he must havé
the fort, and that the people’ there must go away.

* An arpent is one bundred and eighity French fest, -
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I did ot see Mi. M’Leod thiere, that is at the fort;
but two days after I saw Mr. M’Kenzie there, and
Cuthbert Grant met him, and they conversed to-
gether, but as I understood very little English, it
was only here dnd there a few words that I made
out. Mr. M’Kenzie told the Métifs that Eord Sel-
kirk was coming with soldiers, and that he had no
right to their lands; that they were theirs. 1 ask:
ed Cuthbert Grant to let me go and help to bury
- the dead, and he told me 1 niight, that there would
be no danger then, but that he must have the fort
the next morning, as his young men would wait
- noslonger. I do not recollect the exact words,
but that was nearly what he szid. '
Attorney-General—-Did Cuthbert Grant, Paul
Brown, or Francois Firmin Boucher, say any thing
to you that they had come to Fort Douglas, or to
the Red River country, with an intention to at-
tack it? o
. M. Nolin.—No, neither of them told mé that
1t was for - the purpose of attacking it that they
had come: down., Before this time [ know we .
were in fear of an attack. I know that some In-
dians came to the fort, and told us that we wers
to be attacked, some of thie Indians offered assist-
ance, they told us that from the appearances at
Portage des “Prairies, they were apprehesusive we
should be attacked, and they feared Mr. Semple
might be killed, and that they would ive us their
-assistance to protect him. Mr, Semple, however,
refused their assistance, not thinking that they
would attack us. When Mr. Setmple and kis par-
ty went out, I heard no orders given by him, or
any body else, about attacking this party. When
they went out I can not think they had any inten-
tion of‘attacking‘ the armed party at all events,
but I should believe he merely ‘went to see what
they wanted and who they were.
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E €ross-examination conduited by M. Sherivood.
Mr. Nolin—1I did net see Mr. Semple’s party

at the moment they went out, but § saw them at

a distanice of about three arpents from thie fort;
‘They were armed with guns, of which-some had
bayonets. I have been three years in the service
of the Hudson’s Bay Company. 1have heard talk
of Mr. Miles M’Donell’s proclamation.

M. Sherwood.—Do you know of the taking and
razing of Fort Gibraltar; and the seizing of the
North-West Company’s pemican by thie orders of

“the late Robert Semple? .

JMr. Nolin—1 have héard of pemican being
taken, but do not myself know of it. I do know
that Fort Gibraltar was taken, but I can not say
that it was by the orders of Mr. Semple; or that
it was not. o - '

- M. Sherwood~~Do you know that it was razed
down to the ground, the pickets torn up, and the
whole floated down in rafts to Fort Douglas,

which was Mr. Semple’s residence ? ‘

Mr. Nolin—1 know that it was floated dows
to Fort Douglas. - - A

Myr. Sherwood~—Were there pickets in the raft
withit? o
. JMr. Nolin.—Yes, there were pickets in the raft:
I heard that Fort Pembina was taken, but I dg’
hot know that it was, for I was not there, butl
did hear that it was. taken. There were some

.ziet:es of cannon in Fort Douglas on the 19th Jue;
but I do not know of any on the other side of the
tiver, nor do I believe. there were any. Lacerte
passes for a Half-breed, and he was; whea he
came next day to the fort, in the clothes of some
of the party who went with Mr. Semple on the
19th, but I did not see either of the prisoners
Wearing their clothes. I went during the next
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yéar with ¢oloniel Coltmn to shew him the locality
‘of the battle ground. - AR

 DEFENCE.

Mr. Sherwood-—Before we cominence our de=
fence; I would remind the -Court, that there had
been-a desultory argument relative to which was
~the “actual state of this country, or rather, as_ it
was in a state of private war, as to what the effect
of this state of warfare would he upon this affair
of the 19th June, supposing for a moment, that it
should be clearly proved that the prisoners parti-
cipated in the quarrel; to the full extent which the
indictment charges them to have done, and I had
_then the honour of submitting that, under this
sstate of warfare, that which would be murder here,
was not murder there. In arguing from the 43d
of the King, 1 was rather taken by surprise. It
was urged.that the act made some change in the -
jaw; that, however, is not the case. It makes no
cchange whatever; I am aware that in construing
acts of parliament, the intent of the framers is always
¥o be taken into consideration, but we must inva-
riably refer to the words of an act for its intention,
“‘and where they are clear, there is no occasion for
‘any other assistance.. It is only where ambiguity
attends the ‘act’ that it is necessary to call in"the
aid of ‘explanatory rules, and about ‘this statute
there is mone, its title is ‘exceedingly clear; its
reainble also, and its enacting clauses equally so.
At is simply entitled, « anact for extending the ju-
% risdictron of 'the Courts of justice;of the provinces
“ of Lower’and Upper Canada, to the trial and
% punishment of persons guilty of crimes and of-
T _
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« fences” within.certain parts of North Americs;
¢ adjoining to the said provinces.” Upon refer-
ring to the body of the act, we s?lallv find that these
¢ certain places” are places which, besides being
without the limits of these ._grovinces, or of the
jurisdietion of any-of their Courts, are also not
within the limits of any civil government of the
United States of America.. So much for the places,
now for the description of, or what is to be un-
derstood by, crimes and offences - commiited in
these places.: The act declares that, from and
after the passing thereof, « all offences committed
« within any of the Indian territories' or parts of
« America, &c. shall be, and be deemed to be,
& offences of the same nature; and shall be tried
4 in the same manner, and shall be subject to the
¢ game punishment, as if the same had been com-
 mitted within the provinces of Lower or Upper
« Canada.” What then, I ask, was the state of
that cointry? It was in a state of war; if it was
not a private war, it must be treason that has
-been committed ; but we say, and without appre-
‘hension of being- contradicted, that it was a pri
vate war, and had nothing of a treasonable nature
init.. As these offences committed in the Indian
territory are, by this act, declared to be of the
-same nature as if they were actually committed in
the prevince where they are to be tried, I would
ask; what, (if by possibility’ we can. contemplate
'our happy state éfP tranquility being changed into
a similar state of conflict to that which has deso-
. Jated this Indian country, I would ask, what in
that case would be the offence committed? = the
~ answer is imniediate ;-it would be a great riot or
contempt, it would, it must, be this, and nothing
moie; for it hkas been so decided by the highest
authority in the case of the barons of England : it
was the decision of the highest authority, for #
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was the decision of the parliament itself.  If all
crimes and offences committed in the Indian terri-
torry are declared to be offences of the same na-
ture with similar offences committed in the pro-
vince where the offence is tried, we say. the law of
England is the law of Upper Canada, and in -the
¢ases of the lords marchers,: and the greal barons
of England, Gloucester and Hereford, which are

recisely similar, for it is expressly set forth in
f[ale that they « killed many,” and “ burnt hou-
« ges,” ‘and committed ¢« divers outrages on both:
« sides,” yet it was only a great riot and contempt ;
and so again the decision upon the Earls of Nor-
thumbeiland and Westmorelaad’s, case, which
read from my Lord Hale in Nerman French, is
gkecisely the same, and so I contend it must be
ere. 1 again repeat that the law of England is
" no way altered by this act of the 43d Geo. IIL " It
is merely an act to extend the jurisdiction of the
Courts of the two provinces of Capada, and: the
duty of the judges under its provisionsis to ad-
minister the laws 1n the sanie manper in relation |
to offenncés committed in the Indian country, as if
they were committed in their ordinary jurisdietion.
Following up the authorities I have produced;
even hére where we have a representative of the
sovereign, commissioned by himself, the offence
charged in this indictment could not be murder;
it could only, supposing a similar state of the
country, be a great trespass, a great misdemeanor,
" such asa riot. But in the Indian country, against
this mock-sovereign, this self-dubbed governor,
‘this Sancho Panza tragedy-king; (who, however,
is given up by the Crown officers,) it was nothing
but the legitimate exercise of the right of self-pro-
tection and defence against an audacious assump-
tion of lawless power. In that country, in brief,

a®
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I: say it-could not be murder, if the Crown -ever
sustained its indictment. e '

- Attorney-General.—I beg, my Lords, to say that
if that is the opinion generally held in-that coun-
try; the soorer it is corrected the better. The
sooner the better that, by the decision of the law
it is made known, that killing a man in ceol blood
is murder, in any ‘part of his Majesty’s dominions,
however remotely situated. But it does, my Lords,
appear to me a most singular line of defence which
the gentleman proposes to adopt, to justify one
aggression by another, and to assume that, from the
~ frequency ‘of illegal acts, therefore there is no law
to which the: culprits are amenable, or that the
crime is different there to what it would be if com-
mitted here.” With great submission, my Lords, I
do conceive it to be a most unusual and irregular
defence, and one that ought not to be allowed by
the Court. - : e ' :

- Chief Justice—We shall not allow the - defence
te be takesr farther back than the circumstances
completely connect themselves with - this case, - by
shewing a ¢ontinued state of aggravated feeling,
which at any moment was likely to- lead to such
fatal results at the termination of this melancholy
affray of the 19th June. - The situation of the par-
ties and local circumstances must, in every case,
be taken into consideration, and these, being in. no
two alike, can not therefore be governed by any
absolute rule. As the concomitant circumstances,
so must be the mode of conducting cases; what
then is proposed at the present moment?—The
defence of these prisoners is (say their counsel)
that the unfortunate state of the Indian country,
from the two great hostile parties carrying on
‘trade with the natives being involved in constant
quarrels, had worked up the servants of each par-_
ty to the highest pitch of exasperation, which shew-
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-ed itself in acts -of aggression’ upon the ‘persons
-and property of -each other whenever they met.
-'That, under this state of mind, these two parties
:met on the 19th June, and that, from the private
-svar which existed between the rival traders, the
anfortunate loss of lives does not, though even
-proved, constitute a charge of murder, but of riot
.and contempt. T think they are entitled to prove
-this state of things, if they can, from any particu-

lar Eeri‘od without any interruption, but, as I have

before pointed out,-it will be for the jury to say
- whether it does diminish the erime in that way.
They say this would be the case.in England un-
~der similar circumstances, apd that, a fortiors, in a
~country where there is no administration of the
+Jaw, they are the more entitled to shew those cir-
-cumstances”which evince that a private war did
-exist, and therefore that, though lives were lost,
-yet the taking .them was not murder, and as itis
-of murderithey are accused, they must be aequit-
- +ed. -TPhe .argument they found upon general
.principles of law, which are not altered by the act:
»of 1803, :but.exterded m their administration by
-an.extra jurisdiction being given to the Courts of
+the twe provinces of Canada.

. Attorney-General—I beg leave, with respect-to
‘the state of private war which has been drawn in-
to-this case, to say that, although it should even
+be proved to -have.existed, I consider it as no de-
fence. The charge against the prisoners is 2
-charge of murder, and 1s to be tried here, though
committed in the Indian territory, in the very same
way that a charge of murder in the Home district
-would be tried. ~ As to any alteration-in the law
“being- introduced by the -act.of 1803, my argu-
-ment was mistaken if it was supposed that I con-
sidered that statute as doing so. I never did consi- -
.der that.it was the statute of 1803, which declar-
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ed the opinion, that in that country there was ne
law but the law of the strongest, was an errone-
ous opinion. I never did think that before this
act it was competent to any person to say, that
there was no Court having power to try for offen-
ces of the blackest dye, which were committed in
that territory, or that its population were amena-
ble to no law but that of uncontrouled passion,
My idea of -this act was that it was necessary tg
enable offences committed in the Indian country
to be removed to the provinces of Canada far tri-
al, and having, under its authority, put upon their
trial persons charged with offences at which hu-
man- pature revolts, 1 did not expect that we
should be told that what is murder here is not
murder at Red River, or that a justification was to
be set up, founded upon the frequency or extent
of the practice. I differ with the learned gentle-
man, and assert that murder in the Indian territo-
ry is the same crime that it is here, and we are
not destitute of instances where, under this very
act, the murderer has been tried, cenvicted, and
has received the sentence of death, though 1t is
not yet executed. In that case we did not hear
that the country, being in a state of private war,
presented any palliation of the crime. [ am, it s
true, very ignorant of the nature of this quarrel, but
there can be no circumstances connected with it
that can justify the taking of the lives of fifteen or |
twenty persons. Or, admit as a ground of defence,
that the country was in a state of private war,
what if, in these quarrels, the property, or even
the lives, of individuals attached to the North-West
Company had been taken, (though I know no io-
stance of either on the part of the Hudson’s Bay
Company, and certainly not of taking lives,) is that
to justify the taking revenge into their own hands,
and exterminating a peaceful colony ? This very
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argument demonstrates the actual necessity of act-
ing upon directly contrary principles, and shewing
to the persons trading into those countries, that
«crime is of equal tuppitude in the Indian territo-
ries, and subject to the same punishment, asif
.committed in a more civilized part of British Ame-
rica. - Admit the principle contended for by the
Jearned gentleman, and, if aggressions have been
committed by the colonists, they may defend them-
selves by saying, that a year or two before this fa-
tal destruction, they had been driven away. Bat
it is a defence that can not be allowed to either
party. It is not possible that it shall be permitted
to plead, as a justification for crime, that acts of
aggression have been committed against you, or
that a robbery having been .committed on your
property, you may therefore, when in sufficient
strength, take the lives of the depredators, and
justify it by alleging that a private war exsisted.
"No, certainly not. We have put these persons
upon their trial for murder. The character of
murder is well known. It is wilfully, and of ma-
lice aforethought, taking the life of another, and -
life being taken, the law always implies that it was
of malice aforethought, and leaves it to the accus-
ed to justify the act, by convincing the jury that
it was in defence of his own life, or of his proper-
1y, and not from malice. But did we ever hear
of this principle being carried the length of say-
'in§ that, as a defence for taking the life of an indi-
vidual, I will prove that ope, two, or three, years
before, [ had my property taken, or one, two, or
three, months, for the time does not at all change
the argument, and that I was apprehensive I might
have it taken again? Certainly not, nor can it in
the present. case. Admit this principle, and it s
of no use that the parliament of Great Britain have
wisely and humanely passed the act which enables
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the provinces of Canada to prosecute and try in
their Courts offences coramitted in the Indian ter-
ritories, in the same manner as-if they were com-
~ mitted within the province where the same 1s tri-
~ed. It is in vain that the offender is subject to the
same punishment, or that offences committed in
the Indian territories are declared to be offences
of the same nature, as if committed here; for,
once admit this reasoning, and private war must
exist for ever, as there is no power capable of con-
trouling its fury, or of awing, by the dread of the
vengeance of the law, those feelings of hostility
and malice which are the legal characteristics of
murder. ' .

JMr. Sherwood.—T¥ shall trespass but a few mo-
ments on your Lordship’s time, in reply to the
learned Aftorney-General, who has very unfortu:
nately mistaken my argument, or rather been
answering one of his own. It was not a position
of mine that the crime of murder’could not be
committed in the Indian territories by life being
taken from malice aforethought, but my position,
founded upon:the high ‘authorities, of my Lord
Hale, and Sir William Blackstone, was that, if
the state of the Indian country was similar to that
1 referred to in the annals of English history, in
the reign of Edward the first, when a private war
existed between the Lords marchers, then, al-
though lives were lost, it was not murder, but 2
great irespass. - That was my position; a-posi-
tion which I repeat, and one 'to’ which instead of
‘a brilliant display of elocution- upon the nature
of murder, and the power to try individuals per-
petrating it in the Indian territories in the Courts
of the provinges of Canada, which has never been
questioned by me, Ishould have been gratified in
hearing something like argument supported by
law. No doubt byt murder can be committed iy
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the Indian territories. .No doubt but a Bois-brulé
;nay coimmit murder, and be tried under the act.of
the 43d of the King. - No doubt but Charles De
Reinhard has been tried in the Lower province and
has been convicted, and received sentence of death
under this very act. But, I ask, is that the case
of these persons P or, is there any analogy between
the case of the berons of England, who, with their
adherents, killed many, and committed divers out-
rages, burning houses on both sides, and which,
being done in a private quarrel, was adjudged to
be only a great riot and contempt, and the com-
mission of a solitary murder, by De Reinhard, after
travelling fifteen miles with the individual? Is
there any analogy between the case of De Rein-
hard and that of two parties, belonging to great
rival commercial establishments, meeting, and. in
the heat of ill blood; a battle taking place, and
lives being lost? Is the solitary murder of an in-
dividual, by those who were armed when he was
wot, to be compared to this meeting of two armed
parties belonging to: companies, the extent of
‘whose resources are second only to the East In-
dia Company, which may be called a pation, or
more properly nations, ' of itself, having armies at
command, consisting of hundreds and thousands
to support its interests when they come in col-
lision, whose passions were exasperated against
each other so that, like the barons of England,
wherever and. whenever their adherents met, they,
with the consent of their respective heads, pro-
ceeded to outrage and aggression ? My argument,
1 am confident your Lordships will recollect, was
directed solely to this point, that, owing to the
~ eircumstances of this country, ‘arising from the
Pprivate war carried on between the great commer-
cial rivalries, the prisoners, even if a participation
in the affray was brought home to them, had not
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committed murder, and 1 founded this argument
upon the analogy between the case of the prisonerg
and those decided in the fime of Edward the first,
Against this principle of law, supported: by the
high authorities I produeed, net a single. authority
of faw has’ been urged. The. learned’ Attorney-
General, contenting himself with exercising an
adroitness of elacution, has not, in laying his case
before your Lordships and the-jury, exhibited a
single evidence that this, which T call a private
war, did not exist in reality. It will be my duty
fully to establish this point by testimony, and I can
have no doubt of the application of the solid legal
distinction I have taken.” 1 shall fipst call Mr. John
Pritchard, a gentleman who has been examined
on the part of the Crown. o - o
Mpr. Pritchard was sent for, but was nof found i
attendance. : . :
- The Attorney-General then stated that there was
~another witness that he was desirous of examining
before the defence was gone into, ard probably by
that time Myr. Pritchard would be in atlendance. -

o ‘.'LQUIS'BLO'NDEAU.V, Sworn,
‘Ev’amned by the .ﬂ'llomey»‘Gen’éml, by inierprg{ég.:

. Blondeay.—In 1815, T was at FortCumberland.
i was there during the winter, and also in Apri
of that year. Duncan Campbell commanded at
that station at that time. I'do not koow if it was
J oﬁn Duncan Campbell, but it was Duncan Camp-
bell. ' ‘ -
Mr. Sherwood—I should, before the -examina:
tion of this witness is pursued, like to ask him a
question or two touching his religions impressions,
whether he is a Christian or 4n infidel; for 1.have
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strong doubts of his having any idea of the nature.
of an oath. ‘What. religion are you of Blondeau?
Have you been baptized ? T
Blondeau~Yes, 1 have. .1 am a Christian.
(M. Sherweod said that, after that answer, he should
not.gppase the witness being ezamined, he would nos
put any.additional questions upon the subject of the
religiaus belief of the witness. o

Ezamination resumed by the Attorney-General. .

Blondeau—1In April, 1816, I was at Fort Cum-
berland, and Campbell did invite .us to fight the
people of Red River. It was about the 10th or
15th of April, The invitation was to drive. away
the English. 1 refused to go, for I had no inter-
est in going, and so I told Mr. Campbell. It was
said that it was to defend our lands we were to go,
but I said I had no interest more than others in
the lands, and did not wish to go. I know that a
party of Half-breeds did go, among them was one
Vasseur, Vassal, Deschamps, the brother-in-law
of Bruce, one Boucher, not the prisoner, and one
Morrison. I believe Morrison was English, but
he was one of our people, and they were all that
went, as I recollect, except one M’Kay, son of
Alexander M’Kay, I do not know his Christian
name. I remember that he went. Before they
went away, Mr. Campbell told them to take great
care when they got to Red River that they were
not taken by the English, and if they were attacked
by them, to mind and begin with the heads or the
. principals, because he said they must have the
principals or their heads. It wasin French that
it was spoken, and the words made use of were—
“ Il faut absolument que vous commencez par .les
$ princtpaur, ef que nous ayons les chefs, ou leurs
% tétes.” Mr. Campbell particularly ‘mentioned
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sovernor Semple, and Mr. Robertson, as the per-
sons whom ;he must have, or their heads. He
.owed them a grudge, as he was formerly a clerk
.of theirs, -or -under them. ~This party set out
armed with guns, pistols, and dirks, or shor
“hangers, (coufeauz de chasse.) They set out in
- April from ourfort. Six or seven of our people
-went, and they went away upon the ‘ice. ‘I have
not seen M’Kay since. I have seen another per-
son who has. I did not afterwards see any-of those
who left Fort Cumberland, but some of our peo-
ple belonging to" other departments saw them or
some of them. I have not heard the prisoners
speak of what they did at the ‘battle. I have not,
seen Cuthbert Grant since the 19th June, 1816.
1 saw two people at Fort:.Cumberland who spoke
of the affair ' ’
M. Sherwood.—Y ou must not tell us :what they
said to you. C
Blondeau—The general conversation at that
time ‘was that our people were going to assist in
- -he destruction of the English.
Attorney-General.—That is the case-on the part
of the Crewn. :
 JMr. Sherwood—I have no questions-to put to
Blondeau. The.course we shall take in:the de-
Afence will be to read the proclamation of Mr. Miles
‘M’Donell, and from that period up to the moment
-of Mr. Semple’s going out to .meet the  party on
-the 19th June, we will prove a continued series
of aggressions committed by -the party to-which
‘these persons:who lost their lives belonged. The
sproclamation we ‘wish to have read as it is our first
‘piece of evidence. (It was accordingly read, see
Brown and Beucher’s trial, p. 133:)
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HENRY FORREST, Sworn,
Eé:amz'ned by Mr. Sherwood.

M. Sherwood—~Do you know Louis Blondeau;
~and is he, to your knowledge, in the service of
the Hudson’s gay Company ?

Mr. Forrest—I know Louis Blondeau, and I
should presume that he was in the service of the
Hudson’s Bay Company, but I do not know, or anr
not positive, that he is under an engagement at
present. . : N
- Mr. Sherwood—Do you know, Sir, that he wag
lately in gaol at Montreal, and why he was teken
out of gaol? . '

Mr. Forrest—I know he was in gaol, and that
he was taken out to be brought up here. =

Mr. Sherwood.—But you do not know whether
he is actually in the service of the Hudson’s Bay
Company at present. R
-« Mr. Forrest.—1 have no positive knowledge that
~ he s, but I suppose he is, because the Hudson’s -
Bay Company advance money from time to time
for his support. He was taken out of gaol, as I
bave said before, to be brought up - here as a wits
ness.. He was put into gaol for debt, by the a-
gents of the Hudson’s Bay Company. Their rea-
son for imprisoning him was that he was going to
desert, or to leave the province; they had reason -
to apprehend that he was. I have every reason
to believe that he is a very honest man; his only
fault 1 believe to be. that he is too much given to
liquor, but, except that, I consider him to be a ve-
ry honest man. The reason for putting him into
gaol was, an apprehension that he was going away
without settling his accounts. I know of no other
rezson. 3 : p
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- JMr. Sherwood.~And does that conduct corie:
spond with your idea ofa very honest man? Do
you think it is very honest to be a drankard, and
an absconding; fraudulent debtor?

Mpr. Forrest.—1 certainly do got call it an ho-
wourablé.trait of character, but;-except for his be-
ing giveti to liquor and not paying his debts, I cons
siger Blondeau to be a very good and an honest

servant.
JOHN M’DONELL, Esqufr‘e,' Sworn,

Ezamined by Mr. Sherivood.

Mi. M*Donell =<1 know Louis Blondeau weli,
¥ have known him for upwards of ten years.- He
~ was formerly i my service. T was then belong-
ing to the North-West Company, but do not now.
Blondeau has not the best of characters, he was
very much addicted to liquor, and 2 man in whom
‘1mplicit confidence could not be put. I would net
givée him implicit belief on his vath; he was alto:
gether such 2 man as I would not have in my ser-
vice if I could do without ‘him. I certainly would
" not have hin in my service if I éould dispense with
him. From my residence in the interior for a num-
ber of years, I am well acquainted with the man.
ners and customs of the Half-breeds, and they do
occasionally paint themselves; their habits are
very like those of the Indians, They mingle con-
stantly with the Savages, and hunt and fish like
them ; they are not accustomed to ‘cultivate the
ground, but live generally by the chase. Some of
the greatest chiefs are among the Half-breeds.
« JMr. Sherwood—1I would ask you, Sir, is their

ainting themselves an uncommon thing, or does
it indicate an hostile disposition? a manifestation
of going to war? :
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JMy. J°Donélli—By no means uncommon. ¥
have seen them very generally painted. It is ot
at all uncommon to see them painted, and is no
proof of hostilities being intended. I have seenr
them constantly painting and decorating them-
selves at their toilets. _ R

Chief Justice—The object of this testimony is
evident ; it is to counteract the effect that their go-
ing disguised and painted might have, if it was not.
an usual practice in that country to do so. Mr.
M’Donell says it is a common practice, and not ar
indication of any hostile intention. Are these Half-
breeds like Indians in their manners and customs ?
or do they attach themselves to the white popula-
tion? Are they, Sir, like Indians? o

Mr. M’ Donell—The major part are like. Indi-
ans, and they paint like the Indians. Some of the
most powerful and greatést chiefs are among the
Half-breeds. : I

Mr. Sherwood—We have heard a great deal
about this party being armed, will you tell us
whether that is a common practice in the Indian
countries, or is ita necessary precaution? -

Mr. M’ Donell—On any and every voyage and

" journey in that country some of the servants car-
1y arms, and sometimes even . the whole of them
do, and I consider it necessary that they should do
'#0 to defend themselves, and to obtain provisions.
. Mr. Sherwood—How. long, Sir, did you reside
in that country ? o .
. Mr. M’Donell—I have resided” there npwards
of twenty years. . . .
Mpr. Sherwood.—And from your knowledge of
that country, do you consider it necessary that
the traders with the servants, should carry arms
for their personal defence, and for their subsis-
tence ?. ‘

Mr. M Donell.—I certaitﬂy do, both for their
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personal defence; and as.a. protection against wild
beasts: As means of obtainin ﬁ provisions it is ab-
solutely indispensable that - they carry arms. |
have been frequently in danger from wild beasts,
and found it absolutely mdlspensab]e to my per-
sonal safety to go armed.

“JMr. Sherwood.—It is, Sir;-an unusual thmg in
that country; for the Indians and Half-breeds to
give what is called « a . whoop,” or do they doit
only when they are going to war ? are there other
sorts of whoops besides war-whoops ?

M. M’Donell—It js very common to the In:
dians and Half-breeds to give the whoop, and it
is by no means confined to their going to battle.
It is habitual to them to do so. 'The whoop they
give on all occasions-is like the War-whoop, and 1§
so very common thathardly two get on horseback
without giving a little whoop: . .

* JMr. Skericood—Then hearing thls Whoop glven
is not. an alarmmg clrcumstances, a stire presage of
war’and hostilities?

- JMi. M’ Donell, --No, qunte the reverse. I have
frequently given it myself, and if you go into an
Indian v:llage you will hear every boy giving it.

Mpr. Sherwood —~Will you; Sir; tell us if spears
aml bows and arrrows are common arms; when
the Indians and Half-breeds go on horseback ? ‘

Mr. M’ Donell. --Speals, and bows and arrows
are as familiar to the Half- breeds and Indians as
fowlmg—pleces are to us. '

Mr. Sherwood.—Did you, Su, ever know the
Half breeds and Indians to go on horseback arme
ed with muskets ?

Mr. M’ Donell.—1 pever did. 1 do: not believe
that muskets are ever carried by the Half-breeds
on horseback; but spears constantly are; also bows
and arrows. 'They are the customary arms they
earry when riding. - ‘ v T
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Myr. Sherwood.—Did you ‘ever hear of the Half:
¥reeds carrying guns and bayonets? T do not ask
you whether you ever saw such a thing, but did
you ever,hear of it? e
Mr M’ Donell—Certainly I never did hear a
}veport of their riding armed with muskets and
bayonets, indeed I consider it as next to an impos-
sibility that they could do so, on the spirited horses
that they ride n that country. '

Cross-examination conducted by the Attorney-General,

_ Jttorney-General—Did you, Sir; ever see Cuth-
bert Grant in that country, or was he accustomed
to paint himself like an Indian? . =

Mr. M’Donell—1 never saw Cuthbert Grant
in that country. e e ,
. Attorney-General—Mr. Grant, I believe, was
the son of a partner of ihe North West Company.
Did you, Sir, ever see the son of one of the part-
ners paint himself like a Savage ?

. Mr. M’Donell—Yes, I have known many sons .
- of partners paint themselves; it is by no means
uncommon at their sports. . . .
. Attorney-Gensral—Did you ever see forty or
fifty Half-breeds riding together and painted, with

peaceable intentions? o
Mr. M’Donell—I never saw s6 large a party
riding together painted. Inever saw forty or fifty
riding together. . . e
Atiorney-General—~In what manner do the Half-
breeds generally live? are they not superior in
their habits to the Indians? - . T
My M’Donell—A great many live as the Sa-
vages do. A few of them are employed as voya-
geurs.. When the engagés are scarce, they are
attached to the parties, and act as servants and
tanoe-men: . ‘
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Attorney-General.~=When they are so employed; -
do they paint and preserve the habits of Indians >
Myr. M’ Donell—No, not when they are so em-
Poped o T
Attorney-General—How long is it, Sir, since
you was in the interior ? e
" Myr. M’ Donell—It was in the year 1814,that §
was there. -

Mr. JOHN PRITCHARD, Sworn,
 Examined by Mr. Sherwood.

M. Sherwood.—Do you, Sir, believe that the

prisoner, Mr. Boucher, saved your life on the 19tk
June, by his exertions? = -
- Mr. Pritchiard.—1I do believe that the prisoner,
Mr. Boucher, did save my life on that day, for had
1 been alone I believe that one Deschamps would
have taken my life. I think now, that if Boucher
had not interfered, Deschamps would have killed
me. I have no doubt of it | :

JMpr. Sherwood.—You are acquainted with the
hand-writing of the late Robert Semple, I presume,
will you look at this letter, and say whether you
believe it to be his writing ?

Mr. Pritchard.~—This letter is in the hand-writ-
- ing of the late governor Semple.

.- The following letter was then read upon motion of
JMr. Sherwood. - '

- ‘ Forr Douvcrss, T4th April, 1816.
Dear Siv, .

I have received your several letters, butas I trust
we shall so shortly meet, I think it needless to enter upon their
contents. There have been thoughts of removing Fort Daer,
but that measure has been postponed. It may be well, however,
% bring down the doors and windows, and whatever moveable
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Waets ‘Gur ‘ehemies might carry off. - 1 wish all the stores of the
North-West Company, brought down here. They have seized
‘our goods in Peace River, and we must try to have - few things
to balance the account. ‘ _ \

Mr. M’Leod’s services will be useful in esmimg down with the
‘colonists and stores.  You know his zeal. ~ St. Germain ‘can re-
‘main with a few men until 1 determine what is to be done with
Pembina. 1 shallorder the bearer of this, to go by the way of
‘the two Jower boats, t0 see in what situation they are. From
‘his report you will jadge of what is necessary to be dore, and
act accordingly. The upper boats [‘'understand are in safety.
In other points T trust to your judgement. Do what you think
best -for the general interest, and rely upon finding in me a man
who:judges from intentions.

- 1 am, Dear Sir,

- Yours sincerely, . .
(Signed) , ROBr. SEMPLE.
M. Jorn Privcmarp, ' . ‘

Perbina.

H

Mr. Skerwood.—The letter, I perceive, is ad-
dressed to you. Pray, Sir, what was your situa=
tion ;m"th ‘the Hudson’s Bay Company at that
iime: o s :

JMr. Pritchard—1 can not say that I held any
'situation with that company. I was rendering -
them some services, but without pay or reward:
I will, if required, tell how I went to that country:

Mr. Sherwood—It is not necessary.  You, L
dare say, know Mr. Colin Robertson, and can
prove hrs hand-writing. Look at this letter, and
say if it is in his hand-writing. S
_ M. Pritchard—It is the hand-writing of Mr.
Colin Robertson. S

The following Tetter was then read upon motion of
JMr. Sherwood. ‘
Lo Gisravrar, 20th May, 1816,
Gentlemen, » ‘
 Having heard with pain that the men under yout
tommand were surprised and ki;en by a superier force of the
°
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Torih-West Company’s. I beg leave to inform you that every’
thing here goes on well. - ‘

We sent off Cameron cn the 18th for Jack River, from thencd
he proceeds to York. . | ,
- Take courage and endeavor fo. inspire your men with the
same sentiments. oy ) v

1 am in possession of the North-West Company’s fort and the
governor has put Fort Douglas in an excellent state of defence,
and we are defermined to dispute the ground by inches.

Tnform me by the bearer the real situation the unfortunat¢
event has placed you in; and thke caré in delivering your de-
spatch to this Indian, that you are not discovered by our oppo-
nents.

God bless you all,
Yours faithfully,

(Signed) . COLIN, ROBERTSON.

You may read the letter to your men, and tell them to give
no credit to reports of any kind, until you hear from govemor
Semple or myself.

(Signed)’ : C. R

Mr. Sherwood—Colin' Robertsori was a very
confidential servant of the Hudson’s Bay Company,
was not he a very active sérvant ?

- Mr. Pritchard—He certainly was an‘active and
confidential person; and so esteemed by his em-
ployer.. ,

Mr. Sherwood.—1I perceive’ Mr. Robertson ob-
serves that he was in possession of the North-West
fort. What fort did you understand by that?
the fort from which the létter is dated, « Gibral
tar?” : :

My, Pritchard—Yes, 1 did.

 Mpr. Sherwood—Who, Sir, was the Mr. Came-
ron that was sent off on the 18th to Jack River
and from thence to proceed to York ¥

Mr. Pritchard—1I suppose it was Mr. Dunca
Cameron.

_ JMr. Sherwood.—~Was he a partner of the Nortk
West Company, and what was he to go to Yok
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for? York Fort, I presume, on Hudson’s Bay;
not this town of York, I believe ?
" Mp. Pritchard—Jack River is on the route to
Hudson’s Bay, and Mr. Cameron was sent there
on his way to Europe as a prisoner. -
- M. Sherwood.—Do you know the hand-writing
of Mr. Miles M'Donell, and is this letter, under
date of the 24th January, 1817, addressed to Cuth-
bert Grant, in his hand-writing? :

Mr. Pritchard~1It is- the hand-writing of Mr.
M’ Dogell.

Attorney-General —It can not be read, it is no
- evidence, nor do I know that it would be in that
of Cuthbert Grant even.
" M. Sherwood.—We wish to read it, as shewing -
the opinion of certain persons relative to this affair
of the 19th June, and the jury might, from the
idea of Cuthbert Grant’s innocence, make such in-
ferences as they think proper relative to the other
persons charged. If, however, the Court is against
me, I do not press the letter. '

The Court intimated that the letter was not evi-
 dence.¥ - -

* The letter produced was the Jollowing :—

Fort Doverss, 24th January, 1817.
Sir,

Having found here the Governor in Chief’s proclamation
of the 16th July, 1816, sent you by Mr. Johnston, one of his
lajesty’s justices of the peace, for the purpose of taking up and
sending to justice ali persons who have committed acts of vio-
lence in the country, I consider it my duty to send you noew the
s2id proclamation, being persuaded that you will, as a loyal sub-
Ject, exert yourselfto restore order and tranquility in the couniry.
Your humane conduct towards the people of the colony, after
the unfertunate events of the 19th June last, confirms me in the

good opinion I always entertained of you. '
The Earl of Selkirk, who has 2 perfect knowledge of all that
Yook place here this last year, harhours no enmity towards you,
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M. Pritchard:—I would wish to explain thatiy
the part of the letter of Mr. Semple in which he
alludes to the North-West Company’s stores being
brought down to. Fort Douglas, and speaks of
our goods having been seized, it related to g
quanfity of furs which had been taken from the
Hudson’s Bay Company, and conveyed to 2 North-
West fort. - T ‘ A

JAMES TOOMEY, Sworn,
Ezamined by Mr. Sherwood:

Toomey.—In the year 1814, I wasin the Indian
territory, in the Red River couatry, but not at
Fort Douglas. I know of the proclamation of
Mr. Miles M’Donell, I saw it stuck up at the gate
of Fort Daer. I do not know that 1t was an au.
thority to seize the provisions of the North-West
€Company, but it was to prevent them being taken

and 1 feel confident that he has no intention of commencing
legal prosecution against you. «

The partners of the North-West Company, in their discomf:
ture, endeavour by the circulation of falsebood to conceal te
truth, it is therefore your interest, as well as that of all those

- under your orders, to withdraw yourselves immediately [ron
ibose who are cerlainly driving you to -your ruin; if you will
come here I shall give you a clear insight into all that has taken
place till the present time, and 1 pledge myself you shall be well
yeceived, and freely permitted. to return in safety when you
shall think proper. '

Your most obedient servant,
(Signed) MILES MACDONELL, Governor.
Mz. CutiserT GranT,

T have a parcel containing some articles of cloathing, sentby
Mr. Daniel M’Kenzie for hie son Roderick, I would the ycung
020 himself to come here for them, be has nothing to fear:

(Signed) MILES MACDONELL,
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sut of that country. I do know of two trains of
3)emican'being‘ seized from the North-West peo-
ple. | was then in the service of the Hudson’s
%ay Company, and I know that the freemen who
supplied the North-West Company with pemican
had it just ready to start with, and were compelled
to-put it back upon the stages from which they had
Joaded the trains. This was done with the appro-
bation of the Hudson’s Bay people, and the free-
men were forbid to move it, and afterwards it was
taken out of their possession by the Hudson’s Bay
servants. . I'know alse of some boat loads of pemi-
can being taken between Fort Douglas and Bran-
don-house by the Hudson’s Bay people, who were
armed with guns which had bayonets, except per-
haps about two or three. here were about
twelve or thirteen persons engaged in seizing this
quantity of pemican, and they teok possession of
it by force. The North-West Company had been
accustomed to be supplied at this: place by the
freemen as well as the Hudson’s Bay people.
Attoiney-General —My Lords, the learned gen-
tleman, in conducting his defence, so as te avail
himself of the permissicn givgn him by your Lord-
ships, should, I think, bcgin at the other end,
and shew at the moment when this melancholy
occurrence took place, that the state of exaspe-
rated feeling existed which he is to trace without
interruption to. any date he may go back to. If
this case 1s allowed to be pursued, I shall deem it
necessary to produce “evidence to. rebut these
statements, and exhibit a serious, a most serious,
aggravation of this outrage. I shail deem it my
duty to shew, though very reluctantly, as unne-
cessarily extending our enquiries, which I contend
ought to be confined to the transaction connected
with the indictment, but 1 shall, if this course is
pursued, deem it my imperative duty to shew that
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a deliberate resolution to destroy this colony existed
as far back as 1812, indeed from the very moment
of its commencement, and that, in continuance from
that time down to the 19th June, when, for a se-
cond time, it was destroyed, hostilities were di-
rected against it.  That this armed force was not
sent for the purpose of their own defgnce, but ma-
nifestly to commit eutrages upon the ‘settlement,
we can not, [ think, have a stronger proof of, nor of
the determined hostility exhibited, than by the gen-
tleman beginning his defence by reference to amea-
sure rendered necessary for the protection of this in-
fant settlement, against the acts of hostility which
constantly threatened them. "I have confined my
examination of witnesses completely to this 'ért;x.x.ed
. part{, and have never left them.for one moment. If

the learned gentleman is permitted to pursue the
course he has commenced, I must rebut it with
testimony that will most seriously aggravate this
most afflicting catastrophe. e
" Jilr. Sherwood.—1 most distinctly stated to your
Lordships the line of defence I proposed to take
up, and, till stopped by the Court, I intend 19
pursue it. I stated that I intended to begin with
Mr."M’Donell’s proclamation, and I have done so;
and I'shall go grx'pbojing aggression upon aggres-
sion, down to this flagrant one of the 19th June.
I have the greatest respect for the abilities of Mr.
Attorney-General, but, I' humbly conceive, if |
began at the other end, I 'should begin at the
wrong end.” As to the necessity under which he
will be to rebut this testimony by proving earlier
aggressions, he may begin as soon as ‘he pleases,
and we will go back 'to very early periods when
the sturdy use of the shillela to these “ messieurs
voyageurs” was recommended, if they did not
quietly submit to the robberies which were medi:
tated upon their property. We will shew the
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spirit by which they have been constantly actuass
ed, namely, that of awing us into submission by
the free use of the cudgel apd shillela upon those
« messieurs voyageurs,” as we are contemptu-
ously termed by them on all occasions when they
obstruct our progress, and that, if we were more
strongly armed, and for once went in a party suoffi-
ciently powerful to repel aggressions, it was fore-
ed upon us by those persens who had constantly
recommended the free use of the shillela, and
not only recommended but practised it too.* '
" 'Mpr. Livius Sherwood.—The course, my Lords,
that we have taken is precisely that which we had
the honour of submitting to your Lordships, and
received your permission to pursue.  We say
* that the object of the proclamation of Miles M'Do-
nell was to deprive us of the means of subsistence,
and that, not being disposed voluntarily to ac-
quiesce in so arbitrary a course, and one as un-

* Allusion is here made to alefter in Lord Selkirk’s own hand-
writing, dated Sligo, in Ireland, 18th June. 1812, in which, in the
course of the instructions he gives one of his agents, he strongl
recommends, in order ¢ to teach ‘the messieurs voyageurs to
4 keep a respectful distance, that the shillela, the proper weapont
“ of the natives of Ireland, should be made a free use of.” Thig
letter also directs his agenis as follows, * you must give them
« solemn warning that, the land belongs to the Hndson’s Bay
« Company, and that they must remove from it; after this
“ warning they should not be allowed to cut any timber,. either
¢ for building or fuel ; what they have cut should be openly and
« forcibly seized, and their houses destroyed. In like manner
s they should be warned not to fish in your waters, and il they
“ put down nets seize them as you would in England those of o
# poacher. We are so fully advised of the unimpeachable va-
¢ lidity of these rights of property that there can be no scruple
¢ of enforcing them, wherever you have the physical means. '~
Thus early_were instructions given, which, as so evidently ap-
pears in the course of these trials, have been acted upon, wher-
ever they had the physical means, and to the spirit of-which every
measure of the Hudson's Bay people aund of Lord Selkirk’s a-
gents may be traced. ' ' -
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swarrantable as arbitrary, we were continually at.
tacked, and robbed of our provisions, after we
had bought them ; as well as deprived of the means
of obtaining them, by the freemen and huaters be-
ing prohibited to trade with us. We shall go and
prove that there was no other place but up this
river that we could obtain the necessary supplies
for our trade, and that we had always been ‘accus-
tomed to receive them here, and supply the trad-
. ers who came from below. .= We shall prove that,
in numerous Instances, we were exposed to star-
vation by the robberies committed upon us, and
that it became indispensable to our subsistence,
that we should send with our provisions a ferce
capable of protecting them. - That the usual chan-
nel of communicatien by the river being closed
against us, we were compelled to go by land, thusg
accounting at cunce for our being armed, on horse-
back, aln(‘lb in such numbers. We shall then ga
farther, and shew all these circumstances forced
upon us by the conduct of the servants of the Hud-
son’s Bay Company, and the seitlers of the colony,.
‘that we were, whilst anxiously avoiding all ap-
proach to them, attacked by them on the 19th
June again; that they came to us after we had
‘passed by them, and we contend that, although
fives were lost in the affray, those who took them
were not murderers. We consider that we have
begun at the right end of our case. We trust al-
so that the Court will permit us to prosecute it in
the manner we have chalked cut, and till stopped
by your Lordships, we shall not hesitate in our
course from any apprehension of the Attorney-Ge-
reral’s rebutting our testimony. '
 Chaef Justice.~—It certainly never was the inten-

tion of the Court to allow, on the one side or the
other, former aggression to be brought forward as
justifying aggression subsequently committed. We
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thought it right, under the circumstances of the
case, to allow to be shewn that, from the deter-
mined hostility existing between those parties, in
2 country uncontrouled by any law, there was rea-
sonable cause faor either to apprehend that where-
ever they met, the weaker would have to give
way ta the stronger party, and that therefore
measures of unusual precaution were resorted
to. It appeared to me and my brothers that the
object of the defence was.to shew that when this
horrible event took effect, it resulted- from one
armed party, perhaps armed under unusual cir-
cumstances, being followed by another, who hav-
ing arms at their command took them, and went
put, (as they say,) merely to watch the movements
of the mounted party, being apprehensive from ac-
counts which they had received, that this party
came to act in a hostile manner to the settlement.
In the state of mutual exasperatiou existing be-
tween them, murder ensued. It appeared us to be
fair to let it be shewn to the jury by the Crown,
that riding armed in numbers was not an usual
practice, and that therefore they might be -afraid
for the colony’s safety, after the information they
had received. On the other hand, as it was al-
lowed to the Crown to shew what they could to
sustain the setting out of this party with an hostile
“intention, it was thought to be fair to admit evi-
dence that, owing to the constant aggressions
which were committed in the attacks upun the
property and persons of the traders belonging to
these rival companies, it was necessary to proiect
their provisions by an armed escort. There was
also another reason for allowing the defence to go
back, and prove, or rather trace, the irritations
which existed, under the limitation of shewing a
continued and unabated state of exasperated feel-
ing, without cessation for that time which thelaw
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pr a jury would consider necessary for the passiong
#o cool, bec_ause, unless they were permitted to dg
50, the prisoners had not a fair opportunity of prov-
ing that which might,-in“the minds of the jury,
soften the crime whereof they are accused to man-
slaughter. If a continued irritation is attempted
to be sustaiped, it must be kept up without inter-
ruption, apd if at any moment it was perhaps dimi-
_nished, " yet that fresh aggression and outrage, nof.
only prevented it from completely coolipg, but re-
kindled all the angry passions, and again brought
into_play all the hateful feelings by which both
parties appear to have been actuated towards each
other. ' T
Soliciior General.--There is one observation madg
by your Lordship, which 1 would solicit permis-
sion to advert to. I before understood it to be the
opinion of the Court, that it was not only necessary
to prove that irritation had existed and was kept
up, (which it might be so unjustifiably as to form
the very spirit of the crime of which the prisoners
are accused,g but that there was no opportunity for
it to cool. I think that they ought not to be per-
mitted to shew that, owing to a number of shght
circumstances, it was probable that irritation might
exist, but that the force of them should be so power-
ful that it was impossible to controul the passions.
Chief Justice—And a slight circumstance of ag-
gression in itself, if often repeated, might have that
effect. I believe the judgment of the Court, is
perfectly understood ; therefore let the trial go on.

HUGH SWORDS, Sworn.
Ezamined by Mr. Livius Sherwood.

_ Swords.—1 was formerly, andin the year 1814,
in the seryice of the Hudson’s Bay Company, at
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the Red River country, being sent out there frou
Ireland by the Earl of Selkirk’s agent. I can nof
day thatl read, but I heard of, a proclamation is-
sued by Miles M’Donell. I do wot know that if
forbade the sale of pemican by the hunters to the
North-West Company, for I was not able to read
the proclamation. 1know of a boat-foad of pemi-
¢an beingseized by the Hudson’s Bay people. It
contained a quantity of ninety-six or ninety-seven
sacks of pemican, of about ninety pounds each. I
was one of the party sent to seize it by Mr. Miles
M’Donell, and the party who went were all arm-
éd, with military gun's, some with bayonets, and
we hdd aminunition, consisting of ball cartridgey
served ouf to us beforé we went to séizeit. [ know
that a camp was formed on the Assiniboin River;.
dnd cannon were planted to prevent the North-
West canoes from going down, and that this was
done by the orders of Mr. Miles M’Donell. On
this river the trade of the country is carried on.
Pemican is the meat of the buffalo mixed witly
grease, and forms, the general food of the traders
of the country, and if- the North-West traders
éould not get provisions from herey (the Red Ri-
ver country,) it was impossible they could carry
on their trade, as they depended on a supply fronr
here for other posts. .

Cross-examined by the Sclicitor General,

Solicitor General—Do you not always take arms
with you, when you go out in that country ?

Swords—No; some times I have been ont i
the Red River country without arms, but we ge-
mierally take them. , ,

Solicitor General-——Was there any thing, so par-
ficular in your taking arms when you Wfbt out af
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the time you have been speaking of, that you should
so particularly recollect it ? o :
words.—] know that at that time, we were

served out with’arms, and fixed ammanition; with
muskets and bayonets, and ball cartridge. I can
not say that all had theém, but I know that I had.
I never was a settler: I was a servant to the Hud-
son’s Bay Compary, and was stationed at Red Ri-
ver. I'left their service because I did not think
was well treated by them, and that I could better
my condition. ' )

Solicitor General—Do you krow any thing of
the removal of guns from the governor’s house at
the colony, to the North-West post in that neigh-
bourheod, or of other private proverty belonging
to the residents ? _ o .
~ Swords.—No, I do net. I heard afterwards that
they were moved, but I did rot see them moved.

Solicitor General—Did you never receive any
money from Mr. Cameron, Mr. M’Leod, or persons
belonging to their party, for your conduct? = =

Swords.—The gentlemen were good enough to
give me twenty pounds for wroughting in the ca=
noes from Red River to Fort William, and to
Montreal. ’ ‘

Re-ezamined 6y Mr. Livius Sherwood,

Swords—~It was in May, 1814, that the pemican
was taken. It was taken from the lodge of one
Poitras. The Hudson’s Bay people were trained
to the use of arms, but I do not know for what
purpose. They had been exercised some months
before the pemican was taken. It was nota boat,
but about a good cargo for a boat that we took,
and delivered to Mr. Miles M’Donell. Before sct-
ting off, I and the others of the party were called
up before the house of Mr. Miles M'Donell, and
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told we were going in search of provisions which
it was expected the North-West people were
sending down the river, and if we found any we
. were to take it by surprise if we could, and if not,
by force, but we were to take it in any way. Not
finding any that day, we ‘encamped, and Mr.
M’Donell joined us the next day. Mr. M’Donelf
had a field-piece with him, and a number of men
- armed, and the cannon was placed so as to com-
mand the river. When before Mr. M’Donell’s
house I was promised that if we took provisions [
should have fgur pounds, and others were promised
two pounds, and some different sums.

Mr. L. Sherwood—Well, go on with your story.
_ Chief Justice—~There is no occasion’; we have
the fact that it was faken and delivered te Mr.
Miles M’Donell. "It can be. of no consequence
how it was taken. It is evident they went pre-
pared to take it by force, if it was not given up
quietly. R ’ _

Mr. L. Sherwood—I will then only put one
more question. Had Mr. M’Dcnell any want of
provisions at that time ? ~

Swords.—Mr. M’Donell could not be in great

want of provisions, fox' it was fishing season,
WILLIAM WALLACE, Sworn,
Ezxamined by Mr. Sherwood,

Wallace.—1 have a knowledge of the. proclamas
tion of 1814, by Mr. Miles M'Dopell. I did not
read it, but I heard it read. I was then a servant
- of the Hudson’s Bay Company. I'know of a boat
load of pemican being seized, about 96 or 97
bags, and that it was seized by our people, under
‘the orders of Mr. Miles M’Donell. I know that
it was brought te eur fort, and stored there, for
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1 helped to carry it into ihé store. I know thal
there was'a camp formed on the Assiniboin River;
and that cannon iwere planted on'its banks. The
%ener'al conversation was that every thing wis 16

1 .

e stopped that was going down the river.
JAMES PINKMAN, Sworn;
Ezaniined by M. Sherwood.

_ Pinkman.—I1 was at Fort Pembina in the year
1813, and then, or in 1814, 1 saw a proclamation
posted upon the gate of the fort. ;_ '

7. Sherwood.—Should you know that- procla-
mation were you to ee it again? or do you know
what 1t was about?* . . ‘_
" Pinkman.—It mentions about the freemen and
all the Canadians giving up their catile to Mr

M'Donell. R S
Mr, Sherwood.—Were provisions forbid. or pre-
vented from going down the river, as they had
sisually done before that proclamation? .
Pinkman—I know they were forbid, but I d¢
pot that they were stopped. I know of some be-
ing taken by the Hudson’s Bay people, as I was at
that time a servant of the Hudson’s Bay Company.
Mr. Sheriood —What did Wallace, Swords,
yourself, and the cther servants, call Mr. Miles
M’Donell? | . . T ,
. Pinkman——We always called him governor, all
the servants did. In May 1814, I was sent from
the Red River Forks to go, with some others, to
Portage des Prairies, and from there we went to
Brahd%n-hfo'usé. * Mr. Spencer, whose orders we
were under; went to the North-West Fori near
that place, and asked for iheir provisions, their
pemican. 1 did not go myself with Mr. Spencer
to the North-West Fort. A few days afteiwards;
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4n answer was brought to a letter which had been
sent from Mr. Spencer to Mr. Miles M’Donell, and
e went to their fort. It was shut, and the gates
Were locked. - Wee cut down the plckets, and got
in that way, and then took the pemican and grease
and dried meat. There were about five hundred
bags of pem:can, and twenty-sm kecrs of grease
and some dried meat. Somie of the bags were
larger than others, but I dare say they might
weigh about ninety pounds a piece.

- Mr. Sherwood.#~That would be something more
than twenty tons, a pretty good prize, besides the
‘grease and dried meat. Do you know of the As-
siniboin - River being blockaded, so as to prevent
the North-West Company from brmamg their pro-
visions by the channel of this river?

. Phikman.=-I do know. that cannon were piaced
on the banks to prevent the boats passing, that be=
1onged to the North-West. Company. 1 know the
North-West Company have a great number of
forts and posts; and that there is “ho other way to
go to a good many ef them, than down the River.
Assiniboin.

Cross-egamination conducted 53/ the Aitorner -General;

Attorney-General~~Pray, who Went with you,

who was at the head of the party?

Pinkman.~=Mr. Spencer was our master. A
Mr. House also went, and three more, and I
There were only two and I, inaking altooether'
five.

Attornég-Gengral—Y ou perhaps do not know
that Mr. Spencer went with a warrant as a sheriff;
or to make some proposals about the provisions t 3

Pinkman~1 do not. 1 only know we went, and
be was our master.

Mr. Sherwood.~If it is pretended ihere was anj

»
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authority of that kind, we are prepared to resist
its legality. I thought with the goverror all these
mock officers had been given up. =
- Atiorney-General~To any remarks of that kind:
I do not think it necessary to make any reply. I
have neither given up or maintained the legality
of the powers exercised by the Hudson’s Bay
Company. On the abstract eharge of murder, at
present before your Lordships, I do not conceive
{ have any thing to do with them or their charter.
It was only merely as to a fact I asked the witness;
whether he knew in what capacity Mr. Spencer
went; when he told me that he did not, I was sa-
tisfied. Do you know how many men were in the
fort at the time you went there ? '

Pinkman—1 do not kuow positively, but I
think abc.t tén were in the fort, at the time we
got in.

- Attorney-General—And you were five, did they
make any resistance to you?

Pinkman~—No, except that they refused to open
the gate, and we cut the pickets, and got in that
way. ) .v .
Attorney-General—Did you serve out your time
regularly and fully,in the service of tlre Hudson’s
Bay Company ?

Pinkman—Yes, I did: I served my time quite
out, and then left them. , ‘

Attorney-General—Do you know William Wal-
lace ? did he serve his time out, or did he desert

whilst under a contract of service ? v v
" Pinkman~~1 know Wallace, and that he served
. his first contract out, for I saw it. He made ano-
_ther for a year, which I believe he did not serve
" out. I heard he did not, but that he left for bad
treatment he received. ,
 Attorney-General—Y ou know Hugh Swords, did
he break his contract? '
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Piitman—1 do not know whether ke did or did
not, I

- TOUSSAINT VAUDRIE, Swirn.
Eramined through the interpreter by Mr. Baldwin.

- Vaudrie—1 know the Indian territory well. I
have resided in it upwards of thirty years. Iknow
that the North-West Company were trading there
when I first went, and have continued to do so as
long as I have been there. They traded there before
I went, but I cani niot say for hot long. On the Red
River and Assiiiiboin, I know that they traded
long before the Hudson’s Bay people; the Hud-
son’s Bay traders have not been long in the habit
of trading on those rivers; only a few years. I
know by hearsay, and only in that way, of the
roclamation of Mr. Miles M’Donell. 1konow that
in the year 1814, a quantity of pemican arnd dried
meat was seized from the North-West Company’s
post on the River la Souris, because I was there.
at the time. It was taken by the Hudson’s Bay
people out of a large hangard, (tore,) and amount-
ed to full four hundred bags; there must have
been between four and five hundred bags, perhaps
full five hundred, taken away. Mk. Spencer came
to the fort, and knocked at the gate, asking to be
admitted into the fort in the name of the King;
and that #il the pemican, dried meat, atid grease]
should be given up to him. Mr. Pritchard, whe-
had charge of the post, refused to admit him, and
took me as a withess that he did so. He asked
Mr. Spencer to wait a little while, which he did|
and shortly Mr. Pritchard puta small billet throagh
the pickets to Mr. Spencer, who took it, read il
(witness being here asked if he knew the contents o
the riote, replied, I do _n:t,) and anstvered; ¢ th4
P ;

3
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i will not satisfy me,” and again demanded fo be
Tet in, which Mr. Pritchard again refused. Upor
this refusal the pickets were cut down with an
axe, and the party, headed by Mr. Spencer, en-
tered. They asked where the provisions were
kept, and Mr. Pritebard told them they might find
them. They then went to the store, of which
they broke off the lock, for it was locked up, and
they opened it by drawing the staples and break-
ing the lock; they took possession of the provi-
sions consisting of upwards of four hundred bags
of pemican, a number of barrels of grease, and a
quantity of dried meat, which afterwards was all
taken away by them. I was then in the service
of the North-West Company, and at the fort on
River la Souris at the time, and saw it taken away
to the Hudson’s Bay fort on the other side of the
river.
Mr. Baldwin—How long have you lived in the
Indian country ? ‘
Vaudrie—I have lived there upwards of thirty
years. ; ,
Mr. Baldwin—Did you ever see any vestiges
or remains of old French forts in that ceuntry?
Vaudrie~1 have seen several very old ones.
Mpr. Baldwin—Do you know that they were
{frequented bg‘ the traders in the time of the French
gove&mment !
"~ Vaudrie—I have heard a very old man, who
lives there, say that the Red River country was
itraded to in the time of the French government.
i Mr. Baldwin—Do you know of similar remains
{of forts on the Swan River, which is farther north
|than Red River ? :
| Voudrie—I do not. I never was at Swan Ri-
ver.
- Mr. Baldwin.~Do you know which is the most
- northern post which the French traders had ?
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Vaudrie.—l can not say any thing about it, for
i have lived the whole thirty years I have been in
tbe Indian territory, in the Rid River country. I
was never out of it, but to come below. I never
went higher up than Red River. .

Mr. Baldwin.—And when you first went to Red
River, the Hudsen’s Bay people did not trade
there, but the North-West Company did ?

Vaudrie—Yes, the North-West people did fre-
quent there, but the Hudson’s Bay people have
only come these few years back. ‘

Cross examtnation conducled by the Solicitor General.

- Vaudrie.~I do not know if Cuthbert Grant can
read, or if the Half-breeds generally do read. I
know one Half-breed who can read.

DONALD M’DONALD, Sworx.
Examined by Mr. Sherwood.

M’Donald—1 was formerly a servant to the
Hudson’s Bay Company, but was notin 1816, at
the time of the battle. ¥e have no occasion for
great guns in the chase. Ido not know if our
people learned the use of great guns. I did not
act as a cannonier. Michael Heden acted as such,
but I have helped to carry cannon from Red River
to different places. 1 kinow they were, in 1814,
placed on the banks of River la Souris, to prevent
the people belonging to the North-West Cowpany,
from going down the river. [also know that can-
non were planted at the Forks of Red and Assini-
boin Rivers, for the same purpose, and at the
time they were placed there, Mr. M’Donell said
they were to prevent the North-West from going
down. 1 know that some of the people were tak-
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en at Turtle Lake, and I saw two chests of fire-
arms brought to the fort, which it was said had
been taken frem the: North-West Company. In
the year 1814, Mr""‘% VI'Donell did not want provi-
sions, he had plemy I believe the proclamation
of Mr. M’Donell forbade the hunting of buffaioe.
The Half-breeds were very much dissatisfied with
this, as their only meaps of living is by hunting and,
fishing. Indeed some time -they have nothing to
live on but what the) hunt, as you can not always
fish. The winters in that country gre much longer
and colder than they are in Lower Canada. 'The
buffaloe are consequently very poor, and not fit to
cat in the spring. I do not knew exactly what the
order of Mr. M°Donell was, but I knov‘{ the Bcus°

blules were ver_y much oﬁ'ended at it.

MARTIN JORDAN; Suworr
Examz'ned by .Mr. Livius Sherwoocl.

Jordan.—In the year 1814, I was in the service
of the Hudson’s Bay Company, and came out by
way of Hudson’s Bay. I was stationed at the
Forks of the Red Rner, which are formed by the
River Assiniboin falling into the Red River. The
place was in possession. of Mr. Miles M¢Donell.
I know that cannon were placed there by his or-
ders, for 1 assisted in placma them. I know also
of the proclamation 1ssued by Mr. M’Donell and
the cannon were pla,ced for the purposc of  enfore-
ing the proclamatlon, and pleventmg the North-
West Compan) from taking provisions down the
river in their canoes and boats. I was ordered by
the governor from Hudson’s Ba), cgovernor Auld,
to obe) Mr. M Done!i and he dlrccted me to help
to put the cannon there, and to assist in stopping
the boats. I was present when provisions taken
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grom the North-West Company, were put into
the store at our fort. I was to have been one to
have taken it, but the party that set out afterwards
divided into several, and the provisions did not
happen to’ come my way, ‘so it was taken by an-
other party. 1 was at Fort Gibraltar when a
quantity of small arms were taken by our people
from the North-West Company and carried to our
fort. Iknow of Mr. M’Donell’s order for pre-
venting the hunting :of the buffalo, and that the
Half-breeds, - Indians, -and North  West people
were very dissatisfied with it. I understood that
the Hudson’s Bay people were not very well
pleased with it. [ was present at the taking
of Fort Gibraltar. Before we' went to take it 1
was called in by Mr. Robertson to his house, and
asked if I would like to know a secret, and I said
I did not know but I would. He then told me he
was going that night to seize on the fort belonging
to the North-West, called Gibraltar, and asked me
if I would like to go. 1 said yes, I would have
no objection. Shortly after we fell in, and marched.
up to the fort, and took it. ‘This happened in
March. We kept possession of it for three months,
and then it was destroyed. ‘We, who had taken
it, stood in defence of it, not wishing it to be pul-
led down, but governor Semple insisted upon its
being destroyed, and took Mr.-Robertson and me
prisoners, because we opposed it. All the mate-
rials that could be, were floated down to the Hud-
son’s Bay fort, and those that could not, were
burned, as I understand, a few days before the
battle. I can not positively say that it was just
before the battle, because 1 was not at it, but it
was the beginning of Juné that the fort was de-
stroyed, as I believe. [ was never but once be-
fore under arms myself, and then it was to way-lay
the North-West people at Portage des Prairies, a
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few days before Fort Gibraltar was taken. . I wag
on that occasion with Mr. Semple, but the provi-.
sions that were stopped  were taken. by Mr. Ro-
bertson. Cannon were preépared and horses were
kept ready to tackle, if there should be occasion.
The settlers, as well as the servants, were exer-
cised and trained to the use of arms, and on the
day we went to take Fort Gibraltar, we fell into
the ranks like soldiers. v S o

Mr. L. Sherwood—It appears by your state-
ment, that governor Semple always kept you pre-
pared to receive the North-West people, any time
they might happcen to be passing?

Jordan~-Yes, we, were always in a state of
readiness to receive them any time they came.

Mr. L. Sherwood—What did you understand to
be the object of your, or the people generally,
being trained to the use of arms ?

Jordan.~—I understood that it was to stop the
North-West trade by force of arms. I heard the
governor and Mr. Robertson say, that he would
stop their boats by force of men and arms. Inever
heard any orders that we were to fire upon them,
but that the trade should be stepped, and the na-
vigation, and that the men should be taken prison-
ers. I did not, very soon after the battle, see any of
the Hudson’s Bay people. I did some time after-
wards, but [ did not enquire who fired first. [
heard them talk generally of the battle, but not
as to who fired first; but in flying reports, I heard
that the Hudson’s Bay people did.

Mr. L. Sherwood—Pray, was Mr. Holte in
charge at any place ?

Jordan~No, Mr. Holte was not in charge any
where. '
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€ ross-ezamenation conducted by the Attorney-Generdl,

Attorney-General —You mentioned that you was
once under arms to way-lay the people belonging
to the North-West Company; will you fell us
what orders. were given you on that occasion, or
why you think that was' the object of your learn-
ing the use of arms ?

Jordan.—We set out determined not to come
back without satisfaction. Our orders were to get
all the North-West property we could, and if we
got it, that it should never be let return again.

Attorney-General—Did  you happen to have
heard of the destraction of property at Brandon-
house, and that the property belonging to a Mr,
Fidler, (his own private property,) had been just
before destroyed, and taken by the people you
were expected to meet ?

Jordan.—I had certainly heard that Brzndon-
house had been pillaged, and that a little proper-
ty belonging to Mr. Fidler had been destroyed.

Aitorney-General—Do you happen to know whe-.
ther Mr. Fidler had been in charge, or lived at
Brandon-house, some time before Fort Gibraltar
was destroyed P ’

Mr. Jordan~-1 believe that before the fort was
destroyed Mr. Fidler had lived at Brandon-house.

~Mr. L. Sherwood—Do you not know that the
colonists fired upon the Half-breeds in the year
18157 -

Attorney-General—TIf, my Lord, the witness is
permitted by the Court to answer that question.
I shall have to shew that in 1815, and long before
that period, there had been firing upon the co-
lonists.

Chief Justice—It appears to me to be not only
irregular, but idle, to desire to go imto evidence

. D
upon the subject. Enough has been shewn on
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#ither side to prove that the object w1th each par-
1y was to harrass the other, and i so doing that
they were in such bad blood as to be dlspesed al
most to exterminate each other.

Here the Grand J: ury entered the Cozlrt and return.
od a irue bill of indiciment (Appendiz J.) against

) as principals for slealmg

Georee CampBELL, | nine pieces of cannon be-

Joux Cooper, and ¢ longing 1o the Earl of

Hven BexNerMAN, | Sel:czrl af Red szer,

J on the 3d ﬂpral 1815,

AND

Dourcar Cameron,

Joux DoucaLp CAMERON,] b

Curnsert GRANT { as accessaries g’ore and

’ ter the fact
‘Wirriau Suaw, and | of!
Perer Panemar, J

The return b_eing made the trial proceeded.
ANTQINE LA POINTE, Sworn.
Ezamined by My. Sherwood ,Zhrouo'h the r}zterprelcz-,

La Pointe.~—I1 have resided fifteen years in the
Indian territory. I know that Fort Gibraltar was
taken by the Hudson’s Bay people, for I was in
it when it was taken; being then, as I am, and
have been for fifteen years. in the service of the
North-West Company. It was a part} headed
by Mr. Colin Robertson who came to take it, and
he i 15, as I believe, a servant of the Hudson's szy
Company. [ take him to be a servant of that
company, hecause he always staid at their fort.
{ was not at Fort Gibraltar when it was pulled
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down, and sent to the Hudson’s Bay fort. 1 know
that before Fort Gibraltar was taken, cannon had
been placed-at the Forks to prevent our people
from passing up and down the river. I know also
that Mr. Miles M’Donell gave orders to prevent
the Half-breeds and others from hunting buffalo.

Mr. Sherwood.—Ask him, Mr. Smith, if he knows
whether the Indians, and Bois-brulés were con-
tented or satisfied that they might net hunt on their
own ground. (Zhe guestion being put in French
by the interpreter was answered by the witness « 1ls
“ n’étoient pas trop coutens,” which Mr. Smith
translated,) they were not overpleased ; they were
dissatisfied. ' ' ‘ T

Mr. Sherwood.—That is not near so forcible an
expression as the one made use of by the witness.
Your Lordships will, I doubt, not, notice the an-
swers of La Pointe t my question. %  Ils n’étotent
“ pas trop contens,”™ a very strong and forcible ex-
pression in the Frénch language, remarkably forci-
ble; at least going the length of absolute aver-
tion. But I have no doubt your Lordships will .
remember the expression, as shewing that the or-
der was pever assented to, bui on the reverse,
created great discontent. v

Chief Justice—We haye been told so ifwenty
fimes. '

La Pointe—1] was not at the Frog Plains on the
19th June, but I was at Portage des Prairies*when
the Half-breeds set off to go to Frog Plains. I
heard their orders given, they were to go to Frog
Plains with. a quantity of provisions to meet the
canoes that were expected daily from Montreal
and Fort William. This was the only object of
their going, and I know of no other orders being
given when they started. They took two carts
loaded with provisions. They were ordered te

keep very far away from Fort Douglas. They
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¢ame to Portage des Prairies in boats and canoes,
but did not keep on in them, because they knew
the colonists would stop them at the fort, and take
their provisions from them, and the directions they
received was to go as far from the fort as possible
to avoid being seen by the colonists.

- Mr. Sherwood.~~We have heard 2 great deal a-
bout this party being painted and disfigured, and
their going in a warlike array. 1 wish to know
how Cuthbert Grant, who is represented to have
been their leader, was dressed P ,

La Pointe—Cuthbert Grant was dressed quite
in the ordinary way, much as I am at present.

M. Sherwood.—Was he painted or disguised aj
all? b B

La Pointe.—No, he was not. .

My, Sherwood.—Was there any preparation of a
warlike kind,®or '”"g'hy more than is erdinary to a
party going through the country ?

 La Pointe—1 saw nothing of any preparation
beyvoud what is usual to a party riding through
the country. ,

Mr. Sherwood.—~Do you believe they intended
to go quietly past Fort Douglas, if they were al-
lowed to do so? :

La Pointe—1 do think they would have passed
it peaceably.

Mr. Sherwood —Why do you believe so?

Ld® Pointe—It was their intention, and they
told their employers (bourgeois) that they would,
when directed to pass at a distance.

Myr. Sherwood —Do the Indians and Half-breeds
only paint when they are going to war, or on
other occasions, or is it a sign of war. -

La Pointe—It is their custom to paint on differ-
ent occasions. It is not a sign of war at all.

Jr. Sherwood.—You have told us that you saw
carts at the starting of the party from Portage des
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Prairies, did you see any cannon in them, or .vhat
did you see in them ?

La Pomte —I am quite sure that there were no
cannon in them, nor any thmo* except prov isionsy
(taurcauz.*)

Myr. Sherwood—W as there any way by water
from Portage des Prairies to the Frog Flains, ex-
cept that by Fort Douglas.

Le Potnie—There was not, and they could not
go that way for fear of being stopped.

Mr. Sherwood.—And witness, on his oath, be-
lieves they intended to pass Fort Douglas peace-
ably, if they had been permltted P

La Pointe. ——.f]ssurcment, je le crois.  Sur mom
serment, je le erois. Certainly, I believe it.. Upon
my oath, I believe it. ‘

Mr. Sherwood—Why do you believe it ?

La Pointe~—Parcequ’ ils Dont promis @ leurs
bourgeois. Because they plomlsed therr masters

1hey would.

Mr. Sherwood.—A better ground for believing
it could not be had, as is well known to those ac- _
quamted with the respect these people pay to
their employers.

Cross-examination conducied by the Attorney-Generad.

Attorney-General —What quantity of provisions
were taken; and how many carts were sent to car-
ry them ?

La Pointe—There were thirty bags put inte
the carts. 'Three carts went with it.

Attorney-General—Do you Lnow whether any,
and what part, of these ‘provistons was brought
from Qui Appelle?

* Taureaux is the name given to the bags of pemican, whick
are made of buffalo bidss. ‘
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. L Pointe—~] do not know whether any wag
brought or not. ; ‘
Attorney-General.—Do you know, or do you not
know, that the greater part of the pemican at Por.
tage des Prairies, had been taken a short time be-
fore by the North-West people from Mr. Pam.
brun? S : : )
La Pointe—No, I do not know that it had.

_ Attorney-General—Who was it that, at Po’rtage
des Prairies, told ihe people to take the provisiong;
and gave them no other directions than to avoid
the fort? )

Lo Pointe—1t wis our employers that said so;
¥ staid at Portage des Prairies. I staid there a-
bout seven or eight days, and then all the things
went down to the Grand Portage. The Bos:
brulés were not generally painted when they set
out. I did not hear of an attack being intended
to be made on the fort; or that it was proposed to
starve out the settlement:

'JEAN BAPTISTE ROY, Sworn:
Eromined 5y M. Sherwood, 6y inferpreter.

. Roy.—1 was not upon the battle ground upon
the 19th June, but at my own place, which it a-
bout @ league distant. I have lived there about
twelve years. In the month of March, 1 was at
Fort Gibraltar when it was taken by the Hudson’s
Bay people. I was there upon a visit, and not a3
& servant, for F am a freeman. They came about
‘eight or nine o’clock at night, and made prisoners
of a number of the residents. I do not know how
the prisoners were treated, for I went away direct-
ly. I had not far to go to my own place, only just
across the river. I went to Fort Gibraltar afters
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wards, and was present when the people belong™~
ing to the Nerth-West Company were sent away.
They were sent off by the Hudson’s Bay people.

J. B. BRANCONIER; Sworn,
E:iam‘z-fned' by Mr. Shérwood, by tnterpreter.

Branconier.~I know that Foit Gibraltar, situ-
ated near the Forks of Red River was taken by
the Hudson’s Bay people. I was there at the
time, in the service of the North-West Company,
and was wounded by one of the party who ook
the fort, but I am not sure by whom. The con-
duct of this party who took possession of the fort
" and wounded me was violent and outrageous, be-
yond any thing I ever witnessed, so much so, that
I was afraid we should be all murdersd by them,
they put pistols tc our heads; and threatened to
blow our brams out; indeed all manner of violence
and outragé was committed. I was takento Hud-
son’s Bay, but not as a prisoner, and from there,
. after stopping a long time, I was sent to England
by Mr. Robertson. _ ‘

Mr. Sherwood—Do you know for what reason
you was sent to England ? ,

Branconter.—No, 1 do not; I understood it was
something about Mr. Cameron, but I do not knaw:
I did not go willingly. I was liberated the ‘mo-
ment [ got to England. 1 never heard any thing
* there of any prosecution.

. Mr. Sherwood.—Do you know any thing about
Fort Douglas having afterwards been taken.
Branconier—No, } was gone before that hap-

?ened;



" The Honble. W B. COLTMAN, Sworz;
| Eramined by Mr. Sherwoad. ‘

JMr. Coliman—I last year proceeded into the In-

dian country as far back as Red River. I left
Montreal in the menth of May, at the time the
traders generally proceed to the interior ; the au-
thority under which, as well as the -objects for
which, our journey was undertaken, (for I was
accompanied by my colleague,) are pretty fully
set forth in the proclamation of His Royat High-
ness the Prince Regent, notifying the appomtment
of myself and Mr. Fletcher as commissioners, (see
Appendiz Q.) ‘
" Myr. Sherwood~-In the course of your official
duties, I presume, Sir, you must have had eommu-
nication with the class of persons known in the In-
dian territories by the appellation of Bois-brulés
or Half-breeds. Will you, Sir, be so good as to
tell us what character and rank they hold in so-
ciety, whether they are considered as Indians, or
as white people, what is their disposition gene-
rally, or what station do they fill ?

Mpr. Coltman.—I have certainly had occasion to
see the Half-breeds or Bois-brulés, as they are
generally called in that country, but it is a ques-
tion rather difficult to answor 10 what class they
particularly belong. The Half-breeds are of va-
rious kinds, but all the progeny of Indian women,
living with their mothers, but varying in charac-
ter, information, and manners, according to the
{eculiar circumstances in which they may have

een placed with reference to education and au-
merous particulars. Some have been sent to Mort-
real for education, and some even to England.
I believe these are not very far removed from
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white men, but the advantages they have enjoyed
are 5o various that they may be considered as fil-
ling every link from the character of pure Indians
to that of cultivated men, and I had occasion to
communicate with Half-breeds of véry different
classes, in the performance of niy official duties.
I was accompanied to the battle-ground of the
19th Jane; by some of the Half-breeds. I should
wish, however, to be permitted to relate my de-
. sign in going. An investigation inte that melan-
choly occurrence certainly formed a leading ob-
ject of my inquiries; upon my arrival at Red Ri-
ver it appeared, from the representations made by
numerous persons, that great doubt existed as to
who were the assailants, whilst, from every re-
presentation, the degree of culpability attaching
itself to different individuals, impressed my mind
very differently. 'The information geerally cor-
responded, though from various persons, in the
accounts of the numbers that were engaged, s
also of those that fell in the conflict on both sides,
viz: that of the Half-breed party there were about .
sixty or seventy on the plains, and that one servant
only was killed, whilst the party of Mr. Semple
had consisted of about twenty-five or six, of whom
- nearly the whole lost their lives. I'wished very much
to obtain correct information as to who were the
assailants, that the degree of culpability in this un«
fortunate occurrence might be ascertamed. Con-
sidering it my first duty te get information on that
point, I did go with a party of Half-breeds to visit
the scéne of this melancholy affray. I saw at that
time the impression of carriage-wheels; the im-
pressions were faint, but I did see them, and they
were pointed out to me as marking the route of the
party on the 19th June. o
Mr. Sherwood—Did any of the Hudson’s Bay
people accempany you to the plains ?
-3
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Jilr. Coltman.==Mr. Nolin and captain De Lori
inier, I believe, joined me from Fort Douglas.

Mr. Sherisood produced e diagram of the secne of
action, with tis vicinaly; and also shewing the route by
which the Half-breed party passed, which was handed
to Mr. Coliman, and his opinton being asked as to its
correctness generally : Lo :
i Jilr. Coltinan—The diagram-appears: to me to
‘e perfectly correct: as to- thé ground where the
battie was fought, and also of the vicinity, but I
can not speak so-positively as to-the track marked
as taken byithe horsemen and carts.  During the
time: that Jir. Coltman was examining the plan pre-
sented. by . Mr. Sherwood, the Crown officers had been
occupied. at another; which had also been sketched on
thé spot, by -a gentleman connected with the Hudson's .
Bay. Company: - .=~ . - o
... Mr..Sherwood.—Did the parties agree as to the
route taken? - U ‘ :
. - Mr., Coltman.—They did generally, but not en-
tirely so.. . - »
- M. Sherwood intimated that he had' no- objection to
Myr: Coltman’s receiving . the second diagram .at. the
the present moment,.and comparing them, as, of there
was. any difference between them, he could point i out,
and decide which was a correct one, so that it might
go to the jury for their information. Mri Coltman
declared that he.considered the sketches, us far as the
gacd.é'znd j)lan's,wem__conéermd, correct. Relative to the
trdck-of the carts, and the route of the horsemen, in
which: the two plans did not precisely agree, Jr. Colt-
snan declined speaking postitvely, stating his difficully
{0 arise from is being in very dry weather that he vi-
sited the spot, whereas he understood it to have been
completely. mire at the time of the party passing on
the 19th June. .

My, Colimen~The Half-breeds told me when
on the spot, that there was a swamp at the back
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of the road, in which their horses were up to their
bellies, and that therefore they were obliged, on
the 19th June, to take that route which is marked
on this plan, (that of Mr. Sherwdod.) The other
side told me very nearly the same, as far.as [ re-
‘collect, but if the Caurt will excuse me while I
look for my minutes of Mr. Nolin's 6bservations, I
may perhaps shew the difference. Mr. Coltman,
“having looked among his papers for a short time, said
he could not find his note of Mr. Nolin's remarks.
But my impression is; that he told me that the In-
“dians informed him shortly after, ‘and that he, as
I understood him, believed them, that théy went
as far from: the fort as the road would allow..

- After some remarks in.the nature of a conversation
between the gentlémen engaged in examining the dia-
grams,* the Court retired for a few ninutcs’; upon
resuming their seats; Mr. Coltman not having veturn-
ed, 1t was understood the Crown officers would cross-

‘examine him afterweards. : .

* For the more petfect elucidation of the importanit' points
connected with this part of thé-enquiry, the reader is referred
to the following affidavits sworn before Mr. Coltinan on the spot.

I. One of Mr. William Smitli, under-sheriff of the Western
district of Upper Canada, tecording the Commissionets® visit to
the battle ground, &¢. - ’ -

II. Oune of Mr. Peter Fidler, the person employed on behalf
of Lord Selkirk to survey it. = - _

II. Oie by J. B. Fonlaine, and Frangois Bono, who were
with the Half-breed’s party; invalidating Mr. Fidler's statement.

. PRC TINCES OF )  Recoms of a visit to the route
Lower anp Upper Canapa, 3 whereby the Métifs or Half breeds,
AND Inprin TERRITORIES. § and others, proceeded past’ Fort

Douglas, near the Forks of the Red River, to the Grenouiiliere,
at the computed distatice of fivé miles and a half from the said
fort, on the nineteenth day of June, 1816, and of that by which
i portion of the said parties retirned from the said Grenouilliers

Qa&
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NICHOLAS DUCHARME, Swori.
Eramined by Mr Sherwood, by interpreter.
Ducharme—1 know that the battle between the

‘North-West people and Mr. Semple’s, was fought
upon the 191§ June, 1816. [ know Paul Browu,

to the spot where the fatal rencontre took place between themy
and ‘the colonists, living near Fort Douglas, under the command
-of governor Semple, made this lenth day:of July, 1817, by the
‘honourable WirLiam BacueLor COLTMA.N, Esquire, one of His
Majesty’s executive council for the province of Lower Canada,
Lieutenant-Colone! in His Majesty’s Indian depattment, one of
His Majesty’s justices of the peace for the Western district of
‘Upper Canada, and one of the special commissioners for enquir-
ing into the crimes and offences committed in the Indian terri-
tories, and a deputation of the Métifs or Half-breeds, accompa-
nied by messieurs Simon M'Gillivray and Pierre De Rochebla'.e,
Esquires, and Mr. William Smith; under-sheriff of the Western
district of Upper Canada, and’ Jomed on the route by Chevalicr
De Lorimier, Esquire, captain in His Majesty’s Indian department,
and Mr. Louis Nolin, interpreter. The said parties proceeded .
from the Forks along the high-way running S.5.W. three miles
-or thereabouts, the guide there halted a\nd declared that the
Métifs or Half-breeds and others left the road here to pursue
their route in rear of the fort to the Grencuilliere with horses
and two carts laden with provisions, and that their orders were
to keep as for back as the swamp would permit, Fort Douglas
bearing N.E. distant about three miles, and the Grenomlhere
N.N.E. distant about eight miles. The guide then proceeded
ina N. by E. direction along faint- tracks of horses and cart-
wheels one mile where the guide said was a swamp on the said
nineteenth day of June, 1816, although now dry from the un-
common drought of this summer, then on one quarter of a mile
to another swamp, sthen half a mile to another swamp, ther
one quarter of a-mile to another swamp, then about two miles
to the rear of Fort Douglas bearing S.E. distant about two miles
and a half, {hen half a mile to a swamn, then three quarters of
a mile to a gully, this the guide said was belly deep to the hor-
ses, and thatone <f ihe horses gave out here and was left behind,
then on one quarler of a mile to where the party were joined by
captain De Lorimier and interpreter Nolin. Here Mr. Nolin said
be first saw from Fort Douglas the Métifs or Half-breeds and
uthers on their route in rear of the fort towards the Grenouilliere
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{#e poinied him out at the bar,) and he was not in
that battle. I was encamped below the Frog
Plains, to meet the people who were to come
on the said nineteenth day of June, 1816, but that they had
becn previously seen by others with a spy-glass, Fort Douglas
bearing from this S.5.E. distance, since accurately measured, two
wiles, one furlong and forty yards, then on in a N.E. by E. di-
rection two miles or thereabouls to a swamp, then one quarter
of a mile to the high-way near the Grenouilliere, - Fort Douglas
bearing S.W. distant about four miles and a half. Here the
guide said the advanced party let loose their horses, which they
had scarcely effected, when -oneiBattoche, a Hall-breed, on
horseback, came up from the rear where the carts still were,
and said that governor Semple, with a party of armed men, had
marched out of the fort and were coming towards them, that the
advanced party immediately returned upalong the high-way about
half a mile to a point of wood ; here the guide said they saw
governor Semple and his party about half a mile distant hehind
a copse of underwood, when a shot was fired, but, if fired at
them,, the distance was too great to reach the said Half-breeds;
that the said Half-breeds aud others then advanced within gun-
shot of them, dividing into two parties, advancing one on each
flank of governor Semple and his party. From this position they
sent one Boucher on horseback to demand what governor Sem-
ple’s intentign was in pursuing them, after somne conversation,
governor Semple seized hold of the bridle of the said Boucher’s
horse, and ordered his meu to fire, Fort Douglas bearing S.
distance, since accurately measured, one wmile, seven furlongs,
and one hundred and two yards. Here the conflict commenced,
and continued to a point of wood where a field-piece was post~
ed, and which bad burnt priming several times, dislant about
half a mile. Here the guide said the conflict ended, Fort Doug-
las*bearing S.E. over a point of wood which conceals it from
view, distance, since accurately measured, one mile, one fur-
long, and eighteen yards. From this point the field-piece was
taken back into the fort. .

At the request of the honourable William Bachelor Coltinan,
Esquire, one of the special commissioners, &c. &c. &c. [
have signed this record at the Forks of Red River, this 14
July, 1817.

(Signed) Wa SMITH.
Sworn at the Forks of Red River, .
this fifteenth day of July, 1817,
before me,

(Signed) W. B. COLTMAN.
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there, and in going I met.Paul Brown, who had
just arrived with a cart and a load of "provisions.
The firing continued some time after [ met Brown,

PROVINCES OF, Derosition of Perer Finieg,
Lowes anp Upper Csanani, » before me, Williamm Bachelor
axp Inpran Tererrories. Y Coliman, one of the special com-

missioners for enquiring into crimes committed in the Indian
territories, and -one 'of His Majesty’s justices of the peace for the
- Western district of Upper Canada.: " R '
" Peter Fidler being duly'sworn, deposeth that on or about the
wentieth day of July last, he went in company with one An-
toine Decharme and two other assistants, namely, cne Antoine
Payé and one La Branche, to survey the route by which the
Hali-breeds and other servants of the North West Company pro-
ceeded totvards Frog Plain, on the 19th day of Juue, 1816,
which track was pointed out by the said Antoine Decharme,
who stated that on that occasion he had conducted one of the
two carts which were loaded with provisions and accompanied
the servants’ of the North West Company. ~ That the said De-
charme first conducted the deponent along the catt-road that
Yeads from the Forks towards the passage of the Assiniboin Ri-
ver to a spof a little beyond Catfish Creek, from which depo-
nent observed that Sturgeon Creek or River was distant about
two miles, the toad bearing south 69° west. Thai-the depo-
nent was informed by the said Decharme that the Half-breeds
had come along the said road from Sturgeon River, and at the
place aforesaid, near Catfish Créek, had turned to the left across
the plain. 'That deponent accordingly commenced his survey
at the place aforesaid, taking the bearings with a good surveyors’
compass, and measured the distances with a line of which de-
porent tried the lé’pgth immediately before and after the survey,
and thereby found the courses and distinces along the said track
from Catfish Creek to Frog Plain to be as follows :— '
Courses. Distances. o :
N. 34° E.—32 chains. At 10 chains cross Catfish Creek. At
T " 21 chains cross a cart track trending north
-~ westerly. At 32 chains a bush-of willows,
from whence Fort Douglas bore N. 59° E.
N. 27° E.~104 chains. At 41 clains a grassy swale, (some-
times incomectly called a swamp, bat
which may be passed, without difficulty,
at any day, however wet,) two chains
across. At 61 chains a low bottom, 50
yards wide. At 70 chains along a nar-
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and he was with me all the time till it was com-
pletely over;and I'am therefore sure that he was
not in the battle. :

PRSNEISEE, . N

row swale, close ‘on the leit about 50
yards wide trending N.W. about half a
mile long. At 102 chains in-which- cross
a'swale 300 yards wide. At 130 chains
bushes of willows extending about 100
yards on the left, and nearly to the Assi-
niboin River, an the right a low bottom.
At 145 #hains and cross a cart track going -
towards Brandon-house. At 180 chains
low ground, pethaps. at times rather wet.
At 192 chains bushes of willows. At 194,
chains a high bush of willows. From this
spot observed Fart Douglas to bear S. 85° -
Courses.  Distances. . then

N. 37° E.-214 chains. At 80 chains Fort' Douglas at right
. : angles with the raad we go. At 130
chains low ground, 4 chains across and
perhaps 6 or 8 chains to the right aad
left. At 210 chains Seven-oaks Creek,
and cross it near the scene of the massa-

cre.

N. 479 E.—75 chains. At 55 chaias-a swale of 1 chain across. .
At 75 chains a deep creek, and here join
the great cart road Irom the Forks to the
Frog Plaia.

N. 12° E.—75 chains. At 2 chains a creek. At 27 chains a
smalt point of woods. At .75 chains ar-
tive at the Frog Plains.

That this deponent hath drawn a plan of the said route, and
the ground about the same, which plan he hath signed and which
accompanies this deposition. That the caid plan hath been
drawn so as to exhibit the said route, in exact conformity lo the
information of the said Ducharme, and hath a correct scale
whereby the bearings and distances of the said route at its diffe-
zent points from Fort Douglas may be seen with precision. That
if-the said Half-breeds, and other servants of thie North-West
Company, had thought fit te pass at a greater distance from Fort
Douglas than the said route, there was no natural or other im-
pediment to prevent it. That the ground was, and is, equally
passable for horses and carriages at any distance, from half a
league to half a dozen leagues, back of the fort as in the route
chosen by the said Half-hreeds and other servants of the North
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C'ross-examination cohductgd by the ﬂt&qrney-Gelzerqi;
JAtiorney-General—How many Bois-brulés did

you see arrive at first?
Ducharme—There were only two Bois-brulés

West €ompany, and would have afferded, any where within
the said distance, a road easy and without obstructions. That
the said route passes at one place wnhm less than a mile and a
half of Fort Douglas, from whence-there were no trees nor other
object to interrupt the view, the %round being clear and level.
That the place where governor Semple was stated to have been
killed, and whex'eon this deponent hath ‘himself seen some re:
mains of the slam several months ago, was within less than two
miles of the fort, and was not more than half the dMance to
which the habitatiens of the settlers extended down the river,
bat was, in fact, copsiderably above the centre of the settle-
ment along the road, followed by the said governor Semple

(Signed) o - PETER FIDLER

Swern at Red River, this ‘
4th day of August, 1817,
before me

(Signed) W. B. COLTMAN.

1L

PROVINCES OF BarrisTe LAFONTAINE and
LoweR axD UrPER Caxapg, p ss. FRAN(;OIS Bovo, of Red Ri:
AND IM)IAN TERRITORIES. ver, in the Indian ferritories,
being duly sworn on the Holy Evapgelists, depose and say that
on the nineteenth dsy of June, one thousand elbhl hundred
and snxteen, the Half-breeds or Brulés, and others, in charge of
provisions for the North West Company, left the road usually
travelled between the Forks of Ried Riverand the river La Sou-
1is, at the usual crossing place at Slurgeon River, for the pur-
pose of conveying the said provisions 1o Frog Plain through the
meadows. That the said Half-breeds and others were induced
10 leave the main road by a desire to avoid any meeting with
the persons in charge of Fort Douglas, baving previously re-
ceived orders to that effect; and thal the said Haif-breeds and
others did not at any time, whlle crossing from. Sturgeon River
te the Grenouillicre on the said nineteenth day of June, ap-
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arrived at first. They came about sun-set. The
large party came about dusk in the evening. It
was after the battle, for I did not see the party of
Bois-brulés till after the battle at the plains. '

proach, to.the best of their knowledge, nearer than three miles
1o the said fort. That the said Half-breeds and others did not
on that day ‘molest any settler or other person belonging to the
colony at Red River, till their arrival at the Grenouilliere, and
afterwards returning, as governor Semple was discovered ap-
proaching with an armed party, apparently in a hostile manner.
And these deponents further say, that they are well acquainted
with the ground where the unhappy contest took place, between
the said gavernor Semple and party and the said Half-breeds, and
that Fort Douglas is not visible' from any part of the ground on
which the same was f. ught, being distant therefrom, as deponents
think, at least tho miles, and concealed from view by "a point
of woods. ‘That the persons who conducted the carts with the
%aid provisions were Paul Brownand oue Faignant, Half-breeds,

and that a person of the name of Decharme, represented to

these deponents to have been guide to Mr. Peter Fidler, in tak-

ing a survey of the said route, 'was not with the said party of

Half-breéds, having been left at Portage des Prairies, with other

persons, in charge of Mr. Alexande